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@
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@
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
25,423 27,732 28,026 30,605 28,421
(29,120) (31,764) (32,101) (35,055) (32,553)
27,216 24,461 25,557 25,198 24,352
(31,173) (28,018) (29,273) (28,862) (27,893)
-1,794 3,272 2,469 5,407 4,069
(-2,055) (3,748) (2,828) (6,193) (4,661)
-2,480 3,172 3,502 6,235 3,207
(-2,841) (3,633) (4,011) (7,142) (3,673)
1,259,797 1,013,355 1,062,327 943,256 935,353
(1,442,971)| (1,160,697)| (1,216,789)| (1,080,405)| (1,071,353)
45,949 48,002 52,108 55,248 53,662
(52,630) (54,981) (59,685) (63,281) (61,464)
16,491 20,608 22,902 29,433 28,265
(18,889) (23,604) (26,232) (33,713) (32,375)
384 384 384 386 386
(440) (440) (440) (442) (442)
-5.1 6.7 7.0 11.7 5.9
261,800 228,557 221,150 212,609 225,743
(299,866) (261,789) (253,305) (243,522) (258,566)
258,113 225,153 217,158 208,186 223,232
(295,643) (257,890) (248,733) (238,456) (255,690)
Tier 1
15.3 18.5 19.9 19.5 17.5
Tier 1

9.8 12.8 14.2 15.4 14.5
22.6

18.9 22.2 25.6 24.9
16.3

11.4 15.4 19.0 21.0
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8.6
13.3
1,216,561 1,022,924 1,006,001 904,518 875,325
(1,393,449)( (1,171,657)| (1,152,274)| (1,036,035)( (1,002,597)
1,206,214 1,015,306 999,124 898,251 870,942
(1,381,598)| (1,162,931)| (1,144,397)( (1,028,857) (997,577)
Tier 1
3.3 4.1 4.4 4.6 4.5
Tier 1

2.1 2.8 3.1 3.6 3.7
5.8

3.6 4.7 5.4 5.7
4.2

2.4 3.4 4.1 4.9
2.2
3.4
67,160 54,374 7,231 1,997 -17,413
(76,925) (62,280) (8,282) (2,287) (-19,945)
-14,879 5,457 2,596 -8,434 36,359
(-17,042) (6,250) (2,973) (-9,660) (41,646)
-38,110 -47,555 2,081 -5,573 6
(-43,651) (-54,469) (2,384) (-6,383) @)
99,108 96,284 116,715 102,962 121,107
(113,518) (110,284) (133,685) (117,933) (138,716)
62,628 60,205 60,155 58,131 56,208

/UBS AG
SRB 2012 12 31
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2016 SRB
SRB 2015 12 31
2015 12 31 SRB
2012 12 31
2015 UBS AG
2013 2014
b)
)
( C )
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
-6,645 2,753 7,849 11,984 3,244
(-7,611) (3,153) (8,990) (13,726) (3,716)
17,374 17,074 18,297 15,263 15,111
(19,900) (19,557) (20,957) (17,482) (17,308)
775,687 715,917 777,893 477,045 439,476
(888,472) (820,011) (890,999) (546,407) (503,376)
33,176 35,437 42,376 51,728 51,539
(38,000) (40,590) (48,537) (59,249) (59,033)
384 384 384 386 386
(440) (440) (440) (442) (442)
UBS AG GAAP 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
FINMA 201571 2014 12 31 2013 12 31 2012 12 31
FINMA 2008/2
1862
1872 1998 29
2014 UBS UBS Group AG
UBS AG
UBS
2014
2014 12 UBS AG UBS AG
2015 UBS AG 33
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
100
2015
UBS AG  UBS AG
2015 UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG
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AG
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2016
Tier 1 AT1
AG
UBS AG
UBS
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AG
TLAC
AG 2017
TLAC

UBS AG
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TLAC
UBS
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AG
UBS
UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG
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2016 12
UBS SE UBS Europe SE UBS
SE UBS AG UBS Deutschland AG

UBS 100

Swiss Accreditation Service of the State Secretariat for Economic Affiars

2016
UBS UBS

UBS

UBS
UBS
UBS
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2016
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180
100
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208
UBS USA FDIC UBS AG
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2016 Euromoney
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Best Domestic Cash Manager Switzerland
R&M UBS
UBS 1S0
2016
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2016 UBS
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UBS AG UBS Group AG
8001 45
Bahnhofstrasse 45, 8001 Zirich, Switzerland
2016 12 31 UBS AG 0.10
3,850,766,389 385,076,638.90
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
100.00 2016 12 31
2016 12 31 UBS AG UBS AG
UBS
AG UBS AG 2017
UBS AG
UBS AG 2016 12 31
UBS AG UBS
AG 2017 UBS
AG
@
28
(€)) 2016 12 31
)
9,717
13,512
5,100
2,308
4,734
20,837

UBS AG 56,208
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@
2016 UBS AG 155 9,100 7,860
3,100 840
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UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
2015 2016
4,100 28 19 4,800
3,100 15 23 9,700
6,400 11 72 9,100
2016 2,300
Visa Europe 2,100 2015
6,900 SIX 1,500
7,800
72 9,300
500 23 3,100
ALM
7,200 35 4,800
8,100 13 9,700
2015
4,500
1,100 2,000
2015
2,200 53 4,300
4,600 48 9,600

8,300 23 4,900
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1,600
22 9,600
300 4,000
1,400 8,500
3,500
5,900
23 4,800 1,500 20 900
228 268
99
2.3 2.8
80 140
234 273
300 9,770
270 190
130 10
26.4 26.9
67.0 73.2 64.5
67.1 55 65
10,239 9,721
160 3,859 358 5,862
82
2015 2016
6,400 48 11 1,800

7,600 43 12 5,000
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1,800 78 7,100
800 78 6,100
6,900 14 8,400
12
8,500 48 8,000
4,000 14 7,400
4,700 67 5,200
6,900 66 1,000
6,000
2,800 48 7,400 100
48 6,700
6,900 7,600
90.1 85.8
88.5 84.1 75 85
UBS
214 154 2.1
1.5
780 1,110 620
150 350 3,860
34.0 34.7
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 85
13,526 115 7,025
30 6,501
2015 2016
1,400 17 6,000
7,300 17 5,400
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700 39 8,400 2016
200
2,100 6,600
5,000 38 6,100
7,100 21 9,900
ALM
900 5,300
ALM
6,900 10 2,800
2015
4,500 2016
7,100 1,100
3,700 600
700 22 2,400
2,300 21 700
2,800 4,500
2,100 8,500
300
10 8,000
1,100
6,700
57.0 55.7 55.4
54.5 50 60
163
140 180

2.4 3.1
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200
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5,058
5,143
3,200 23 5,200
AFS 5,600
5,800
19 3,100
7,000
AFS
3,700 18 1,000
3,200 2,200
43 26
14 7,900
13 7,900
2,700 1,300
1,200
4,100
2,600
71.7 76.6 69.6
60 70
0.1

125
72

UBS

37/624



70

6,500
220
2016 12 31

4,200

2015 12 31
2,308

2015 2016

100

6,560

3,850

34
20

130

2016
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8,800 47 10 400
8,500 34 15 300
11 3,300 13 76 8,800
IHS 7,800
2016 1,100 2015 88 1,000
12 14 76 1,000
7,800
7,800
6,800
1,100 16
7,800 (20 ) 23 8,200
22
1,800 9,100
25
7,300
7,400
4,900 4,000
8,100 6,000
7,300 8,400
1,100 10 53
1,800 2016 7,800 2015
1,100
7,800 11 52 4,000
14
7,600 34 8,600
4,600 12 2,500
2,400 2,200
5,200 15 2,900

2015
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3,600 18 3,100
7,800 1,100
19 5,600 17 5,300 2015
2015
4,500 66 8,400
1,500 61 700
32 2,000 30 8,200 32
600 29 2,800
4,100 500
3,400 9,100
4,400
9,800
8,000
28 1,700
27 6,500 24 4,100 23 5,500
78.0 86.8 73.5
80.1 70 80
2016 ROAE 13.1 19.6
15
RWA 2016 12 31 75 704
850
RWA 35 RWA 27
RWA 15
2016 12 31 370 2,310
3,250
2016
2016 12 31
2015 12 31 5,243 509 4,734

2015 2016
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1,800
4,900 10 5,600
1,200
4,100 200
7,800 2,000
3,700
2,200
ALM
6,300 89 1,100
IT
11 2,500 11 4,100
8,100 77 7,000
200 38 100
1,600 32 8,300
3,800 41 4,500
4,200
6,800 4,400
81 6,400 82 1,500
72 3,100
70 8,000
10 5,900
4,700 1,900
9,000
1,300

2015 2016
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ALM
1,800
200 9,600
REM
ALM REM
REM
REM
ALM LRD 2015 12 31
7,700
ALM
9,700
7,800
7,200
6,800 Tier 1
5,800
4,700
2016
3,200 1,200
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700
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6,200
ALM 6,700
2,900
ALM

ALM

ALM 2,700
6,600
7,400
1,900
4,300 200
2016
5,600 700
2015
LIBOR
3,300 3,700
ALM 2016
ALM 1,200
2015 5,600
300 2,670
230
180
UBS SE
ALM
ALM

ALM
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2016 12 31

2015

2015

9,900

2015

2016

220

RWA 50
RWA
ALM
2,480
11 1,400
300 3,600
2,300 17 10 7,800
5,000
3,600
2016
5,000
940 680
PRVs 220
PRVs
120
2016 12 31 20
RWA RWA
120
LRD
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2,720
15 300
2016
8,400
3,300
40
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RWA LRD
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

2.5 3.6 | 42.6| 55.9 9.4 | 17.8

PRVS

95

0.8 0.7 | 145| 223 20| 2.8

PRVS 40

2021
2015 0.5 0.5 1.0 2.0 2.2 7.0
ABS

CDS 2.4 1.5 1.4 1.8 1.4 1.9

2018

APS ARS
APS 2016 12 31 APS
A ARS 0.7 0.9 2.5 2.8 25| 2.8
Bal
ARS
PRVS 95
2016 12 31 0.4 0.5 2.3 3.4 1.7| 2.5
1.5 1.8 4.2 6.3 3.2 | 35
01| 211 - - - -
RWA
18.9 | 30.7 | 68.5| 94.4| 22.4] 385
2016 12 31 685 2015 12 31 944
565 2015 12 31
785
SRB
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ALM
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG UBS
50
UBS AG UBS
AG
UBS UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS UBS AG
UBS

UBS AG

UBS

Tier 1 CET1

2020
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15
CET1 13
CET1 10
50
2016
0.60
2015 71
2011
2014
60 70
15
Tier 1 13
2,500
9,500
2017 21
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2016 SRB UBS AG 2016
Capital Management
Tier 1 CET1 10
UBS AG 2016 Capital Management RWA FINMA
RWA LRD
2013 2015
2017
55 65 10 15
75 85
140 180
50 60
60 70
10
15
70 80
850
3,250
UBS AG 2016
Capital Management RWA FINMA
RWA LRD
RWA LRD
2016
2016
2016
OPEC
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2020

12.4

50/624

2016

14.0

9.5

10.4

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn



BCBS

2016 11 BCBS

G-SIBs

2017

RWA

2016 BCBS

2004

BCBS
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FINMA
BCBS

BCBS

TLAC
2015

2016
UBS

EC

2016

RWA

BCBS FINMA
2016 12 31
IFRS
CECL 2016 10 BCBS
IFRS
UBS 2018 IFRS
IFRS Tier 1
BCBS
2017
MREL
11 FSB TLAC
TLAC
2016
2020 UBS TLAC RWA 28.6
10
TLAC
11 MREL
D-SIBs
2020 D-SIBs
2022
2016 11 (EC) FSB TLAC MREL
G-Slls 2019
2022 18 6.75
MREL
MREL
12 TLAC
G-SIBs G-SIBs IHCs UBS
LLC IHCs
2.5 3.5
G-SIB TLAC TLAC
IHCs TLAC
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2015
2017

GAAP

BCBS

IRB

2016

TLAC

MREL

RWA 16

G-Slls

RWA 16



2016
2016 12
2016
2017
2016 11

UBS

G20

12

TLAC

UBS

2014

2017
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AEI
2017 2017
2018
FINMA
2016 FINMA
FINMA
FINMA
2016 11 FINMA
FINVMA IT
FINMA 2017 UBS
2016 12
FinSA FinlA
2015 11 FinSA FinlA
FinSA FinlA
2017

EC
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2016 11

2016
2017
2017

2018

30

UBS

2016

DOL
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(EC)  FSB TLAC
G-SIBs
Tier 1 G-SllIs 100
EC
UBS
24
50
2019
MiFID Il MiFIR
MiFID Il MiFIR 2014
2017
2018 MiFID Il MiFIR
MiFID Il MiFIR
EBR 2016
2018 2018
EBR
2018
UBS
EBR
DOL 1974 ERISA
2017 DOL 2017 10
60
2017
DOL
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ERISA
UBS
2017
CCAR 2017
0.25
UBS LLC
2016 CCAR
2016
500
UBS
Tier 15
Tier
UBS

UBS

2016
IFRS
2014 1ASB 2018
1AS
1ASB

IFRS
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LLC

CCAR

2017 CCAR

CCAR
CCAR

25
LLC

IFRS

oClI
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IFRS

IFRS

2015 11

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

I1AS
IFRS
2018
UBS
2017
IFRS

2017
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ocClI
oClI
2016
39 IAS 37
ECL
EDTF
IFRS
2015
IFRS
GPPC 2016 11
BCBS
2016
2017
IFRS
2017 12 31 2018
2018
ALM
IFRS
1ASB
UBS
1ASB IFRS 2018
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IAS 39
IFRS
oClI
12 ECL 12 ECL
12
12 ECL
SICR
ECL
ECL SICR ECL
UBS 12
ECL 12
ECL
ECL PD
LGD EAD ECL
TTC
PIT PIT PD PIT LGD
LGD
ECL
UBS ECL UBS
ECL
UBS
PIT PD
SICR
BCBS SICR
30 SICR 30

SICR
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ECL

2016

Pillar 1 IFRS PD PIT

ECL

IFRS ECL

ECL SICR

2016

2018
IFRS

SICR

ECL SICR

IFRS

IAS 39
ECL IFRS

IFRS ECL

SICR

ECL
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12
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
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IFRS
2017
2018
IFRS
A-1RB IFRS
oClI
oClI
12 A-1RB 12 SICR IFRS
12
SICR
EAD IFRS EAD
UBS
EAD EAD
EAD
EAD 12 UBS
12 SICR 12
PD TTC PD
PD PIT
PD
LGD LGD LGD
PD
LGD LGD TTC PD LGD PIT
FDF FINMA
2017 FDF FINMA
2017 10
NSFR

NSFR
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Tier 1

HQLA

NSFR

2016 12 31

UBS

2016

LCR

Tier 1 CET1

RWA

Tier 1

RWA

EU
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2007
2009

RWA

UBS

UBS

too-big-to-fail TBTF
SRB
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RWA

BCBS

LCR NSFR

UBS

AG

SRB

UBS AG
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50
LIBOR
2012 12
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a non-prosecution agreement NPA UBS
2015 DOJ UBS
NPA
UBS AG LIBOR
300
2007 2009
2011

2012 LIBOR
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Tier 1 13
Tier 1 10
50
Tier 1 13
Tier 1
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Tier 1
RWA
CST
CST
CST
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UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
FINMA
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG FINMA
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FINMA
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UBS AG
UBS
2017
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG

UBS AG

UBS AG
AG UBS UBS
UBS AG
AG
AG UBS
AG
AG
UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
2016 12 31
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG
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UBS AG SRB
2016 2015 10
SRB 2016 2020
2016 12 31 UBS AG
10.94 3.0
RWA 3.5 LRD 1.0
SRB
SRB SRB
2016 12 31
Tier 1 8.31 18,760 2.30 20,132 10.19 22,737 3.50 30,483
6.18 13,940 2.30 20,132 4.50 10,045 1.50 13,064
1.95 4,402 5.50 12,278 2.00 17,419
0.19 418 0.19 414
Tier 1 2.63 5,926 0.70 6,127 4.30 9,599 1.50 13,064
Tier 1 1.83 4,120 0.70 6,127 3.50 7,813 1.50 13,064
Tier 1 0.80 1,806 0.80 1,786
10.94 24,686 3.00 26,260 14.49 32,336 5.00 43,547
3.50 7,901 1.00 8,753 14.30 31,922 5.00 43,547
3.50 7,901 1.00 8,753 14.30 31,922 5.00 43,547
14.44 32,587 4.00 35,013 28.79 64,258 10.00 87,094
Tier 1 17.49 39,474 4.51 39,474 14.53 32,447 3.73 32,447
Tier 1
5.14 11,610 1.33 11,610 1.72 3,848 0.44 3,848
Tier 1 0.54 1,208 0.14 1,208 1.72 3,848 0.44 3,848
Tier 2
4.61 10,402 1.19 10,402
22.63 51,084 5.84 51,084 16.26 36,294 4.17 36,294
8.58 19,372 2.21 19,372 13.34 29,774 3.42 29,774
TLAC 7.51 16, 960 1.94 16, 960 7.60 16,960 1.95 16,960
8.58 19,372 2.21 19,372 13.34 29,774 3.42 29,774
31.21 70,456 8.05 70,456 29.60 66,068 7.59 66,068
2016
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG 22 5,000
35
2016 12 31 UBS AG CET1 700
8,500 4,500
2,700 2016 12 31
0.19
RWA 1.44 LRD 0.5 Tier 1
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SRB
Tier 2 SRB
2019 12 31
2020 50

TLAC UBS
TLAC
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SRB SRB
SRB 2020 SRB
SRB SRB
2016 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2015 12 31
Tier 1 39,474 32,447 41,516 32,042
Tier 1 1,208 3,848 0 1,252
Tier 1 1,208 3,848 0 1,252
Tier 1 40,682 36,294 41,516 33,294
Tier 2 10,402 10,325 10,325
Tier 2 996
Tier 2 10,402 11,321 10,325
51,084 36,294
52,837 43,619
Tier 1 1,071 1,071
Tier 1 642 642
Tier 1 1,713 1,713
Tier 2 10,402
Tier 2 698 698
Tier 2 698 11,100
TLAC 16,960 16,960
19,372 29,774
70,456 66,068
225,743 223,232 212,609 208,186
875,325 870,942 904,518 898,251
Tier 1 19.5 16.0
24.9 21.0
22.6 16.3
Tier 1 17.5 14.5 19.5 15.4
8.6 13.3
31.2 29.6
5.7 4.9
5.8 4.2
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Tier 1 4.5 3.7 4.6 3.6
2.2 3.4
8.0 7.6
2016 UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG 22 5,000
35 2016 12 31 UBS AG CET1
700 8,500
4,500 2,700
SRB
SRB
Tier 1 ATl 38 4,800 26 3,900
AT1 12 5,200
Tier 1 19 5,400 AT1 10
7,100 SRB
Tier 1 Tier 2 SRB
50
TLAC
UBS TLAC
SRB Tier 1
UBS AG UBS AG
2016 12 31 UBS AG UBS
AG 36 Tier 1 AT1 53
Tier 1 CET1 18
AT1 11
Tier 2
CET1 18 UBS AG
AT1 53 UBS
AG AT1 2014 2015 2016
DCCP
Tier 2 UBS AG
2012 2013 DCCP
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG 2016 12 31
UBS AG UBS
AG 0.4 UBS AG
36
SRB Tier 1 IFRS UBS AG UBS AG
SRB 2020 SRB
2016 12 31

79/624



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooo0000
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
IFRS 54,302 54,343 41) 54,302 54,343 1)
(682) (682) 0 (682) (682) 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
(5,042) (5,042) 0 (8,403) (8,403) 0
(741) (639) (102) (1,835) (L,666) (169)
(3,959) (3,959) 0 (6,599) (6,599) 0
(241) (241) 0 (241) (241) 0
972) 972) 0 (972) ©72) 0
(1,589) (1,589) (1,589) (1,589)
(294) (294) 0 (294) (294) 0
(262) (262) 0 (262) (262) 0
(68) (68) 0 (68) (68) 0
(129) (129) 0 (129) (129) 0
(2,250) (2,250 0 (2,250) (2,250 0
(286) (331) 45 (286) (331) 45
Tier 1 37,788 39,474 (1,686) 30,603 32,447 (1,754)
2016 UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG 22 5,000
35 2016 12 31 UBS AG CETL
700 8,500
4,500 2,700
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SRB UBS AG UBS AG
SRB 2020 SRB
2016 12 31
UBS A6 UBS AG UBS e UBS AG
Tier 1 37,788 39,474 (1,686) 30,693 32,447 (1,754)
Tier 1 6,512 1,208° 5,304 6,809 3,848 2,961
Tier 1 o 0 2,342 2,342
Tier 1 6,512 1,208 5,304 9,151 3,848 5,303
Tier 1 44,299 40,682 3,617 39,844 36,294 3,550
Tier 2 891 801
Tier 2 10,402 10,402 0
Tier 2 11,293 10,402 801
55,593 51,084 4,500 39,844 36,294 3,550
Tier 1 1,07* (1,071) 1,07* (1,071)
Tier 1 642 642 0 642 642 0
Tier 1 642 1,713 (1,071) 642 1,713 (1,071)
Tier 2 679 679
Tier 2 10,402 10,402 0
Tier 2 698 698 0 698 698 0
Tier 2 698 698 0 11,779 11,100 679
TLAC 16,890 16,960° 0 16,890 16,960° (70)
18,229 19,372 (1,143) 20,311 29,774 (463)
73,822 70,456 3,366 69,154 66,068 3,086
225,412 205,743 (331) 222,677 223,232 (555)
874,925 875,325 (400) 870,470 870,942 472)
24.7 22.6 2.1 17.9 16.3 1.6
Tier 1 16.8 17.5 0.7) 13.8 14.5 ©.7)
8.1 8.6 0.5) 13.2 13.3 0.1
2.7 31.2 1.5 31.1 29.6 1.5
6.4 5.8 0.6 4.6 4.2 0.4
Tier 1 4.3 4.5 0.2 3.5 3.7 0.2
2.1 2.2 0.1 3.4 3.4 0.0
8.4 8.0 0.4 7.9 7.6 0.3
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2016 UBS AG
35
700
4,500
Tier 1 ATl 68 900
26 3,900
4,800 26 3,900
10 7,100 SRB
TLAC
TLAC

2,700
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UBS
2015 2016
2016 32400
500 2015 62 300
9,800
2016 40 9,000 54 8,900
ALM 11 1,300
4,300
22 8,500
7,300 6,100
8,600
2016 12 31 16 2015
11
2013 2015
SEC GAAP 2016
1,100
2,000 2,100
2,200 2,300
14 5,800 2015
5,300 7,800
2,500 8,800 8,100
1,100
5,700 12 3,500
2,100 1,100
56 3,500 53 4,100
14 1,300 11 1,900
306 500 283 2,000
14 1,300 « ) 281 1,300

4,300 6,000
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11 1,300 113 6,100
2015 5,300
6,000
3,600
29 9,800
200
18 3,900
8,100
25 3,200
ALM
900
42 7,700
1,300
1,700 2015 2015
ALM
2,300
5,100
3,700 1,700
6,800
1,100
600 3,700
4,300 163 9,700
1,200
31 5,500
4,600
7,600 27 8,400
7,700 80

3,500
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11 700 9,900
8,900
8,600 4 242 3,000
9,100
12 3,500 14 5,800
6,900
11 1,900 227 7,200
700 9,200
7,300
6,100 157 2,000
6,000 5,100
7,300
149 6,900
7,500
57 9,500
6,100
3,100
4,900 7,600
1,700
4,500
36 9,700
7,300 74 3,400
6,100 9,500
9,200
9,500 IT
7,900 700

6,600 2,300
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6,500 8,500
700 9,100
2016 10 9,400
8,900 500
5,900
3,500
5,300
4,200
2015 2016
2015 2016
2017
25
2017
2016 32 400 18 1,700
13 8,600 oClI
oClI 9,800 2,400
2016 DBO
oCl 1,900
oClI 6,300
oClI 1,500
DBO 2,800 oClI
6,300 DBO
oClI oClI 1,200
0Cl 500
DBO 7,700 oClI
5,200

oClI 2,400 DBO
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oClI 7,700
3,800
3,300
ocClI 6,600
0Cl 900
0Cl
2016 1,500
0Cl 6,300
oClI
oClI 9,200
2,600
2016 12 31 100
13
oClI
2016
2016 2017
2019 11
2016 2017
2016
8,300
7,900
2017 7,000
2,500

1,000
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2019

2016

2018
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2015

7,300

16

2017

8,200
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2016
80.6
RoTE
Tier 1
13.8
RWA
RWA
2016 12 31
Tier 1
8,700
LCR

ALCO

80.9

150

81.8

13.7
13.7
15

Tier 1
13.0

RWA

3.5
LRD

NSFR

BoD

RWA

2016
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60 70
2016 6.9
2016 9.0
2016 12 31 0.7
RWA 150
Tier 1
2016 12 31 2,230
80
30
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ALCO
HQLA
ALM
ALCO
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 80
9,350
2016
12 31 PRV 60
7,770
270
50
2017
ALM 120
PRV
220
130 90
40
ALM
220 160

70
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110 2,420
PRV 240
170
260 680
PRV 220
PRV 40 120
ALM
ALM 300 2,670
230
180
UBS SE
ALM
40

10 1,160 1,400

50
660
120
240
30
LCR
UBS AG
2016 290
120 1,960

UBS SE
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BCBS 2015
2019 100 UBS
FINMA 110
100
UBS AG UBS AG
FINMA
2016 2015
124 132 190

2016

190
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IFRS

107,765 2 107,767
2,625 10,530 1 13,156
776 328 59,978 3,349 921 65,353
19,887 958 279,733 5,747 306,325
19,887 142,051 161,938
20,663 3,912 59,978 293,612 6,669 384,833
15,111 15,111
658 65,588 66,246
658 80,700 81,358
36,549" 3,006 45,859 2,037 87,452
3,965 804 7,051 11,820
906 860 5,521 7,287
2,037 2,037
3,191 1,343 5,164 9,698
128 557 685
6 255 261
28,360 23,016 51,375
4,550 4,550
9,123 9,123
158,411 158,411
247 15,430 15,676
9,289 9,289
4,329 22,335 26,664
963 963
8,331 8,331
6,556 6,556
13,155 13,155
5,195 20,241 25,436
9,525 9,295 62,287 81,107
2016 12 31 57,213 26,470 238,321 304,944 308,069 935,016
2015 12 31 82,635 37,196 192,755 303,216 327,017 942,819
2016 12 31 316,323 12,632 96,833 3,540 429,327
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2015 12 31 286,757 10,432 99,300 5,022 401,511
2016 12 31
373,536 39,102 335,153 308,484 308,069
200,226
1
302 6,000
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UBS
50 2016 12 31 8,810
160
PRV
90
80 60
330
2016 12 31 63
138 2015 12 31 125
5 40
2016 12 31 20 20
80
60
TLAC 120
30 Tier
70
2016 12 31 16 9,200 536 2,100
32 400 ocl 13
8,600 18 1,700 oClI
2,400 6,600
1,500
0CI17,300 9,200
31 6,400
8,200 29 1,000
6,100

5,600
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NSFR
NSFR ASF RSF
ASF RSF
BCBS
NSFR 2018 100
NSFR FINMA
BCBS NSFR NSFR
NSFR 2017 2017
NSFR
2016 12 31 NSFR 116 2015 12 31
11 160
220
NSFR
ALM
UBS
2016 12 31

18 22 30
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UBS AG UBS AG 2016
2016 11
A2 Al
UBS
UBS Group Funding (Jersey) Limited
2016 11 Baa3 Baa2
2016 UBS AG
UBS AG BBB+
2016 14 UBS AG
UBS AG A
2016 AG UBS AG
UBS AG A

IFRS
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2016 20
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20
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12
107.8 107.8
11.5 0.9 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 13.2
15.1 0.0 15.1
36.8 18.0 5.3 3.2 2.3 0.7 66.2
96.6 96.6
— 158.4 158.4
26.7 26.7
109.4 42.6 12.5 6.6 8.9 22.1 54.2 50.0 306.3
12.0 25.3 5.6 3.2 3.8 13.8 36.1 42.4 142.2
2.9 6.9 1.2 0.4 0.4 1.6 3.8 2.5 19.7
83.0 8.5 4.1 2.3 2.7 2.2 2.0 0.2 105.0
11.6 1.9 1.6 0.6 2.0 4.5 12.3 2.4 36.9
0.0 0.0 2.4 2.5
7.8 10.2 3.6 6.4 7.8 14.7 13.2 1.2 0.5 65.4
0.8 1.2 0.7 0.9 1.4 3.3 3.0 3.5 0.8 15.7
0.0 0.4 0.1 0.9 0.2 1.9 2.6 3.1 9.3
1.0 1.0
8.3 8.3
6.6 6.6
13.2 13.2
20.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.4 2.3 1.9 25.4
2016 12 31 591.6 73.4 22.5 18.2 20.8 43.2 75.4 59.7 30.3 935.0
2015 12 31 614.3 72.4 25.4 23.5 15.4 31.8 75.8 54.9 29.4 942.8
7.4 1.3 1.0 0.5 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.6
2.2 0.6 2.8
4.7 1.0 0.6 0.1 0.0 0.1 6.6
22.8 22.8
— 153.8 153.8
35.5 35.5
406.8 13.3 2.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.6 0.1 423.7
17.0 14.6 4.6 3.4 2.7 2.4 5.0 5.2 55.0
7.7 7.3 11.0 8.6 2.7 9.5 19.7 29.4 7.8 103.6
4.2 4.2
58.0 2.2 0.5 0.5 0.1 0.7 62.0
2016 12 31 720.2 40.4 19.5 12.9 6.0 12.6 25.7 34.8 8.5 880.7
2015 12 31 720.4 46.0 22.6 8.6 3.6 17.7 28.8 32.3 5.4 885.5
54.0 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 54.4
16.7 16.7
10.2 10.2
0.0 0.0
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2016 12 31 81.0 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 81.4
2015 12 31 78.1 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 78.7
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IFRS
SE
12 20 23 28 31 www . ubs.com/investors Pillar 3, SEC filings & other disclosures
Basel 111 Pillar 3 UBS Group AG 2016 report
2016 UBS
2015 12 31 133 2016 12 31 138
2016 2015
2015 200 2016 900

2015 12

31 3,500 2016 12 31 5,400
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60
FINMA
2016 12 31
31
2016 12 31 1,480
570 910
2016 12 31 570
ALM

ALM
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Tier 1 CET1 CET1
ALM UBS AG
ALCO
ALM
2015 12 31 181
2016 12 31 1,211
2016 165
125
607

336

2015 31 64
34

2016 363

541

73 90
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84

32

54

66

UBS
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CEO
GIA
BoD
BoD
BoD
BoD BoD
UBS
BoD
GEB
CEO
BoD
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UBS
CRO
CFO
CFO
CFO
2002 302 404
UBS
UBS
GC
GIA
GIA
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2013
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BoD
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BoD

2016 2016

Tier CET1
2.4 2.5 3.12
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89 88 163
310 (68) 136
0 0 0
310 (68) 136
310 (68) 136
400 21 298
5 3 6
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 @ 3
0 0 0
0 0) 3
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0) 3
0 @ 3
3 1 8
3,766 7,232 4,180
@,217) (694) 1,810
(512 971) 3,055
(766) 278 (1,245)
2,489 6,539 5,989
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31

107,767 91,306 18
10, 11 13,125 11,866 1
24 15,111 25,584 (41)
24 66,246 67,893 ()
22 96,661 124,047 (22)
23 30,260 51,943 “42)
12, 22, 24 158,411 167,435 )
24 26,664 23,763 12
10, 11 307,004 312,723 (@)

22, 24, 25 65,024 5,808
13, 22 15,676 62,543 (75)

13 9,289

28 963 954 1
14 8,297 7,683 8
15 6,556 6,568 0
8 13,144 12,833 2
16 25,412 22,249 14
935,353 943,256 (6H)
17 10,645 11,836 (10)
24 2,818 8,029 (65)
24 6,612 9,653 (32)
22 22,825 29,137 (22)
12, 22, 24 153,810 162,430 )
24 35,472 38,282 )
17 450,199 402,522 12
18, 22, 24 55,017 62,995 (13)
19 78,998 82,359 ()
20 4,169 4,163 0
8, 21 60,443 74,606 (19)
881,009 886,013 (6H)
386 386 0
29,505 29,477 0
28,265 29,433 @
(4,494) (4,047) 1
53,662 55,248 ®)
642 1,954 (67)
40 41 )
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2016 2015 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31
123,436 104,582 18
10, 11 15,033 13,591 11
24 17,308 29,304 (41)
24 75,878 77,765 )
22 110,716 142,083 (22)
23 34,660 59,496 “42)
12, 22, 24 181,444 191,780 )
24 30,541 27,218 12
10, 11 351,642 358,193 )
22, 24, 25 74,478 6,652
13, 22 17,955 71,637 (75)
13 10,640
28 1,103 1,093 1
14 9,503 8,800 8
15 7,509 7,523 0
8 15,055 14,699 2
16 29,107 25,484 14
1,071,353 1,080,405 w
17 12,193 13,557 (10)
24 3,228 9,196 (65)
24 7,573 11,057 (32)
22 26,144 33,374 (22)
12, 22, 24 176,174 186,047 )
24 40,630 43,848 ()
17 515,658 461,049 12
18, 22, 24 63,016 72,154 (13)
19 90,484 94,334 ()
20 4,775 4,768 0
8, 21 69,231 85,454 (19)
1,009,108 1,014,839 (6H)
442 442 0
33,795 33,763 0
32,375 33,713 ()
(5,147) (4,635) 11
61,464 63,281 ®)
735 2,238 (67)

180/624



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooOoog
16 47 &)
62,244 65,566 ®)
1,071,353 1,080,405 [6))
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1
2014 384 33,906 (1,031) 20,608 (5,866) (7,425) 95 1,463 48,002 1,893 41 49,936
0 0 0
(953) (953) (953)
(266) 445 179 179
61 61 61
802 802 802
870 870 870
( ) 3 3 3
(938) (938) (142) “) (1,084)
46 46 46
0 1 1
( ) « ) (2,365) 1,440 (925) 1 (924)
2,294 2,667 1,834 140 693 4,961 260 7 5,229
« ) 3,502 3,502 142 5 3,649
cocn) 2,667 1,834 140 693 2,667 2,667
ot (1,208) (1,208) (1,208)
ot 0 119 3 121
2014 12 31 384 32,057 (37) 22,902 (3,199) (5,591) 236 2,156 52,108 2,013 45 54,165
1 1 1
(292) (292) (292)
290 290 290
( ) 9 9 9
(2,914) ®) (2,922) () ) (3,004)
0 0 0
0 1 1
( ) « ) 35 328 364 (h) 363
6,538 (848) (266) 64) (518) 5,690 18 1 5,709
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304
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1

2015 12 31 386 29,477 0 29,433 (4,047) (5,857) 172 1,638 55,248 1,954 41 57,243
0 0
4 4 4
( ) 25 25 25
(3,434) (3,434) (78) ) (3,517)
0 (1,583) (1,583)
( ) « ) @ @ ®3) 0 @
2,267 (447) 293 (73) (666) 1,820 349 3 2,173
« ) 3,207 3,207 78 4 3,288
447, 293 73 666 447, 447,
(i) (447) 73 (666) (447) (447)

ocl
(824) (824) (824)

ocl
(115) (115) (115)

ocl
0 271 0 271
2016 12 31 386 29,505 0 28,265 (4,494) (5,564) 98 972 53,662 642 40 54,343

1
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« )
1
2014 440 38,836 (1,181) 23,604 (6,719) (8,505) 109 1,676 54,981 2,168 47 57,197
0 0 0
(1,092) (1,092) (1,092)
(305) 510 205 205
70 70 70
919 919 919
996 996 996
( ) 3 3 3
(1,074) (1,074) (163) ) (1,242)
53 53 53
0 1 1
( ) « ) (2,709) 1,649 (1,059) 1 (1,058)
2,628 3,055 2,101 160 794 5,682 298 8 5,989
« ) 4,011 4,011 163 6 4,180
3,055 2,101 160 794 3,055 3,055
(o))

oci (1,384) (1,384) (1,384)
oci 0 136 3 139
2014 12 31 440 36,718 (42) 26,232 (3,664) (6,404) 270 2,469 59,685 2,306 52 62,041
1 1 1
(334) (334) (334)
332 332 332
( ) 10 10 10
(3,338) ©) (3,347) (88) ®) (3,441)
0 0 0
0 1 1
( ) C ) 40 376 417 ()] 416
7,489 (971) (305) 73) (593) 6,517 21 1 6,539
« ) 7,142 7,142 88 3 7,232
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ocl
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1
2015 12 31 442 33,763 0 33,713 (4,635) (6,709) 197 1,876 63,281 2,238 47 65,566
0 0
5 5 5
( ) 29 29 29
(3,933) (3,933) (89) 6) (4,028)
0 (1,813) (1,813)
( ) C ) @ @ (©)] 0 )
2,597 (512) 336 (84) (763) 2,085 400 3 2,489
« ) 3,673 3,673 89 5 3,766
(512) 336 64) (763) (512) (512)
ccr)
oct (944) (944) (944)
oct (132) (132) (132)
oct 0 310 0 310
2016 12 31 442 33,795 0 32,375 (5,147) (6,373) 112 1,113 61,464 735 46 62,244

1
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2016 12 31 UBS AG 3,858,408,466 2015 12 31 3,858,408,466 )
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2016 12 31 UBS AG 136,200,312
2016 12 31

380,000,000
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31

3,288 6,314 3,649
980 918 817

91 107 83

37 117 78
(106) (169) (94)

2 (1,614) (1,635)
(1,176) (934) (227)
9,647 (1,654) 2,135
(300) 3,628 (7,250)
(1,183) 1,768 (1,235)
7,933 (2,712) 32,262
(6,637) (2,909) (3,698)
6,024 6,853 (5,576)
(60,658) (1,446) 2,697
(4,169) 3,285 (7,301)
3,740 841 (20,427)
33,925 (17,362) 8,803
(8,204) 7,516 4,751
(649) (551) (600)
(17,413) 1,997 7,231
(26) (13) (18)

93 477 70
(1,746) (1,841) (1,915)
209 547 350
(7,271) (101,189) (136,330)
54,097 93,584 140,438
(8,996)

36,359 (8,434) 2,59
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oooooog
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
C D
« ) 5,440 (6,404) (2,921)
0 0 (719)
UBS AG (3,434) (2,626) (938)
33,453 47,790 40,982
(34,081) (44,221) (34,210)
(1,366) (108) (110)
®) ®) ®3)
« ) 6 (5,573) 2,081
102,962 116,715 96,284
« ) 18,952 (12,011) 11,908
(807) (1,742) 8,522
2 121,107 102,962 116,715
107,715 91,306 104,073
11,927 10,732 11,772
3 1,465 924 869
C D
12,223 11,144 11,321
6,141 5,267 5,360
4 1,595 2,120 1,961
1 2

2,662 (2016 12 31 ) 3,963

(2015 12 31 ) 4,178 (2014 12 31 ) ( )
23 3

2016 12 31 75 2015 12 31 795 2014 12 31
835 2016 12 31 430 2015 12 31 129

2014 12 31 34 2016 12 31

959 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
( (2016 2015 114
2014 54 )
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ooooooo
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
3,766 7,232 4,180
1,122 1,051 936
104 123 95
42 134 89
(121) (194) (108)
2 (1,849) (1,873)
(1,347) (1,070) (260)
11,050 (1,894) 2.445
(344) 4,156 (8,304)
(1,355) 2,025 (1,415)
9,086 (3,106) 36,953
(7,602) (3,332) (4,236)
6,900 7,849 (6,387)
(69,478) (1,656) 3,089
(4,775) 3,763 (8,363)
4,284 963 (23,397)
38,858 (19,886) 10,083
(9,397) 8,609 5,442
(743) (631) (687)
(19,945) 2,287 8,282
(30) (15) (i)
107 546 80
(2,000) (2,109) (2,193)
239 627 401
(8,328) (115,902) (156,152)
61,963 107,191 160,858
(10,304)
41,646 (9,660) 2,973
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
C )
( ) 6,231 (7,335) (3,346)
0 0 (824)
UBS AG (3,933) (3,008) (1,074)
38,317 54,739 46,941
(39,036) (50,651) (39,184)
(1,565) (124) (126)
) ) (©)
« ) 7 (6,383) 2,384
117,933 133,685 110,284
« ) 21,708 (13,757) 13,639
(924) (1,995) 9,761
2 138,716 117,933 133,685
123,377 104,582 119,205
13,661 12,292 13,484
3 1,678 1,058 995
C )
14,000 12,764 12,967
7,034 6,033 6,139
4 1,827 2,428 2,246
! 2 3,049 (2016 12 31 ) 4,539 (2015 12 31
) 4,785 (2014 12 31 ) ( )
23 3 2016 12 31
86 2015 12 31 911 2014 12 31 956 2016 12 31 493
2015 12 31 148 2014 12 31 39 2016 12 31
1,008 2015 12 31 2014 12 31 4
C ) (2016 57 2015 131 2014 62
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UBS AG

Risk, treasury and capital management

1AS
1b
IFRS
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UBS AG
1
3f 22
7
8
11 15
12 20
UBS AG

AG
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2016
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IRS IRS
UBS AG
IRS 1AS 32 24
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- 12 24
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REM
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c) 2017
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1ASB IFRS
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UBS AG
IFRS
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IFRS 1ASB
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2017 IFRS 2018
UBS AG
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IFRS
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2018
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- b
IFRS 15
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2016 IASB IFRS 16 IAS 17

2019
IFRS 15
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IAS 12

2016 IASB IAS 12

2017
UBS AG

IAS

2016 IASB IAS

UBS AG 2017

IFRS

2016 IASB IFRS 2018
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IFRIC 22

2016 12 IASB IFRS IFRIC 22
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UBS AG
ALM
2016 12 31
1,932 1,347 1,892 33) 1,006 (322) 559 3 6,383
4,975 6,320 1,768 1,957 6,951 250 (229) 84 22,075
cc ALM
cc 389 118 332 7 (260) 36 512) (110) 0
! 7,296 7,785 3,990 1,931 7,697 36) (183) (23) 28,458
( ®) (©) ) 0 ayn 0 0 13) @N
7,201 7,782 3,984 1,931 7,686 (36) (183) (36) 28,421
2,348 4,819 843 727 3,081 3,674 31 66 15,591
653 597 286 242 852 4,312 17 731 7,690
(
2,348 1,235 1,079 505 2,757 (8,156) (49) 280 0
cc
2,256 1,221 1,186 530 2,667 (8,196) 110 225 0
2 2 15 1 21 938 0 0 980
4 50 0 4 12 21 0 0 91
8 5,355 6,702 2,224 1,480 6,724 790 @ 1,077 24,352
1,936 1,081 1,761 451 962 (826) (182)  (1,113) 4,069
( 781
« ) 3,288
115,539 65,882 139,945 12,026 242,388 23,813 267,275 68,485 935,353
26 4 23 1 3 1,741 0 0 1,798
1
2016 12 31
15 3

30
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a C )
UBS AG
ALM
2015 12 31
1,825 1,067 1,890 34 1,573 (337) 724 21 6,729
5,859 6,213 1,603 2,077 7,525 434 383 (101) 23,993
cc ALM
cc 471 104 421 15 @11) 145 (832) (114) 0
2 8,155 7,384 3,013 2,057 8,889 243 275 (195) 30,721
( ) 0 0 @37 0 (68) 0 0 ®) @17
8,155 7,381 3,876 2,057 8,821 243 275 (203) 30,605
2,532 4,579 873 729 3,220 3,875 30 116 15,954
650 848 264 233 882 4,517 21 804 8,219
( )
2,289 1,209 1,077 502 2,816  (8,214) 7 379 0
cc
2,209 1,193 1,180 523 2,730 (8,243) 9 313 0
5 3 17 2 26 866 0 0 018
3 3 51 0 8 24 21 0 0 107
4 5,478 6,689 2,231 1,475 6,969 1,065 ) 1,298 25,198
« ) 2,676 692 1,646 583 1,852 (822) 281 (1,501) 5,407
( ) (908)
«C ) 6,314
119,850 60,993 141,174 12,874 253,571 22,866 237,560 94,369 943,256
6 4 14 1 18 1,844 0 1 1,888
1
2
b 2015 12 31
4
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a C )
UBS AG
ALM
2014 12 31
1,603 864 1,801 39) 1,583 (338) 731 258 6,555
5,726 6,004 1,575 1,914 6,823 157 101 (751) 21,549
cc ALM
cc 481 116 461 27 (100) 217 (831) 37D 0
2 7,902 6,984 3,836 1,902 8,306 35 2 (863) 28,104
( ) 16N 15 (95) 0 2 0 0 2 (78)
7,901 6,998 3,741 1,902 8,308 35 2 (862) 28,026
2,467 4,363 850 643 2,964 3,843 26 124 15,280
918 550 293 305 2,671 4,113 2 505 9,377
( )
2,180 1,137 1,074 478 2,711 (8,046) “8) 514 0
cc
2,122 1,121 1,19 495 2,658  (8,084) 88 404 0
4 0 17 2 32 762 0 0 817
3 5 48 0 9 15 6 0 0 83
4 5,574 6,009 2,235 1,435 8,302 679 0 1,144 25,557
D) 2,326 900 1,506 467 ©4)  (643) 2 (2,005) 2,469
( ) (1,180)
(GID) 3,649
127,588 56,026 143,711 15,207 202,347 19,720 237,901 169,826 1,062,327
7 6 9 2 7 1,677 0 0 1,708
1
2
b 2014 12 31
76 49 23
3 15 4

30

225/624



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

oooooog
b
UBS AG

2016 12 31
11.7 Ll 7.4 a7
11.1 39 7.0 4“4
4.1 14 0.6 4
6.1 21 1.8 1
6.8 24 6.0 38
(0.3) @ 0.0 0
28.4 100 15.8 100

2015 12 31
11.3 37 7.1 a7
10.7 35 6.7 u“
5.0 16 0.5 3
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563.2 17.9 186.9 158.2 17.7 15.1 0.1 1.8
4
158.4 5.3 134.5
6,7 21.9
8 64.8 2.6 0.6
8 14.9
260.0 0.0 7.9 0.0 0.0 134.5 0.6 0.0
823.2 17.9 194.9 158.2 17.7 149.6 0.7 1.8
16.7 1.4 2.0 0.2 1.2 0.1 3.0
o 54.4 0.1 3.9 1.0 9.5 4.8 2.0
10.2 10.2
81.3 1.5 16.1 1.1 10.6 0.0 4.9 5.1
904.5 19.4 210.9 159.4 28.4 149.6 5.7 6.8
2015 12 31
1
89.8
11.9 0.2 0.1
25.6 25.1
67.9 62.8 4.6
3.4 23.8 12.4
312.7 13.7 101.0 164.4 15.2 0.4 2.9
20.1 11.1
551.7 13.7 200.1 164.4 19.8 12.4 0.4 3.0
4
167.4 5.8 142.7
6.7 29.0
8 5.6 3.5 0.1 0.6
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263.7 0.0 9.3 0.0 0.1 142.7 0.6 0.0
815.4 13.7 209.4 164.4 19.8 155.2 1.0 3.0
o 16.0 1.2 2.1 0.2 1.5 0.1 3.0
o 56.1 1.8 1.7 8.7 6.9 2.0
6.6 6.6
78.6 1.2 10.5 1.9 10.2 0.0 7.0 5.0
894.1 14.9 220.0 166.3 30.1 155.2 8.1 8.0
4
24 > 2016 UBS AG
33
31 52
12 6
7 8
9
UBS AG Treasury management
2016 12 31
609 2015 12 31 687
578 2015 12 31 630
2015 12 31
2016 12 31
2015 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2016
12 31 2015 12 31
N 22
2016 12 31
1 0-1 2-3 4-5 6-8 9-13
106.2 0.9 107.1
0.6 9.7 2.0 0.5 0.3 13.1
20.2 24.5 20.1 6.9 0.7 81.4
19.6 96.9 34.2 7.4 0.4 158.4
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6.4 12.2 6.4 1.6 0.2 26.7
2 9.0 6.9 2.9 1.7 1.3 21.9
31.7 127.8 63.2 63.6 19.1 1.6 307.0
8 48.4 12.6 1.0 1.6 1.3 64.8
s 12.7 1.8 0-2 0.1 14.9
8.4 0.9 9.3
0.1 2.1 6.2 7.7 2.2 0.3 18.6
2.0 6.4 3.7 3.6 0.7 0.3 16.7
2.4 19.5 17.1 8.7 6.5 0.1 54.4
0.6 9.4 0.3 10.2
277.4 331.6 157.2 103.5 32.7 2.2 904.5
2015 12 31
1 0-1 2-3 4-5 6-8 9-13
87.9 1.3 0.6 89.8
1.3 8.8 1.1 0.6 11.9
21.7 40.2 20.1 11.2 0.4 93.5
20.7 116.9 23.2 5.9 0.7 167.4
8.4 10.2 4.7 0.4 0.1 23.8
2 14.2 8.6 3.1 1.9 1.2 29.0
31.9 132.1 68.2 61.4 17.7 1.4 312.7
3 0.0 0.5 1.0 3.0 0.9 0.1 5.6
3
52.4 9.2 61.7
0.2 2.2 7.5 8.1 1.7 0.4 20.1
2.2 7.1 3.6 2.2 0.7 0.3 16.0
1.8 22.4 19.6 6.1 6.2 0.0 56.1
6.5 0.0 6.6
242.6 366.0 152.8 100.8 29.6 2.2 894.1
! UBS AG Risk management and
2
control UBS
3
d
2016 12 31
UBS
2015 12 31
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5 16.8 14.7 11.1 8.4 5.9 57.0
7.8 7.8 23.3 28.2 18.7 85.8
47.0 47.0
2016 12 31 706.7 39.2 40.2 45.9 45.6 877.7
2015 12 31 712.5 44.3 36.4 53.0 44.6 890.7
6
12
54.0 0.2 0.2 0.0 54.4
16.7 16.7
10.2 10.2
0.0 0.0
2016 12 31 81.0 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 81.4
2015 12 31 78.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.0 78.7
1 2
3
12 4
218 2015 272 10 2015 12
2015 5
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@ O] )
(26) (14) 7
«C ) (876) 322 (1,454)
« D 52 (19) 247
C ) 3 (824) 303 (1,208)
26a 2 26b 2014
2014 12 31 3
UBS AG
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
UBS AG
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
! 0 50
0 0
0 50
2 0 50
26a 2 16
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
1
1,140 622
0 0
529 0
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3 91 84
2 25
65 59
35 30
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58 2015
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50
2016 12 31
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50
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IFRS 2015 12 31
1,283
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2016 12 31
1,749
2015 12 31 1,283 466 452
14 2015 12 31
1,283 2017
478
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
career-average revalued earnings scheme
60
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
2016 UBS AG 316

DBO
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2017
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2016 UBS AG 172 2015 50
LDI
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DBO 24 2015
21
2017 20
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65
2009
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12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
22,636 23,956 3,350 3,949 1,619 1,693 27,605 29,598
an 589 0 0 9 10 480 599
240 270 116 137 62 57 419 463
210 205 0 0 0 0 210 205
477 (1,231) 922 (441) 125 ®) 1,524 (1,681)
(659)  (1,038) 63) (122 3 34 719)  (1,125)
698 (237) 1,022 (201) 107 1) 1,827 (509)
438 44 37 (119) 15 28 416 “7)
0 0 0 0 0 25 0 %)
(96) (81) 0 0 0 0 (96) (81)
(1,07%) (1,071) (135) (128) (98) (83) (1,307) (1,283)
0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
0 0 0 0 19 0 19 0
0 0 (549) (166) 20 (26) (529) (192)
22,865 22,636 3,704 3,350 1,755 1,619 28,325 27,605
10,419 10,359 290 255 258 267 10,967 10,881
0 0 2,210 1,864 584 523 2,794 2,388
12,446 12,278 1,204 1,230 913 829 14,563 14,336
23,919 23,931 3,400 3,381 997 1,029 28,316 28,341
824 109 312 (124) 2 (44) 1,139 (59)
258 273 118 118 44 39 420 430
486 482 0 316 179 57 665 855
0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
210 205 0 0 0 0 210 205
(1,07%) (1,071) (135) (128) (98) (83) (1,307) (1,283)
(10) (10) 0 0 ) ®) (16) (18)
0 0 (520) (163) 26 7 (494) (156)
24,614 23,919 3,175 3,400 1,144 997 28,934 28,316
1,283 0 0 0 0 0 1,283 0
14 0 0 0 0 0 14 0
452 1,283 0 0 0 0 452 1,283
1,749 1,283 0 0 0 0 1,749 1,283
0 0 (529) 50 (611) (622) (1,140) (572)
0 (25) 50 (568) (622) (664) 72) (1,256)
(381) (515) 2 18) (33) 12) ©“12) (546)
(105) 58 (610) 317 (122) (35) (837) 339
486 482 0 316 179 57 665 855
0 1 0 0 0 0 (] 1
0 0 0 0 19 0 19 0
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0 0 (529) 50 (611) (622)  (1.140) (572)
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
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471 589 0 0 9 10 480 599
240 270 116 137 62 57 419 463
(258) 273) (118) (118) @) (39) (420) (430)
14 0 0 0 0 0 14 0
10 10 0 0 6 8 16 18
0 0 0 0 0 @4 0 )
(%) (81) 0 0 0 0 (96) 81)
0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
381 515 ) 18 33 12 412 546
ocl
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 3 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
@ 1,231 ©22) 441 (125) 8 ,524) 1,681
824 109 312 (124) 2 44) 1,139 (59)
(
@52)  (1,283) 0 0 0 0 @52)  (1,283)
«C )
(105) 58 (610) 317 122) (35) (837) 339
DBO
1
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
) 15.1 15.1 22.6 19.7 10.6 11.3
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2,204 2,218 164 177 213 185
3,394 3,403 315 338 328 291
11 5,439 5,526 710 785 562 509
11 16 5,041 5,173 856 981 514 510
16 17,162 18,892 6,064 7,348 958 1,172
1
DBO DBO
DBO
DBO
DBO
UBS AG
DBO
DBO
DBO
DBO
UBS AG
DBO
DBO
- a
UBS AG DBO
2016 UBS AG
UBS AG
DBO 319
DBO 659
DBO 339
DBO 477
2015
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2,055 1,038 1,017
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DBO 1,231
2016 2015 UBS AG
2016 DBO 63
DBO 922
2015 DBO 192
122 71
DBO
DBO 441
DBO

1

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

)
0.73 1.09 2.69 3.90 3.58 4.01
1.30 1.75 0.00 0.00 2.86 2.89
0.00 0.00 3.18 3.02 1.50 1.50
0.73 1.09 0.00 0.00 1.74 1.48
65
65 45

2016 2015 2016 2015

12 3 12 31 12 3 12 31
BVG 2015 G CMI__2016" 21.5 21.5 2.9 23.2
S2PA CMI__2015 23.7 23.9 25.0 25.6
RP2014 WCHA MP2016 2 22.9 23.0 24.4 24.5
K. 2005 G 20.1 20.0 22.8 22.6

65
65 45

2016 2015 2016 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
BVG 2015 G CMI__2016" 23.4 24.0 24.9 25.7
S2PA CMI__2015 25.6 25.8 27.4 28.0
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K. 24.2 2.1 26.7 26.6
! 2015 BVG 2010 G 2 2015 RP2014 WICHA WP 2015
DBO
DBO
(

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
50 (1,435) (1,416) (388) (308) (86) (84)
50 1,630 1,609 452 354 94 92
50 86 82 2 2 1 1

2 2
50 ) (86) @ @
50 1,178 1,163 435 343 6 6
3 3
50 €10)) (300) ®) ®)
50 264 263 4 4 9 8
50 (250) (249) 4 4 ®) ®
796 719 136 97 44 42
1
®2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2015 12 31

) )
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6,558 1,170 7,728 31 6,948 1,085 8,033 34
1
AA  BBB- 2,222 0 2,222 9 2,112 0 2,112 9
AA  BBB- 5,877 0 5,877 24 6,109 0 6,109 26
BBB- 1,176 0 1,176 5 1,056 0 1,056 4
0 42 2 0 0 63 63 0
283 2,776 3,059 12 1,064 1,605 2,669 11
0 15 15 0 0 15 15 0
17,923 6,691 24,614 100 18,505 5,414 23,919 100
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
24,614 23,919
2
UBS AG 432 517
UBS AG 5 5
UBS AG 47 38
UBS AG 3 1,855 962
UBS AG 83 82
uBs A6 ° (220) (170)

AAA BBB- BBB-

2 UBS AG
UBS AG
% UBS AG UBS AG
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2016 12 31
76 2015 12 31 90
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
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984 0 984 31 1,080 0 1,080 32
AMA  BBB- 500 28 528 17 1,305 0 1,305 38
BBB- 23 0 23 1 53 0 53 2
AMA  BBB- 245 0 245 8 189 0 189 6
BBB- 39 0 39 1 31 0 31 1
39 72 111 4 46 68 115 3
(35) 111 76 2 32) 123 91 3
(144) 10 (134) [0)) 6 7 13 0
2,955 21 3,175 100 3,202 198 3,400 100

AAA  BBB-  BBB-
2016 12 31 2015 12 31

¢ ) ( )
(@) )
75 0 75 7 52 0 52 5
AMA  BBB- 158 0 158 14 56 0 56 6
BBB- 13 0 13 1 60 0 60 6
AMA  BBB- 42 0 42 4 17 0 17 2
BBB- 1 0 1 0 6 0 6 1
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1
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AMA  BBB- 42 0 42 4 31 0 31 3
BBB- 5 0 5 0 3 0 3 0
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19 0 19 2 56 42 98 10
0 18 18 2 0 17 17 2
8 0 8 1 14 0 14 1
3 0 3 0 5 0 5 0
1,115 29 1,144 100 926 70 997 100
AMA  BBB-  BBB-
UBS AG
2017 UBS AG
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
12 3 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 3 12 31
25 32 59 53 84 85
0 0 0 0 0 0
1 1 3 2 3 3
0 0 2 2 2 2
6 ®) 7 9 13 3
() 1 2 @ 2 0 4
) 5 @ 1 @) 6 (€)]
) ! 0 @ 6 9 6 2
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ocl
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(
2
DBO
UBS AG
2016 2015 UBS AG
1
2
2016 2015 2016 2015
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2.69 3.90 3.97 4.23
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UBS AG
UBS AG
2016 2015 2014 12 31
236 239 244
d
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
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DCCP 300,000
2015 DCCP
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FINMA  UBS UBS DCCP
UBS
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GEB 20 2015 UBS
2015
UBS
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2017
2016
2016
2016
1,817 42) 1,775 0 0 0
133 295 428 266 468 735
0 6 6 0 5 5
UBS 214 485 699 372 356 727
26 39 65 34 27 60
2,191 781 2,972 671 856 1,527
266 151 418 162° 301 463
2,506 0 2,506 0 0 0
43 756 799 607 2,120 2,727
112 199 311 139 773 912
UBS 33 48 81 57 120 177
5 2,695 1,002 3,697 804 3,013 3,816
5,152 1,935 7,087 1,637 4,160 5,806
! 2016 910 699 40
39
81 24 27
861 2 86
62 73 217
2016 188 163
%2016 DCCP 2017 DCCP 98
4 2015 2014 2013 DCCP 2016 2015 2014 DCCP 243
5
2016
2015
2015
2015
2,073 (94) 1,980 0 0 0
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28 38 67 34 35 69
2,535 675 3,210 900 822 1,722
184 162 346° 2483 203" 541
2,460 0 2,460 0 0 0
43 692 735 940 1,899 2,839
132 142 275 710 456 1,166
UBS 37 45 82 66 115 182
5 2,673 879 3,552 1,716 2,470 4,186
5,391 1,716 7,108 2,864 3,585 6,449
! 2015 966 722 54
26
82 21 61
858 2 76
65 86
157 2015 198 183
2015  DCCP 2016 DCCP 160
4 2014 2013 2012 DCCP 2015 2014 2013 DCCP 200
5
2015
2014
2014
2014
1,822 (108) 1,714 0 0 0
155 194 349 312 386 698
0 12 12 0 8 8
UBS 215 444 659 459 367 826
0 21 21 0 0 0
UBS 215 465 680 459 367 826
24 41 65 36 33 69
2,216 604 2,820 807 794 1,601
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39 636 675 524 2,058 2,582
81 153 234 189 528 717
UBS 23 57 80 41 143 184
5 2,539 846 3,385 754 2,729 3,483
5,015 1,656 6,671 1,868 3,863 5,731
1
2014 942 680
113
80 19
909
2 81 70 70
162 2014 292
206 82014  DCCP DCCP
121 4 2013 2012 DCCP 2014 DCCP
161 5
c
UBS
UBS
UBS
2016 C 2015 ( )
427,443 18 467,848 15
199,755 13 259,334 17
(115,014) 18 (279,415) 15
0 0 (20,323) 19
512,185 16 427,443 18
189,953 138,908
2016 2015 12 31
d
UBS
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UBS AG UBS AG

IFRS 12
SEC UBS AG
2 2016 12 31 UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS Europe SE
EU
2016 12 31
UBS Americas Holding LLC Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 2,250_01 100.0
UBS Asset Management AG Zurich, Switzerland CHF 43.2 100.0
UBS Bank USA Salt Lake City, Utah, USA usD 0.0 100.0
UBS Europe SE Frankfurt, Germany EUR 176.0 100.0
UBS Financial Services Inc. Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.0 100.0
UBS Limited London, United Kingdom GBP 226.6 100.0
UBS Securities LLC Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 1,283.12 100.0
UBS Switzerland AG Zurich, Switzerland CHF 10.0 100.0
! 1,000 2,250,000,000 2 100,000
1,283,000,000
2016 UBS Asset Management AG
2016 UBS AG
UBS (lItalia) SpA UBS (Luxembourg) S.A.
UBS Bank S.A. (Madrid) UBS Bank (Netherlands) B.V UBS

Deutschland AG UBS Europe SE

UBS Americas Holding LLC UBS Asset Management AG UBS Europe SE UBS Limited UBS
Switzerland AG UBS AG UBS Bank USA UBS Financial Services Inc. UBS
Securities LLC UBS Americas Holding LLC
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UBS AG UBS AG
SEC

2016 12 31

UBS Americas Inc. Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.0 100.0
UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.0 100.0
UBS Asset Management (Australia) Ltd Sydney, Australia AUD 20.1* 100.0
UBS Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH Frankfurt, Germany EUR 7.7 100.0
UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, Hong Kong HKD 150.0 100.0
UBS Asset Management (Japan) Ltd Tokyo, Japan JPY 2,200.0 100.0
UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd Singapore, Singapore SGD 4.0 100.0
UBS Asset Management (UK) Ltd London, United Kingdom GBP 125.0 100.0
UBS Business Solutions US LLC Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.0 100.0
UBS Card Center AG Glattbrugg, Switzerland CHF 0.1 100.0
UBS Credit Corp. Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.0 100.0
UBS Fund Advisor, L.L.C. Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.0 100.0
UBS Fund Management (Luxembourg) S.A. Luxembourg, Luxembourg EUR 13.0 100.0
UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG Basel, Switzerland CHF 1.0 100.0
UBS Hedge Fund Solutions LLC Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.1 100.0
UBS 0"Connor LLC Dover, Delaware, USA usb 1.0 100.0
UBS Real Estate Securities Inc. Wilmington, Delaware, USA usD 0.0 100.0
UBS Realty Investors LLC Boston, Massachusetts, USA usb 9.0 100.0
UBS Securities (Thailand) Ltd Bangkok, Thailand THB 500.0 100.0
UBS Securities Australia Ltd Sydney, Australia AUD 0.3 100.0
UBS Securities India Private Limited Mumbai, India INR 140.0 100.0
UBS Securities Japan Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan JPY 56,450.0 100.0
UBS Securities Pte. Ltd Singapore, Singapore SGD 420.4 100.0
UBS Services LLC Wilmington, Delaware, USA UsD 0.0 100.0
UBS South Africa (Proprietary) Limited Sandton, South Africa ZAR 0.0 100.0
UBS UK Properties Limited London, United Kingdom GBP 132.0 100.0
000 UBS Bank Moscow, Russia RUB 3,450.0 100.0
Topcard Service AG Glattbrugg, Switzerland CHF 0.2 100.0
1

2016 UBS Italia SIM SpA
UBS Limited
2016
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UBS AG
UBS AG SE
SE SE
UBS AG SE
SE UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
SE UBS AG SE
SE UBS AG SE SE
SE SE
2016 UBS AG SE
UBS AG UBS AG SE
UBS AG
UBS AG SE
2016 2015 12 31 UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
954 927
3 12
@ @
82 151
L2 106 169
3 ) (18)
(50) (114)
(€5)) (20)
963 954
934 925
UBS Securities Co. Limited, Beiiing’4 392 411
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SIX Group AG, Zurich® 426 413
116 102
29 29
! 2016 94 12 2015 158
1 2 2015 SIX Group STOXX Ltd  Indexium Ltd.
UBS 81 % 2016 25
2015 18
* UBS AG 24.99 ® UBS AG 17.31 UBS AG
c
2016 UBS AG SE SE
UBS SE
2016 12 31
UBS AG SE
UBS AG SE
UBS
2016 12 31
1
634 304 6,215 7,243 7,243
40 76 101 217 217
0 0 79 79 79
103 83> 0 186 1,765
0 3,381 58 3,439 3,439
289 37? 0 327 1,490
1,066° 3,071 6,454 11,491
33! 346 67 446 90
33 346 67 446
UBS
( ) 72° 102° 334’
2015 12 31
1
1,060 463 6,102 7,624 7,624
41 101 57 200 200
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0 45° 0 45 937
1,101° 4,102 6,362 11,565
30* 631 0 661 19
30 631 0 661
UBS
( ) 141° 43° 320"
1 2
32016 12 31 11 10
2015 12 31 11 _
4 cDS cDS
6 " uBs
UBS UBS
UBS AG SE
UBS AG SE UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG SE
2016 2015 UBS AG SE
UBS AG
2016 2015 SE
UBS
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 UBS AG
2016 12 31 UBS AG
ABS
UBS AG SE
UBS AG
UBS AG
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1
2016 12 31
2 3
UBS
103 34 0 14 151
0 34 34
103 103
14 14
1 0 0 0 1
1 1
104 34 0 14 152
1 34 0 14 49
103 0 0 0 103
UBS
( ) 2 13 0 1 16
UBS
165 4 211 125 535
165 4 241 125 535
32 0 0 0 32
29 29
3 3
18 0 0 0 18
17 17
1 1
215 4 241 125 585
215 4 241 125 585
UBS
( ) 41 8 5 1 56
1 2
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1
2015 12 31
2 3
UBS
0 54 0 13 66
54 0 54
13 13
3 7 0 0 10
7 7
2 2
1 1
3 61 0 13 77
3 61 0 13 77
UBS
( ) 0 28 0 1 29
UBS
284 66 383 140 873
284 65 383 140 872
61 17 17 0 95
58 17 17 0 92
3 3
11 3 0 0 14
11 0 11
0 3 3
356 86 400 140 983
356 86 400 140 983
UBS
( ) 64 37 6 2 109
1 2
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SE
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UBS AG
2016 UBS 2016 UBS
130 2015 90
140 2015 12 31 120
UBS
2016 12 31
3 ® 0 (©)
0 0 53 53
2 (158) 29 (128)
4 (165) 82 78)
( 7 6° 14*
2015 12 31
2 11) 0 (10)
0 0 57 57
18 208 48 274
20 197 104 321
( g 1 12*
! 2016 12 31 2015 12 31 78 77
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UBS 10 2015 12 31 10 4
29
2016 2015 UBS AG
30
UBS UBS
2014 12 UBS AG UBS AG UBS
2015 UBS AG 33 SESTA
UBS AG UBS
AG UBS AG 100
2015 UBS AG
UBS AG
2015 UBS Limited 2015 UBS
AG UBS Business Solutions AG UBS
UBS AG
UBS
2017 UBS AG UBS
Business Solutions US LLC
2016 UBS
AG UBS Americas Holding LLC UBS Americas Holding LLC UBS AG
UBS AG 2016 UBS Asset
Management AG UBS AG
UBS
Deutschland AG UBS Europe SE UBS AG
2016 UBS AG
23
2017 2016 12 31
5,137
5,213
2015 UBS AG AFS UFJ
UBS AG 56
119
2015 UBS AG

169
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
447 323 185
139 137 55
117 101 64
100 82 50
577 396 261
62 194 61
41 138 30
21 56 31
1,442 1,233 677
731 458 327
700 760 319
11 12 29
0 2 2
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
422 311 145
101 38 35
208 108 138
56 46 28
8 5 4
(76) (65) (29)
12 15 6
731 458 327
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
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123 109 49
IT 93 31 23
1 0 0
28 7 3
12 16 11
162 187 148
IT 287 316 82
1
®) 95 2
700 760 319
1
31
UBS 3la UBS
31b
a
2016 12 31 UBS
UBS
2016 12 31
2017 708
2018 597
2019 516
2020 447
2021 385
2022 2,351
5,004
329
4,675
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
737 741 759
78 70 73
659 671 686
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UBS
2016 12 31 127
2016
2016 12 31
2017 327 21 306
2018 2021 601 32 568
2022 115 3 112
1,043 57 986
32
UBS AG UBS AG UBS
UBS AG
BoD EB
a
BoD 2016
BoD EB
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1 24 21 22
2 10 9 8
DCCP 20 20 18
2 1 2
2 2 1
3 38 39 35
97 92 86
12013 EU CRD 1V 2
8 27
2016 2015 2014 EOP
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2016 7.2 2015 6.7 2014 7.1
b
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
BoD EB
1 620,950 1,401,686
BoD EB 2 3,267,911 3,324,650
1 27 2
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 95,597
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
27 2016 12 31
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BoD EB
BoD
1
2016 2015
33 27
13 6
(13) (€]
332 33
2 £B BoD 2,684,498
2016 2015 UBS AG UBS AG
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2016 2015
UBS AG UBS AG
2016 2015 UBS AG
2016 2015
476 552
4 9
® (85)
0 0
472 476
461 464
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
153 149
3 7
4 4
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- 28
f UBS AG UBS AG
2016 2015
681 774
84 12
35 93
26,527 12,323
1,111 943
33
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
2016 2015
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
UBS 275 282
885 830
1,661 1,577
2,821 2,689
176 185
1 27.2 27.7
1
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2,689 2,734
27 28
2 98 24)
21 (31)
(¢D)) (16)
as (16)
2,821 2,689
1
34
1
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1.02 1.00 0.99 0.97 0.92
1.07 1.09 1.09 1.06 1.21
1.26 1.48 1.32 1.47 1.51
100 0.87 0.83 0.91 0.80 0.86
1
12 UBS AG
35



2016

27
RMBS

UBS 2017

UBS AG UBS
2017

36 IFRS
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IFRS GAAP
IFRS
FINMA

IFRS

GAAP

IFRS

GAAP

IFRS

2016
2016
2016 102
20
2017
AG
UBS AG UBS
GAAP
IFRS
FINMA IFRS
FINMA 2015/1
25 42
UBS AG
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GAAP UBS AG
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GAAP
37 SEC
2000 UBS SEC
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG
UBS
UBS
UBS AG
2016 12 31 137
2017 2018
UBS AG
UBS Preferred Funding Trust IV UBS Preferred Funding Trust V 2016
UBS AG
2016 12 31 UBS Preferred Funding Trust IV UBS Preferred Funding Trust V
UBS AG
UBS AG
2015
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG

2016

UBS AG
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UBS

Preferred

UBS UBS Funding
UBS AG Trust IV UBS AG
2016 12 31 C Y ¢ 2 v 2 «
8,500 4,151 2,227 25 1,148 (2,269) 13,782
(6,686) 714) (1,135) (919) 2,054 (7,399)
1,815 3,438 1,092 25 229 (215) 6,383
( ) @ ® ® ® @n
1,790 3,434 1,086 25 226 (215) 6,346
1,500 3,782 7,873 3,332 (40) 16,447
3,717 780 454 310 (318) 4,943
8,113 346 576 1,677 (10,027) 685
15,120 8,343 9,988 25 5,545 (10,600) 28,421
5,691 2,044 6,243 1,613 0 15,591
5,213 3,507 3,402 2,458 (6,891) 7,690
699 12 184 85 0 980
22 0 60 9 0 91
11,625 5,563 9,889 4,165 (6,891) 24,352
« ) 3,495 2,780 99 25 1,380 (3,710) 4,069
( ) 892 589 (1,175) 482 Q) 781
« ) 2,603 2,101 1,274 25 898 (3,703) 3,288
« ) 78 0 0 31 0 1) 78
« ) 0 0 0 4 0 4
« ) 2,525 2,101 1,274 ®) 894 (3,672) 3,207

! UBS AG UBS AG IFRS GAAP
www . ubs .com/ investors Disclosure for legal entities UBS AG AG

IFRS

UBS AG
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Preferred
UBS UBS Funding
UBS AG Trust IV UBS AG
2016 12 31 C Y a¢ ) 2 v 2 ')
( 2,525 2,101 1,274 6) 894 (3,672) 3,207
335 0 285 o1 379 293
(22 @3 ® 18 6 @3
(805) 109 0 0 29 (666)
(491) 77 277 0 (725) 415 441
(651) (€D)) 69 (36) (25) @829
(115) (115)
(766) (D) (59) 0 (36) (25) (939)
(1,257) 23 218 0 (761) 390 (1,386)
1,268 2,214 1,492 ®) 133 (3,282) 1,820
349 349
0 3 3
UBS Preferred Funding Trust IV \
0
1,617 2,214 1,492 ®) 137 (3,282) 2,173
! uBs AG UBS AG IFRS GAAP
www . ubs .com/investors Disclosure for legal entities UBS AG UBS AG
2 IFRS UBS AG
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UBS AG UBS AG
2016 12 31 « )* ¢ ! 2 2 « )
40,538 44,528 8,925 13,775 0 107,767
30,008 3,886 3,750 33,420 (57,948) 13,125
6,561 6,657 13,173 5,004 (16.284) 15,111
52,782 19,273 14,406 7,507 @7.722) 66,246
74,172 1,673 4,702 22,729 (6.615) 96,661
39,59 0 1,960 5,850 (17,145) 30,260
156,375 5,458 9,496 27,231 (40,149) 158,411
22,117 913 2,701 12,068 (11,135) 26,664
35,498 16,416 5,371 41,100 (63,091) 65,024
94,506 184,241 50,150 11,589 (3.849) 307,004
8,104 2,046 6,593 3,460 (4,536) 15,676
527 8,762 0 0 0 9,280
49,904 22 1 27 (48,991) 963
6,961 19 1,075 241 0 8,297
297 0 5,130 1,161 32) 6,556
1,801 601 9,148 1,595 0 13,144
10,645 1,526 9,071 7,241 (3,071) 25,412
590,796 296,022 143,702 188,257 (283,424) 935,353
27,992 13,204 5,288 32,733 (68.572) 10,645
13,193 1,518 2,549 1,841 (16.284) 2,818
16,944 5,385 2,710 9,295 @7.722) 6,612
15,535 154 3,643 9,780 (6,287) 22,825
151,274 4,982 9,491 28,213 (40,149) 153,810
31,585 109 2,409 12,504 (11,135) 35,472
118,934 248,731 85,702 53,474 (56,641) 450,199
54,504 0 1 4,559 (4,047) 55,017
70,558 8,330 145 401 @37) 78,998
1,483 186 2,168 312 21 4,160
31,879 2,212 11,100 18,352 (3,099) 60,443
533,881 284,811 125,206 171,464 (234,353) 881,009
56,273 11,211 18,496 16,754 (49,072) 53,662
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642 0 0 0 0 642
0 0 0 40 0 40
56,915 11,211 18,496 16,793 (49,072) 54,343
590,796 296,022 143,702 188,257 (283,424) 935,353
1 uBs AG UBS AG IFRS GAAP
www .. ubs .com/investors Disclosure for legal entities UBS AG UBS AG

IFRS

UBS AG
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UBS UBS AG
2016 12 31 UBS AGH act 1 1 ¢
') (26,981) (3.914) 8,979 4,503 17,413)
«C )
0 ® 0 @3) @6)
2 93 0 0 0 93
(1.332) (16) (288) (112) (1,746)
175 0 1 32 209
(694) (998) @.792) (2,788) @.271)
24,902 21,729 1,604 5,772 54,007
«C ) 627) (8.468) 0 0 (8,996)
D) 22,616 12,245 (1,384) 2,882 36,359
«C )

«C ) 8,229 (0 (2,975) 193 5,440
UBS AG (3,434) 0 0 0 (3,434
31,484 733 196 1,039 33,453
(32,279) (669) ® (1,126) (34,081)
(1,366) 0 0 0 (1,366)
0 0 0 ®) ®
(1,333) (2.000) 0 3,333 0
') 1,300 (1,943) (2,786) 3,435 6
47,902 40,246 7,084 7,731 102,962
( (3.,065) 6,388 4,808 10,821 18,952
(569) ® 0 (234) o7
8 44,269 46,629 11,892 18,317 121,107
40,486 44,528 8,925 13,775 107,715
2,836 2,095 2,931 4,065 11,927
4 946 7 36 477 1,465

! UBS AG UBS Preferred

Funding Trust 1V v 2016 12 31
1,317 2
3 2,662
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UBS

Preferred

UBS UBS Funding
UBS AG Trust IV UBS AG
2015 12 31 C Y ¢ ) 2 v 2 «
9,102 3,039 1,367 63 1,626 (2,020) 13,178
(5,885) (545) (501) (1,410) 1,892 (6,449)
3,218 2,494 866 63 217 (128) 6,729
( ) (109) 12) 0 4 0 ain
3,109 2,482 866 63 220 (128) 6,612
2,738 3,001 7,940 3,586 (81) 17,184
5,031 735 355 331 (756) 5,696
15,371 120 774 89 (15,243) 1,112
26,249 6,338 9,935 63 4,227 (16,208) 30,605
6,800 1,607 6,281 1,265 0 15,954
5,439 2,621 3,785 2,254 (5,880) 8,219
672 11 159 76 0 918
22 0 73 12 0 107
12,934 4,239 10,298 3,607 (5,880) 25,198
« ) 13,315 2,099 (362) 63 619 (10,327) 5,407
( ) 1,136 489 (1,200) (1,317) (16) (908)
( ) 12,180 1,610 837 63 1,936 (10,313) 6,314
« ) 77 0 0 31 0 [€I)) 77
« ) 0 0 0 3 0 3
( ) 12,103 1,610 837 32 1,933 (10,281) 6,235

! UBS AG UBS AG IFRS GAAP
www . ubs .com/ investors Disclosure for legal entities UBS AG UBS AG

IFRS

UBS AG
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UBS UBS Fundiing
UBS AG Trust IV UBS AG
2015 12 31 ¢ Y ¢ ) 2 v 2 ')
12,103 1,610 837 32 1,933 (10,281) 6,235
1) 0 121 (843) 467 (266)
(51) 43 @D (16) 19 ®
(503) 72) 0 0 57 (518)
(564) (29) 100 0 (859) 504 (848)
701 (337) an 27 (15) 304
701 (337) () 0 27 (15) 304
136 (366) 29 0 (832) 489 (545)
12,239 1,244 866 32 1,101 9,792) 5,690
18 0 0 0 0 0 18
0 0 0 0 1 0 1
UBS Preferred Funding Trust IV %
0 0 0 40 0 (40) 0
12,257 1,244 866 72 1,102 9,832 5,709
! uBs AG UBS AG IFRS GAAP
www . ubs .com/investors Disclosure for legal entities UBS AG UBS AG

IFRS

UBS AG

351/624



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooOoog
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Preferred

UBS UBS Funding

UBS AG Trust 1V UBS AG
2015 12 31 « Y s ) v ')

45,125 38,701 4,971 2,509 0 91,306
29,225 3,224 12,776 27,510 (60,868) 11,866
27,925 7,414 38,007 6,506 (54,268) 25,584
61,253 16,258 21,039 14,586 (45,243) 67,893
94,132 1,736 5,931 1,310 30,132 (9,194) 124,047
53,708 0 3,038 2,264 (7,066) 51,943
175,943 6,033 21,463 28,921 (64,925) 167,435
19,026 1,056 5,964 12,678 (14,962) 23,763
89,052 186,872 47,054 14,554 (24,809) 312,723
6,303 0 199 2,628 (3,322) 5,808
32,044 23,184 5,360 5,996 (4,042) 62,543
45,689 14 1 1 (44,751) 954
6,499 15 972 197 0 7,683
347 0 5,112 1,139 (30) 6,568
2,332 845 7,766 1,890 0 12,833
12,108 1,255 10,041 3,111 (4,266) 22,249
647,006 286,608 186,654 1,310 152,359 (330,680) 943,256
31,725 18,948 26,320 4 5,782 (70,944) 11,836
34,094 2,493 23,437 2,274 (54,268) 8,029
20,658 6,505 11,490 16,244 (45,243) 9,653
21,193 128 3,919 11,317 (7,420) 29,137
170,718 5,655 21,109 29,877 (64,928) 162,430
31,399 374 6,438 15,033 (14,962) 38,282
102,483 231,252 53,633 34,002 (18,848) 402,522
61,630 0 288 4,675 (3,598) 62,995
70,792 8,274 3,126 321 (153) 82,359
1,680 179 1,969 319 17 4,163
40,255 1,806 16,683 1 20,179 (4,318) 74,606
586,628 275,611 168,411 4 140,023 (284,664) 886,013
58,423 10,997 18,243 4 12,296 (44,714) 55,248
1,954 0 0 1,302 0 (1,302) 1,954

352/624



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

Ogoooood
0 0 0 0 41 0 41
60,378 10,997 18,243 1,306 12,336 (46,016) 57,243
647,006 286,608 186,654 1,310 152,359 (330,680) 943,256
! uBs AG UBS AG IFRS GAAP
www .. ubs .com/investors Disclosure for legal entities UBS AG UBS AG

IFRS

UBS AG
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UBS
UBS UBS AG
2015 12 31 UBS AGY AGt 1 1 « )
« ) (1,457) 2,681 (525) 1,208 1,997
C )
(¥ 0 1 0 3)
2 464 0 13 0 477
(1,423) ) (299) (119) (1,841)
503 0 9 35 547
(66,659) (18,686) (2,722) (13,123) (101,189)
51,515 22,501 2,952 16,616 93,584
« D
« ) (15,613) 3,810 @n 3,415 (8,434)
C )
« ) (5,603) 24 (826) 0 (6,404)
UBS AG (2,626) 0 0 0 (2,626)
46,882 772 7 129 47,790
(42,415) (402) (129) (1,274) (44,221)
(108) 0 0 0 (108)
0 0 0 ® ®
3 (30,512) 33,203 s (2,666) 0
« ) (34,382) 33,687 (1,062) (3.817) (5,573)
100,662 0 8,960 7,003 116,715
( (51,451) 40,178 (1,634) 896 (12,010)
(1,309) 67 (241) (259) 1,742)
4 47,902 40,246 7,084 7,731 102,962
45,125 38,701 4,971 2,509 91,306
2,072 1,438 2,009 5,213 10,732
d 704 107 104 9 924
! UBS AG UBS Preferred
Funding Trust IV v 2015 12 31
77 2
%UBS AG  UBS AG 33,283 UBS AG  UBS AG
UBS AG 2015 Legal
entity financial and regulatory information UBS AG 4 3,963

5
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2014 12 31 U5 Ai 2 UBS AG
« D « D
11,585 1,591 1,160 (1,143) 13,194
(6,287) (597) (898) 1,143 (6,639)
5,298 995 262 0 6,555
( ) (108) 9 9 13 (78)
5,190 1,003 270 13 6,477
6,111 7,288 3,799 (122) 17,076
2,750 438 237 416 3,841
7,967 438 580 (8,354) 632
22,019 9,168 4,887 (8,047) 28,026
7,991 5,806 1,483 0 15,280
8,004 2,759 1,966 (3,352) 9,377
595 139 83 0 817
7 59 16 0 83
16,597 8,764 3,548 (3,352) 25,557
( 5,421 404 1,339 (4,695) 2,469
( 949 (2,375) 248 () (1,180)
) 4,472 2,779 1,091 (4,693) 3,649
« ) 142 0 0 0 142
«c ) 0 0 5 0 5
« ) 4,330 2,779 1,086 (4,693) 3,502
' UBs AG IFRS GAAP
www . ubs .com/ investors Disclosure for legal entities UBS AG 2

IFRS

UBS AG
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2014 12 31 e UBS A
1 2 2

C ) C )
4,330 2,779 1,086 (4,693) 3,502
325 928 1,500 (920) 1,834
32 78 37 (6) 140
693 0 0 0 693
1,050 1,006 1,537 (926) 2,667
(999) (167) (56) 14 (1,208)
(999) (167) (56) 14 (1,208)
51 838 1,481 (912) 1,459
4,381 3,617 2,567 (5,605) 4,961
260 0 0 0 260
0 0 7 0 7
4,641 3,617 2,575 (5,605) 5,229

! uBs AG UBS AG IFRS GAAP

www . ubs .com/investors Disclosure for legal entities UBS AG UBS AG

IFRS

UBS AG
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UBS AG
2014 12 31 UBS AG™ ! ! QD)
« ) 7,438 (1,814) 1,608 7,231
« D
(18) 0 0 (18)
2 41 9 20 70
(1,521) (300) 94) (1,915)
313 14 23 350
(115,807) (1,965) (18,559) (136,330)
123,581 1,397 15,460 140,438
« D
« ) 6,589 (845) (3,149) 2,596
« D
« ) (3,984) 0 1,064 (2,921)
(719) 0 0 (719)
UBS AG (938) 0 0 (938)
40,272 24 686 40,982
(32,083) (494) (1,632) (34,210)
(110) 0 0 (110)
0 0 ®3) (©)
(319) 0 319 0
« ) 2,118 (470) 434 2,081
77,123 11,249 7,911 96,284
( 16,145 (3,129) (1,107) 11,908
7,39 840 289 8,522
3 100, 662 8,960 7,093 116,715
95,711 6,440 1,923 104,073
4,119 2,489 5,164 11,772
4 832 31 6 869
! UBS AG 2
8 4,178 4
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UBS AG
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 ! 2015 12 31
5,776 6,204 )
2,060 2,602 (21)
165 199 @an
(6,251) (5,917) 6
1,749 3,088 “43)
( (32) (158) (80)
1,717 2,929 (41)
2,154 3,526 (39)
217 285 @24
(829) (1,012) (18)
1,541 2,799 (45)
3 3,930 3,725 6
117 150 (22)
3,041 1,218 150
563 565 0
4 4,740 4,706 1
4 (539) (831) (35)
7,922 5,809 36
15,111 15,263 @
5 6,350 6,438 @
6 5,073 5,615 (10)
11,422 12,053 ®)
1,099 413 166
700 674 4
22 22 0
109 25 336
13,352 13,187 1
1,759 2,076 (15)
7 1,637 10,264 (84)
7 2 136 (99)
( ) 8 150 220 (32)
( 3,244 11,984 (73)
Y2015 12 31
2015 2015
UBS AG  UBS AG UBS AG 2015
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https://www.ubs.com/global/en/about__ubs/investor__relations/annualreporting/2015.html Legal
entity financial and regulatory information Establishment of UBS Switzerland AG
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2015 12 31 °
6,616 7,106 )
2,360 2,980 1)
189 228 an
(7,160) (6,777) 6
2,003 3,537 (43)
( ) (D) (181) (80)
1,967 3,355 “n
2,467 4,039
(39)
249 326 @4
(950) (1,159) (18)
1,765 3,206 (45)
3 4,501 4,267 6
134 172 (22)
3,483 1,395 150
645 647 0
4 5,429 5,390 1
4 (617) (952) (35)
9,074 6,654 36
17,308 17,482 (¢))
5 7,273 7,374 (¢))
6 5,811 6,431 (10)
13,083 13,806 ®)
1,259 473 166
802 772 4
25 25 0
125 29 336
15,293 15,104 1
2,015 2,378 (15)
7 1,875 11,756 (84)
7 2 156 99
( ) 8 172 252 (32)
( 3,716 13,726 (73)
Y2015 12 31
2015 2015
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UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG 2015
https://www.ubs.com/global/en/about__ubs/investor__relations/annualreporting/2015.html Legal
entity financial and regulatory information Establishment of UBS Switzerland AG
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2016 2015 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31

40,778 45,125 (10)
40,700 40,611 0
9 59,778 90,479 (34)
6,561 27,925 @7
53,217 62,553 15)
10, 11 103,880 97,401 7
10, 11 4,312 4,679 ®)
12 74,282 94,210 1)
13 20,951 20,987 0
14 34,669 27,528 26
1,595 1,708 Q)
48,262 43,791 10
6,961 6,503 7
13 36 (64)
15 3,295 3,986 an
439,476 477,045 ®)
6,851 5,752 19
4,521 4,020 12
32,781 36,669 (11)
9 30,275 55,457 (45)
13,193 34,094 (61)
17,082 21,363 20)
152,690 144,842 5
12 15,535 21,179 @70
13 23,896 24,669 ®3)
12, 18 51,806 58,104 11)
71,215 72,750 @
4,125 4,356 ®)
15 4,113 5,505 (25)
11 1,501 1,786 (16)
387,937 425,316 ©)
19 386 386 0
38,149 33,669 13
38,149 38,149 0
38,149 38,149 0
0 (4,480) (100)
9,760 5,689 72
3,244 11,984 (73)

361/624



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

oooooog
51,539 51,728 0

439,476 477,045 ()
17,692 16,139 10
15,877 11,858 34
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2016 2015 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31

25,395 27,787 ©
(1,905) (1,866) 2
23,489 25,920 ©
17,505 19,392 (10)
3,607 4,224 15)

68 26 162
2,310 2,278 1
47,273 50,901 )
(1,512) (1,559) ®3)
45,761 49,342 Q)
45,761 49,342 @)
10,549 4,195 151
7,238 1,626 345

36 6 500
3,267 2,561 28

8 2 300

5 7 (29)

UBS AG
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2016 2015 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31
46,707 51,686 (10)
46,618 46,516 0
9 68,470 103,635 (34)
7,515 31,985 77)
60,955 71,648 (15)
10, 11 118,984 111,563 ;
10, 11 4,939 5,359 ®)
12 85,083 107,908 (21)
13 23,997 24,039 0
14 39,710 31,531 26
1,827 1,956 )
55,279 50,158 10
7,973 7,449 7
15 41 (64)
15 3,774 4,566 @an
503,376 546,407 ®)
7,847 6,588 19
5,178 4,605 12
37,547 42,001 (11)
9 34,677 63,520 (45)
15,111 39,051 (61)
19,566 24,469 0)
174,891 165,902 5
12 17,794 24,258 @7
13 27,370 28,256 )
12, 18 59,339 66,552 (11)
81,570 83,328 @
4,725 4,989 ®)
15 4,711 6,305 (25)
1 1,719 2,046 (16)
444,343 487,157 ©
19 442 442 0
43,696 38,564 13
43,696 43,696 0
43,696 43,696 0
0 (5,131) (100)
11,179 6,516 72
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3,716 13,726 (@73)
59,033 59,249 0
503,376 546,407 ®)
20,264 18,486 10
18,186 13,582 34
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2016 2015 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31

29,087 31,827 ©)
(2,182) (2,137) 2
26,904 29,689 ©
20,050 22,212 (10)
4,131 4,838 (15

78 30 162
2,646 2,609 1
54,146 58,302 ©)
(1,732) (1,786) ®)
52,415 56,516 )
52,415 56,516 @)
12,083 4,805 151
8,290 1,862 345

41 7 500
3,742 2,933 28

9 2 300

6 8 (29)

UBS AG
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UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS VAT
UBS VAT
UBS
UBS AG UBS UBS AG UBS
UBS AG
2015
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG 2015 14
2,600 UBS AG UBS
AG
UBS AG UBS AG 2015 12 31 550
2016 12 31 10 2016 12 31
- UBS AG 2015
https://ww.ubs.com/global/en/about__ubs/investor__relations/annual reporting/2015.html
Legal entity financial and regulatory information
Establishment of UBS Switzerland AG
UBS SE
2016 UBS SE UBS AG
UBS SE UBS AG UBS SE

2016 12 31
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« D

2015 384 40,782 (12,329) 5,689 7,849 42,376

1 1

(2,633) (2,633)

C ) 7,849 (7,849) 0

(GED) 11,984 11,984

2015 12 31 386 38,149 (4,480) 5,689 11,984 51,728
« D

2015 440 46,712 (14,122) 6,516 8,990 48,537

1 1

(3,016) (3,016)

« ) 8,990 (8,990) 0

C ) 13,726 13,726

2015 12 31 442 43,696 (5,131) 6,516 13,726 59,249
« D

2016 386 38,149 (4,480) 5,689 11,984 51,728

0

(3,434) (3,434)

« ) 7,914 4,070 (11,984) 0

C ) 3,244 3,244

2016 12 31 386 38,149 0 9,760 3,244 51,539
C D

2016 442 43,696 (5,131) 6,516 13,726 59,249

0

(3,933) (3,933)

« ) 9,065 4,662 (13,726) 0

(GED) 3,716 3,716

2016 12 31 442 43,696 0 11,179 3,716 59,033
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2017 AGM
2016 12 31
3,244 3,716
0 0
3,244 3,716
(3,244) (3,716)
0 0
2017 AGM 2,250
2016 12 31
38,149 43,696
(2,250) (2.577)
35,899 41,119
L oo11
UBS AG 230

2015

2016
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UBS AG

UBS AG Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001
Zurich Aeschenvorstadt 1, CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland UBS AG

Aktiengesel Ischaft
UBS AG UBS UBS AG
UBS AG GAAP FINMA 2015/1
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG 2016 UBS AG
GAAP UBS AG 36
UBS AG

- UBS AG UBS AG 2016

UBS AG UBS AG UBS
AG 2016 Risk
management and control

UBS AG 12

- UBS AG UBS AG 2016

UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG Compensation Report

UBS AG UBS AG 34

- UBS AG UBS AG 2016

UBS AG
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- 18
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
GAAP IFRS
UBS AG GAAP FER 16
GAAP
IFRS
GAAP
GAAP
FER 26
UBS AG

UBS AG FER 26
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GAAP IFRS GAAP
IFRS
GAAP
S 20
UBS AG IFRS IAS 19
IAS 19
UBS AG 26
- UBS AG UBS AG 2016
Capital Adequacy Ordinance 29 30
UBS AG IFRS UBS AG
a
(@)
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2015 12 31
3,203 3,520 ©)
[e)) 318
3,205 3,203 0
727 205 255
3,930 3,725 6
b
)
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2015 12 31
939 (346)
1,208 1,912 (€D))
1,797 1,822 @
(44) 290
31 47 (3d)
3,930 3,725 6
! (1,416) 3,139
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1
)
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2015 12 31
0 23 (100)
4,699 4,580 3
41 104 (61)
4,740 4,706 1
@ (275) (99)
(440) (497) (11)
@n (59) 64
(539) (831) (35)
! UBs G UBS AG  UBS UBS AG
()
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2015 12 31
2,901 3,459 (16)
1,448 1,707 (15)
164 191 14)
331 303 9
314 408 (23)
966 122 692
620 (318)
9 8 13
218 240 ©)
6,350 6,438 @
Lias 19
)
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2015 12 31
589 588 0
IT 384 383 0
313 322 ®
1,334 1,413 ®
229 955 ®
231 283 18)
167 226 (26)
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44 53 @n

41 44 @

2 6 67)

1 3 67)

584 776 (25)

IT 1,427 1,571 ©)
5,073 5,615 (10)

' uBs AG UBS AG UBS
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(D)
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2015 12 31
78 334 an
1,415 9,551 (85)
121 378 (68)
23 1
1,637 10,264 (84)
1 1 0
1 134 (99)
2 136 (99)
2016 UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
15
11
2016 UBS AG UBS ( ) SpA  UBS
( ) S.A. UBS S.A.(
) UBS ( ) B.V. UBS AG UBS SE
2015 UBS AG UBS UBS LLC
UBS AG UBS LLC
212 100
UBS LLC
UBS AG
(D)
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2015 12 31
( ) 118 186 @3N
109 185 “1)
9 1 800
32 34 )
( ) 150 220 32)
2016 12 31
3.5 2015 1.5 2016 12
31 UBS AG
256 2015 3,188
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
109.3 133.3
(49.5) (42.8)
59.8 90.5
79.8 98.2
(49.5) (42.8)
30.3 55.5
39.9 54.0
39.1 52.8
38.4 51.9
0.8 1.2
0.8 1.2
257.1 249.9
199.4 183.0
15.5 21.2
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10a
2016 12 31
1 2
3 4
4 60,922 224 42,811 103,961
4,314 0 0 0 4,314
4,225 4,225
36 36
30 30
23 23
4,319 60,922 224 42,811 108,275
() ) 0 (62) 3
4,317 60,902 224 42,749 108,192
0 2,219 1,993 21,183 25,395
342 12,301 5,516 29,114 47,273
0 7,19 0 78 7,274
0 0 0 5 5
342 21,716 7,509 50,380 79,946
2015 12 31
1 2
3 4
4 64,223 1,457 31,947 97,630
4,681 0 0 0 4,681
4,605 4,605
4 4
44 44
28 28
4,684 64,223 1,457 31,947 102,311
©) (152) 0 an (231)
4,683 64,071 1,457 31,870 102,080
0 2,121 2,093 23,573 27,787
456 9,673 7,515 33,256 50,901
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0 1,632 0 0 1,632
0 0 0 7 7
456 13,425 9,608 56,837 80,327
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10b
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
«C ) (G C ) C )
157 81 0 76 474 229 0 25
5 2 3 0 5 2 4 0
24 13 0 1 17 3 0 14
186 9 3 87 496 234 4 259
1la
2015 2016
12 31 12 3
231 82 (64) (168) 20 @) 78
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
! 0 5 0 0 0 0 5
231 87 (64) (168) 20 @2 83
11b
2015 2016
12 3 12 31
3 15 ® 0 0 0 13
20 6 @ 0] 0 e 15
! 1,063 167 67) (66) 0 @ 1,096
288 169 (49) (233) 6 @ 178
2 94 4 0 9 0 o) 77
165 3 @) (85) 1 @) 50
9 0 0 (96) 0 0 0
10 9 0 0 0 0 18
47 15 1) 0 0 0 54
1,786 387 53) (506) 7 @9 1,501
22016 12 31 16 2015
12 31 25 2016 12 31 61

2015 12 31 69
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12
2016 12 31 2015 12 31

74,282 94,210
16,073 22,261
11,840 13,831
55,304 70,035

2,905 1,915
74,282 94,210
11,159 18,783
10,249 15,894
15,535 21,179

3,884 4,190

3,540 3,899
11,651 16,989
51,806 58,104
67,341 79,283
53,974 60,520

18
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13
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
PRV NRV3 PRV NRV
! 0.1 0.2 2,283 0.1 0.3 2,458
47.3 39.8 8,222 69.3 60.7 7,636
0.2 0.0 4 0.4 0.0 6
0.0 0.0 319 0.0 0.0 335
oTC 12.5 13.9 959 17.4 19.2 1,132
0.0 0.0 146 0.0 0.0 208
59.9 54.0 11,928 86.9 80.1 11,769
21.7 19.0 1,365 17.7 16.5 1,388
43.3 42.4 2,393 38.8 38.0 2,837
0.0 0.0 6 0.0 0.0 8
oTC 11.1 11.0 1,045 9.6 9.3 975
0.0 0.1 9 0.0 0.0 8
76.2 72.5 4,818 66.1 63.8 5,217
0.1 0.1 14 0.1 0.1 15
4.5 5.6 147 3.5 4.6 150
0.0 0.0 28 0.0 0.0 25
oTC 3.8 5.8 149 4.7 6.7 156
6.1 7.0 209 5.5 6.5 231
14.4 18.4 637 13.8 18.0 577
3.7 3.8 251 6.0 5.9 318
0.2 0.9 10 0.6 0.7 12
0.0 0.0 3 0.0 0.0 4
3.9 4.8 264 6.7 6.5 334
0.3 0.2 8 0.3 0.3 5
0.4 0.5 24 0.7 0.5 19
0.0 0.0 9 0.0 0.0 8
oTC 0.5 0.2 24 0.9 0.6 19
0.7 0.7 19 0.7 0.9 11
1.9 1.7 84 2.5 2.3 63
156.4 151.3 17,732 176.0 170.7 17,960
156.2 151.3 175.6 170.7
155.9 150.8 175.2 170.3
0.2 0.0 0.4 0.0
0.2 0.0 0.4 0.0
(19.5) (11.5) 18.7) .7
(115.9) (115.9) (136.3) (136.3)
21.0 23.9 21.0 24.7
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0.0 0.2 0.0 0.6
7.7 8.6 7.4 9.2
13.2 15.0 13.6 14.9
PRV NRV
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14a
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
34,427 34,463 27,296 27,354
527 527 0 0
33,900 33,936 27,296 27,354
233 244 223 234
1 62 64 133 137
8 8 9 9
34,669 34,715 27,528 27,598
2 38,526 38,360 27,127 27,181
! UBS AG 10 10 2
14b
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
UBS !
0-1 27,607 26,632
2-3 6,817 653
4-5 0 0
6-8 0 0
9-13 0 0
4 10
34,427 27,296
! 17
15a
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
136 116
182 226
1
1,202 1,210
1,775 2,435
uBS A6 UBS 1,284 1,850
3,295 3,986
! UBS AG  UBS AG 2016 UBS AG 20b
15b
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
1,250 2,826
247 232
697 129
126 110
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1,785 2,208
UBS AG  UBS 1,521 1,694
4,113 5,505
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16
2016 12 31 UBS AG 1,809 2015
12 31 2,597 160 2015 12
31 258
2016 12 31
18 2015 12 31 21
17
- UBS AG UBS AG 2016
Risk management and control
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
UBS
0 Aaa AAA AAA 204,113 46 227,855 48
2 Aal  Aa3 A+ AA- M+ AA- 127,349 29 141,073 30
3 Al A3 A+ A- A+ A- 38,915 9 39,846 8
4 Baal Baa2 BBB+ BBB BBB+ BBB 13,810 3 19,053 4
5 Baa3 BBB- BBB- 4,477 1 4,399 1
6 Bal BB+ BB+ 1,308 0 2,430 1
7 Ba2 BB BB 1,241 0 84 0
8 Ba3 BB- BB- 61 0 73 0
9 Bl B+ B+ 192 0 173 0
10 B2 B B 1,065 0 93 0
1 B3 B- B- 156 0 954 0
12 Caa ccc ccc 361 0 216 0
13 ca ¢ c c c C 121 0 82 0
D D D 6 0 5 0
393,175 89 436,336 91
46,301 1 40,709 9
439,476 100 477,045 100
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18
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
1,778 3,017
29,648 30,236
10,013 16,118
2,444 2,949
! 1,949 1,075
826 218
5,149 4,491
51,806 58,104
1
2016 12 31
5,197 2015 12 31 3,624
116 2015 12 31 60
19a
UBS AG
UBS AG 0.10
UBS AG
UBS AG
2016 12 31 UBS AG 3,858,408,466 2015 12 31
UBS AG
2016 12 31 0.10 516,200,312 2015 12 31
552,352,759
2016 2015 UBS AG
13,847,553 2015 UBS AG
UBS AG 50 2016 12 31 193 2015

12 31
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19b
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG 100
UBS AG 2016 12 31 2015
12 31 UBS AG UBS AG UBS
AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
- UBS AG UBS AG 2016 UBS
AG 23
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
) ()
UBS AG
UBS AG 386 100 386 100
UBS AG
Chase Nominees Ltd., London 36 9 35 9
GIC Private Limited, Singapore 25 6
DTC (Cede & Co.), New York' 26 7 24 6
Nortrust Nominees Ltd., London 15 4 14 4
! DTC (Cede & Co.), New York The Depository Trust Company
20
a
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
0 0
! 697 129
697 129
UBS UBS 220 260
UBS 47 27
964 416
! 2016 12 31 529 26
2015 12 31 25 2015 12 31
b
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
1 2,508 2,243
UBS AG ( ) 0 0
0 0
216 270
21 30
238 300
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! FER 26 FER 16
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 UBS AG
UBS AG FER 16 IFRS 1AS
19
2016 2015
- IAS 19 UBS AG UBS AG
2016 UBS AG 26
21
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
- UBS AG UBS AG 2016 UBS AG 27
22
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
1 522 8,536 581 5,776
505 7,865 567 5,171
94,171 9,553 119,900 87,059
36,151 25,256 37,278 28,685
33,994 2,272 23,308 8,558
19,029 25,114 54,422 44,149
2 121 17,476 117 5,752
108 17,291 39 5,699
41 33
11 20
3 8 9
1 uBs AG UBS AAG 2 UBS AG UBS AG % SIX Group AG UBS AG
17.3
2016 12 31 248 2015
12 31 265 175 2015 12 31 194
45 2015 12 31
23
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
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349 310
349 310
0 0
349 310
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS

UBS AG
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24a
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
12 11
168 166
329 311
509 488
3 2
17.2 0.0
24b
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
! 488 1,076
17 0
2 17 8
0 (29)
UBS AG (557)
@3) (10)
« ) 12 10)
! 509 488
1 2
- UBS AG UBS AG 2016 UBS AG
33
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UBS AG consolidated financial statements

Primary financial statements

Auditisd
Income statement

For the year ended % chenge from
CHF miat Mole A6 2N ERFATY 1215
H'_rld'HfI'l':uﬂ_ 3 13,782 13,178 13,194 5
et inberest income 3 6383 6,729 6,555 5
et inberest income after credit loss expende [E7T 6612 6,477 4
“Wetfee snd commisgion income. & war 17,184 17,076 i)
MWetmadng eeme Ty T S 56 e (1
Dther income - 5 s L 2 (38)
Total aperating incose 30,605 28,026 i}
Peruonnel expenies & 15501 15,954 15,280 [
“Geesand adsinidatios wpenses E I 5218 LR iB)
Deprecitlion and impsiment of propeety, eouiomet ond sofwre 14 w0 4 B7 7
Amortization and impaimment of inangibie sy 15 91 107 83 (15)
Tetsl ageraling experse 4352 5,10 25,557 fah
Oiperating profit / foss) before tax . . 4065 5407 1969 (25
Taxespense/feneiy a8 m og e
et jpreds | floss) 1388 6314 1,649 (48}
He2 pradit | fleas) attrbutable s prefecred selsholders T8 77 142 1
“Wet proft | s} atrbutable o men-contraling ierests. T i T s L)
hiea prorft | fioss) attributable 1o shareholders 37 5,135 3,502 (43)

478
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Statement of comprehensive income

Fir thee year ended
CHF il AL 25 EIRFAL]

Comprehensive income attributable to shareholders
N oot [ floss) iy £,235 3502

Cher comprehensive income that may be reckassiied to the income sistement
Foneign cumency trandation sovemints, before tx Bl 1174) 1,839
Foreign exchenge amaunts reclsssified o the income statement from equily 1% (a0

Irvccmes Rt pelatinng b oreign cummency translalion movesents 84) i1 o)}
Subbotal foreign curvendy wardlafion, net of tax =3

Financial asbets available for sae

et unrealized gains. / (lowes) on finandal assets svalable for sae, before tx 40

Muﬂgﬂmmh mmmﬁmmﬂ Ii'-I'J]
Reslized berses reclasified 1o the income statement fom equity =
kmmrdmgmmgﬂufﬂmubmmhﬂe s
Subbotal firancial ssets svailsble for sae, net of sax 73 (64 140
Cash fowr hedges

Eflective portion of changes in fair walue of derivative instrusents designated as cesh flow hedges, before tax ME 550 L1086

Totsl ather comprehnsive income that may be redasified to the income statement, net of s

Other comprahensive income St will not be redassified 1o e income statement

Cram credit o finencial Rablities desigrabed a4 fir value

Gaing / (ases) fom own cedis on Snandal lisbilties desgnated & (o value, belore tax {120
e uﬁmﬂhhllnuduignuduﬂ?u]m "
Susbbotal cven evedil on Fnandal Ratilte: designated at fair walue, ret ol la {115}

Totsl ather comprehengive income that will ot be redacfied bo the income statement, net of tax (934) 304 (1,208

Totsl ather comprehnsive income {1,386) (545) 1,459
Total comprshensive income stributable to sharshobders 1,810 5,690 4,961

Tabde continues an the next page.

479

392/624



Statement of comprehensive income (continued)
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Tabde continued from previous page.

Fior thee year ended
CHF i HALIE 31215 EIRFAL
Comprehensive income attributable to preferred noteholders
Nea proft | fless) T 77 142
Cther comprehensive income that vl net be redassiind ba e income satement
Fereigp cuency tansiaion suvemenss, befre 1 L i E
Income it relating bo foreign currency translation movesents o 0 o
Susbbotal foreign currency arelafion, net of tax m (550 13
Total ather comprehensive income that will not be pedaxslied bo the income statement, net of wax m 1550 13
Total comprehensive income aiributable bo prefemed nobeholders ) 18 260
Comprehensive income attributable to non-tontrolling interests
Wea poaift [ fless) 4 3 5
Oriher comprehensive income thal may be redassiied fo the inoome sistement
m@mmmmmhﬂﬂdmnmm bebooetee o o 0
Income Lot relting bo other cosprehensie inoome that may be redassifed 1o the income stabement 1] ] L]
Total giher compreensive income that may be redassiied bo the income stabemen, net of iax [ o []
Oiher comprehensive income st will not be redasslied vo the income statement
Foreign cumenty transation sovements, beloe L [1] [} 3
Income Lot relating bo foreign curmency transiation movesents o 0 [}
Subbotal foreign curvendy wardlafion, net of tax [1] [} 3
Gaires J [eritees) om defined benefit plans, before L o 0 0
Income i relating bo defined beselil plans 5] ] [}
Subbotal defined benefit plans, net of tax o ] 0
Total gther compresnsive income that will not be pedassied bo the income seatement, net of L L] [} 3
Total gther comprehsnsive income L] [} 3
Total comprehensive income airibistable bo non-coniralling interests 3 1 7
Total comprehendive income
I o eeeeeeessseeesssees s R SRR AR e R AR A . S S, N
Oher comprehensive income {1,115) 1608) 1,580
o i abhesr comprahensie scotie Ml mdy be sl fo the dote Satament (&7 ] Elr
o e bt covrpralensie sxcomie Mt i of b reciassfiad o the GncoTie StATARANY ] Foi (LogR)
Total comprehensive income LT 5,709 5229
480
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% chenge fom
CHF il Hate ELRFE [ 1215 EIR R Y

W07, 767 21,306 18
13,125 11,866

5584 (41}

o i assets piobed 8¢ coliteral il miy be tob o remiediped by couatenpantiss
Penilive replacement values.
Cash collatersl recefeables on derivalive instruments

- T

Finamdial ascets desgnated o fair value

B B B B B B B e B e B B B N N N T E N R RN R A T E A TR R N

Goodwill and intangible asses 15 6,556 6,568 0
13,144 12,833

Totsl sty 935,353 943,256 i

Cash collstersl payables on derivative irstrusients it 35,472 38,282
(LT TE o 7 450, 199 407522 12

Idﬂgnﬂdlﬂrdue TRTET] FaE iraes i
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Statement of changes in equity
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CHF million

Balance & of 1 January 2014

Share-beed compendation expensed in the income itatement

Tay (expense] [ banefit
Diviiderids

Exquity clrsified as obligation bo purchase can theres

Prefermed notes

o il aher comprabensie income (0] Bhat may be racleiiliad to the incore slatement, et of ti

o e (AT thar Wil it L reclansifiad [ b Scome SLaRswRe, el of (i — delfned bevelir plans
o il (0T thar Wil ot e reclaceifad o the fncome starsmeent mer of [y — leafpr comandgy fransiation

Batance & of 31 December 2014

Pressius on dhares Hiied and warants essncided

Tan fexpense] / benefit

[y dusilied e obfigation popurchmse camsbures. 0 e e
Prelemed notes

o et (0T thar wefll it e esclanaifia I D Soorme sEarsml mer off 1y — e corendgy Dansiation

482

395/624



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Orther comprehensive
incose recognized of il fnancis’ Teasl squity
directly in equity, ret ofedioh besign aengy  ssietrnalabe by ol cach o altrituitable 1o Han-contrall

of bax! Iranlaion ke hedes shaseholders  Prefirred notehalders infleresis Tatal equity

{5,866 (7425 o5 1463 28,002 183 ] 43,936

o 0

(953} (553}
.............................................................................................................. G
&1 &1
.............................................................................................................. 1LY
""""""""""""" ] ]

3 3

45 26

o 1 1
- - Y - e g

2 56T T.834 140 i 4961 160 7 5219

ELF 2 5 J648

267 1834 140 .1 L2EEF P

i g El (4

{3,198) 5591 236 2156 52,108 pI-E] 45 54,165

1 1

(293} (282}

""""""""""""" 0 290

] E

- - o = e T

o L]

o 1 1

- - T - TN e

(E48} [ Lz LI 5,500 g 1 5709

275 77 E] g314

&g [y &g 58 54 {848
.............................................................................................................. A ..}
i {58 [ 2]
433
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Statement of changes in equity (continued)

LM mili
Batance 25 o 31 December 2015 B/ AT [ Baa

Ta fexpense] /

Hews consolidations | (deconsolidations) and other inceases | (decsase) [r] 11}
Totel comprehensive income lor the yesr

o il ather comprabensie incame (0] Bhat may be racienifed b the income siatement, ret of b

oo it 0T it weilf it it eclacaition fr thet income statemal oar oty — oned beeefirples iy

o it (T har Wil it e reclanaifiad o thee o ArarsTR, eF off (i — iwaipt corrandgy fanslanion
Balance a2 af 31 December 2016 £ 1505
1 Escleckes ditined benetic plars ans cem ondic that am recared discly i sained saings.
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Orther comprehensive
incose recognized of il fnancis’ Teasl squity
directly in equity, ret ofedioh besign aengy  ssietrnalabe by ol cach o altrituitable 1o Han-contralling
of bax! Iranlaion ke hedes shaseholders  Prefirred notehalders infleresis Tatal equity
8,047 (5857 7z 1638 55,248 1954 4 57,243
0 ]
4 4
............................................................................................................... T
........................................................................................................... Gay BB BT
___________________________ a {1.553) (1583}
a o @
fan = "L L S ... N e i 1
ix7 75 4 ey
() 23 73 [227] {7 47
{524 824)
________________________ {115 {115
=} Fr [ AL
{4,404) {5 5647 ol 7 53,662 ZH o 54343
485
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UEBS AG shares issued and treasury shares held Conditional share capital

&z of 31 December 2016, shares ssued by UBS AG totaled As of 31 December 2016, UBS AG's share capital could have
3,858 408 466 (21 December 2015: 3,858, 408,466 shares). been increased through the Esuance of 135200312 shares

Mo treasury shares were held as of 31 December 2016 and as  upon exercize of employes options.
of 31 December 2015. Additional conditional capital up to a maximum number of
380,000,000 shares was available as of 31 December 2016 for

corversion rights and warrants granted in connection with the
issuance of bonds or similar financial instruments.

486
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Statement of cash flows

Far the yeer ended
CHF it EIRFA[ 1215 ERFALY
Cash flows fram / {used in) operating activities
het jpradt [ floss) 3,288 6314 1,649
] D . . e eeesseemeers e rremsssseaemssmsmeeessermsssreesssssemms
Depreciation and impirment of property, eguipment snd softwan: aa0 9ig 7
Amortization and impaiment of intangible st a1 07 83

Cash collstersl on ssousifies borsowed and reverse repurnchise byeaseny 7,033 273 12,262
Trafing portiolio snd replacement values 6,024 853 (5.576)
“Finncisl awets dedgnated s fat valve T - {50,658) [T 2607
“Cashcolleneral on deheie petusers T B {4,969 s {7.301)
Loare 3,740 i (20,437
T —— TR i
Orther &ssets, provisions and other lishilities (8,204} 7516 4,751
Income taees. paid, net of refunds (640} 1551} (E00)
hiea cash Tionw from [ used in) operating actiiies (17,413} 1987 7.2
Cash flow from / (used in) investing sctivities
Purchise of aubsidiaries, mancimes and inangible miets 28 [E] (8}
Dispasel of subsidiaries, anodates and intangible avety' a3 a7 70
Rechis ofpopeny, eqipment and sciware e TR TS
Dispassl of progery, equipment and solvane o] 547 350
Parchase of fnancial sses available for sale (7,271} {101,185 {136,330}
“Dispuial o redempgion of firancial scsts sailable for cale T eapar T mase 10438
“Wetlpurchase) [ redemplion of Enancil assets e tomaney B Eos
Hied cash flow from [ used in) invessing actiifies 35,350 (8434 1,586
Tabde continues an the next page.
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

Tabde continued from previous page.
Far the yeer ended

CHF i EIRFE 30.12.15 EIRERE]

Cash flows fram / {used in} finanting activities
hhet short-temm debit ixsed / epaid) 5,440 {6,804) (2321}

et sovesents in measury shares snd own equity derivative activity L] o e

sam B RS RN A RN B A B R A B B A RS N R R

e S T P e e e
Repayment of kng-term debt, induding Snandal lisbilties designated ot Tai value

et i B veosene o el v ) o8~ —r

Hea cash Tlow from [ lused inj Binanding scivities 6 (5,573 081

Total cash flow
Cash and cash equivalients i the begining of the yeer 102,962 116715 36,284

Effects of eschange rate differences on cath and cash equivalents (80T} 11,747 8,522
Cash snd cash eguivalents &1 1he end of the year 121,007 102,962 16715
L ... o

Lk ahaddimosthonaidmls

1 Inchudes chiconds mosived hom assocings. 2 ORF 1,652 million, CHF 3,363 million and CHF 4,178 million of cash and cash equivalents (mainly seliecied in Dus fmom banks) wese seumicd o of 31 Decmbor
1016, 31 Daoombeor 2015 and 31 December 2084, espectiely. Fafer 10 Mo 23 for mom inlomatios. 3 Money maibet paper b induded in the balanoe sheet ende Trading porfolio assets |31 Decemiber 2016
CHF 75 milion, 31 Decersber 2005 CHF 795 million, 31 December 2014 CHF 235 milion), Financial asets avallable foo sale (31 Decmber 2006 CHF £30 million, 31 Decemier 2015 COHF 125 millon, 31
Decomber 2004; CHF 34 million) and Financial amets deskgeaced an fair vaks (31 Decomber 2016 CHF 959 million, 31 Decamber 2005 CHF @ millen, 31 Demembe 2004 OF 0 nilin), 4 Indedes diizends
wmieed tom asndains (2016 CHF 50 milien, 2015 C4F 114 millen, 2004 CHF 54 million] repaned within Gish fiow fom | {esed in irvesting acietis.
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Notes to the UBS AG consolidated financial statements

Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Significant accounting policies

This Mote describes the significant accounting paolicies appled in the
preparation of the consalidated finandal statements (the “Fnancial
Statements”) of UBS AG and its subsidiaries {"UBS AG*). On 9
March 2017, the Financdal Statements were authorized for Esue by
the Board of Directors.

Basks of accounting

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS), as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (143E), and are
presented in Swiss francs (CHF), the currency of Switzedand,
where UBS AG is incorporated.

Disclosures  provided  in the  "Risk, treasury and  capital
manzgement” section of this report that are marked as audited
form an integral part of the Finandal Statements. These disclosures
relate to requirements under IFRS 7, Rnanoal instruments:
Désclosures and 185 1, Preserdation of Fnancal Satements and are
naot repeated in this saction.

The accounting policies described in this Mote have been applied
consistently in all years presented unbess otherwise stated in Note
b

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Preparation of these Fnancal Statements under IFRS requires
management to apply judgment and make estmates and
asumptions that affect reported amounts of asets, liabilities,
income and expenses and disdosure of contingent assets and
limbilities, and may imole significant uncertainty at the time they
are made. Such estimates and assumptions are based on the best
available information, UBS AG regularly reassesses the estimates
and assumptions, which encompass historical  experience,
expectations of the future and other pertinent factors, to determine
their continuing relevance based on current condifions and it
updates them as mecessary. Changes in thoss estimates and
asumptions may have a significant impact on the Fnandal
Statements. Further, actual results may differ significantly from UBS
AG's estimates, which could result in significant koss to it, beyond
what it anticipated or provided far.

The following areas contain estimation uncertainty or requirs
critical judgment and have a significant effect on the amounts
recagnized in the Financial Statements:

- consalidation of structured entities (refer to item 1 in this Note

and 1o Note 28)

— fair value of financial instruments (refer to item 3f in this Note

and 1o Note 22)

- allowances and provisions for credit ksses for financial assets

held at amortized cost (refer to iterm 39 in this Mote and 1o

Mote 11)

— pension and other post-employment benefit plans (refer to
itemn 7 in this Mote and to Note 26)

- income taxes (refer to item & in this Mote and to Note 8)

— goodwil {refer to itern 11 in this Note and to Note 15)

- provisions and contimgent liabilities (refer to item 12 in this Note
and to Mote 20).

1) Consolidation

a. Consolidation principles

The Finandal Statements comprise the financial statements of UBS
AG and its subsidiaries, including controllad structured ansities (SEs),
presented as a single economic entity, whersby intercompany
trarsactions and balances have been eiminated. UBS AG
consolidates all entities that it controls, which i the case when it has
i power over the nelevant activities of the entity, (i) exposure to an
entity's variable retuns and (i) the ability to use its power to affect
an entity’s returms.

Where an entity is governed by voting rights, control is generally
indicated by a direct shareholding of mare than one-half of the
voting rights.

In ather cases, the assessment of control 5 mare complex and
requires greater wse of judgment. Where UBS AG has an miterest in
an entity that absorbs wariability, UBS AG considers whether it has
power over the relevant activities of the entity that allows it to affect
the variability of its returns. Consideration is given to all facts and
dreumstances to determine whether UBS AG has power ower
another entity, that is, the cument ability to direct the releant
activities of an entity when decisions about those activities need to
be made. Factors such as the purpose and design of the entity,
rights held through contractual arrangements such as call ights, put
rights of liquidation rights, a5 well & potential decision-making
rights are all consideved in this assessment. Where UBS AG has
power over the relevant activities, a further assessment is made to
determine whether, through that powes, it has the ability to affect
its own retums by assessing whether power i held ina principal or
agent capacity. Consideration & given fo (i) the scope of dedsion-
miaking authosity, (i} rights held by other parties, including remaowal
or ather participating nights and (i) exposure to vaniability, indwding
remuneration, relative to total variability of the entity as well &=
whather that exposure is different from that of other mestors. If,
after review of these factors, UBS AG condudes that it can exercise
its powver to affect its own retums, the entity & consolidated.

Subsidiaries, including SEs, are consolidated from the date
when control is obtained and are deconsaolidated from the date
whien control ceases. Control, or the lack thereof, is reassessad if
facts and dircumstances indicate that there is a change 1o one ar
more of the elements needed to establish that controd is present.

—+ Refer to Note 28 for mone information
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

b. Structured entities

UBS Al sponsors the formation of SEs and interacts with non-

spansored 3Es for a variety of reasans, inchuding allowing dients

to obtain or be exposed to particular risk profiles, to provide
funding ar to sell or purchase credit risk. An 5E s an enfity that
has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity. Such
entities generally have a narrow and well-defined objective and
include those historically referred to as special purpose entities
and some investment funds. UBS AG assesses whether an entity
is an SE by considering the nature of the activities of the entity
as well as the substance of woting or similar fights afforded to
other parties, including investors and independent boards or
directors. UBS AG considers rights such as the ability to liquidate
the entity or remove the decision maker to be similar to voting
rights when the holder has the substantive ability to exercise
such rights without cause. In the absence of such rights or in
cases where the esistence of such rights cannot be fully
established, the entity is considered to be an SE.

The classes of 5E5 UBS AG is involved with include:

- Securitization structured entities are established to Bsue
securities to imvestors that are backed by assets held by the SE
and whereby (i} significant credit risk associated with the
securitized exposures has been transferred to third parties
and (ii) there is more than one risk position or tranche issued
by the securitization wehicle in lne with the Basel I
securitization  definition. All securifization enfities are
classified as SEs.

- (lient investment structured  entities  are  established
predominantty for clients to invest in specific assets or risk
exposures throwgh purchasing notes Bswed by the SE,
predominantty on a fized-term basis. The SE may source
assets via a transfer from UBS AG or through an external
market transaction. In some cases, UBS AG may enter into
derivatives with the 5E to either align the cash flows of the
entity with the investor's intended investment objective or to
introduce other desired risk exposures. Im certain cases, UBS
A may have interests in a third-party-sponsored SE to hedge
specific risks or participate in asset-backed financing.

- Investment fund structwred entities have a  collective
investment objecthve, are managed by an inwestment
manager and are either passively managed, so that any
decision making does not hawe a substantive effect on
variability, or are actively managed and nvestors or their
governing bodies do not have substantive voting or similar
rights. UBS AG creates and sponsors a large number of funds
in which it may have an interest through the receipt of
variable management fees and / or a direct investment. In
addition, UBS AG has interests in a number of funds created
and sponsored by third parties, induding exchange-traded
funds and hedge funds, to hedge issued structured products.

440

When UBS AG does not consolidate an SE, but has an interest
in an SE or has sponsored an SE, disclosures are provided on the
nature of these nterests and spansorship activities.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Each indiadual entity is assessed for consolidation in line with
the aforementioned consolidation principles. The assessment of
control can be complex and requires the use of significant
judgment. As the nature and extent of UBS AG's invohement is
unigue to each entity, there & no uniform  consalidation
outcome by entity. Certain entities within a class may be
consolidated while others may not.

— Refer to Mote 28 for more information

2} Segment reporting

UBS AG's businesses are organized globally into five business.
divisions: Wealth Management, Wealth Management Americas,
Personal & Corporate Banking, Asset Management and the
Investment Bank, all of which are supported by Corporate
Center. The five business divisions gualify as reportable
segments for the purpose of segment reporting and, together
with Corporate Center, reflect the management structure of
UEBS AG. Corporate Center = Mon-core and Legacy Portfalio is
managed and reported as a separate reportable segment within
Corporate Center. Finandal information about the five business
divisions and Corporate Center {with its units: Services, Group
Asset and Liability Management (Group ALM), Mon-core and
Legacy Portfolio) is presented separately in internal reporting to
management.

UBS AG's imternal accounting  policies, which  nchude
management accounting policies and service level agreements,
determine the revenues and expenses directly attributable to
each reportable segment. Transactions between the reportable
segments are carmed out at internally agreed rates and are
reflected in the operating results of the reportable segments.
Revenue-sharing agreements are used to allocate external dient
revenues to reportable ssgments where several reportable
segments are invobeed in the value creation chain. Commissions
are credited to the reportable segments based on the
corresponding dient relationship. Total intersegment revenues
for UBS AG are immaterial, as the majority of the revenues are
allocated across the segments by means of revenue-sharing
agreements. Met interest income is generally allocated to the
repartable segments based on their balance sheet positions.
Interest income earned from managing UBS AG's consolidated
equity is allocated to the reportable segments based on average
attributed equity. Assets and liabilities of the reportable
segments are funded throwgh and invested with Corporate
Center — Group ALM, and the net interest margin is reflected in
the results of each reportable segment.
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment assets are based on a third-party view and do not
include intercompany balances. This view & in line with internal
reporting to management. Certain assets managed centrally by
Corporate Center — Services and Corporate Center — Group ALM
may be allocated to the ssgments on a basis different to that
which the corresponding costs or revenues are allocated to. For
example, certain assets that are reported in Corporate Center =
Services or Corporate Center — Group ALW may be retained on
the balance sheets of these components of Corporate Center
notwithstanding that the costs or revenues associated with these
assets may be entirely or partly allocated to the segments.
Similarly, certain assets are reported in the business divisions,
whereas the cormesponding costs or revenues are entirely or
partly allocated to Corporate Center — Services and Corporate
Center — Group ALM.

— Refer to Mote 2 for more information

3) Financial instruments

a. Recognition
UBS AG recognizes finandal instruments when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. UBS AG
applies trade date accounting to derivatives and settlement date
accounting to all non-derivative financial instruments,

UBS AG also acts in a fiduciary capacity, which results in the

holding or placng of assets on behalf of individuals, trusts,
retirement benefit plans and other institutions. Unless the
recognition criteria are satisfied, these assets and the related
income are excluded from UBS AG's Financial Statements, as
they are mot assets of UBS AG.

Client cash balances associated with derivatives clearing and
expcution services are not recognized on the balance sheet if,
throwgh contractual agreement, regulation or practice, UBS AG
neither obtasins benefitt from nor controls the chient cash
balances.

b. Classification, measurement and pressntation
Upon initial recognition, UBS AG records financial instruments at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs in the case
of financial instruments not subsequently accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss. After initial recognition, UBS AG
classifies, measures and presents its financial assets and liabilities
in accordance with |AS 39, Fpancal nstruments: Recognition
and Measurement as described in the following table.
—+ Refer to Note 25a for an overview of financial assets and
liabilities by LAS 39 category
—+ Refer to the balance sheet for references to Notes that provide
information on the composition of individual financial asset and
liability categories
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial agsets
caaificagion
Held fox irading

Significant e included

Al derhastives with & positive replacement walue, except thae that sre
designaned and efecine hedging inssuments.

.:':: H fn lumrnunlnluur
wd'm ea o
w&lﬂlﬂﬂml} Mkwﬁ

instnements, and assets held under unit-linked irvestment conlracts.

m.ﬂ'\lﬁl

Afinancial asset may be at i value o
e v dignaned ot g

u&wiuwmwhm
Hhmuimmhwwlndhﬂwm
- mmmmmmum:
subrasntive embedded derivative;

= the finandal instnament is pan of & pordolio that is risk managed on &
fair walue basi and Eanagement on that basis; ar

= the spplication of the sipnificandy
reduces an accounting sismate that weuld othenwise arise

UBS A5 desigrated st {sir vabue through profit of lows the folowing
ingtnsments:

Ioans, reverse: repurchase and securities borrowing

on & fair welue bass.

with credit defivatives. These

1 elissinate an sceounting
:;mmmmmmmmm

- 8
igh-guativy liqoid ety {HOLA) aned menaged by Corporate Center -
Group ALM on & fair vk basis,

- mumuudmmnhmmwm“
mm HMI
m-mumumwum
mdhfmmhmhlﬂhqwmahmu

Loains and pecehvables
(arrertized costy

Kien-derteative financiel swels with fised or deterssinsble paysents tha
ﬂmmh-m-ﬁmﬂmmmhmmm
miry meok pecover subnaentialy sl of its initisl net imvestiment Tor reasons
other than aedit deteriosation. This clasification includas:

cash and balsnoe: with ceniral banks

:
:
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Mezsusemen? and pressnition

Measured a1 {air ualue with changes recegnized in profit or b

b M i

Desiteative aiipts ane quneraly pracemid as P olicaman kAt
Eifrcated embadded derivatives are sesured st (s value, bt
presented on the same balance sheet line 2 the hoit contrac sesuned
at amortized o8,

Derivatives that sre desigrated 2nd efective hedging instruments are dso

mieasured at fair vahoe, The presentation of fir value changes. differs
munwuwmmumﬁm—au
for sore information).

Hedd for trading assets (other than derivatives) are presented & Trading
Bt dets.

Firsancial al lak wile e
Tﬁm Mwﬁu e

Measuned 5 smortized cost using the effectie inteset rae method ks
aliowanees fer evedit lasses (reler bo ftame 3¢ and 3g in this Nue),
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial agsets
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

c. Interest income and expense

Interest income or expense is determimed by reference to a
financial nstrument's amortized-cost basis calculated wsing the
sffective interest rate (EIR) method. UBS AG also uses this
method to determine the interest income and expenze for
financial instruments (excluding derivatives) measured at fair
value through profit or loss that is presented within Met interest
fnoome.

Upfront fees, induding loan commitment fees wiere a loan &
expected to be issued, and direct costs are incduded within the
initial measurement of a financial instrument measured at
amortized cost or classified as available for sale. Such fees and
costs are therefore recognized over the expected hfe of the
instrument as part of its EIR.

Fees related to loan commitments where no loan & expected
to be issued, as well as loan syndication fees where UBS AG
does not retain a portion of the syndicated loan or where UBS
A does retain a portion of the syndicated loan at the same
effective yield for comparable risk as other participants, are
included in Met fee and commission incame.

Interest income on financial assets, excluding derivatives, &
included in Interest income when positive and in Interest
expense when negative, because negative nterest income
arzing on a financial asset does not meet the definition of
revenue.  Similarly, interest expense on financial Eabilities,
excluding derivatives, i included in interest expenss, except
when inferest rates are negative, in which case it is induded in
Interest income. Dividend income on all financial asssts is
included in Interest income.

— Refer to Mote 3 for more information

d. Derecognition

Financial assets

UBS AG derecognizes a financial asset, or a partion of a financial
asset, from its balance sheet where the contractual rights to
cash flows from the assst have expired, or hawe been
transferred, usually by sale, thus exposing the purchassr to
pither substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or a
significant part of the risks and rewards combined with the
unconditional akility to sell or pledge the asset.

A finandial asset i considered to have besn transfemed when
UES AG (i) transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash
flowes of the finandial asset or (i) retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of that asset, but assumes a contractual
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abligation to pay the cash flows to one or more entities.

Where finandal assets have been pledged as collateral or in
similar amangements, they are considered to have been
transferred if the counterparty has received the contractual right
to the cash flows of the pledged assets, as may be evidenced,
for example, by the counterparty's right to ssll or repledge the
assets. Where the counterparty to the pledged financial assets
has nat received the contractual right to the cash flows, UBS AG
does not consider this to be a transfer for the purposes of
derecagnition.

UBS AG enters into certain transactions whene it transfers
finandal assets recognized on its balance sheet but retains either
all or a portion of the risks and rewards of the transferred
financial assets. If all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
are retained, the transferred financial assets are not
derecognized from the balance sheet; for example, securities
lending and repurchase transactions or where financial assets are
zold to a third party with a total retum swap resulting in UBS AG
retaining all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. These types of transactions are accounted for
as secured financing transactions as described in item 3e of this
Note.

In transactions where substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ocwnmership of a financial asset are neither retained nor
transferred, UBS AG derecognizes the financial asset if control
over the asset is sumendered, and the rights and chbligations
retained following the transfer are recognized separately as
assets and liabilities, respectively. In transfers where controd over
the finandal asset is retained, UBS AG continues to recognize
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined
by the extent to which it is exposed to dhanges in the value of
the transfermed asset following the transfer.

Certain over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts and maost
exchange-traded futures and options contracts cleared through
central clearing counterparties are considered 1o be settled on a
daily basis through the daily margining process, as the payment
or receipt of the variation margin represents legal or economic
settlement of a derivative contract, which results i
derecognition  of the associated positive and  negative
replacement walues.

— Refer to Notes 1b and 24 for more information
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial Fabilities

UBS AG derecognizes a financial Rability from its balance sheet
when it & extinguished, such as when the cbligation specified in
the contract is discharged, canceled or has expired. When an
puisting finandial liability is exchanged for a new one from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
puisting liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
madification results in derecognition of the ariginal liability and
the recognition of a new liability with any difference in the
respective carrying amounts being recognized in the income
statement.

e. Securities borrowing £ lending and repurchase f reverse
repurchase transactions

Securities borrowing / lending and repurchase / reverss
repurchase transactions are generally entzred into on a
wollateralized basis. In such transactions, UBS AG typically
borrows or lends equity and debt securities in exchange for
securities or cash collateral Additionally, UBS AG bomows
securities from its clhents’ custody accounts in exchange for a
fae.

These transactions are treated as collateralized financing
transactions where the securities transferred / received are not
derecognized or recognized on balance sheet  Securities
transferred / received with the right to resell or repledge are
disclosed separately.

In reverse repurchase and securities borrowing agreements,
the cash delivered & derecognized and a coresponding
receivable, induding accrued interest, is recarded in the balance
sheet lines Reverse repurchase agreements and Cash collateral
on secwities borrowed, respectively, representing UBS AG"s right
to receive the cash. Similarly, in repurchase and securities lending
agresments, the cash received s recognized and a
carresponding abligation, induding accrued interest, i recorded
in the balance sheet lines Repurchaze agresments and Cash
collateral on securities fent, respectively. Additionally, the sale of
securities that is settled by delivering securitiss received in
reverse repurchase or securities borrowing transactions triggers
the recognition of a trading lability.

Repurchase and reverse repurchass fransactions with the
same counterparty, maturity, currency and Central Securities
Depository (CS0) are generally presented net subject to meeting
the netting requirements described in item 3 of this Note.

— Refer to Motes 23 and 24 for more information

f. Fair value of financial instruments

UBS AG accounts for a significant portion of its assets and
liabilities at fair walue. Fair value is the price on the measurement
date that would be received for the sale of an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal market, or in the most advantageous
market in the absence of a principal market.

Al fmandal instruments measured at fair vabue are
categorized into one of three fair value hierarchy levels. The fair
values of Level 1 financial instruments are based on guoted
prices in active markets. The fair values of Level 2 financial
instruments are based on valuation technigues for which all
significant inputs are, or are based on, observable market data.
The fair values of Level 3 financial instruments are based on
valuation techniques for which significant inputs are not based
on obsarvable market data.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The use of valuation technigues, modeling assumptions and
estimates of unobservable market inputs require significant
judgment and could affect the amount of gain or loss recorded
for a particular position. Valuation techniques that rely maore
heavily on unobservable inputs require a higher level of
judgment to caloulate a fair value than those entirely based on
observable inputs.

Valuation techniques, including models, that are used to
determine fair values are periodically reviewsd and validated by
qualified personnel, independent of thase who created them.
Models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect observable
market data, to the extent possible. Also, models priodtize the
use of observable inputs, when available, over unobservable
inputs. Judgment i required in selecting appropriate models as.
well as inputs for which observable data is less readily or not
available.

UBS AG's valuation technigues may not fully reflect all the
factors relevant to the fair value of financial instruments held.
Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow
for addifional factors, ncluding credit risk, model risk, and
liguidity risk.

UBS AG's governance framework owver  fair
measurement is described in Note 22b.

The level of subjectivity and the degree of management
judgment involved in the development of estimates and the
selection of assumptions is more significant for instruments
valwed wsing specialized and sophisticated modeks and where
some or all of the parameter mputs are less observable {Level 3
instruments) and may require adjustment to reflect factors that
market participants would consider in estimating fair value, such
as chose-put costs, credit exposure, model-driven  valuation
uncertainty, funding costs and benefits, trading restrictions and
other factors which are presented in Note 22d. UBS AG provides
a sensitivity analysis of the impact upon the Level 3 financial
instruments of using reasonably possible alternative assumgtions.
for the unocbservable parameters within Mote 22g.

— Refer to Mote 22 for more information

value
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

g. Allowances and provisions for credit losses for financial assets
held at amortized cost

& claim is impaired and an allowance or provision for credit
lozses is recognized when chjective evidence demonstrates that
a boss event was incurred after the initial recognition and that
the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows that can
be reliably estimated. UBS &G considers a claim to be impaired if
it will be unable to collect all amounts due on the daim based
on the onginal contractual terms due to credit deterioration of
the issuer or counterparty. A claim can be a boan or receivable
camried at amortized cost, or 8 commitment, such as a letter of
credit, a guarantee or a similar instrument.

An allowance for credit losses & reported as a decrease in
camying value of a daim on the balance sheet. For an off-
balance sheet item, such as a commitment, a provision for credit
loss s reported in Prowsions. Changes to allowances and
prowisions for credit kasses are recognized in Credlit foss expense /

recovery.
— Refer to Motes 10 and 11 for more information

Critical acoounting estimates and judgmeants

Allowances and provisions for credit bosses are evaluated at both
a counterparty-specific level and collectively. Judgment is usad in
making assumptions about the timing and amownt of
impairment losses.

Counterparty-specific allowances and provisions
Loans are evaluated ndividually for impairment i objective

evidence indicates that a loan may be impaired. Individual credit
exposures are evaluated on the basis of the borrower's overall
financial condition, resources and payment recard, the prospects
of support from contractual guarantors and, where applicable,
thie realizable value of any collateral. The impairment loss for a
loan is the excess of the camrying value of the finandal asset over
the estimated recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable
amount i the present value, calculated using the loan's ariginal
effective interest rate, of expected future cash flows, inchuding
amounts that may result from restructuring or the Bquidation of
collateral. If a loan has a vanable nterest rate, the discount rate
for caloulating the recoverable amount is the current effective
interest rate. Upon impairment, the accrual of interest income
based on the original terms of the kboan is discontinued. Instead,
the increass in the present value of the impaired loan due to the
passage of time is calculated and reported within interest
fnoome,
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Collective allowances and pravisions

Collective allowances and provisions are calculated for portfolios
with similar credit risk characteristics, taking into account
historical  loss  ewperience and cument conditions. The
methodaology and assumptions used are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between estimated and actual loss
experience. For all of its portfolios, UBS AG also assesses
whether there have been any unforessen developments that
might result in impairments but are not immediately observable
at a counterparty level. To determine wiwether an event-driven
collective allowance for credit losses is required, UBS AG
considers global economic drivers to assess the most vulnerable
countries and industries. As the allowance cannot be allocated
to individual loans, the loans are not considered to be impaired
and interest is accrued on each boan according to its contractual
terms. If objective evidence becomes available that indicates that
an individual finandal asset is impaired, it is removed from the
growp of financial assets assessed for impairment on a collective
basis and & assessed separately as counterparty-specific.

All impaired loans are reviewed and analyzed at least
annually. Any subsequent changes to the amouwnts and timing of
the expected future cash flows compared with prior estimates
result in a change in the allowance for credit losses and are
charged or credited to Credit Joss expense / recovery, An
allowance for impairment & reversed only when the credit
quality has mproved to such an extent that there & reasonable
assurance of fimely collection of principal and mterest in
accordance with the ariginal contractual terms of the daim, or
the equivalent value thersof. A write-off &5 made when all or
part of a claim is deemed uncollectible or forgiven. Write-offs
reduce the principal amount of a daim and are charged against
previously established allowances for credit losses. Recoveries, in
part or in full, of amounts previowsly written off are credited to
Credit [oss expense | recavery
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Renegotiated loans

A renegotiated or restructured loan is a loan for which the terms
have been modified or for which additional collateral has been
requested that was not contemglatad in the original contract.

Typical key features of terms and conditions granted throwgh
renegotiation to avoid default include special interest rates,
postponement  of  interest  or  amortization  payments,
modification of the schedule of repayments or amendment of
loan maturity. There is no chamge in the EIR following a
remegotiation.

If a koan is renegotiated with preferential conditions (ie.,
new or modified terms and conditions are agreed upon which
do not meet the normal market criteria for the quality of the
obligor and the type of loan), it is still classified az non-
performing. It will remain so until the loan is collectad or written
off and will be assessed for impairment on an individual basis,

Concessions granted where there i no evidence of financial
difficulty, or where any changes to terms and conditions are
within  UBS AG's wsual risk appetite, are not deemed
restructured.

A restructuring of a loan coukd kead to a fundamental
change in the terms and conditions of a loan, resulting in the
original loan being derecognized and a new loan being
recagnized.

If a loan is derecognized in these circumstances, the new
loan is measured at fair walue at initial recognition. Any
allowance taken to date against the original loan B
derecognized and & not attributed to the new loan.
Consequently, the new loan is assessed for impainment on an
individual basis. If the loan & not impaired, the loan i included
within the general collective loan assessment for the purpose of
measuring credit losses.,

i Impairment of financial assets dassified as available for sale

At each balance sheet date, UBS AG assesses whether indicators
of impairment are present. Awailable-for-sale debt instruments
are impaired when there is objective evidence, using the same
criteria described in item 3q, that, as a result of one or more
events that occumed after the initial recognition of the asset, the
estimated future cash flows have decreased.

Objective evidence that there has been an impairment of an
available-for-sale equity instrument is a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the asset. UBS AG uses a rebuttable
presumption that such instruments are impaired where there has
been a decling in fair value of mare than 20% below its original
cost or fair value has been balow original cost for more than six
months.

To the extent a financial asset classified as available for sale is
determined to be impaired, the related cumuolative net
unirealized loss previously recognized in Other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the income statement within Other
ircowme. For equity instruments, any further loss is recognized
directly in the income statement, whereas for debt instruments,
any further loss & recognized in the income statement only if
there is additional objective evidence of impairment. After the
recognition of an impairment on a financial asset classified as.
available for sale, increases in the fair value of equity instruments
are reported in Other comprehensive income. For debt
instruments, such increases in the fair value, up to amortized
cost in the transaction currency, are recognized in Other incowme,
provided that the fair value increase is related to an event
accurring after the impairment loss was recorded. Increasss in
excess of that amount are reported in Other comprehensive
IrncoTie.

j- Metting

LBS AG nets finandal asssts and Rabilities on its balance sheet if
{i} it has the unconditional and legally enforceatdle right o st off
the recognized amounts, both in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, bankmuptcy or insohvency of UBS AG
and all of the counterparties, and (i} intends sither to settle on a
net basis or to realize the asset and settle the Rability
simultanecusly. Metted positions include, for example, certain
dervatives and repurchase and reverse repurchase fransactions
with various counterparties, exchanges and dearing houses.

In assessing whether UBS AG intends to either settle on a net
basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly,
emphasis i placed on the effectiveness of operational settement
mechanics in eliminating substantially all credit and Bquidity
expasure between the counterparties. This condition prechudes
offsstting on the balance sheet for substantial amounts of UBS
AG's financial assets and Rabilities, even though they may be
subject to enforceable netting arangements. For OTC derivative
confracts, balance sheet offsetting is generally only permitted in
circumstances in which a market settlement mechanism exists
via an exchange or central dearing counterparty, that effectively
accomplishes net settlement through a daily exchange of
collateral wia a cash margining  process. For  repurchase
arrangements and securities financng transactions, balance
sheet offsetting may be permitted only to the extent that the
settlement mechanism eliminates, or results in nsignificant,
credit and hquidity risk, and processes the receivables and
payables in a single settlement process or oyde.

—+ Refer to Motes 1b and 24 for mone information
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

k. Hedge accounting

UBS AG uwses derivative instruments to manage exposures to
interest rate and foreign curency risks, induding exposures
arizing from forecast transactions. Qualifying derivative and non-
derivative  instruments may be designated as hedging
instruments in (i} hedges of the change in fair value of
recagnized assets or liabilities {fair value hedges), (i) hedges of
the wvariability in future cash flows attributable to a recognized
asset or liability or highly probable forecast transactions (cash
flowe hedges) or (i} hedges of a net mvestment in a foreign
operation (net investment hedges).

At the time a financial instrument is designated in a hedge
relationship, UBS AG formally documents the relatonship
between the hedging instrumentis) and hedged itemis),
including the risk management objectives and strategy in
undertaking the hedge transaction and the methods that will be
used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship,
Accordingly, UBS AG assesses, both at the inception of the
hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether the hedging
instruments, primarily derivatives, have been “highly effective®
in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows assodated
with the designated risk of the hedged items. A hedge &
considered highly effective if the following criteria are met: (i) at
inception of the hedge and throughout its ife, the hedge &
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in
fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk and (i)
actual results of the hedge are within a range of 280-125%. In
the case of hedging forecast transactions, the transaction must
have a high probability of occurring and must present an
exposure to varations in cash flows that could ultimately affect
the reported net profit or loss. UBS AG discontinues hedge
accounting when (i} it determines that a hedging instrument i
not, or has ceased to be, highly effective as a hedge, (i) the
derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, (W) the
hedged item matwes, & sold or repaid or (v} forecast
transactions are no longer deemed highly probable. UBS AG may
also discontinue hedge accownting voluntarily.

Hedge ineffectiveness represents the amount by which the
changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument differ from
changes in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk, or the amount by which changes in the present
value of future cash flows of the hedging mstrument exceed
changes in the pressnt value of expected cash flows of the
hedged iterm. Such ineffectiveness is recorded i current period
samings in Met frading income. Interest income and expenss an
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in effective hedge
relationships is included in inferest income.

Fair value hadges

Far qualifying fair value hedges, the change in the fair value of
the hedging instrument is recognized in the income statement
along with the change in the fair value of the hedged item that
is attributable to the hedged risk. In fair value hedges of interest
rate risk, the fair value change of the hedged item attributable
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tor the hedged risk is reflected as an adjustment to the camying
value of the hedged item. Iif the hedge accounting relationship is
terminated for reasons other than the derecognition of the
hedged item, the adjustment to the camying value = amortized
to the income statement over the remaining term to maturity of
the hedged item using the effective interest rate method. For a
partfolio hedge of interest rate risk, the equivalent change in fair
value is reflected within Other asssts or Other Fabilities. If the
hedge relationship & terminated for reasons other tham the
derscognition of the hedged itemn, the amount included in Other
assets or Other labilities is amortized to the income statement
over the remaining term to maturity of the hedged items using
the straight-lme method.

Cash flow hedges
Fair value gains or kosses associated with the effective portion of

dervatives designated as cash flow hedges for cash flow
repricing risk are recognized initially in Other comprehensive
ircowme within Equity. When the hedged forecast cash flows
affect profit or koss, the associated gams or losses on the
hedging derivatives are reclassified from Fquity to the income
staterment.

if a cash flow hedge of forecasted transactions is no konger
considered effective, or if the hedge relationship is terminated,
the cumulative gains or lasses on the hedging derivatives
previously reparted in Equity remain there until the committed or
forecasted transactions occwr and affect profit or loss. If the
forecasted transactions are no longer expectsd to ocour, the
deferred gains or losses are reclassified immediately to the
income statement.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted
for similarly to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are
recognized directly in Equity {and presented in the statement of
changes in equity and statement of comprehensive income
under Foreign currency transiation), while any gains or losses
relating to the meffective and / or undesignated portion (fior
example, the interest element of a forward contract) are
recognized in the income statement. Upon disposal or partial
disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any
such gains or losses recognized in Fquity associated with the
enfity is reclassified to the income statement.

Fconomic hedges that do not gualify for hedge accounting
Dervative instruments that are ransacted as economic hedges,
but do not qualify for hedoe accounting, are treated in the same
way as derivative instruments used for trading purposes (ie.,
realized and wnrealized gains and losses are recognized in Net
trading income), except for the forward points on certain short
duration foreign exchange contracts, which are reported in MNet
irterest irmoome.
—+ Refer to Mote 12 for more information
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

|. Embedded derivaties

Drerivatives may be embedded in other financial mstruments
{host contracts). For example, they could be represented by the
conversion feature embedded in a convertible bond. Such hybeid
instruments arise predominantly from the issuance of certain
structured debt  instruments. An embedded derivative &
generally required to be separated from the host contract and
accounted for as a standalone derivative instrument at fair value
through profit or koss if () the host contract is not carried at fair
value with changes in fair value reported in the income
statement, (i) the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivative are mot clossly related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract and (i) the terms of
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
standalone derivative, were they contained in a separate
contract.

Typically, UBS AG applies the fair value option to hybrid
instruments {refer to itern 3b in this Mote for more information),
in which case bifurcation of an emibedded derivative component
is not required.

m. Debt issued

Dbt isswed is carmed at amortized cost, including contingent
capital instruments that contain contractual provisions under
which the principal amounts would be written down upon either
a specified CET1 ratio breach or a determination by FINMA that
a viability event has ecoumed. Such contractual provisions are
not derivatives as the underying & deemed to be a non-financial
variable specific to a party to the contract. In contrast, where
there & a legal “baidl-in”™ mechanism for write-down or
conversion into equity (as is the case, for instance, with senior
unsecured debt Esued by UBS AG that i subject to write-down
or conwversion under resolution authority granted to FINRBA
under Swiss law), such mechanism does not form part of the
contractual terms and, therefore, does not affect the amortized
oost accounting treatment applied to these instruments. If the
debt were to be written down or comerted into equity in a
future period, this would result in the full or partial
derecognition of the financial liabilities, with the difference
between the carrying value of the debt written down or
converted into equity and the fair value of any equity shares
issued recognized in the income statement.

In cases where, as part of UBS AG’s risk management activity,
fair walue hedge accounting is applied to fied-rate debt
instruments carried at amortized cost, their camying amount is
adjusted for changes in fair value related to the hedged
exposure, Refer to item 3k for more information on hedge
accounting.

Debt ssuwed and subsequently repurchased in relation to
market-making or other activities is treated as redesmed. A gain
or kass on redemption {depending on whether the repurchase
price of the bond is lower or higher than its carrying valus} is
recarded in Other income. A subsequent sale of own bonds in
the market is treated as a reissuance of debt.

n. Chn credit
Fram 1 January 2016 onward, changes in the fair value of
financial Eahbilities designated at fair value throwgh profit or loss
related to own credit are recognized in Other comprehensive
income  divectly within Retained eamings and will not be
reclassified o the income statement in future periods.

— Refer to Mote 1b for more information

0. Loan commitments
Loan commitments are arrangements under which clients can
barrow stipulated amounts under defined terms and conditions,

Loan commitments that can be canceled at any time by UBS
AG at its discretion are neither recognized on the balance sheet
nor included in off-balance sheet disclosures.

Loan commitments that cannot be canceled by UBS AG once
the commitments are communicated to the beneficiary, or which
are revocable only due to automatic cancelation  wpon
deterioration in a bomower's creditworthiness are cansidered
imevocable and are dassified as (i) deriwative loan commitments.
measured at fair value through profit or loss, {6} loan
commitments designated at fair value through profit or loss aor
(i} other loan commitments. Other boan commitments are not
recorded on the balance sheet, but a provision & recognized
throwgh profit or loss if it = probable that a loss has been
incurmed and a reliable estimate of the amount of the cbligation
can be made. Any change in the liability relating to these other
lzan commitments i reconded in the income statement in Credit
loss expense / recovery.

When a client draws on a commitment, the resulting loan s
presented under Loans, except for cases whers designation at
fair value throwgh profit or loss applies.

p. Finandal guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that reguire the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
an incurred loss because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a specified
debt instrument. UBS AG Esues such finandal guarantess to
banks, financial institutions and ather parties an behalf of dients
to secure |oans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Certain Esued financial guarantees that are managed on a
fair value basis are designated at fair value through profit or kass.

Financial guarantees that are not managed on a fair values
basis are initially recognized in the financial statements at fair
valwe and are subsequently measured at the higher of the
amount mitially recognized less cumulative amortization, and to
the extent a payment under the guarantes has become
probable, the present value of the expected payment. Any
change in the Rability relating to probable expected payments
resulting from guarantees is recorded in the income statement in
Credit loss expense / recavery.
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4} Fee income

UBS AG eams fee income from a diverse range of services it
provides to its dients. Fee income can be divided into two broad
cateqories: (i) fees earned from services that are provided over a
certain period of time, such as portfolio management and
advisory fees, and (i) fees earned from providing transaction-
type services, such as underwriting fees, corporate finance fees
and brokerage fees.

Fees eamned from services that are provided over a certain
period of time are recognized ratably over the service period, with
the exception of performance-linked fees or fee components with
specific performance criteria. Such fees are recognized when the
performance criteria are fulfilled and when collectibiity &
reasonably assured.

Fees samed from providing transaction-type sendices are
recognized when the service has been completed and the fee is
fiad or determinable, ie., not subject to refund or adjustment.

Fee income generated from providing a semwice which does
not result in the recognition of a financial instrument &
presented within Met fae and commission income.  Fees
generated from the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial
instrument are presented in the income statement i line with
the balance sheet classification of that finandal instrument.

— Refer to Mote 4 for more information

5} Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with an original maturity of three
manths or less, induding cash, money market paper and
balances with central and other banks,

&) Equity participation and other compensation plans

Transfar of deferred compensation plans

Az part of the Group reorganization in 2014, UBS Group AG
assumed obligations of UBS AG as grantor in connection with
certain outstanding awards under employee share, option,
notional fund and deferred cash compensation plans. This
section describes the accounting policies applied to these plans
during the periods prior to and post the Group recrganization
and transfer of deferred compensation plans.

Equrty parficipation plans

Periads prior to the Group reorganization and transfer of
defarred compensation plans

UBS AG has established several equity participation plans that
are settled in UBS AG's equity instruments or an amount that i
based on the walue of such instruments. These awards are
generally subject to conditions that require employees to
complete a spedified period of service and, for performance
shares, to satisty specified performance targets. Compensation

500

expense is recognized, on a per ranche basis, over the service
period based on an estimate of the number of instruments
expected to west and is adjusted to reflect actual outcomes.
‘Where the senice period is shortened, for example in the case of
employees affected by restructuring programs or  mutually
agreed termination provisions, recognition of expense s
accelerated to the termination date.

Where no future senice i required, such as for employees
who are retirement eligible or who have met certain age and
years-of-service criteria, the services are presumed to have been
received and compensation expense is recognized immediately
on, or prior to, the date of grant. Such awards may remain
forfeitable until the legal vesting date if certain non-vesting
conditions are not met, such as breach of good-keaver dauses or
harmful acts. For equity-ssttled awards, forfeiture svents
resulting from breach of a non-westing condition do not result in
an adjustment to expense.

Compersation expense is measured by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments on the date of grant adjusted,
when relevant, to take nto account the terme and conditions
inkerent 0 the award, including dividersd rights, transfer
restrictions in effect beyond the vesting date, and non-vesting
conditions. For equity-settled instruments, fair value i determined
at the date of grant and & not remeasured wnless its terms are
maodified such that the fair value immediately after modification
exceeds the fair value immediately prior to maodification. Any
increase in fair value resulting from a modification is recognized as
compensation expense, either over the remaining senvice period
or, for vested awards, immediately. For cash-settled awards, fair
value & remeasured at each reporting date such that the
cumulative expense recognized equals the cash distributed.

— Refer to Mote 27 for more information

Periods post the Group rearganization and fransfer of deferred
compensation plans

UES Group AG has established, and maintains the obligation to
settle, several equity participation plans that are granted to
employees of UBS AG. UBS AG recognizes the fair value of
awards granted to its employees. These awards are generally
subject to conditions that require employees o complets a
specified pericd of service and, for performance shares, to satisfy
specified performance targets. Compensation  expense s
recognized, on a per tranche basis, over the service period based
on an estimate of the number of nstruments expected 1o vest
and i adjusted to reflect actual ocutcomes. Where the service
period is shortened, for example in the case of employees
affected by restructuring programs or  mutually  agreed
terminations provisions, recognition of expense i accelerated to
the termination date.
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Where no futwe service is required, such as for employees
who are retirement eligible or who have met certain age and
years-of-service criteria, the services are presumed to have been
received and compensation expenss is recognized immediately
on, of prior to, the date of grant. Such awards may remain
forfeitable wntil the legal westing date if certain non-vesting
conditions are not met, such as breach of good-leaver dauses or
harmful acts. Forfeiture events resulting from breach of 2 non-
vesting condition do not result in an adjustment to expense.

UBS AG has no obligation to settke the awards and therefore
awards over UBS Group AG shares are classified as equity settled
share-based payment transactions. Compensation expense i
measured by reference to the fair value of UBS Group AG equity
instruments on the date of grant adjusted, when relevant, to
take into account the terms and conditions inherent in the
award, including dividend rights, transfer restrictions in effect
beyond the westing date, and non-vesting conditions, Fair valus
is determined at the date of grant and is not remeasured unless
its terms are modified such that the fair value immediately after
modification esceeds the fair value mmediately pror to
modification. &ny increase in fair value resulting from a
modification is recognized as compensation expenss, either over
the remaining service period or, for vested awards, immediately.

—+ Refer to Note 27 for more infarmation

Cither campensation plans

The employees of UBS AG are granted deferred compensation
plans which are settled in cash or other financial instruments,
the amount of which may be fixed or may vary based on the
achievement of spedified performance conditions or the value of
specdified underlying assets. Compensation expense is recognized
over the period that the employee provides services to become
entitled to the award, Where the service period is shortened, for
pample in the case of employees affected by restructuring
programs of mutually agreed termination provisions, recognition
of expense is acceberated to the termination date. Where no
future service is required, such as for employees who are
retirement eligible or who have met certain age and years-of-
service criteria, the services are presumed to have been received
and compensation expense & recognized immediately on, or
prior to, the date of grant. The amount recognized is bassd on
the present value of the amount expectsd to be paid under the
plan and is remeasured at each reporting date, so that the
cumulative expense recognized equals the cash or the fair valus
of respective finandal instruments distributed.

— Refer to Mote 27 for more infarmation

7} Pensian and other post-employment benefit plans

UBS AG sponsoas various post-employment benefit plans for its
employess worldwide, which include defined benefit and
defined contribution pension plans, and other post-employment

benefits such as medical and life insurance benefits that are
payable after the completion of employment.
—+ Refer to Note 26 for mone information

Defined benefit pension plans

Defined benefit pension plans specify an amount of benefit that
an employes will receive, which usually depends on one or mare
factors, such as age, years of sevice and compensation. The
defined benefit liability recoanized in the balance sheet is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation bess the fair value
of the plan assets at the balance sheet date with changes
resulting from remeasurements recorded immediately in Other
comprehersve income. If the fair value of the plan assets is
higher than the present value of the defined benefit obligation,
the recognition of the resulting net defined benefit asset is
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. UBS AG applies the projected unit
credit method to determine the present value of its defined
benefit oblgations, the related current semvice cost and, where
applicable, past service cost. The projected unmit credit method
sees each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of
benefit entitlerment and measures each unit ssparately to build
up the final obligation. These amounts, which take into account
the specific features of each plan, inchuding risk sharing between
employee and employer, are caloulated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The net defined benefit liability or asset at the balance sheet
date and the related personnel expense depend on the expected
future benefits to be provided, determined using a number of
economic  and demographic  assumptions, A range  of
assumptions could be applied and different assumptions could
significantly alter the defined benefit Bability or asset and
pension expense recognized. The most significant assumgtions
include Wfe expectancy, the discount rate, expected salary
increases, pension increases, and in addition, for the Swiss plan
and ane of the US defined benefit pension plans, interest credits
on retrement savings account balances, Life expectancy is
determined by reference to published mortality tables. The
dizcount rate is determined by reference to the rates of returm
on  high-quality fixed-income  investments of appropriate
currency and term at the measurement date. The assumption for
salary increases reflects the long-term expectations for salary
growth and takes into account inflation, seniority, promation
and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the
labor market. A sensitiity analysis for reasonable peossible
mowements in each significant assumption for UBS AG's post-
employment obligations is provided within Note 26,
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Defired contribution plans

& defined contribution plan i= a pension plan under which UBS
&G pays fixed contributions into a separate entity from which
past-employment and other benefits are paid. UBS AG has no
legal or constructive ohligation to pay further contributions if the
plan does not hobd suffident asets to pay employess the
benefits relating to emgployee sevice in the current and prior
periods, UBS AG's contributions are expensed when the
employess have rendered semvices in exchamge for such
contributions. This is generally n the year of contribution,
Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Cther post-employment benefits
UES AG abko provides post-employment medical and life
insurance benefits to certain retirees in the US and the UK. The
expected costs of these benefits are recognized over the period
of employment wsing the same accounting methodology used
for defined benefit pension plans.

8} Income taxes

UES AG is subject to the income tax laws of Switzerland and
those of the non-Swiss jursdictions in which UBS AG has
business operations.

UBS AG's provision for income taxes is composed of current
and defemed taxes. Current income taxes represent taxes to be
paid ar refunded for the cument penod or previows periods.

Deferred taxes are recognized for temporary differences
between the camying amounts and tax bases of assets and
liabilities that will result in deductible amounts in future periods
and are measured using the applicable tax rates and laws that
will b2 ini effect when such differences are expected to reverse

Deferred tax assets arise from a variety of sources, the most
significant being: (i} tax bosses that can be camried forward to be
used against profits in future years and (i) expenses recognized
in UBS AG's income statement that are not deductible until the
assaciated cash flows occur. Deferred fax assets are recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available against which these differences can be
usad. When an entity or tax group has a history of recent losses,
deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent there are
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is comvincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which the unusad tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred  tax  liabilities are recognized for  temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the balance shest that reflect the expectation that certain
iterns will give rise to taxable income in future periods.
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Deferred and current tax asssts and liabilities are offs=t when
i} they arize in the same tax reporting group, (i) they nelate to
the same tax authority, (ui) the kegal right to offset exists and (iv)
they are intended to be sattled net or realized simultanaously.

Cument and deferred taxes are recognized as income tax
benefit or expenss in the income statement except for cument
and deferred taxes recognized (i) upon the acguisition of a
subsidiary, (i) for uneealized gains or losses on financial
instruments that are classified as available for sale, (i) for
changes in fair value of derivative instruments designated as
cash flow hedges, (ivy for remeasurements of defined benefit
plans, (v} for certain foreign currency translations of foreign
operations, and (v} for gains and losses on the sale of freasury
shares. Amounts relating to points i), (i), (v and W) are
recognized in Other comprehensive income within Equity.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Tax laws are complex and judgment and interpretations about
the application of such laws are required when accounting for
income  taxes, UBS AG considers the performance of its
businesses and the acowracy of historical forecasts and other
factors in evaluating the recoverability of its deferred tax assets,
including the remaining tax loss camy-forward period, and its
amessment of expected future taxable profits in the forecast
period ussd for recognizing deferred tax assets. Estimating
future profitability & inherently subjective and i particulary
sensitive to future economic, market and other conditions,
which are difficult to predict.

The level of deferred tax assst recognition is influsnced by
management's assessment of UBS AG's future profitability based
on relevant business plan forecasts. Existing assessments are
reviewed and, if necessary  revised to  reflect  changed
circumstances. This review is conducted annually, in the sscond
half of each year, but adjustments may be made at other times,
if required. Ini a situation where recent losses have been incurred,
comvincing  evidence that there will be suffident future
profitability is required.

If profit forecast assumptions in future periods deviate from
the cument outlook, the value of UBS AG's deferred tax assats
may be affected. Recognition of any decrease in the camying
amount of deferred tax assets in the income statement would
reduce net profit and equity but would not affect cash flows.

Judgment is also required to forecast the expected outcome
of uncertain tax positions that may require the interpretation of
tax kaws and the resolution of any income tax-related appeals or
litigation that are incorporated into the estimate of income and
deferred tax.

— Refer to Mote B for more information
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

%) Investment in associates

Entities where UBS AG has significant influence over the
financial and operating polices of the entity, but does not have
controd, are classified as investments in associates and accounted
for under the equity method of acoounting. Typically, UBS AG
has significant influence when it holds or has the ability to hald
between 20% and 50% of a company's woting mnghts.
Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost, and the
camying amount i increased or decreased after the date of
acquisition o recognize UBS AG's share of the investee's
comprehensive income and any impairment losses.

— Refer to Mote 28 for more infarmation

10) Property, equipment and software
Property, equipment and software includes own-used properties,
leasehold improvements,  information  technology  hardware,
externally purchased and internally generated software, as well
as communication and other similar equipment. Property,
equipment and software i caried at cost less accumulated
deprediation and impairment losses, and is reviewed at each
reporting  date for indication  for  impairment.  Software
development costs are capitalized only when the costs can be
measured relisbly and it is probable that future economic
benefits will arise. Depreciation of property, equipment and
software begins when they are available for use, that is, when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Depredation i calculated on a straight-line basis over an asset's
estimated useful life. The estimated wseful economic lives of UBS
AG's property, equipment and software are:
- properties, excluding land: < 67 years
= [T hardware and communication equipment < 7 years
- other machines and equipment; < 10 years
— software: £ 10 years
= leasshold improvemnents: shorter of the lease term or the
economic life of asset (typically < 20 years)
— Refer to Motes 1b and 14 for more information

11) Goodwill and intangible assets

Goadwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of UBS AG's share of net identifiable assets of the
acguired entity at the date of the acguisition. Goodwill is not
amortized, but at the end of each reporting period, UBS AG
asseszes whether there is any indication that goodwill &
impaired. If such indicators exist, UBS AG is required 1o test the
goodwill for impairment. Imespective of whether there is any
indication of impairment, UBS AG tests goodwill for impairment
annually. UBS AG considers the segments, as reported in Note
2a, as separate cash-generating umits, since this i the level at
which the perfarmance of investments & reviewed and asssssed
by management The impairment test & performed for each
segment o which goodwill & allocated by comparing the
recoverable amount, based on its value-in-use, to the carrying
amount of the respective segment. An impairment charge i

recognized if the camying amount exceeds the recowerable
amount.

If the estimated eamnings and other assumptions in future
peniods deviate from the current outlook, the value of UBS AG's
goodwill may become impaired in the future, giving rise to losses
in the income statement. Recognition of any impairment of
goodwill would reduce net profit and equity, but would not
affect cash flows.

Intangible assets are comprised of separately identifiable
intangible items arising from business combinations and certain
purchased trademarks and similar items. Intangible assets are
recognized at cost. The cost of an intangible asset acguired in a
business combination is its fair value at the date of acquisition.
Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortized using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful life, generally
not exceeding 20 years. In rare cases, intangibde asets can have
an indefinite useful life, in which case they are not amortized. At
eath reporting date, intangible assets are reviewed for
indications of impairment. Iif such indications exist, the intangible
assets are analyzed to assess whether their camying amount s
fully recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the camrying
amount exceeds the recaverable amount.

Critical accounting estimates and judgmeants

UES AG's methodology for goodwill impairment testing is based
on a model which is most sensitive to the following key
assumptions: (i} forecasts of eamings available to sharehalders in
years one to three, (i) changes in the discount rates and (i}
changes in the long-term growth rate. Key assumptions used to
determine the recoverable amounts of each segment are tested
for sensitivity by applying a reasonably possible change to those
assumptions. Refer to Mote 15 for the discussion of how the
reasonably possibbe changes in those key assumgtions may
affect the results delvered by UBS AG's model for goodwill
impairment testing.

— Refer to Motes 2 and 15 for more information

12} Provisions and contingent Eabilities

Prowisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount, and are
recognized when (i} UBS &G has a present obligation as a result
of a past event, (i) it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and (i) a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

The majority of UBS AG's provisions relate to litigation,
requlatory and similar matters, restructuring, employee benefits,
real estate and loan commitments and guarantees. Provisions
that are similar in nature are aggregated to form a dass, while
the remaining provisions, incloding those of less significant
amounts, are presented wunder Other prosisions. Provisions are
presented separately on the balance shest and, when they are
no longer considered uncertain in fiming or amownt, are
reclassified to Other Kabilities — Other,
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

UBS AG recognizes prowisions for litigation, regulatory and
similar matters when, in the opinion of management after
seeking legal advice, it is more likely than not that UBS AG has a
presant legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required, and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Where these factors are
otherwize satisfied, a provision may be established for daims
that hawe not yet been asserted against UBS AG, but are
nevertheless expected to be, based on UBS AG's experience with
similar asserted claims.

Restructuring provisions are recognized when a detailed and
formal restructuring plan has been approved and a wvalid
expectation has been raised that the restructuring will be carried
put, either through commencement of the plan or
announcements to affected employees.

Provisions are recognized for lease contracts if  the
unavoidable costs of a contract exceed the benefits expected to
be received under it {onerous leass contracts). For example, this
may ocour when a significant portion of a leased property &
expected to be vacant for an exended period.

Provisions for employee benefits are recognized mainly in
respect of service anniversaries and sabbatical leave.

Provisions are recogmized at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balanice shest date. Such estimates are based on all available
information and are revised over time as more information
becomes available. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted and measured at the present
value of the expendimure expected to setthe or discharge the
pbligation, using a rate that reflects the cument market
assessments of the time value of maney and the risks spedfic to
the abligation.

When all conditions required to recognize a provision are not
met, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the ikelhood of an
putflow of resowrces is remote. Contingent liabilities are also
disclosed for possible obligations that arise from past events
whose exmstence will be confirmed only by uncertain future
events not whally within the control of UBS AG. Such discdlosures
are not made if it i not practicable to do so.

Critical acoounting estimates and judgmeants

Recognition of provisions often invobves significant judgment in
assessing the existence of an obligation that results from past
events and in estimating the probability, timing and amount of
any outflows of resources. This is particularly the case for
litigation, regulatory and similar matters, which, due to their
nature, are subject to many uncertainties making their outcome
difficult to predict. Such matters may vole wnique fact
patterns or novel legal theories, proceedings that have not yet

been initiated or are at early stages of adjudication, or as 1o
which alleged damages have not been guantified by the
claimants. Determining whether an cbligation exists as a result
of 2 past event and estimating the probability, fiming and
amount of any potential outflows is based on a wariety of
assumptions, variables, and known and unknown uncertainties.

The amount of any provision recognized is sensitive to the
assumptions used and there could be a wide range of possible
outcomes for any particular matter,

Statistical or other guantitative analytical tools are of limited
use in determining whether to establish or determine the
amount of provisions in the case of htigation, regulatory or
similar matters. Furthermore, information curmently available to
management may be incomplete or inaccurate, increasing the
risk of emoneous assumptions with regard to the future
developmient of such matters. Management reguilarly reviewes all
the available information regarding such matters, including legal
advice which is a significant consideration, to assess whether the
recognition criteria for provisions have been satisfied and fo
determine the timing and amount of any potential outflows.

— Refer to Mote 20 for more information

13} Fareign currency translation

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated
into the functional currency of the reporting entity at the spot
exchange rate on the date of the transaction. At the balance
sheet date, all monetary assets and habilities denominated in
foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using
the dasing exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at
historical cost are translated at the exchange rate on the date of
the transaction. Foreign cumency translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets classified 2z avsilable for sale are
generally recorded directly in Fguity until the asset is sold or
becomes impaired. However, translation differences on available
for sale monetary financial assets are reported in Net trading
income on an amortized-cost basis, along with all other foreign
currency  translation  differences on monetary  assets  and
liakilities.

Upan consolidation, assets and labilitiss of foreign operations
are translated into Swiss francs (CHF), UBS AG's presentation
currency, at the closing exchange rate on the balance sheet date,
and income and expense items are translated at the average rate
for the period. The resulting foreign currency translation
differences attributable to sharehalders are recognized directly
in Foreign currency translation within Equity, which forms part of
Total eguity attibutable to  shareholders, whereas the foreign
currency translation differences attributable to non-controlling
interests are shown within Equity attributable to non-controlling
interests,
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

‘When a fareign operation is disposed or partially disposed of
and UBS AG loses control over the foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of foreion currency translation differences
within Total equity attributabls to  sharsholders and Equity
attributable to non-controling interests related to that foreign
operation i reclassified 1o the income statement as part of the
gain or loss on disposal. When UBS AG disposes of a portion of
its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation but
retains controd, the related portion of the cumulative cumency
translation balance is redlassified to Equity attnbutable to non-

— Refer to Mote 34 for more infarmation

14) Equity, treasury shares and contracts on UBS AG shares

Non-controfling interests and preferred notehoddars

Met profit and Equity are presented including non-contralling
interests and preferred noteholders. Met profit is split into Met
profit attibutable to sharsholders, Net profit attributable to
ran-controliing interests and Net profit attributable to prefarred
noteholders.  Equity is split into  Equity attributable to
shareholders, Equity atiributable o mon-contralling interests and
Equity attributsble to preferred noteholders.

UBS Al shares hald (treasury shares)

UBS AG shares held by UBS AG are presented in Equity as
Treaswry shares at their acquisition cost and are deducted from
Equity until they are canceled o reissued. The difference
between the proceeds from sales of treasury shares and their
weighted average cost (net of tax, if any) is reported as Share
preminm.

Net cash setblement contracts
Prior to the share-for-share exchange that took place in 2014,
UBS AG Esued confracts on own shares that required net cash
settlement, or provided the counterparty or UBS AG with a
settlement option which included a choice of setting net in
cash. These contracts were classified as held for trading, with
changes in fair value reported in the income statement as Met
trading ircome.

Following the share-for-share exchamge, these contracts
continue to be accounted for in the same manner, however, they
are no longer classified as contracts on own shares.

15} Leasing

LUBS AG enters into lease contracts, or contracts that include
lease components, predominantly of premises and equipment,
and primarily as lessee. Leases that transfer substantially all the
risks and rewands, but not necessarily legal title in the underlying
amets, are dassified as finance leases. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. UBS AG i not a lesses in any
material finance leasss.

Lease contracts classified as operating leases where UBS AG is
the lessee indude non-cancellable long-term leases of office
buildings in mast UBS AG locations. Operating lease rentals
payable are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, which commences with contral of the
physical use of the property. Lease incentives are treated as a
reduction of rental expense and are recognized on a consistent
basis over the lease term.

Where UBS AG acts as lessor under a finance lease, a
receivable i recognized in Losns at an amount equal to the
present value of the aggregate of the minimum lease payments.
phus any unguaranieed residual value that UBS AG expects fo
recover at the end of the lease term. Initial direct costs are also
included in the initial measurement of the lease receivable. Leass
payments received during the lease term are allocated to
repayment of the ocutstanding receivable and interest income to
reflect & constant periodic rate of return on UBS AG's net
investment using the interest rate implicit in the lease. UBS AG
reviews the estimated unguaranteed residual value annually, and
if the estimated residual value to be realized is less than the
amount assumed at lease inception, a loss i recognized for the
expected shortfall.

Certain arrangements do not take the legal form of a lease
but convey a right to use an asset in return for a payment or
seties of payments. For such arangements, UBS AG determines
at the mception of the amangement whether the fulfillment of
the armangement is dependent on the use of a specific assst or
awmets and, if so, the arrangement is accounted for as a lease.

— Refer to Motes 10 and 31 for more information
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Changes in accounting policies, comparability and other adjustments

Chwm credit

On 1 January 2016, UBS AG adopted the own credit
presentation requirements of IFRS 9, Ananaal instruments. From
this date cnward, changes in the fair value of financal liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss related to own
credit are recognized in Other comprefiensive income directly
within Retained earnings. As UBS AG does not hedge changesin
own credit arising on financial liabdlities designated at fair value,
presenting own credit within Other comprehensive mcome does
not create of increase an accounting mismatch in the income
statement. The unrealized and any realized oen credit
recognized in Other comprehensive income will not be
reclassified to the income statement in future periods. Changes
in own credit presented in prior periods have not been restated
and remain within Met trading income.
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Balance sheet classification of newdy purchased high-quality
liqqund debt securities

Starting 2016, UBS AG generally classifies newdy purchased debt
secunties held as high-guality liguid assets (HOLA), and managed
by Corporate Center — Group Asset and Liability Management
{Group ALM), as either financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss or financial assets held to maturity. Debt
secunities acquired prior to 2016 and held for liquidity purposes
remain classified as available for sale finandal assets.

Most of the HOLA debt securities purchased since the
beginning of 2016 are classified as financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss and are intended to reduce
accounting mismatches by ensuring that changes in the fair
value of the securities are recognized in the income statement in
lime with the associated interest rate derivatives wsed for risk
management purposes, A portion of HOLA debt securities are
classified as fmancial assats held to maturity.
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Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Interest rafe swaps converted to a settfement model

In 2016, UBS AG elected to conwert its interest rate swaps (IRS)
transacted with the London Clearing House and Japan Securities
Clearing Corporation from the previous collateral model to a
settlement model. The IRS are now legally settled on a daily
basis, resulting in derecognition of the associated assets and
liabilities. Previcusly, LIBS &G applisd 145 32 netting principles to
offset the fair value of IRS with the associated variation margin.
Gross cash collateral recevables and payables on derivative
instruments and coresponding netting presented in Mote 24
decreased by CHF 64 billion as of 31 December 2016, with no
change to net cash collateral receivables and payables on
derivative instruments recognized on the balance sheet.
Conzequently, the move to a settlement model resulted in a
significant decrease in the fair value of interest rate swaps with
thie London Clearing House designated as hedging instruments.

— Refer to Notes 12 and 24 for more information

Derecognition of exchange-traded derivative cliant cash balances
fram UBS 4G'% balsnce sheet

In accordance with UBS AG's accounting policy, client cash
balances assodated with derivatives clearing and exscution
services are not recoanized on the balance sheet if, through
contractual agreement, regulation or practice, UBS AG neither
obtains benefits from nor controk the dient cash balances.
These conditions are considered to have been met when (i} UBS
AG i not permitted to reinvest client cash balances, (i) mterest
paid by central counterparties {CCPs), brokers or deposit banks
on cash deposits forms part of the dient cash balances with
deductions being made solely as compensation for dearing and
execution services provided, (i} UBS AG does not guarantee and
is mot liable to dients for the performance of the CCP, broker or
deposit bank and (v} the client cash balances are legally Eolated
fram UBS AG's estate.

Duwring 2016, UBS AG formally and legally waived certain
rights awailable to it under the rules of the US Commodity
Futwres Trading Commission that had previously enabled it to
invest certain client cash balances in other assets, making them a
source of benefit to UBS AG. As a result, UBS AG derecognized
related client cash balances. Conseguently Cash collateral
receivables on dervative instruments decreased by CHF 2.5
billion, Due from banks decreased by CHF 0.2 bilion and Cash
collateral payables on dervative instruments decreased by CHF
2.7 billion as of 31 December 2016,

Transfar of the Risk Exposure Managemendt furction fram
Corporate Center — Non-core and Lagacy Portfolio to Corparate
Center — Group ALM

Consistent with changes in the manner in which operating
segment performance is assessed, UBS AG transferred in 2016
thie Risk Exposure Management (REM) function from Corporate
Center — Mon-core and Legacy Portfolio to Corporate Center —
Group ALM to further harmonize REM risk management
respansibility with the reporting structure and align it more

closely with ather activities performed by Corporate Center —
Group ALM.

REM primarily performs risk management over credit, debit
and funding valuation adjustments for UBS AG's over-the-
counter derivatives portfolio. Prior-period segment profit and loss
information was restated to reflect this transfer, which had no
impact at a UBS AG level. In Mote 2, gross revenues from REM
activities are now presented in Corporate Center — Group ALM
within Net interest fncome and Non-interest income. Revenue
allocations from REM to business divisions and other Corparate
Center units are presented within Allocations from Corporate
Center — Group ALM to business divisions and other Corporate
Center units. There was no effect on operating profit before tax
for any segment for any pericd from this restatement. Prior-
period information for balance sheet assets has mot been
restated, as the effect would not have been material.

Changes to statement of changes in aguity

In 2016, UBS AG refined the presentation of effects from
share-based compensation on share premium and treasury
shares in the statement of changes in equity.

The new disclosure line Delivery of freaswy shares under
share-based compensation plans, reflecting the average cost of
treasury shares, provides the effect on share premium and
treasury shares resulting from the delivery of treasury shares to
employees. Also, the effects from Share-based compensation
expensed in the come statemment and Other disposal of
treaswy shares are now presented separately. The former
disclosure lines Disposal of treasury shares, Treasury share gains /
flosses) and Employee share and share option plans have been
removed.

These changes did not affect total equity or any components
of equity. Prior-period  information  has  been  adjusted
accordinghy.

Changes to the estimated useful life of certain IT hardware and
communication eguipment and software

In 2016, UBS AG extended the estimated useful life for certain IT
hardware and communication equipment and software from
five to seven years, resulting in CHF 16 million and CHF 26
million kower deprediation expenses in 2016, respectively. These
changes are expected to result in approxmately CHF 120 million
and CHF &0 million lower depreciation expenses in 2017 and
2018, respectively.

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cpcle; Amendments
to WFRS 11, Jaint Arrangements; A5 16, Property, Plant snd
Egquipment; A4S 38, intangible Assets; and 1AS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements

In 2016, UBS AG adopted a number of interpretations and
amendments to standards, that did not have a material impact
on UBS AG's financial statements.
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MNote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

) International Financial Reporting 5tandards and Interpretations to be adopted in 2017 and later and other adjustments

IFRE 9, Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the [ASE published the final version of IFRS 9,
Finarcial instrumants. The standard reflects the dassification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting phases of the
1A%B°s project to replace 1AS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity instrumenis,
to be classified at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI or fair value through profit or koss,
on the basis of the entity’s business maodel for managing the
financial assets and its contractual cash flow characteristics. Iif a
financial asset mests the oriteria o be measured at amortized
cost or at fair value throwsgh OCI measurement, it can be
designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair
value option if doing so would significantly reduce or eliminate
an accounting mismatch. Equity nstruments that are not held
for trading may be accounted for at fair value throwgh OCI, with
no subsequent reclassification of realized gains or kasses to the
income statement, while all other equity instruments will be
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. IFRS 9@
dassification and measurement requirements for liabilities are
unchanged except that any gain or loss anising on a financial
liability designated at fair value throwgh profit or boss that &
attributable to changes in the issuer's own credit risk (own
credit) is presented in OC| and not recognized in the income
statement.

IFRS 9 intreduces a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL)
approach, replacing the incurred |oss impairment approach for
financial instruments in AS 39, and the loss-provisioning
approach for financial guarantees and loan commitments in LAS
37, Prowisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
Expected credit losses are required to be recognized in profit or
loss for all financial assets measured at amortized cost, debt
instruments measured at  fair value through OCI  lesse
recenvables, financial guarantees and loan commitments. A 12-
manth expected oredit loss is generally recognized on inception,
with a lifetime credit loss required if a significant increase in
credit risk (SICR) arises. A lfetime loss allowance i ahlways
recagnized for credit-impaired financial assets.

IFRS 9 also includes an optfional revised hedge accownting
medel, which further aligns the accounting treatment with the
rsk management practices.

UBS AG early adopted the cwn credit presentation change in
the first quarter of 2016 and will adopt the classification and
measuwrement and impairment changes on 1 lanuwary 2018 in
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lie weith the mandatory effective date. UBS AG is still assessing
whiether it will adopt the optional IFRS 9 hedge acoounting
requirements pending the 1ASE completing their project on
macro hedge accounting strategies. In line with IFRS 9, LIBS AG
does not intend to restate prior periods and will recognize the
difference between camying amounts as of 31 December 2017
and those on adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 in opening
retained earnings.

UBS AG has assessed all material positions under the revised
classification and measurement requirements and has identified
certain debt mstruments that will not qualify for amortized oost
accounting but will be measured at fair value through profit or
loss umder IFRS 9. However, this is not expected to have
significant effects on UBS AG's finandal statements as the
instruments are predominantly collateralized short-term lending
arrangements with no material differences between  their
amortized cost value and fair value. In addition, UBS AG is
monitoring the |1ASE"s project to amend IFRS 9 1o allow for basic
lending arrangements with symmetrical break  dawses 1o
continue to qualify for amortized cost accounting. These clawses
are common featwres in Swiss private mortgages as a
consequence of Swiss law and in Swiss corporate lending dus to
market practice, and may result in compensation for early
termination being paid by either the borrower or UBS AG. The
IASE is expected to Bsue an exposure draft in Aprl 2017,
effective 1 Janwary 2018 in line with IFRS 9's effective date.
Based on the anticipated amendments, UBS AG expects that its
private mortgages and corporate loans can continue to be
measured at amortized cost.

Owerall, the level of credit losses is expected to increase under
IFRS 9 alongside additional income statement volatility due to
the wse of uncertain forward-looking assumptions and the
application of the SICR approach. Initial ECL results calculated
for key partfolias in a prototype emvironment with preliminany
models and scenarios, indicate an increase in credit losses that
should not have a significant impact on eguity on adegtion, due
to the relatively short contractual maturities, the high quality of
UES AG's koan book and the current benign credit emvironment.
Actual results on 1 January 2018 may differ significantly given
the preliminary status of the models and data induded in the
prototype and the possibility of changes in the macroeconomic
ervironment. UBS AG continues to monitar the potential effects
of IFRS 9 on its regulatory capital requirements, but does not
expect any impact to be material.

— Refer to Mote 1b for more information on own credit

421/624

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

MNote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the 1ASE issued IFRS 15, Revenue fram Contracts
with Customers replacing 145 18 Revenue. IFRS 15 establishes
principles for revenue recognition that apply to all contracts with
customers except those relating to financial instruments, leases
and insurance contracts and requires an entity to recognize
revenue as performance obligations are satisfied. In particular,
the standard now specifies that variable consideration is only
recognized to the extent that it i highly probable that a
significant reversal will mot oocur when the  uncertainty
associated with the wariable consideration is subsequently
resohved. This may affect when certain performance-based and
asset-based fees can be recognized.

It also provides guidance on when revenues and expenses
should be presented on a gross or net basis and establishes a
cohesive set of disclasure requirements for information on the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flowes from contracts with customers.

UBS AG will adopt the standard as of its mandatory effective
date on 1 January 2018 and will apply it on a modified
retrospective basis, recognizing the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings. UBS AG continues to assess the impact of
the new standard on its financial statements, but currently does
nat expect any impact to be material.

IFRE 16, Leases

In Janwary 2016, the |ASE Esued IFRS 16, Leases, which replaces
145 17, Leases, and will come into effect on 1 January 2018, The
standard substantially chamges how lessees must account for
operating lease commitments, requiring an on-balance sheet
liability with a corresponding right-of-use asset to be recognized
on the balance sheet, compared with the current off-balance
sheet treatment of such beases. Early adoption & permitted for
companies that also apply IFRS 15, Revenwe from Contracts with
Custamevs. UBS AG expects to report an increase in assets and
liabilities from adoption in line with its operating lease
commitments as at 1 lanuary 2019,

— Refer to Mote 31 for more infarmation

Amendments ta [A5 12, income Taxes

In January 2016, the ASE issued narrow-scope amendments to
145 12, Income Taxes, darifying how to account for deferred tax
assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value,

Entities are required to apply the amendments for annual
peniods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, UBS AG expects.
that the adoption of these amendments will not have a material
impact on its financial statements.

Amendments to 1A% 7, Statement of Cazh Flows

In Janwary 2016, the [&5B iswed amendments to LAS 7,
Statemment of Cash Flows, which, among other things, require
companies to provide information about changes in their
financal Rabilities arising from financing activities, including
changes from cash flows and non-cash changes, such as foreign
exchange gains or losses. UBS AG will adopt the amendments in
the first quarter of 2017,

Amendments to \FRS 2, Share-based Payment

In June 2016, the |ASE isswed amendments to IFRS 2, Share-
based Papment, which are mandatorily effective as of 1 January
2018, with early adoption permitted. The amendments reguire
that the approach used to account for vesting and non-vesting
conditions when measuring cash-settled share-based payments
is consistent with that used for equity-settled share-based
payments. The amendments also darify the classification of
share-based payments settled net of withholding tax as well as
the accounting consequences resulting from a modification of
share-based payments from cash-settled to eguity-settled. UBS
AG expects that the adoption of these amerdments waill not
have a matenal impact on its financial statements.

IFRIC 22, Fareign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

In December 2016, the IFRS Interpretations Committee of the
IASE  issued  IFRIC  Interpretation 22, Foreign  Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration, which clarifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to apply on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income, is the date on which the entity initially
recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary Rability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration.
Enfitioes are required to apply IFRIC 22 for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 Januwary 2018. UBS AG expects that the
adoption of this IFRS Interpretation will not have a material
impact on its financial statements.
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The operational structure of UBS AG is comprised of Corporate
Center and five business divisions: Wealth Management, Wealth
Management Americas, Personal & Corporate Banking, Asset
Management and the Investment Bank.

Wealth Managemenit

Wealth Management provides comprehensive advice and
tailored financial services to wealthy private clients around the
warkd, except thase served by Wealth Management Americas. Its
chients benefit from the full spectrum of resources that UBS AG
as a global firm can offer, induding banking and lending
solutions, wealth planning, nvestment management sclutions
and corporate finance advice, Wealth Management's guided
architecture model gives clients access to a wide range of
products from the world's keading third-party institutions that
omplement its cwn products.

Wealth Managemenit Americas

Wealth Management Americas provides advice-based solutions
through financial advisors who deliver a fully integrated ==t of
products and services specifically designed to address the needs
of their clients. tts business is primarily domestic US but indudes
Canada and international business booked in the US.

Personal & Corporate Banking

Personal & Corporate Banking provides comprehensive financial
products and senices to private, corporate and mstitutional
dhients in Switzerand and is among the kading players in the
private and corporate loan market in Switzedand, with a well-
collateralized and conservatively managed kending portfolic.

Its business is a central element of UBS AG's wniversal bank
delivery model in Switzerland. Personal & Corporate Banking
warks with the wealth management, investment bank and asset
management businesses to ensure that clisnts receive the best
products and solutions for their specific financial needs. Personal
& Corporate Banking is also an important source of growth for
other business divisions in Switzerland through dient referrals. In
addition, Personal & Corporate Banking manages a substantial
part of UBS AG's Swiss infrastructure and banking products
platform, both of which are leveraged across UBS AG.
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Asset Management

Asset Management provides investment management products
and services, platform sodutions and advisory support to
institutions, wholesale intermedianies and wealth management
clients around the world, with an onshore presence in 22
countries. Asset management is a leading fund howss in Europe,
the largest mutusl fund manager in Switzerland and one of the
largest fund of hedge funds and real estate investment
managers in the world. Its global investment capabilities nchude
all major traditional and alternative asset classes.

Investment Bank
The Investment Bank is present in ower 35 countries, with
prindpal offices in all major financial centers, providing
investment advice, financial solutions and capital markets access.
It serves corporate, institutional and wealth management clients.
across the ghobe and forms a synergetic parinership with UBS
AG's wealth management, personal and comporate banking and
awset management businesses.

The busimess division is organized into Corporate Chent
Solutions and Investor Client Services and also includes UBS AG
Securities Research.

Corporate Center

Corporate Center is comprised of Services, Group Asset and
Liability Management (Group ALM) and Mon-core and Legacy
Portfolio.

Services consists of the Group Chief Operating Officer area
{Group Corporate Services, Group Operations, Group Sourcing,
Group Technology), Group Finance, Group Legal, Group Human
Resources, Group Risk Control, Group Communications and
Branding, Group Regulatory and Governance, and UBS and
Society.

Group ALM manages the structural risks of UBS AG's balance
sheet, induding interest rate risk in the banking book, currency
risk and collateral risk, as well as the risks associated with UBS
AG's liquidity and funding portfolios. Group ALM also seeks to
optimize UBS AG's financial performance by better matching
awets and labilities within the context of UBS AG's liguidity,
funding and capital targets. Group ALM serves all busimess
divisions and other Corporate Center wnits throwgh three main
risk management areas, and its risk management & fully
integrated into UES AG's risk governance framework.

Mon-core and Legacy Portfolio is comprised of the pasitions
from businessss that were part of the Investment Bank prioe 1o
its restructuring and is overseen by a committee chaired by the
Chief Risk Officer.
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Mote 2a Segment reporting (continued)

Weslth  Periond &

Westh  Msnagement  Corporate huset  Iwesiment
Hungmm.lumn:sﬂﬂq"Ju Bank Corporabe Cefler S AG

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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Mote 2a Segment reporting (continued)t

Weslth  Periond &
Weath  Managemen Corporate huset  Iwesiment
Manugement .l.-&ﬂu: Benking M il Bank Corporabe Cefler S AG

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Mote 2a Segment reporting (continued)t

Weshth  Persond &
Wealth  Management  Corporate hasen  Iwesiment
Manugement Aseice Benking  Mansgesen Bank Corporabe Cefler S AG
Hon-cone
&nd
For the year ended 31 Decembser 2014
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The operating regions shown in the table below correspond to
the regional management structure of UBS AG. The allocation of
operating income o thess regions reflects, and is consistent
with, the basis on which the business & managed and its
performance is evaluated. These allocations imvolve assumiptions
and judgments that management considers to be reasonable,
and may be refined to reflect chamges n estimates or
management structure. The main principles of the allocation
methodology are that client revenues are attributed to the

domicile of the client and trading and portfolio management
revenues arg attributed to the coumtry where the risk is
managed. This revenue attribution is consistent with the
mandate of the regional Presidents. Certain revenues, such as
those related to Comporate Center - Mon-core and Legacy
Portfolio, are managed at a global level. These revenues are
included in the Global line.

The geographic analysis of non-current assets is based on the
lcation of the entity in which the assets are recorded.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Total aperating incose

CHF billion

7
&
1
£
s S — PR — e
Totdl 06 1o 152 L
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Income statement notes

Mote 3 Net interest and trading income

Fior thee yesar ended % change from
CHF millian AL ERFAH 31.12.14 31.12.15
Net interest and trading income
hiet inlerest income 5,383 6,75 £,555 i)
Het erading income 4,943 5 G 3,841 {13
Total net intesest snd trading income 11,326 12475 10,396 [E]
2,532 131] 1536 [}
(29) =] 0 480
Loor

fd53 4 IS5 487 {17

(289) &1 {BS55)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, N . —

(134 375 s
o il i crac an Snangi! bR cbirnared’ ot il kale! L) FLA (roa
o it Moe-cove dn gy Pl &zt k] [ [l
Totsl net interest snd trading income 11,326 12475 10,396 [E]

Met interest income

jry

It incoste from Lecusities financing Irensacions?

Iriteresl axpenae an linancial sty aed abiilies desigrabed a {sir vl i 70 19 15
Inilerest expense on debl issued 2,046 N 2,382 (1)
Totsl 7,300 5440 £,630 15
Hed inberest income: 5,383 5,71 6,555 =]
Met trading income

Neg frading income 4,943 5,656 3841 (13)

.. YU gt g / forvey) o Bhancly wats desinapd bl (W (W B
HMMMJMJ!MMWW!HW EE

1 Rkt 52 Koo UE For mone | 7 Inchices INTEER MCOTE 00 TG 108 ard Acsarces of CHF 21 1 006, CF 16 015 anc CHF 15 2014, 3 Comst of i

o o balanoes with el bamks, amounts due from banks and lnans, and negatier imesst o1 aTOURts S 10 basks and esones. & Induts imes oome on SPOTE bontesed and e
mmmmmmhmmhﬂmw 5 Inchudes dividens income. & Consists of iMIBVEST Capens ©n amounts de 10 banis and ousiomens,
and peganve inenes on balnos with cernal banks, amounts S dom banks an lans. 7 Iagedes iRGS £XRERSE DN SOONITES em ﬂuxﬁmﬂml prEes, inccing oo, on
wurites bomowed and e repuichase ageenents. B incides epens idaied m dividend paymem abligarions on vading abdites. 9 changes of betiges mkned o financial Gabilsies
cnsipnaned ai flr value and foeign cermency wamsdation etiects andag fom mamsiting foign cuseacy Tassacions in the nspective feacioal canescy, borh of which are reponed witin ne mading inome.
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MNote 4 Net fee and commission income

For the year ended % chenge fom
CHF million IALIE INALAS 3.12.14 EIRFRES

B B B B B B B B B T B N A E N N TR RN NN AT SEEns N

Far the year ended % chenge fom
CHF million IILIE INA2AS 3.12.14 EIRFRES

het igaire | (Josses) from disposals. of imvestments in ssociales

het gaires | (losses) from disposals of properties held for sale
Het guive. | (losses) from disposals of laans snd recehables
Othes

Total ather incorme 1,132 632 (38)

T Incibades Tomign Eechangn G | (Rsts) ooaaa bed O e Co proBisast TGS MIETSY 30 ARpased Frign Sebsdants and Siatches. 1 1016 INCLKIES 4 1045 o 53l F & satariary of CHF 13 miliol in
Mmmlsﬁampum&mdm1|3mhmmn--pm_ﬂmdmsm.rnnmunqmm.mhuunmh
me idamanion. 3 achedes et e seodiesd from thisd paries amdl net operating eaperses. 4 Indedes & net gain on sale of besiesses of CHF 56 million in Weakh Management. Reler m Mow 30 for mone

£
BlEinitin/Eluig [Elfi.8

5

5

5
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Mote 6 Personnel expenses

For the year ended % chenge fom
INALAS 3.12.14 EIRFRES

NALIE

Social seouity 734 (10
Penion and other podt-esploysent beanefit plng 669 17
Other marsenmel sqperas 554 o)}
Totsl personnel expenes 15,581 15,954 15,280 [}
1 nhudes mole-tased alivwances. 2 Reer o Kooe 27 for o bk 1 Bapl rn e pay LS 1D COATy ployees o detered swands forehed as a sl of joisiag UBS A5
£ lncludes § 2 srantand SEREE & Financial asvisor s of gricktased e dimcly persable sreenees qenerated by fnancial acvisors. and
 pchc kal Mmﬁﬂmmhmimum“hniﬂmmm‘::mmmihmm
ime a T Frne of mauimens thae ane ssbject o vesing requimencs. & Rk m Mete 75 do mase 7 nchides men esITECTEring e of CHF 721 million, CHF £58 millas and CFF 327 milkon
o e yoars et 31 December 2316, 31 Db 2315 and 31 Docerber 3014, sespectiely. Refer m Fime 30 for mase informarion.
Note 7 General and administrative expenses

For the year ended % chenge fam
P miiat ALIE 34215 EIAFAL] EIRFA LY

Oithes R 195 148 [120]
Totsl genersl and adssinictratios xpenses? 7,690 B9 9,377 2]
T Retecs 1he bet o i Tor TeguiaITry a6d STl MATIEEs eoognized in e Inoome Farter 10 Fart 20 106 1o ITAGITLIEON. ALD LS 1ecoesiits o TR paities of CHF 13
williar, CHE 0 milizn ans CHF 10 million for the years saced 31 216,31 2015 and 31 14, respecivnly. 2 Incudes o restrectarig experses of CHF 790 milion, CHF 760
millizn and CHF 319 million foo the years ended 31 December J016, 31 December 3015 and 31 Deosmzer 2004, sespoctively. Befer 1o/ Kote 30 o mons informatian.
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Far the yesr ended
CHF miliony LG INA2.15 A4
Tax expense | (benefit)
L
L ... . Lo N 138
Cument 350 476 409
Defeiet {833} 11,343 (2583}
Total income tax expense | (benefit) recognized in the income statement F1 i) {1,1804

Income tax recognized in the income statement

The Swiss current tax expense of CHF 429 million related to
taxable profits, mainly eamed by Swiss subsidianies, against
which no losses were available to offset. The Swiss deferred tax
expense of CHF 635 million reflected a decrease of deferred tax
assets previously recognized in relation to tax losses carried
forward and temporary differences.

The non-Swiss current tax expense of CHF 350 million related
to taxable profits earned by non-Swiss subsidiaries and branches,
against which no losses were available to offset. The non-Swiss
net deferred tax benefit of CHF 633 million was primarily due to

an ncrease in US deferred tax assets, reflecting updated profit
forecasts.

UBS AG considers the performance of its businesses and the
accuracy of historical forecasts and other factors in evaluating
the recoverability of its deferred tax assets, including the
remaining tax loss canry-forward period, and its assessment of
expected future taxable profits in the forecast period used for
recognizing deferred tax assets. Estimating future profitability is
inherently subjective amd is particularly sensitive to future
economic, market and other conditions, which are difficult to
pradict.

Far the yesr ended

ChF i INAZIE 215 NAz14
Diperating profit | (loas)h before Lo 4,069 1,460

o iVt Sadcs el it
U ok Wongwee T - F 7 B 1288
Income taees & Sy tax rale of 21% B54 519
Increase | (decrame) rewdling fras:
mmumd‘l‘hﬂrymmwrﬂ R R R P . e -Ea

Adjusirments. related 1o prior year - defermed tax 1 (L] L)
Swghddmdipwhminsdoaos _________ PR B4 RIE
Adjusimnents. to deferred tax halances srising from changes in tax rales 19 191 (1E3)
“mhermes } ) B 69
Income L2 experde [ {benefiy) T (B0E) 11,1804
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Note 8 Income taxes (continued)
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The components of operating profit before tax, and the
differences between ncome tax expense reflected in the
financial statements and the amounts calculated at the Swiss tax
rate, are provided in the table on the previous page and
explained below.

Mon-Swiss tax rates differing from Swiss tax rate

To the extent that UBS AG profits or losses arise outside
Switzerland, the applicable local tax rate may differ from the
Swiss tax rate. This itemn reflects, for such profits or losses, an
adjustment from the tax expense / benafit that would arise at
thie Swiss tax rate and the tax expense / benefit that would arise
at the applicable bocal tax rate. If an entity generates a profit, a
tax expense arises where the local tax rate is in excess of the
Swiiss tax rate and a tax benefit arises where the local tax rate is
below the Swiss tax rate. Conwversely, if an entity incurs a lass, a
tax benefit arises where the local tax rate i in excess of the
Swiiss tax rabe and a tax expense arises where the local tax rate is
less than the Swiss tax rate.

Tax effects of losses not recognized

This item relates to tax losses of entities arising in the year,
which are not recognized as deferred tax assets. Consequently,
no tax benefit arises in relation to thoss losses. Therefore, the
tax bensfit calkculated by applying the local tax rate o those
losses as described above is reversed.

Previously unrecognized tax koasses now utilized

This item relates to taxable profits of the year, which are offset
by tax losses of previous years, for which no deferred tax assets
weere previously recorded. Conseqguently, no cument tax or

deferred tax expense arises in relation to those taxable profits.
Therefore, the tax expense calculated by applying the local rate
on those profits is reversed.

Non-taxable and lower taxed income

This item relates to profits for the year, which are either
permanently not taxabde or are taxable, but at a kower rate of
tax than the local tax rate. It abko includes any permanent
deductions made for tax purpases, which are not reflected in the
accounts, thereby effectively ensuring that profits covered by the
deduction are not taxable.

Non-deductible expenses and additional taxable income

Thiz itern mainky relates to income for the year, which & imputed
for tax purposes for an entity, but is not included in its operating
profit. In addition, it indudes expenses for the year that are
permanenthy non-deductible.

Adjustments related to prior years — current tax

This itern relates to adjustments to current tax expense for prior
years, for examiple, if the tax payable for a year agreed with the
tax authorities is expected to differ from the amount previously
reflected in the finandal statements.

Adjustments related to prior years - deferred tax

This item relates to adjustments to deferred tax positions
recognized in prior years, for example, if a tax loss for a year &
fully recognized and the amount of the tax loss agreed with the
tax authorities is expected to differ from the amount previously
recognized as deferred tax assets in the accounts.
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Change in deferred fax valuation allowances

This item includes revaluations of deferred tax assets previously
recagnized resulting from reassessments of expected future
taxable profits. it also indudes changes in temporary differences
in the year, for which defemed tax is not reccgnized. The
amount in the year mainly relates o the upward revaluation of
deferrad tax assats.

Adjustments to deferred tax balances arising from changes in tax
rates

This item relates to remeasurements of deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognized due to changes in tax rates. These have the
effect of changing the futwre tax saving that i expected from
tax losses or deductible tax differences and therefore the
amount of deferred tax assets recognized or, alternatively,
changing the tax cost of additional taxable income from taxable
temporary differences and therefore the deferred tax liability.

Cither items

Other items include other differences between profits or kasses
at the local tax rate and the actual local tax expense or benefit,
including increasss in provisions for uncertain positions in
relation to the current year, interest accruals for such provisions
in relation o prior years and other items.

Income tax recognized directly in equity

Certain tax expenses and benefits were recognized directly in
equity. These included a tax benefit of CHF 170 million related
to cash flowr hedges (2015 benefit of CHF 131 million), a tax
benefit of CHF 28 million related to financial assets classified as
available for sale (2015: benefit of CHF & million), a tax expense
of CHF 24 million related to foreign currency translation gains
and kasses (2015: expense of CHF 1 million), a tax benefit of CHF
52 million related to defined benefit plans (2015 expense of
CHF 19 million} and a tax benefit of CHF 5 million (2015: CHF 0
million} related to own credit. In addition, they induded a tax
benefit of CHF 25 milion recognized in share premivm (2015:
benefit of CHF 9@ million). Furthermore, there were net foreign
currency translation movements related to the effects of
exchange rate changes on tax assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than Swiss francs.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

UES AG has deferred tax assets related to tax loss carmy-forwards.
and other items as shown in the table below. As of 31
December 2016, deferred tax assets of CHF 1,689 millicn (31
December 2015: CHF 2,094 million) were recognized h]l entities.
that incurred losses ineither the current or preceding year based
on projections of future taxable profits. The valuation allkowance
reflects deferred tax assets that were not recognized because it
was not considered probable that future taxable profits will be
available o utlize the related tax boss carmp-forwards and
deductible temiporary differences.

Total defermed 1ax ssets 30,962 13,144 324 (19,661} 12,833
Deferred tax liabilities

Goodwill and intangible assets M 28
Financial assets 2 1
Irveesitmienits in mdocistes and other 18 7
Total defemed tax Gabilises 44 56
1 Less dhetemad o abiinies & applicable.
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Az of 31 December 2016, tax boss camy-forwards totaling CHF 49,477 million {31 December 2015: CHF 58,973 million), which are
not recognized as deferred tax assets, were available to be offset against future taxable profits, These tax losses expire as outlined in

the table bebow.

Unrecognized tax loss camy-forwards

OHF million 1216 ETRER
'HH'_HHI!' ______________________________________________________ ] R
Fom ZtoSears s S . 1 w
From 6 i 10 years a8 753
e nes Em
Ha epiry 1589 17,627
Totsl £ATT 56,973

In general, Swiss tax kosses can be carried forward for seven
years, US federal tax losses for 20 years and UK and lersey tax
lozses for an unlimited period.

UBS AG recognizes deferred tax Rabilities on undistributed
sarnings of subsidiaries, except to the extent that those earnings
are indefinitely invested. &s of 31 December 2016, no such
samings were considered indefinitely imested.

Mote 39 Earmings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding

The financial statements hawve been prepared on the basis
that UBS Limited is able to offset part of its taxable profits
against losses transferred from UBS AG. During 2016, the UK tax
authorities indicated that they do not agree with this tax return
filing position. i the authorities ultimately prevail on this point,
UBS Limited would incur a further reduction in recognized
deferred tax assets of approximately CHF 60 million, as well as
additional current tax expenszes for periods from 2014 onward of
approsmately CHF 70 million.

During 2015, UBS AG shares were delisted from the SI¥ and the NYSE. As of 31 December 2016, 100% of UBS AG's Esusd shares
were held by UBS Group &G and therefore were not publicly traded. Accordingly, eamings per share information is not provided for

LIRS AG.
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Balance sheet notes: assets

Mote 10 Due from banks and loans (held at amortized cost)

CHF i EIRFRN NS
By type of exposure

Duse Trisin bk, grods 13,128 11,869
Mirwance for credi losses L] L]
Duse froom banks, net 13125 11,866

Migrwance lor cradit hogses (596] i)
Loare, net 307004 ETPRFE
Total dus from benks and loar, ne R Pl 324,590

Tinduces coporait s 2 Ak o Mok 31 1o nere imoirason. 3 Rk t Naie 250 1o mon IRIMation ob C0leial and el enlandemis.
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MNote 11 Allowances and provisions for credit losses
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CHF milion
Collective Tatal Total
By movement Spediic alowances slowances Totdl allowances Provigions’  ALIZIE 311215
Balance at the baginning of the year 685 3 7] 5 ™ 735
,,,,,,,,,,, T B
" Recoveties T o ) z a8
Increase | (decrase) recognized in the intome stalement n [ b | 9 ] 17
o T T
Freign cumency transation {1 o [1] o [ {11)
e T 1z o R ] 1z 7
Batance at the end of the yesr 587 12 ] 54 653 727
1 By F I [oan and g Hihnﬂan-;lhmihmmhnﬁﬁmqm'mdqumhhmnnmmdhm
COMTINEIT 3 Juaramnee.
Cellective Tatal Total
By balance sheet fine Speiic alowances slowances Totsl sllowances Peowigigns  3L1Z1E 311215
Dt Trivin Buaniks 3 1] 3 3 El
Noaw T s T we T s g9
" Pevisns' - (7] 15
Balance at the end of the year 587 12 ) 54 653 77
1R I for ki and g
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Mote 12 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting
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Derivatives: overview

A derivative 5 a financial instrument of which the value s
derived from one or more variables (underlyings). Underlyings
may be indices, foreign cumency exchange or interest rates, or
the walue of shares, commodities, bonds or other financial
instruments. & derivative commonly requires little or no initial
net investment by sither counterparty to the trade.

The majorty of derivative contracts are negotiated with
respect to notional amounts, tenor, price and settlement
mechanisme, as is customary with other financial instruments.

Ower-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts are usually traded
under a standardized International Swaps and Dematives
Association (I5DA) master agreement beteeen UBS and its
counterparties. Terms are negotiated directly with counterparties
and the contracts will have ndustry-standard settlement
mechanisms prescribed by BDA. Recent rules, introduced by
regulators in various jurisdictions, require or will soon require the
payment and collection of initial and variation margin on certain
OTC dervative contracts which may have a bearing on their
price and ather relevant terms.

The industry continues to promote the use of central
counterparties (CCPs) to dear OTC trades. The trend toward
CCP clearing and  settlement will generally facilitate the
reduction of systemic credit exposures.

Other derivative contracts are standardized in terms of their
amounts and settlement dates, and are bowght and scld on
regulated exchanges. These are commonly referred to as
exchange-traded derivatives (ETD) contracts. Exchanges offer the
benefits of pricing transparency, standardized daily settlement of
changes in value and consequently reduced credit risk.

For presentation purposes, UBS AG's derivative conftracts are
subject to IFRS netting provisions. Derivative instruments are
measured at fair wvalue and generally classified as Positive
replacement values and Negative replacement valves on the
balance sheet. However, ETD that are economically settled on a
daily basiz and OTC derivatives that are sither legally ssttled or in
substance net settled on a daily basis are classified as Cash
calfatersl receivables on derivative instruments or Cash collateral
payabies an devivative instruments. Changes in the replacement
values of derivatives are recarded in Met frading income unless
the dervatives are designated and effective as  hedging
instruments in certain types of hedge accounting relationships.

— Refer to Mote 12 item 3j for more information

—+ Refer to Mote 24 for more infarmation on the values of positive

and megative replacement values after consideration of netting
potential allowed under enforceable netting arrangements

524

UBS AG uses various derivative instruments for both trading
and hedging purposes. Derivative product types as well as
valuation principles and techniques applied by UBS AG are
described in Note 22. Positive replscement values represent the
estimated amount UBS AG would receive if the derivative
contract were sold on the balance sheet date. Negative
replacement values indicate the estimated amount UBS AG
wiould pay to transfer its obligations in respect of the underlying
confract were it required or entitled to do so on the balance
sheet date.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are not
included in the ~Derivative instruments” table within this Mote.
Bifurcated embedded dervatives are presented on the same
balance sheet line as the host contract. In cases where UBS
applies the fair value option to hybrid instruments, bifurcation of
an embedded dervative component is not required and as such
this component is also not included in the ~Derivative
instruments” table.

— Refer to Motes 18 and 22 for more information

Risks of derivative instruments

Dervative instruments are transacted in many trading portfolics,
which generally indude several types of instruments, not just
dermatives. The market risk of derivatives is predominanthy
managed and controlled as an integral part of the market risk of
these portfolios. UBS AG's approach to market risk s described
in the audited sections of the “Risk management and controd”
section of this report.

Derivative instruments are also fransacted with many different
counterparties, mast of whom are also counterparties for other
types of business. The credit risk of derivatives is managed and
controlled in the context of UBS AG's overall credit exposure to
its counterparties. UBS AG's approach to oedit risk is described
in the audited portions of “Credit risk” in the “Risk
management and control” section of this report. It should be
noted that, although the positive replacement values shown on
the balance sheet can be an important component of UBS AG's
credit exposure, the positive replacement values related t© a
respective counterparty are rarely an adequate reflection of UBS
AG's credit exposure n its derivatives business with  that
counterparty. This i generally the case because, on the ane
hand, replacement values can increase over time (potential
future exposure), while on the other hand, exposure may be
mitigated by entering into master netting agreements and
bilateral collateral arrangements. Both the exposure measures.
used intemally by UBS AG to control credit risk and the capital
requirements impossd by regulators reflect these additional
factors.
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Mote 12 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Derivative instruments’

EARFR [ EIRPR L

HMotionsl
walises reluied Oiiher notionsl
o KRV values? -

02

Bl 482

4781 13,9

5817 191

346.0

1253

0.2

0.1

ot

11524 52.5

1,050:6

97296 4.5

14531 BTE 13933 EMa

9

135.2

6.1

152.7 B

0.9
0.0

4.3
LA ]
1396

0.0
6.7

0 0E 4.1

42 oo al
1613 67

7.8

776 166 E738

1,150

14299 376 13300

537

8.5

4TED

6.1

6.0

46

6.1

1E577 B35 IABEE a1

(]

o0 oo
E4.1 43

on
ETn

58.1 67 226

3.0

A6

155.8

26 43

52 12E0

6.9

5.0

49

221

16

54.5 6.9

apy 12 IEE

Tabde continues an the next page.
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Mote 12 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Derivative instruments' (continued)

Table continued from the previous page.

ILIZA6 IA215
Hatiaral Motional
Wational Motionsl wales withuey Onher
values redaled et relaied  Diher notional related ta related 1o naticnal
PR 1n PRV HEAR 1o KRA® values? - PR PRV WA HRY?  walge? .
B . . NS, .. R . i
04 0.9 0.5 ., 0.7
05 141 0.2 9.9 0.9
o ai 83
[N 59 o -ﬂ _.ﬁ _______ oo 4.4 02 ir
. .- SR . | DR SN, .| WSO - NN, . SN, . U | SN NS - S, 1§
Tt 23 mn 2.0 159 a1 14 L] 12 HME 83
Ursted purchases of non-derivatie
Tiranciel inssrumentst ol 18.4 01 9.7 0.1 9.6 03 167
Uit sales. of non-derivaiive Snangal
h‘_ﬂl}_“‘_l’_ ______________________________ oy 13.0 0.2 11,5 0.2 201 o1 B4
Totsl derivative instnaments, based an
IFRS 156.4 40840 1538 3,850:6 07993 1674 46027 1624 24090  EE3ILI
1 Bifwrcaie erberkded derhvariees ane preseTied on 1 s tadanoe sheer s as thelr bost comacs and an escluded bom this aoke & of 31 016, the 10 @ PRV of CHF 01
villion [rebned notonal valees of CHF 1.9 billion) and an KR of CHF 0.0 bilian (ebred notonal valees of CHF 3.1 bilion) &5 of 30 015, These @ PEV of CFFOL1 bilion inedaied
sl vl of CHEF 06 billion) and am KRV of CHF 0.2 billon {mbred notonal valses of CHF 3.4 bilion]. 2 FRV: Poskive eplwsment walie. 3 In cases where replacemen valees o prosenced on a et bass

o the alunce shoor, the respecise nonional valuees of the memed sepl
HMMMJME:MH

lean

values e sl

tekired 10

31 D

of chents aim not disdesed due o fiew significantly
wmgnized a5 seplacement values, 9 Rafer 10 Kiooe 24 for mose

naTing

ty

The notional amount of a derivative is generally the quantity of
the underlying instrument on which the derivative contract i
based and i the reference against which changes in the value of
the derivative are measured. Motional values in themseles are
generally not a direct indication of the values that are exchanged
between parties, and are therefore not a direct measure of risk
or financial exposure but are viewed as an indication of the scale
of the different types of dervatives entered into by UBS AG.

The maturity profile of OTC interest rate contracts held as of
31 December 2016, based on  notional valses, was:
approximately 52% (31 December 2015: 53%) mature within
one year, 29% (31 December 2015 29%) within one to five
years and 19% (31 December 2015 18%) after five years.
Motional values of interest rate contracts cleared with a dearing
haouse that qualify for IFRS balance sheet netting or are legally
settled on a daily basis are presented under Other notional
values and are categorized into maturity buckets on the basis of
contractual maturities of the ceared wunderlying derivative
contracts.
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commitmeats was CHF 143 llion as of 31 Decsnber 2006 (30 Decenber 2015 CHF 158 billioa). Tlmudﬂndndﬂgtmm
diferen st prole. ll:_shd'lhr_d '

naigh endel Cash colanenal oekvabies
wakses ag of 31 Decomber 2006 indede CHF 0U1 bilien

wnmmwmnmm
etween made Cane and wTlement dae ane

Derivatives transacted for trading purposes

Most of UBS AG's derivative transactions relate to sales and
trading activities. Sales actiities include the structuring and
marketing of derivative products to customers to enable them 1o
take, transfer, modify or reduce current or expected risks
Trading activities indude market-making to directly support the
facilitation and execution of client activity. Market-making
involves quoting bid and offer prices to other market
participants with the intention of generating revenues based on
spread and volume.

Credit derivatives

UES is an active dealer im the fixed income market, including
credit default swaps (CDS) and related products, with respect to
a large number of sswers’ securities. The primary purposes of
these activities are market-miaking, primarily on behalf of dients,
and ongoing hedging of trading book exposures.
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Mote 12 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Market-making activity, which is wndertaken within the
Investment Bank, consists of buying and selling single-name
CD%, imdex €045, koan CD5 and related referenced cash
instruments to fadlitate client trading activity. UBS also actively
utilizes CDS to economically hedge specific counterparty credit
risks in its acorual and traded loan portfolios {induding off-
balance shest loan commitments) with the aim of reducing
concentrations in individual names, sectars or specific portfalios.

In addition, UBS actively utilizes CD3 to economically hedge
spedfic counterparty credit risks in its OTC derivative portfolios,
including financial instruments that are designated at fair valus
through profit or koss.

Credit derivatives by type of instrument

The tables below provide more information on credit
protection bowght and sold, including replacement and notional
value information by instrument type and counterparty type. The
value of protection bought and sold is not, in Eclation, a
measure of UBS's credit risk. Counterparty relationships are
viewed in terms of the total outstanding credit risk, which relates
to other instruments in addition to CDS, and in conmection with
collateral arrangements in place. On a notional value basis,
approdimately 29% of credit protection bouwght and sold as of
31 Decemiber 2016 matures within one year (31 December
2015: 22%), approximately 61% within one o five years (31
December 2015: 68%) and approxamately 10% after five years
{31 Decemnber 2015: 10%).

Pralection bought Pelection snkd
W bl PRV NV Metional values Y NRY  Moticns vahes
Singhe-name credit dilsil swaps 15 13 T 13 14 B3
” st e _— T e T &
Mulkti-name other credit delal swaps oo 00 15 [T} oo 1.1
Jotal rate of retom swaps T ar T L T R w2 TR
Ogtions and werents T T o T T o ol
Total 31 December 2016 0 1B 1397 19 i 1229
T o i cret chieatives relited) o ecomomic hecges  nd 24wz s s e
T itk creclt i et B ik ting.  AF L aE L me e s T ey
Pratection bought Peatection said
W bl PRV MRV Motional welues FRY WAV Moticns vahes
Singhe-name credl delaul svaps i 12 1155 13 13 105.1
Muli-name inchex-finkid credit dedault swags 03 [T a0 06 05 456
“Mubinime cther cedit deladt swaps w T T T E T o [ 8
Totd rate of retum swaps T s a2 T R T ] 18
Otions and warmants 00 [T a2 00 00 01
Total 31 December 2015 a0 176.4 16 19 155.3
T of ch: creclt ClRAThS relited B0 comomic et 7 za w2 2z 5 1028
oo it craclt cbivaivet related o markemaking 7 a4 b a4 13 225
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Mote 12 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Credit derivatives by counterparty

Procectian beught Protection sk
HF o PRV MRV Ntional values PRV WAV Motional vl
Broker-deakers (] 0z 09 0.2 (K] 161
Bamks T T ' 7 O /R 516
[ R ——— ] 03 a7 08 4 a7
ohe - (Y [T s 02 03 X
Totel 31 December 2016 20 18 1387 18 0 1223

Probection bought Protection sold
HF Aiion PRY NRV  Motional walues PRV RV Motional vales
Broker-deaers 02 [E] Ik 0.2 0 195
Barks 13 13 7810 12 16 £8.3
e - e 11
ohe T T 04 152 03 0 27
Totel 31 December 2015 an 28 1764 26 19 1553

UBS AG's CDS trades are documented using industry standard
forms of documentation or equivalent terms documented in a
bespoke agresment. The agreements that govern CDE generally
do not contain recourse provisions that would enable UBS to
recaver from third parties any amounts paid out by UBS.

The types of credit events that would require UBS to perfom
under a CO4 contract are subject to agreement between the parties
at the time of the transaction. However, nearly all transactions are
traded wsing credit events that are applicable under certain markst
comventions based on the type of reference entity to which the
transaction relates. Applicable credit events by market corventions
indude  bankruptcy, failure to pay, restructuring, obligation
acceleration and repudiation / moratorium.

Contingent collateral features of derivative liabilities

Certain derivative instruments contain contingent collateral or
termination features triggered wpon a downgrade of the publshed
credit ratings of UBS AG in the normal course of business. Based on
UES AG's credit ratings as of 31 December 2016, CHF 0.1 balion,
CHF 0.3 kalion and CHF 1.1 balion wouwld have been required for
contractual obligations related to OTC derivatives in the event of a
one-natch, two-notch and three-natch reduction in long-term credit
ratings, respectively. In evaluating UBS AG"s liquidity requirements,
UBS &G considers additional collateral or termination payments that
wiould be required in the event of a reduction in UBS AG's long-
term credit ratings, and a comesponding reduction in UBS AG's
short-term ratings.

528

Derivatives transacted for hedging purposes

UBS AG enters into derivative fransactions for the purposes of
hedgimg risks inherent in asets, habilities and forecasted
transactions. The accounting treatment of hedge fransactions waries
according to the nature of the instrument hedged and whether the
hedge qualifies as such for accounting purposes.

Dervative transactions that qualify and are designated as hedges
for acoounting purpasss are descaibed under the comesponding
headings in this Mote {fair value hedges, cash flow hedges and
hedges of net investments n foreign operations). UBS AG's
accounting policies for derivatives designated and accounted for 2
hedging instruments are described in Note 1a item 3k, where terms.
used in the following sections are explained.

UEBS AG has ako entered into various hedgineg strategies utiizing
derivatives for which hedge acoounting has not been apglied. Thess
indude interest rate swaps and other interest rate derivatives (e.g.,
futures) for day-to-day economic interest rate risk management
purpsses, In sddition, UBS AG has used equity futures, options and,
to & lesser extent, swaps for economic hedging in a variety of equity
trading strategies to offset underlying equity and equity volatility
exposure. LUBS AG has also entered into CDS that provide economic
hedges far credit risk exposures (refer to “Credit derivatives” in this
Mote). Fair value changes of derivatives that are part of economic
refationships, but do mot gualify for hedoe accounting treatment,
are reported in Net trading income, except for the foraard points
on certain short duration foreign exchange contracts, which ane
reparted in Inferest income.

Effective 30 June 2016, UBS elected to conwert its interest rate
swaps fransacted with the London Clearing Houss from the
previous collateral model to a setifernent model. As a result, the fair
value of outstanding derivatives designated as hedging instruments
decreased significantly compared with the prior-year comparatives.
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Mote 12 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges: interest rate risk related to debt instruments movements in market interest rates. The fair walues of
UBS AG's fair walue hedges principally consist of interest rate  outstanding interest rate derivatives designated as fair value
swaps that are used to protect against changes in the fair value  hedges were assets of CHF 152 million and liabilities of CHF 1
of fixed-rate debt instruments, such as non-structured fixed-rate  million 2= of 31 December 2016 and assets of CHF 1,656 million
bonds, covered bonds and subordinated debt, due to  and labilities of CHF 11 million as of 31 December 2015.

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

Far the yesr ended
CHF i IAZAE ERRFA R INAz4
113
Meet gains | (losses) representing inelective portions of fir walue hedges 8 2 2
Fair value hedges: portfolio interest rate risk related to boans values of outstanding interest rate derivatives designated for

UBS AG ako applies fair value hedge accounting to mortgage these hedoes as of 31 December 2016 were liabilities of CHF 44
loan portfolio interest rate risk. The change in fair value of the  million {31 December 2015: assets of CHF 7 million and liabalities.
hedged items is recorded separately from the hedged item and  of CHF 227 milkon).

is induded within Other asssts on the balance sheet. The fair

Fair value hedges of portfolio interest rate risk

Far the yesr ended
CHF i IAZAE ERRFA R INAz4
(ains / lekse) an hedging instruments, 28 17 =)
‘Gains | osses) on hedged ems aivbutable o the hedoed ik 7w T e
Het gains ! (lossesy representing inelisctive portions of fair walye hedges 12 25 (18)
Cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions expected interest cash flows arise as of 31 December 2016,

UBS AG i expased to variability in future interest cash flows on Amounts shown repressnt, by time bucket, average assets and
nan-trading financial assets and liabilities that bear interest at  liabilities subject to forecasted cash flows designated as hedged
vanable rates ar are expected o be refinanced or reinvested in  items in cash flow hedge accounting relationships.

the futwe. The amounts and timing of future cash flows, As of 31 December 2016, the fair values of owtstanding
representing both principal and interest flows, are projected on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted
the basis of contractual terms and other relevant factors, transactions were CHF 68 million assets and CHF 5 million
including estimates of prepayments and defaults. The agaregate  liabilities {31 December 2015: CHF 2,176 million asssts and CHF
principal balances and interest cash flows across all portfolics 195 million liabilities).

over time form the basis for identifying the non-trading interest In 2016, a gain of CHF 11 milion was recognized in Met
rate risk of UBS AG, which is hedged with interest rate swaps, trading income due to hedge ineffectivensss, compared with a
the madmum maturity of which i 12 years. The table on the gain of CHF 150 million in 2015 and a gain of CHF 87 million in
following page shows forecasted principal balances on which 2014,
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Mote 12 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Principal balances subject to cash flow forecasts

CHF bl Within 1 year =3 yusrs 35 years S-10peams  Cer 10 years
Aty 57 75 48 51 0
..um..._......_.................... o ..............4 5 3 4 0
hea bualance 2 0 45 47 o

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

UBS AG applies hedge accounting for certain net investments in
foreign operations. As of 21 December 2016, the positive
replacement values and negative replacement walues of FX
derivatives (mainly FX swaps) designated as hedging instruments
in net investment hedge accounting relationships were CHF 122
million and CHF 79 million, respectively (31 December 2015
pasitive replacement values of CHF 170 million and negative
replacement values of CHF 79 million). 4s of 31 December
2016, the underhing hedged structural exposures in several
currencies amounted to CHF 7.5 billion (31 December 2015:
CHF 5.5 billion).

Hedges of structural FX exposures in currendies other than
the S dollar may be comprised of two jointly designated
derivatives a5 the forsign currency risk may be hedged against
the US dollar first and then converted into Swiss francs, the
presentation curmmency of UBS AG, as part of a separate FX
derivative transaction. The aggregated notional amount of
designated hedging derivatives 25 of 31 December 2016 was
CHF 12.5 billion in total (31 December 2015: CHF 11.2 billion),
including CHF 7.5 billion notional values related to US dallar
versus Swiss franc swaps and CHF 5.0 billion notional values
related to derivatives hedging foreign cumrendies (other than the
U5 dollar) versus the US dollar. The effective partion of gains and
losses of these FX swaps is transferred directly to OC1 to offset
foreign currency translation (FCT) gains and bosses on the net
investments in foreign branches and subsidiaries. As such, thess

F¥ swaps hedge the structural FX exposure resulting in the
accumulation of FCT an the level of individual foreign branches
and subsidiaries and hence on the total FCT OC1 of UBS AG.

UBS designates certain non-derivative foreign  currency
finandial assets and liabilities of foreign branches or subsidiaries
as hedging instruments in net imvestment hedge acocounting
arrangements. The FX translation difference recarded in FCT OCI
of the non-derivative hedging instrument of one forsign entity
offsets the structural FX exposure of another foreign entity
Therefare, the aggregated FCT OCI of UBS AG & unchanged
from this hedge designation. As of 31 December 2016, the
nominal amount of non-derivative financial assets and liabdlities.
designated as hedging instruments in such net investment
hedges was CHF 1.5 billion and CHF 1.5 billion, respectively (31
December 2015: CHF 3.1 billion non-derivative financial assets
and CHF 3.1 ballion non-derivative financial liabilities).

Ineffectiveness of hedges of net investments in foreign
operations was not material in 2016, 2015 and 2014

Undicounted cash flows

The table below provides undiscounted cash flow information
for derivative instruments designated in hedge acoounting
relationships.

Derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships (undiscounted cash flows)

Due within 1

On demend marith

Due between 1
and 3 months

Due bestwsens 3 and  Duse Between 1
12 mants e 5 years yean Total

het cath fioas 1] []

1 Unefiscraimied cash intlws ol cish outliows of i e swaqs a5 of 31 Demmber 2016 wene 6 manisl as the majeiy of Imese @i Saaps dEsgnaned in hedge aocoanting selatiorehins s legally semled

o iy lasi
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Mote 13 Financial assets available for sale and held to maturity

a) Financial assets available for sale

30206 EVRFRET

Total firancisl swels suailsble lor sale 15,676 62,543
Lisresfized gairs — belore tax E) 462
Usgsalipad Podsed) — belose 1 117 {171)
Net unreslized gaing | [Josses) — before tax (2] 201
e unraalized going. { Josses] — sher tax E 167

| Fefer 1 Wi 23¢ for meoie irdemantion an prodsct oype and falr vades Bkmmdy cnegorimnion

b) Financial assets held to maturity

CHF million HALIE 31.12.15

Financial assets held to maturity by ssver type

Dbt inssrurmeris.

Gowernmes &nd government agencies TA16 0
of miih L% o 688 [
o it GGavmany 1708 g
of et France 867 &

Bames 1873 1]

Tt financisl aweis held 1o saburity 9,78 0
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Mote 14 Property, equipment and software

At historical cost less accumulated depreciation

propeies isprovements  comsinicafion soltware  solware  equipsent progress  BLIZIE 311215

1.2 17,823 17,442

T 7]

(1440 [214p 35

B )
lI 123 18,106 17823

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,356 2206 1,420 1275 ITe &5 o 0,140 10,593
164 19 o e ] o 954 a0
! 1 5 18

[l 264) |568] (18] L]
Redassfication {152) ] i1} [ o 1 o {1478 i25)
Foreign cunency tandtion — D G2 e M
Balance al the end of the yesr 4,300 21 1,021 1542 3 589 1] 9.808 10,140
Het book value at the end of the yeae® * 343 1316 452 1,455 17 64 1,113 8297 7,683
1 Inclagies welte-ofts of full 21 recised in 2016 reoe  which e I based i d o the
mmcﬂnuwﬂ-'m&, 'E.':'?..“-‘:."‘ mrml-ndkgmmmFJHimmmm amd:mum-m‘mm
caniracieal comminents i perchase propeny i the funse anoentsd o CHFO3 bilion. & Inchades CHF 21 million selmed 10 beaserd awets, mainly IT hardsa and commanication. 5 ladudes

mm-ﬁﬁmuh—nﬁmﬁn—gmnmn-ﬂ 1o Dweeised prperios and CHF 19 million sekaed 10 Lessehold ingrcsements. 6 Rrllecs nckssifications oo Fropories bels for
sl (CHF 58 million om a nen bass) mpomed within Oche s,
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Introduction

UBS AG performs an impairment test on its goodwill assets on
an annual basis or when indicators of impairment exist. UBS AG
considers the segments, as reported in Mote 2a, as separate
cash-generating units (CGUs). The impairment test is performed
for each segment to which goodwill is allocated by comiparing
the recoverable amount, based on its value-in-uss, with the
camying amount of the respective segment. An impaimment
charge is recognized if the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount. As of 31 December 2016, total goodwill
recagnized on the balance sheet was CHF 6.3 billion, of which
CHF 1.3 billion, CHF 3.6 bilkon and CHF 1.4 ballion was caried
by Wealth hManagement, Wealth Management Americas and
Asset Management, respectively. Based on the impairment
testing methodology described below, UBS AG concluded that
the goodwill balances as of 31 December 2016 allocated to
these segments remain recoverable and thus were not impaired.

Methaodology for goodwill impairment testing

The recoverable amounts are determined wsing a discounted
cash flow model, which has been adapted to use nputs that
consider features of the banking business and its regulatory
erwironment. The recoverable amount of a segment is the sum
of the discounted earnings attributable to shareholders from the
first three forecasted years and the terminal value. The terminal
value, which covers all periods beyond the third year, is
calbculated on the basis of the forecast of third-year profit, the
discount rate and the long-term growth rate and is adjusted for
the effect of the capital assumed to be needed to support the
perpetual growth implied by the kong-term growth rate.

The carrying amount for each segment is determined by
reference to the Group's equity attribution framewark. Within
this framework, which & described in the “Capital
management” section of this repart, we attribute equity to the
businesses on the basis of their risk-weighted assets and
leverage ratio denominator, their goodwill and intangible assets
as well as equity directly associated with activity that Growp ALM
manages centrally on behalf of the business divisions. The total
amount of equity attibuted to CGUs can differ from equity
attributable to shareholders. The frameweork is primarily used for
purposes of measuring the performance of the businesses and
includes certain management assumptions. Attributed equity
equals the capital that a segment requires to conduct its
business and is considered an aporopriate starting point from
which to determine the camying value of the segments. The

attributed equity methodology is aligned with the business
planning process, the inputs from which are used in caloulating
the recoverable amounts of the respective CGU. The revision of
the equity attribution methodology effective as of 1 January
2017 would have no impact on the cutcome of the goodwill
impairment test as of 31 December 2016,
— Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for
maore information on the equity sttribution framework

Assumptions

Valuation parameters used within UBS AG's impairment test
model are linked to external market information, where
applicable. The model wed to determine the recoverable
amount is most sensitive to changes in the forecast earnings
available to shareholders in years one to three, to changes in the
discount rates and to changes in the long-term growth rate. The
applied long-term growth rate is based on long-term economic
growth rates for different regions worldwide. Eamings available
to shareholders are estimated on the basis of forecast results,
which are part of the business plan approved by the BoD.

The discount rates are determined by applying a capital asset
pricing modelbased approach, as well a5 considering
quantitative and qualitative inputs from both intemal and
external analysts and the view of management. The discount
rates were unchanged between 2015 and 2016,

Key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts
of each segment are tested for sensitivity by apolying a
reasonably possible change to those assumptions. Forecast
earnings available to shareholders were changed by 20%, the
discount rates were changed by 1.5 percentage points and the
long-term growth rates were changed by 0.7% percentage
paints, reflecting the current market environment. Under all
scenanios, the recoverable amounts for each segment excesded
the respective carying amount, such that the reasonably
possible changes in key assumptions would not result in
impairment.

i the estimated sarnings and other assumptions in future
peniods deviate from the current outlook, the value of goodwill
may become impaired in the future, giving rise to losses in the
income statement. Recognition of any impairment of goodwill
wiould reduce IFRS equity and net profit. it would not affect cash
flows and, as goodwill is required to be deducted from capital
under the Basel Wl capital framework, no effect would be
expected on UBS AG"s total capital ratios.
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Note 15 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

Discount and growth rates

Discoun rales Growith rales
i % EIR PR 311215 HAZIE 3215
Wealth Manige=e a0 on 17 1.7

Irvsestmunt Bank 110 1.0 24 14

IILE EIRFREY

T 7357
T 30
= (2
57 g
{ED) 1512 783 7821

EE | o ki a4

12

73

7B ETS 1253 1,253 1.1
El:]

o 1] 1] 13

i i [} i
i [141} i il (5

& IR [ ]
bt book valie at the end of the yesr 6311 147 ks M5 5,556 6,568

1mmhmﬁlmwhmlinmlsdnumhMﬁmﬁm:nwmuuﬁ.ﬂmm.ﬂtdhhpﬂummnnhhxlim
& 4 million for 101

The table below presents goodwill and intangible assets by segment for the year ended 31 December 2016,

Balanie at the énd of the year 1,308 3571 36 1,40 6311
g s e

Halance al the beginning of the ypear 109 (1} [ an 338
[
i

Addilion | randlen [i]

i
|=paitrment ] 1]
Foreign cumency transdation (1 2 1
Batance at the end of the yesr 40 152 41 4 [] 245
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Note 15 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

The table below pressnts estimated, aggregated amortization expenses for intangible assets.

CHF million Intangile assets
Estimated, sopregated amortization experes for:

2017 ]
e e —— S — e — S —— s
e 4
qupg T mmmmmm—m——————nnnmmmmmm— s R
L oL 3L AL st s =
Thefesfter 19
B T 3
Totsd 245

CMF million 0206 EVRFRET

Perpertis and athe fn-curent aseers held T sae - - m 134
Aazets ol dipossl group held for sale 5137 7
Diher 1433 1485

Toe gther assets mAz 12,240
1 Frime brobesage sonices indecs clearanoe, soiemeni, cosody, tinancing and pordolio mparing seiices for omgonoe Ot tadieg aoos makipk aws dasses. Frine bmisage wodsathkes o mainly
compised of mangin lending oslables. 3 Reder t King 20b he | for mom idosnasion. 3 Refer o Mot 36 for morne indomation. 4 Arker o Moie 30 for mon infomasion.
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Balance sheet notes: liabilities

MNota 17 Due to banks and customers
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CHF miat HALE 1.12.15
D 1y banks 10,645 11,836
D by ciidtonsen 450,199 402,522
etk et 195 756 174367
of i eorad ot £ deptms. o R -~ I T
o i pimes gty At [
" ofwtich. fobciy o B * HR ¥
Totsl due 1o banks and cusomess 450 544 414,358
Mote 18 Financial liabilities designated at fair value
HF mliat HAZE 4215
L
Equitylinked! 29531 30,965
10,150 16,587
e ——nn e e g e e
14972 4,098
e L UM ... 1
g by : .
Ohver-ghe-courrier debi insanuments.
FiTy | 1,608
""""""""""""""" 4563 5,403
""""""""""""""" 4710 L4907
5 Bag
""""""""""""""" P2 119
S500T 62,995
" ofwhich iewedite own gecit i e g g
3758t e 35 31 Dnceno JVE s nsnaed (31 et T o o 395 f Sl ecbchnd§ e o 5 o ot Sl o 3 Deents 01 o st 3
Decombeer 2315: mons than 35% of e balaacs wes fi Sloanc ynined o Firandal abifies desigraned o fa vl el drawn and reogaized as Loans. See Mate 1a bem 3o for mone

Az of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
contractual redemption amount at maturity of finandal liabilites
designated at fair value through profit or loss was not materially
different from the carrying value.

The table on the following page shows the residual
contractual maturity of the carrying value of financial liabilities
designated at far value, sphit between fied-rate and floating-
rate nstruments based on the contractual terms, and does not
consider any sarly redemption features. Interest rate ranges for

536

future interest payments related to these financial liabilities
designated at fair value have not been included n the table on
the following page as a majority of these liabilities are structured
products, and therefore the future intersst payments are highly
dependent upon the embedded derivative and prevailing market
conditions at the time each interest payment is made.
— Refer to Mote 25d for maturity information on an undiscounted
cash flow basis
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Mote 18 Financial liabilities designated at fair value (continued)

Contractual maturity of carrying value

Tistal Tuotal

207 2ma Hig ik} W2 2023-H36 Thuseafter 312,16 EIR A LY
SO/ N ... SN, .. NUSE .. SN, .. MU, . S .- SO .. S, ... }
17,904 4,136 173 3,363 1653 415 TG 4757 49,824

21,884 5,130 4383 1,625 2053 4963 10,234 51363 60,526

R N A A N B B R B R AR B RS N

692 oy 961 )l &7 155 340 1755 2,469
Tetsl 22,576 5427 5,345 3,656 211 5118 10,774 5,017 £2,095
T Compities InsnumeTts Exaed by e sandakne logal eniiy UES A, 1 Comprbes Tunents s by sebsilanes of UES AL,
MNota 19 Debt issued held at amortized cost
[, HAZIE 215
Cenificates of deposit . L

"cnmdhme 5E6 £.450
Subondinated debr 11554 12,600

o e nev-Based IN-compdanT D 2 canita nsiuments Li25 2754
Debt iesced sheagh the central bond isitutions of the Swis regional o camtoral baks 8737
o b T — — S

o e e by RS AT Haith aripial mualily cvedter tn one pade” a4 P
Liong-berm debi? 52 EIG 61,144
Total debt issued hebd at amortized cost? TH, 908 £2,350

1 Dadn with. @ aiginal manmlty of hrnn:-.-r 7 bmed by e siandalone fegal exiky UB5 AG. Bad on osgital caniracsaal mw&umguﬁmm 100% of the

5 120% of the balno was unssondl. 3 Debr with ariginal materity greates

than o The dassification of defn iseed isin

takance a5 of 31 G was
shariem aad murmuﬂdnqumpuﬁ-‘m 4 Ko of bil
RET Reges fail of CHF 130 milban).

UES AG uses interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives to
manage the risks inherent in certain debt instruments held at
amortized cost. In certain cases, UBS AG applies hedge
accounting for imterest rate risk as discussed in Mote 1a item 3k
and Mote 12. As a result of applying hedge accounting, the

_..nr-:pd'hi.l'ld.uu'lu-F!lﬂuu 30 Dacormbss 2008 (31 Decemer 1015

carrying value of debt issued increased by CHF 821 million and
by CHF 1,024 milion as of 31 December 2016 and 2015,

respectively, reflecting changes in fair value due to interest rate
MOWEMmEnts.
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Note 19 Debt issued held at amortized cost (continued)

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Subordinated debt consists of unsecured debt obligations
that are contractually subordinated in right of payment to all
other present and future non-subordinated obligations of the
respective  isuing  entity Al of the subordinated debt
instruments outstanding as of 31 December 2016 pay a fixed
rate of interest.

The table below shows the residual contractual maturity of
the camying value of debt issued, split betwesn fixed-rate and
floating-rate based on the contractual terms, and does not
consider any sarly redemption features. The effects from interest
rate swaps, which are used to hedge various fixed-rate debt
issuances by changing the repricing characteristics into those
similar to floating-rate debt, are also not considered in the table
beabow

—+ Refer to Mote 25d for maturity information on an undiscounted
cash flow basis
Comtractual maturity of carrying value
Total Tatal
W mdllion, rcent Wibere Pofcates’ 2007 2018 g 2020 02 022-1026 Theseafter 312,96 EIR R T

Flusting rate 12113 1017 1017 254 o o 1536 15,837 17,907
""" Fuedeate 218 "] ] 11,136 o 11554 12,600
Intefest rales fange in %) 4174 ABEE
e T B g2 S
Other subsidiarie?
“Morssbordinated debt T
R T
Interest rales frange in %) ra1 038 028 032 024 4.1 018
""" T T - T T
e 736 ™ 74 m e 3557 w0 8507 11,700
Totdl 35,890 2473 5,788 5343 37 16,223 58 s 52,35

T Compriies (ot e by The stancabana legal ety UBS 8. 3 Comprises 200t B 2y sebskbarmes of UES AG.
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Mote 20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

a) Provisions
Litiation,
requiaton Loan coff-
Operational  and similar  Resiruc-  mitments and Taital Tatal
LW el Fitkey! matlerst wring  guéireniess Resl eitste Other 311216 311215
Balance at the beginning of the pear a7 2,983 524 i3 157 158 120 4,163 4,366
nized i the ! ,
" IRE]]
B W0 G e W asn (s
[ 0 e 0 0 ] 0 1 5
] /] [ 10 [Fi] 0 0 T 3
Foreign cumency transhation J unwind of discount {0 %5 15 o 1 1 ) 10 3
Batance ai the end of the yesr 50 1,261 4583 k= 138 ki 9 4,169 4,163
1 Compriss. provisins for ses 1om Tisks and ramEtion ks I pesisions for lnwes mesaking from legal, Fabifty and compliance ks, 3 Inclutes personnel selaced
MU and Jor onesoes lase contracts of CHF 348 million & of 31 Deoemizer 2016 {31 Decersber

] dGFIEJI'tlui!'Imm'IEE'ImIIS CFF 110w
015 CHF 514 millianh, 4 Inclazies e o

of CHF &5 million a5 of 31 Decemizer 2016 (31 Decenber 3015 CHF 94 million) and prosisions for onsmus ke oostracts of

5 53 million a5 of 31 Decemizer 2096 (31 Decemizer 1015 I:HFi!l'.'I:I]. 5 Includs. provisiass for mhiatical and ansiversary awsnds o well a5 provisions for swverance which s not pan of sesmumaing

pratsions.

Restructuring provisions primarily relate to onerous  lease
contracts and severance payments. The wse of onerous leass
provdisions is driven by the matwrities of the underlying lease
contracts. Severance-related provisions are uwsed within a shart
timie pericd, wsually within six months, but potential changes in
amount may be triggered when natural staff attrition reduces

the number of people affected by a restructuring and therefare
the estimated costs,

Infarmation on provisions and contingent Rabilities in respect
of Etigation, regulatory and similar matters, as a class, is included
in Note 20b. There are no materal contingent liabdlities.
associated with the other classes of provisions.
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b) Litigation, regulatory and similar matters

UBS operates in a legal and regulatory environmenit that exposes
it to significant litigation and similar risks arising from disputes
and regulatory proceedings. As a result, UBS (which for purposes
of this Mote may refer to UBS AG and / or one or more of its
subsidiaries, as applicable) is imvolved in various disputes and
legal proceedings, including litigation, arbatration, and regulatony
and criminal investigations.

Such matters are subject t© many uncertainties, and the
putcome and the timing of resolution are often difficult to
predict, particularly in the earlier stages of a case. There are also
situations where UBS may enter into a settlement agreement.
This may occur in order to avoid the expense, management
distraction or reputational implications of continuing to conbest
liability, even for those matters for which UBS believes it should
be exonerated. The uncertainties inherent in all such matters
affect the amount and timing of any potential cutflows for both
matters with respect to which provisions have been established
and other contingent liabilities. UBS makes provisions for such
matters brought against it when, in the coinicn of management
after seeking legal advice, it is mare likely than not that UBS has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required, and the amount can be reliably estimated. Where thess
factors are otherwise satisfied, a provision may be established for
claims that have not yet been asserted against UBS, but are
nevertheless expected to be, based ocn UBS's experience with
similar asserted claims, f any of those conditions s not met,
such matters result in confingent liabilities. If the amount of an
obligation cannot be reliably estimated, a Rability exists that i
not recognized even if an outflow of resources is probable.
Accordingly, no provision is established even if the potential
outflow of resources with respect to select matters could be
significant.
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Specific litigation, regulatory and other matters are described
belowe, including all such matters that management considers to
be material and others that management believes to be of
significance dus to potential financial, reputational and other
effects. The amount of damages claimed, the size of a
transaction or other information & provided where available and
appropriate n order to assist users n considering the magnitude
of potential exposures,

In the case of certain matters below, we state that we have
establizhed a provision, and for the other matters, we make no
such statement. When we make this statement and we expect
disclosure of the amount of a provision 1o prejudice serioushy our
pastion with other parties in the matter because it would reveal
what UBS believes to be the probable and reliably estimable
outflow, we do not disclose that amount. In some cases we ane
subject o confidentiality obligations that preclude such
dizclosure, With respect to the matters for which we do not
state whether we have established a provision, either (a) we
hawve mot established a provision, in which case the matter is
treated as a contingent liability under the applicable acoounting
standard or (b) we have established a provision but expect
disclosure of that fact to prejudice seriously our position with
ather parties in the matter because it would reveal the fact that
LES believes an outflow of resources to be probable and reliably
estimabde.

With respect to certain Btigation, regulatory and similar
matters far which we have established provisions, we are able o
estimate the expected timing of outflows. However, the
aggregate amount of the expected outflows for thoss matters
for which we are able to estimate expected timing is immaterial
relative to owr current and expected levels of liquidity over the
relevant time periods.

453/624

oOoOooodn



Mote 20 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

The aggregate amount provisioned for tigation, regulatory
and similar matters as a class is disclosad in Mote 20a above. [t is
naot practicable to provide an aggregate estimate of liability for
our litigation, regulatory and similar matters as a class of
contingent liabilities. Doing s0 would require = to provide
speculative legal assessments as to daims and proceedings that
invohve unique fact patterns or novel legal theaories, that have
nat yet been initiated or are at early stages of adjudication, or as
to which alleged damages have not been quantified by the
daimants. Although we therefore cannot provide a numerical
estimate of the future losses that could arise from litigation,
regulatory and similar matters, we believe that the agagregate
amount of possible future losses from this class that are more
than remate substantially excesds the level of current provisions,
Litigation, regulatory and similar matters may also result in non-
manetary penalties and consequences. For example, the Non-
Prosecution Agreement (MPA) described i item 5 of this Note,
which we entered into with the US Department of lustice (DOJ),
Criminal Division, Fraud Section in connection with our
submissions of benchmark interest rates, incleding, among
others, the Eritith Bankers' Association London Interbank
Offered Rate {LIBOR), was terminated by the DOJ basad on its

determination that we had committed a US crime in relation to
foreign exchange matters. As a consequence, UBS AG pleaded
guilty to one count of wire frawd for conduct in the LIBOR
matter, paid a USD 2032 million fine and is subject to a threeyear
term of probation. & guilty plea to, or conwiction of, a crime
{induding as a result of termination of the MPA) could have
material consequences for UBS. Resolution of regulatony
proceedings may require us to obtain waivers of regulatory
disgualifications to maintain certain operations, may entfitle
regulatory autharities to limit, suspend or terminate licenses and
requlatory  authorizations and may permit financial market
utiliies to lmit, suspend or terminate owr participation in such
utilities. Failure o obtain such waivers, or any limitation,
suspension or termination of lcenses, awthorizations or
participations, could have material consequences far UBS.

The risk of loss associated with litigation, regulatory and
similar matters is a component of operational risk for purposes
of determining ouwr capital requirements, Information conceming
our capital requirements and the calculation of operational risk
for this purpose & incleded in the "Capital management”
section of this repart.

Provisions for ltigation, regulatory and similar matters by business division and Corporate Center unit® -*

‘Wesakth O — hon-

Wiedth  Manage  Perional & At oo and
mend Corporite  Manane Investmen - - Total Tatal
HF it menl  Ameficas Darking medt Bank  Sefviced GroupALM P IILE 4215
Sdance at e begonigoftheyesr M5 4w & M ®s o O N RSE3 3053
Increase in proviions secognized in the income stalement TE 113 T 5 5 L] GG 856 1,263
LA i 8 8 @ @9 | 9..nn_ e he
(1% 1137 ] [E] (45} o (318) (554 (.74
areign cuendy transation J unwind of discount (4 3 o 1] % o pL 5 7
Balance at the end o the yesr 242 45 T8 5 16 5 1 1,555 i761 1963

1 Provvisions, H amy, for 1he matters desoibed in this disckoss e reosided in Weakh Managemen fiem 3}, Weahs M
Hion=onse and Legacy Porriolie (hen 21, Pagsisions, i ang, for the mates desosbed in this dhckeere in fems 1 and & ane
¥ ay, fou the matters desaised i this dischonune in en 5 are aliocaoed betwsoon the Insesment Bank, CC = Services andl £ = Man-oom: and Ligacy Fortiobin

pupas of this rable and mory Sieselone Si¥or from Sose shown in the raks n Mo 20

Bamsesicas [inom &), thi Ivseument Bank frem B, O = Senioes fien 7] and CC =
ared berween Weaalth Managemen and Fesaral & Copore Enking, and proatians,
2 Frowision mawersenls s qioaped by e for
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1. Inquiries regarding cross-border wealth management
businesses
Tax and regulatory authorities in a number of countries have
made inquiries, served reguests for information or examined
employess located in their respective jurisdictions relating to the
crass-border wealth management services provided by UBS and
other financial institutions. It s passibbe that implementation of
automatic tax information exchange and other measures relating
to cross-border provision of financial services could give rise to
further inguiries in the future. UBS has received disclosure orders
fram the Swiss Federal Tax Administration (FTA) to transfer
information based on requests for intemational administrative
asistance in tax matters, The requests concern a number of UBS
account numbers pertaining to curent and former clients and are
based on data from 2006 and 2008. UBS has taken steps o
inform  affected cdients about the administrative assistance
praceedings and their procedural rights, including the right 1o
appeal. The requests are based on data received from the German
authorities, whio seized certain data related to UBS dients booked
in Switzerland during their imvestigations and have apparently
shared this data with other European countries. UBS expects
additional countries to file similar requests. In addition, the Swiss
Federal Supreme Court ruled in September 2016 that the double
taxation agreement between the Metherlands and Switzerland
provides a sufficient legal basis for an administrative assistance
group request without specfying the names of the targeted
taxpayers, which makes it more likely that smilar requests for
administrative assistance will be granted by the FTA

In 2013, as a result of imvestigations in France, UBS (France)
5.4 and UBS AG were put under formal examination {"mise en
examen”) for complicity in having illicitly solicited clients on
French territory and were declared witness with legal assistance
(" témain assisté”) regarding the laundering of proceeds of tax
fraud and of banking and financial soliatation by unauthonzed
persans. n 2014, UBS AG was placed under formal examination
with respect to the potential charges of laundering of proceeds
of tax fraud, and the nvestigating judges ordered UBS AG to
provide bail {"caution”} of EUR 1.1 bilkon. UBS AG appealed the
determination of the bail amount, but both the appesl court
(*Cour d’Appel”} and the French Supreme Court (*Cour de
Caseation”) upheld the bail amount and rejected the appeal in
full n late 2014, UBS AG filed an application to the European
Court of Human Rights (ECHR} to challenge warious aspects of
the French court’s decision. In Januwary 2017, the ECHR denied
UES's application. The Swiss Federal Administrative Cowrt nuled in
October 2016 that in the administrative assistance procesdings
related to the French bulk request, UBS has the right to appeal all
final FTA client data disclosure orders. In September 2015, the
former CEQ of UBS Wealth Management was placed under
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formal examination in connection with these proceedings. In
addition, the inwestigating judges have sought to issue arrest
wamants against three Swiss-based former employees of UBS AG
who did not appear when summoned by the investigating
judge.

In 2015, UBS (Framce) SA was placed wnder formal
examination for complicity regarding the laundering of proceeds
of tax fravd and of banking and financial solicitation by
unauthorized persons for the wears 2004 until 2008 and
dedlared witness with legal assistance for the years 2009 to
2012, A bail of EUR 40 million was imposed and subsequently
reduced by the Court of Appeals to EUR 10 million.

In February 2016, the inwestigating judge notified UBS AG and
LUBS (France) 5.4 that he has dosed his imestigation. In July 20186,
UBS AG and UBS (France) 5.4 received the Mational Financial
Prosecutor's recommendation {“réguisitaire”). As permitted, the
parties have commented on the recommendation. The nest
procedural step will be for the judge o issue his final decree
{"ordonnance de renvoi en correctionnetie”), which would set out
any charges for which UBS AG and UBS {France) S.A. will be tried,
both legally and factually, and transfer the case to court.

LBS has been notified by the Belgian investigating judge that it is
under formal investigation (“incwipé™) regarding the laundering of
proceeds of tax fraud and of banking, financial solictation by
unautharized persons and serous tax frawd,

In 2015, UBS received inquiries from the US Attorney's Office
for the Eastern District of Mew York and fram the US Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC), which are nvestigating
potential sales to US persons of bearer bonds and other
uniregistered securities in possible violation of the Tax Equity and
Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 (TEFRA) and the registration
requirements of the US securities laws. UBS & cooperating with
the autharities in these investigations.

UBS has, and reportedly numerous other financial nstitutions
hawve, received nquines from authorities concerning accounts.
relating to the Fédération Internationale de Football Association
{FIFA} and other constituent soccer assodations and related
persons and entities, UBS is cooperating with autharities in these
inquiries,

Our balance shest at 31 December 2016 reflected provisians
with respect to matters described in this item 1 in an amount
that UBS believes to be appropriate under the applicable
acoounting standard. As in the case of other matters for which
we have established provisions, the future outflow of resources
in respect of such matters cannot be determined with certainty
based on cumently available information and accordingly may
ultimately prove to be substantially greater {or may be less) than
the provision that we have recognized.
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2. Claims related to sales of residential mortgage-backed
securities and mortgages

Fram 2002 through 2007, prior to the crisis in the US residential
loan market, UBS was a substantial issuer and underwriter of LS
residentisl mortgage-backed securities (RMBS) and was a
purchaser and seller of US residential mortgages. & subsidiary of
UBS, UBS Real Estate Securities Inc. (UBS RESI), acquired poals of
residential mortgage loans from originatars and ({throwgh an
affiliate) deposited them into securitization trusts In this
manner, from 2004 through 2007, UBS RESl sponsored
approsimately USD 80 billion in AMBS, based on the original
principal balances of the securities issued.

UBS RESI also sold pools of koans acquired from osiginators to
third-party purchasers. These whole loan sales during the period
2004 through 2007 totaled approwimately USD 19 billion in
original principal balance.

We were nat a significant originator of US residential loans. A
subsidiary of UBS originated approximately USD 1.5 billion in US
residential mortgage loans during the period in which it was
active from 2006 to 2008 and securitized less than half of these
loans.

RbABS-related lawsuits concerning disdosures: UBS is named
as a defendant relating to its role as underwriter and issuer of
RMES in lawsuits related to approdmately USD 2.5 billion in
original face amount of RMBS underwritten or Esued by UBS, Of
the USD 2.5 bilion in original face amount of RWBS that
remains at issue in these cases, approximately USD 1.2 bilkon
was mswed in offerings in which a UBS subsidiary transferred
underlying loans {the majority of which were purchased from
third-party onginators) into a securitization trust and made
representations and warranties about those loans (UBS-
sponsored RMBS). The remaining USD 1.3 billion of RMBS to
which these cases relate was Bsued by third parties in
securitizations i which UBS acted as wunderwriter {third-party
RMEBS).

In connection with certain of these lawsuits, UBS has
indemnification rights against surviving third-party sswers or
originators for losses or liabilities ncurred by UBS, but UBS
cannot predict the extent o which it will succeed in enforcng
those rights.

UBS is a defendant in a lawsuit brought by the Mational
Credit Union Administration (MCUA) as conservator for certain
failed credit wnions, asserting misstatements and omissions in
the offering documents for RMBS purchased by the credit
unions. The lawsuit was filed in the US District Cowrt for the
Dhstrict of Kansas. The original principal balance at issus in the
case & approdmately USD 1.15 bilkon. In March 2017, UBS and

NCUA& reached an agreement in principle to resolve this matter.
In the second quarter of 2016, UBS resoled a similar case
brought by the NCUA in the US District Court for the Southern
District of Mew York (SDNY) relating to RMBS with an original
principal balance of approximately USD 400 million, for a total of
approdmately USD 69.8 million, in addition to reasonable
attormneys’ fees incurmed by NCUA,

Lawsuits  related  to  confractual  representations  and
warranties concevning morfgages and RMBS: When UBS acted
as an RMBS sponsor or mortgage seller, we generally made
certain representations relating to the characteristics of the
underlying loans. In the event of a material breach of these
representations, we were in certain droumstances contractually
obligated to repurchase the loans to which the repressntations
related or to indemnify certain parties against losses. UBS has
received demands to repurchase US residential mortgage koans
as to which UBS made certain representations at the time the
lpans were transferred to the securitization trust aggregating
approdmately USD 4.1 billion in ariginal principal balance. Of
this amount, UBS considers claims relating to approsimately USD
2 billion in orginal principal balance to be resobved, including
claime barred by the statute of limitations. Substantially all of the
remaining claims are in litigation, including the matters
described in the next paragraph. UBS believes that mew
demands to repurchase US residential mortgage loans are time-
bamed wnder a decsion rendered by the New York Court of
Appeals.

In 2012, certain RMBS trusts filed an action (Trustee Suit) in
the SDNY seeking to enforce UBS RESI's obligation to repurchase
lzans in the collateral pools for three RMEBS securitizations with
an onginal principal balance of approximately USD 2 billion, for
which Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp., a financial guaranty
insurance company, had previously demanded repurchase. A
bench trial in the SONY adjoumed in May 2016, Approximatshy
9,000 loans were at issue in the trial. In September 2016, the
court issued an order ruling on numerous legal and factual issuwes
and applying thoss rulings to 20 exemplar loans. The couwrt
further ordered that a lkead master be appointed to apply the
court's rulings to the lbans that remain at issue following the
trial. With respect to the loans subject to the Trustee Suit that
were originated by institutions still in existence, UBS intends to
enforce its indemnity rights against those institutions.

We also have tolling agreements with certain institutional
purchasers of RMES conceming their potential claims related 1o
substantial purchases of UBS-sponsored or third-party RMES.

543

456/624

oOoOooodn



MNote 20 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Provigion for claims related to sales of residential mortgage-backed securities and mortgages

LR i I ILA2IS
Balance ot the beginoing o heyewr .
Inrease in provsion recogrized in the incose stetemnent E&2
Retesse of provision fecognized in the incomeesastemnent B
Peorwision weed in condonsily with designated punpess a9
Badance ai the end of dhe year 1218

Mortgage-related reguiatory matters: In 2014, UBS received a
subpoena from the US Attormey’s Office for the Eastern Dastrict
of Mew York issued pursuant to the Financial Institutions Reform,
Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 (FIRREA), which seeks
documents and information related to UBS's RMBS business
from 2005 through 2007. In 2015, the Eastern District of New
York identified a number of transactions that are the focus of
thedr inquiry, and has subsequently provided a revised list of
transactions. We have provided and continue to provide
information. UBS continues to respond to the FIRREA subposna
and to subpoenas from the New York State Attorney General
and other state attormeys general relating to its RMBS business.
In addition, UBS has also been responding to inguiries from both
the Special Inspector General for the Troubled Asset Relief
Program (SIGTARP) iwho is working in conjunction with the US

Attormey’s Office for Connecticut and the DOJ} and the SEC
relating to trading practices in connection with purchases and
sales of mortgage-backed securities in the sscondary market
from 2009 through 2014, We are cooperating with the
autharities in these matters.

As reflected in the table "Provision for claims related to sales
of residential mortgage-backed sscurities and mortgages,” our
balance sheet at 31 December 2016 reflected a provision of USD
1,500 million with respect to matters described n this item 2. As
in the case of other matters for which we have established
provisions, the future outflow of resources in respect of this
matter cannot be determined with certainty based on currenthy
available information and accordingly may ultimately prove to be
substantially greater (or may be less) than the provision that we
have recognized.
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3. Madoff

In relation to the Bernard L. Madoff mvestment Securities LLC
(BMIS) investment fraud, UBS AG, UBS (Luxembourg) 5.4, and
certain other UBS subsidiaries have been subject to inquiries by a
number of regulators, including the Swiss Fnandal Market
Supervisory Autharity (FIMBMA) and the Luxembourg Commission
de Sureillance du Sectewr Financier (C55F). Those inguiries
concerned two third-party funds established under Luxembaourg
law, substantially all assets of which were with BMIS, as well as
certain funds established in offshore purisdictions with either
direct or indirect exposure to BMIS. These funds now face severe
losses, and the Luxembourg funds are in liquidation. The last
reported net asset value of the two Luxembourg funds before
revelation of the Madoff scheme was approximately USD 1.7
billion in the aggregate although that figure likely indudes
fictiious profit reported by EMIS. The documentation
establishing both funds identifies UBS entities in various roles,
incleding custodian, administrator, manager, distributor and
promoter, and indicates that UBS employees serve as board
members., UBS (Luxembowrg) S.A. and certain other UBS
subsidiaries  are responding  to  inguiries by Luxembourg
investigating authorities, without, however, being named as
parties im those investigations. In 2009 and 2010, the liquidators
of the two Luxembourg funds filed claims on behalf of the funds
against UBS entities, non-UBS entities and certain individuals,
incleding current and former UBS employess. The amounts
claimed are approamately EUR 290 million and EUR 205 million,
respectively. The liquidators have filed supplementary daims for
amounts that the funds may possibly be held lable to pay the
BMIE Trustee. These amounts claimed by the liquidator are
approximately  EUR 564 milion and EUR 370 million,
respectively. In addition, a large number of alleged bensficiaries
have filed claims against UES entities {and non-UBS entities) for
purported kasses relating to the Madoff scheme. The majority of
these cases are pending in Luxembourg, where appeals were
filed by the claimants against the 2010 decsions of the court in
which the claims in a number of test cases were held to be
inadmissible. In 2014, the Lluxembourg Court of Appeal

dismissad one test case appeal in its enfirety, which decision was
appealed by the mvestor. In 2015, the Luxembourg Supreme
Court found in favor of UBS and diemissed the investar's appeal.
In June 2016, the Luxembourg Court of Appeal dismissed the
remaining test cases in their entirety. In the US, the BMIS Trustes
fibed claims in 2010 against UBS entities, among others, in
relation to the two Luxembouwrg funds and one of the offshore
funds. The total amount claimed against all defendants in thess
actions was not less than USD 2 billion. Following a motion by
UES, in 2011, the SDNY dismissed all of the BMIS Trustes's
claims other than claims for recovery of fraudulent corveyances
and preference payments that were allegedly transferred to UBS
on the ground that the BMIS Trustee lacks standing to bring
such claims. In 2013, the Second Circuit affirmed the District
Court's decision and, in 2014, the US Suprems Cowrt denied the
BMIS Trustee's petition seeking review of the Second Circuit
ruling. In Mowember 2018, the bankruptcy cowrt isswed an
opinion  dismissing the remaining claime for recovery of
subsequent transfers of fraudulent conveyances and preference
payments on the ground that the US Bankruptcy Code does niot
apply to transfers that occurred outside the US. The BMIS
Trustes has indicated that he will appeal. In 2014, several claims,
including a purported class action, were filed in the US by BMIS
customers against UBS enfities, asserting claims similar to the
ones made by the BMIS Trustee, sseking unspecified damages.
One claim was voluntarily withdrawn by the plaintiff. In 2015,
following a motion by UBS, the SONY dsmised the twa
remaining claims on the basis that the New York courts did not
hawve jurisdiction to hear the daims against the UBS entities. The
plaintiff in one of those claims has appealed the dismissal. In
Germany, certain dients of UBS are expossd to Madoff-
managed positions throwgh  third-party funds and  funds
administersd by UBS entities in Germany. & small number of
claims have been filed with respect to such funds. In 2015, a
court of appeal ordered UBS to pay EUR 49 million, plus interest
of appraxmately EUR 15.3 million.
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4. Puerto Rico

Declines since Auwgust 2013 in the market prices of Puerto Rico
municipal bonds and of cosed-end funds (the funds) that are
sole-managed and co-managed by UBS Trust Company of
Puerto Rico and distibuted by UBS Financial Services
Incorporated of Puerto Rico {UBS PR) have led to multiple
regulatory inguiries, as well as customer complaints and
arbitrations with aggregate claimed damages of approximately
D 2.0 billion, of which daims with aggregate claimed
damages of approsimately USD 861 million have been reschved
through settlements, arbitration or withdrawal of the daim. The
dlaims are filed by clients in Puerto Rico who own the funds or
Puerto Rico mumicipal bonds and / or who used their UBS
account assets as collateral for UBS non-purpase koans; customer
complaint  and  arbitration  allegations  include  fraud,
misrepresentation and unsuitability of the funds and of the
loans. & shareholder derivative action was filed in 2014 against
variows UBS enfities and current and certain former directors of
the funds, alleging hundreds of millions of US dollars in losses in
the funds. In 2015, defendants' motion to dismiss was denied.
Defendants’ reguests for permission to appeal that ruling were
denied by the Puerto Rico Court of Appeak and the Puerto Rico
Supreme Court. In 2014, a federal class action complaint also
was filed against various UBS enfities, certain members of UBS
PR senior management, and the co-manager of certain of the
funds sesking damages for investor losses in the funds during
the period from May 2008 through May 2014, Defendants had
moved to dismiss that complaint, and in December 2016,
defendants’ motion to dismiss was granted in part and denied in
part. In 2015, a class action was filed in Puerto Rico state court
against UBS PR seeking equitable relief in the form of a stay of
any effort by UBS PR to collect on non-purpose loans it acquired
from UBS Bank USA n December 2013 based on plaintffs’
allegation that the keans are not vabd. The trial cowrt denied
defendants’ motion to dismiss the action based on a forum
selection clause in the loan agreements; the Fuerio Rico
Supreme Couwrt has stayed the action pending its review of
defendants’ appeal from that ruling.

In 2014, UBS reached a settlement with the Office of the
Commissioner of Financial Institutions for the Commaonwealth of
Pusrto Rico (OCFI) in connection with OCF's examination of
UBS"s operations from lanwary 2006 through September 2013,
pursuant ta which UBS is paying up to an aggregate of USD 7.7
million in investor education contributions and restitution,

In 2015, the SEC and the Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority (FINRA) announced settlements with UBS PR of their
separate investigations stemming from the 2013 market events,
Without admitting or denying the findings in either matter, LUBS
PR agreed in the SEC settlement to pay USD 15 milion and USD
18.5 million in the FINRA matter. We also understand that the
) is conducting a criminal inguiry into the impermissible
reinvestment of non-purpose loan procesds. We are cooperating
with the autharities in this inguiry.

In 2011, a purported derivative action was filed on behalf of
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the Employee Retirement System of the Commomeealth of
Puerto Rico (Systemn) against over 40 defendants, including UBS
PR, which was named in connection with its underwriting and
consulting services. Plaintiffs alleged that defendants viclated
their purported fidudary duties and contraciual obligations in
connection with the issuance and underwriting of approximately
USD 3 billion of bonds by the System im 2008 and sought
damages of over USD 300 million. Defendants’ motion to
dismiss is pending. In September 2016, the Systemn announced
its intention to join the action as a plaintiff, and the cowrt has
since ordered that plaintiffs must file an amended complaint.

Also, in 2013, an SEC Administrative Law Judge diemissed a
case browght by the SEC against two UBS executives, finding no
violations. The charges had stemmed from the SEC's
investigation of UBS's sale of closed-end funds in 2008 and
2008, which UBS settled in 2012, Beginning in 2012, two
federal dass action complaints, which were subsequently
consolidated, were filed against various UBS entities, certain of
the funds, and certain members of UBS PR sendor management,
seeking damages for mvestor losses in the funds during the
period from January 2008 through May 2012 based on
allegations similar to those n the SEC action. In September
2018, the court denied plaintiffs” motion for dass certification. In
October 2016, plaintiffs filed a petition with the US Court of
Appeals for the First Circuit seeking permission to bring an
interlocutory appeal challenging the denial of their motion fior
class certification. Defendants have filed an opposition to
plaintiffs' petition.

Beginning in 2015, agencies and public corporations of the
Commonwealth have defaulted on certain interest payments,
and in July 2016, the Commanwealth defaulted on payments on
its general obligation debt. Executive orders of the Gowernor
that have diverted fumds to pay for essential services instead of
debt payments and stayed any action to enforce creditors’ rights
on the Puerto Rico bonds continue to be in effect. In June 2016,
L5 federal begislation created an oversight board with power to
owersee Puerto Rico's finances and to restructure its debt. The
aowersight board is authorized to impase, and has imposed, a stay
on exercise of creditors’ rights. These events, further defaults,
any further legislative action to create a legal means of
restructuring  Commormwealth  obligations  or  to  impose
additional oversight on the Commonwealth's finances, or any
restructuring of the Commonwealth's obligations, may increase
the mumber of caims against UBS concerning Puerto Rico
securities, as well as potential damages sought.

Our balance sheet at 31 December 2016 reflected provisions
with respect to matters described in this item 4 in amounts that
LES believes to be appropriate under the applicable acoounting
standard. As in the case of other matters for which we have
established provisions, the future outflow of resources in respect
of such matters cannot be determined with certainty based on
currently available information and accordingly may ultimately
prove to be substantially greater (or may be less) than the
provisions that we have recognized.
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5. Foreign exchange, LIBOR, and benchmark rates, and other
trading practices

Fareign exchange-related reguiatory matters: Following an initial
media report in 2013 of widespread irregularities in the forsign
exchange markets, UBS immediately commenced an internal
review of its foreign exchange business, which indudes our
precious metals and related structured products  businesses,
Since then, various authorities hawe commenced investigations
concerning possible manipulation of foreign exchange markets,
including FINRA, the Swiss Competition Commission (WEKO),
the DOJ, the SEC, the US Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (CFTC), the Board of Gowernors of the Federal
Reserve Systern (Federal Reserve Board), the California State
Attorney General, the UK Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) {to
which certain responsibilities of the UK Financial Services
Authority (FSA) have passed), the UK Serigus Fraud Office (SFO),
the Australian Securities and lrvestments Commission [ASIC),
the Hong Kong Maonetary Authority (HKMA), the Korea Fair
Trade Commission (KFTC) and the Brazil Competition Authority
(CADEY. In addition, WEKD is, and a number of other autharities
reportedly are, investigating potential manipulation of precious
metals prices. UBS has taken and will continue to take
appropriate action with respect to certain personnel as a result
of its ongoing review.

In 2014, UBS reached settlements with the FCA and the CFTC
in connection with their foreign exchange investigations, and
FINMA issued an order concluding its formal proceedings with
respect to UBS relating to its foreign exchange and precious
metak businesses. UBS has paid a wtal of approximately CHF
774 million to these authorities, including GBF 234 million in
fines to the FCA, USD 290 million in fines to the CFTC, and CHF
124 million to FINMA representing confiscation of costs avoided
and profits. In 2015, the Federal Reserve Board and the
Connecticut Department of Banking ssued an Order to Cease
and Desist and Order of Assessment of a Civil Monetary Penalty
lssued upon Consent (Federal Reserve Order) to UBS AG. As part
of the Federal Reserve Order, UBS AG paid a USD 342 million
civil manetary penalty.

In 2015, the DOJ's Criminal Division {Criminal Division)
terminated the December 2012 Mon-Prosecution Agresment
[MPA) with UBS AG related to UBS's submissions of benchmark
interest rates. As a result, UBS AG entered into a plea agreement
with the Criminal Division pursuant to which UBS AG pleaded
guilty to a one-count criminal information filed in the US District
Court for the District of Connecticut charging UBS AG with ane
count of wire fraud in violation of 18 USC Sections 1243 and 2.
Sentencing ocoourred on 5 January 2017, Under the plea
agresment, UBS AG has paid a USD 203 million fine and &
subject to a thweeyear term of probation starting on the
sentencing date. The criminal information changes that, between
approximately 2001 and 2010, UBS AG engaged in a scheme to
defraud counterparties to interest rate derivatives transactions by
manipulating benchmark interest rates, including Yen UBOR. The

Criminal Division terminated the NPA based on its determination,
in its sole discretion, that certain UBS AG employess committed
criminal conduct that violated the MPA, including fraudulent and
deceptive currency trading and sales practices in conducting
certain foreign exchange market transactions with dients and
collusion with other participants in certain foreign exchange
markets.

We have ongoing obligations to cooperate with thess
authosities and to wndertake certain remediation, including
actions to improve UBS's processes and controls.

UBS has been grantsd conditional leniency or conditional
immunity by the Antitrust Division of the DO (Antitrust Division)
from prosscution for EUR / USD collusion and entered into a
non-prosecution agreement covering other cumency pairs. As a
result, UBS AG will not be subject to prosecutions, fines or other
sanctions for antitrust law violations by the Antitrust Division,
subject to UBS AG's continuing cooperation. However, the
conditional leniency and conditional immunity grant does not
bar government agencies from asserting other claims and
impasing sanctions against UBS AG, as ewidenced by the
settlements and ongoing investigations referred to above. UBS
has also been granted conditional immunity by authorities in
certain  jurisdictions, inchuding WEKD, in connection with
patential competition kaw violations relating to foreign exchange
and precious metals businesses and, as a result, will not be
subject to prosecutions, fines or other sanctions for antitrust or
competition law violations in those jurisdictions, subject to UBS
AG's continuing cooperation as the leniency applicant.

Investigations relating to foreign exchange and precious
metals matters by numercus authorities, including the CFTC,
remain ongoing notwithstanding these resolutions.

Fareign exchange-related ciwl litigation: Putative dass actions
hawve been filed since Mowember 2013 inUS federal cowrts and in
other jurisdictions against UBS and other banks on behalf of
putative classes of persons who engaged in foreign currency
transactions with any of the defendant banks They allege
collusion by the defendants and assert claims wnder the antitrust
laws and for unjust enrichment. In 2015, additional putative
class actions were filed in federal court in New York against UBS
and other banks on behalf of a putative dass of persons who
entered into or held any foreign exchange futures contracts and
options on foreign exchange futures contracts since 1 January
2003. The complaints assert claims under the Commodity
Exchange Act (CEA) and the US antitrust laws. In 2015, a
consolidated complaint was filed on behalf of both putative
classes of persons covered by the US federal court class actions
described above. UBS has entered into a settlement agreement
that would resabve all of these US federal court dass actions. The
agreement, which has been preliminarily approved by the court
and is subject to final court approval, requires, among other
things, that UBS pay an aggregate of USD 141 million and
provide cooperation to the settlement dasses.

547

460/624

oOoOooodn



Mote 20 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

A putative class action has been filed in federal court in New
York against UBS and other banks on behalf of participants,
beneficiaries, and named fiduciares of plans qualified under the
Employes Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) for
whom a defendant bank provided foreign cumency exchange
transactional services, ewercised discretionary authority or
discretionary control over management of such ERISA plan, or
authorized or permitted the execution of any foreign curmency
exchange transactional services imvolving such plan’s assets. The
omplaint asserts claims under ERBA. The parties fied a
stipulation to dismiss the case with prejudice. The plaintiffs have
appealed the dismissal.

In 2015, a putative class action was filed in federal court
against UBS and numerous other banks on behalf of a putative
class of persons and businessss in the US who directly purchased
foreign currency from the defendants and their co-conspirators
for their own end wse. That action has been transferred to
federal court in New York. Maotions to dismiss are pending.

In 2016, a putative class action was filed in federal court in
Mew York against UBS and numerous other banks on behalf of a
putative class of persons and entities who had indirectly
purchased FX instruments from a defendant or co-conspirator in
the US. The complaint asserts claims wnder federal and state
antitrust laws. Mations to dismiss will be filed.

In 2015, UBS was added to putative class actions pending
against other banks in federal court in New York and other
jurisdictions on behalf of putative classes of persons who had
bowght or sold physical precious metals and various precous
metal products and derivatives. The complaints in these lawsuits
assert claims wnder the antitrust laws and the CEA, and other
claims. In October 2016, the court in Mew York granted UBS's
motions to dismiss the putative class actions relating to gald and
siver. Plaintiffs in those cases are sesking to amend their
complaints to add new allegations about UBS. UBS's motion to
dismiss the putative class action relating to platinum and
palladium remains pending.

LBOR and other benchmark-related reguistory matters:
Mumerous gowernment agencies, incuding the 5EC, the CFTC,
the DO, the FCA, the SFO, the Monestary Autharity of Singapone
(hAS), the HEMA, FINRAL, the varous state attorneys general in
the US and competition authorities in various jurisdictions have
conducted or are continuing to conduct investigations. regarding
submissions with respect to LIBOR and other benchmark rates.
These investigations foous on whether there were improper
atternpts by UBS, among others, either acting on our own or
together with others, to manipulate LIBOR and other benchmark
rates at certain times,

In 2012, UBS reached ssttlements with the FSA the CFTC
and the Criminal Division of the DOJ in connection with their
investigations of benchmark interest rates. At the same time,
FIMMA iz=ued an order concluding its formal proceedings with
respect to UBS relating to benchmark nterest rates. UBS has
paid a total of approximately CHF 1.4 billion in fines and
dizgorgement, including GEP 160 million in fines to the FaA,
S 700 million in fines to the CFTC, USD 500 milkion in fines to
the D0J, and CHF 59 milion in disgorgement to FINMA. UBS
Securities Japan Co. Ltd, (UBSS)) entered into a plea agresment
with the D0) under which it entered a plea to one count of wire
frawd relating to the manipulation of certain benchmark interest
rates, including Yen LIBOR. UBS entered into an MPA with the
DO, which (slong with the plea agreement) covered conduct
beyond the scope of the conditional leniency / immunity grants
described below, required UBS to pay the USD 500 million fine
to the D0O) after the sentencing of UBSS) and provided that any
criminal penalties imposed on UBSS) at sentencing be deducted
from the USD 500 milion fine. Under the MPA, we agreed,
among other things, that for two years from 18 December 2012
UES would not commit any US arime and we would advise DO)
of any potentially oiminal conduct by UBS or any of its
employees relating to violations of US laws concerning frawd or
securities and commadities markets. The term of the NP& was
extended by one year to 18 December 2015, In 2015, the
Criminal Division terminated the NPA based on its determanation,
in its sale discretion, that certain UBS AG employess committed
criminal conduct that violated the MPA,

In 2014, UBS reached a settlement with the European
Commissicn (EC) regarding its imvestigation of bid-ask spreads in
connection with Swiss franc interest rate derivatives and paid a
EUR 12.7 million fine, which was reduced to this level basad in
part on WB5S's cooperation with the EC. In December 2016, UBS
reached a settlement with WEKD regarding its imvestigation of
bid-ask spreads in connection with Swiss franc interest rate
derivatives and received full immunity from fines. The BMAS,
HEMA and the Japan Financal Services Agency have ako
resobsed investigations of LUBS {and in some cases, other banks).
‘We have ongoing obligations to cooperate with the authorities
with whom we have reached resolutions and to undertake
certain remediation with respect to benchmark interest rate
submissions.

Investigations by the CFTC, ASIC and other gowernmental
authodities remain ongoing notwithstanding these resoluticns.
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UBS has been granted conditional leniency or conditional
immunity from authosities in certain jursdictions, including the
Antitrust Division of the DOJ and WEKDQ, in connection with
potential antitrust or competition lzw violations related to
submissions for Yen LIBOR and Euroyen TIBOR. &z a result of
these conditional grants, UBS will not be subject to prosecutions,
fines or other sanctions for antitrust or competition law
violations in the jurisdictions where we have conditional
immunity in connection with the matters covered by the
conditional grants, subject to our continuing cooperation as
leniency applicant. However, since the Secretariat of WEKD has
asserted that UBS does not qualify for full immunity, UES has
besen unable to reach a settlement with WEKD, and therefore
the investigation will continue. Furthermore, the conditional
leniency and conditional immunity grants we have recsived do
not bar government agencies from asserting other claims and
imposing sanctions against us, as evidenced by the settlements
and ongoing investigations referred to above. In addition, as a
result of the conditional leniency agreement with the DO, we
are eligible for a limit on liability to actwal rather than treble
damages were damages to be awarded in any civil antitrust
action under S law based on conduct covered by the
agresment and for relief from potential joint and several liability
in connection with such civil antitrust action, subject o our
satisfying the DO and the court presiding over the civil litigation
of our cooperation. The conditional leniency and conditional
immunity grants do not otherwize affect the ability of private
parties to assert civil claims against us.

LIBOR and other benchmark-related cwl litigation: A number
of putative class actions and other actions are pending in the
federal courts in New York against UBS and numerous other
banks on behalf of parties who transacted in certain interast rate
benchmark-based derivatives. Also pending in the US and in
other urisdictions are actions asserting losses related to vanous
products whose interest rates were linked to LIBOR and other
benchmarks, including adjustable rate mortgages, preferred and
debt securities, bonds pledged as collateral, koans, depository
accounts, investments and other interest-bearing instruments.
All of the complsint: allege manipulation, through varous
means, of wvarious benchmark interest rates, induding USD
LIEOR, Euroyen TIBOR, Yen LIEOR, EURIBOR, CHF LIBOR, GBP
LIBOR, USD ISDAFIX rates and other benchmark rates, and seek
unspecified compensatory and other damages under warying
legal thearies.

In 2013, the US district cowrt in the USD LIBOR action
dismissed the federal antitrust and racketeering claims of certain
S0 UBOR plaintiffs and a portion of their claims browght under
the CEA and state common law. Certain plaintiffs appealed the
decision to the Second Circuit, which, in May 2016, vacated the
district cowrt’s ruling finding no antitrust injury and remanded
the case back to the district court for a further determination an

whether plaintiffs have antitrust standing. In Decemnber 2015,
the district court again dismissed plaintiffs’ antitrust claims, this
time for lack of personal jurisdiction over UBS and other foreign
banks. In 2014, the court in one of the Euroyen TIBOR lawsuits:
dismissed certain of the plaintiff's daims, ncluding federal
antitrust claims. In 2015, the same court dismissed plaintiff's
federal racketeering claims and affirmed its previows dismiszal of
plaintiff's antitrust claims, UBS and other defendants in other
lawesuits inchuding those related to EURIBOR, CHF LIBOR, GBP
LIBOR and SIBOR hawe filed motions to dismiss. UBS has entered
into an agresment with representatives of a class of bondholders.
to settle their USD LIBOR class action. The agreement is subject
to cowrt approval.

Since September 2014, putative class actions have been filed
in federal court in Mew York and Mew Jerssy against UBS and
other financial institutions, among others, on behalf of parties
who entered into interest rate derivative transactions linked to
ISDAFEE. The complaints, which have since been consolidated
into an amended complaint, allege that the defendants
conspired to manipulate ISDAFIX rates from 1 January 2006
throwgh January 2014, in viclation of US anfitrust laws and
certain state laws, and sesk unspecified compensatory damages,
including treble damages. In March 2016, the court in the
ISDAFIX action denied in substantial part defendants’ motion to
dismiss, holding that plaintiffs have stated Sherman Act, breach-
of-contract and unjust-enrichment claims against defendants,
including UBS AG.

Government bonds: Putative dass actions have been filed in
U5 federal cowrts against UBS and other banks on behalf of
persons who participated in markets for US Treasury securities.
since 2007, The complaints generally allege that the banks
colluded with respect to, and manipulated prices of, US Treasury
securities sold at auction. They assert dlaims under the antitrust
lawes and the CEA and for unjust ennchment. The cases have
been consolidated in the SDNY. Following filimg of these
complaints, UBS and reportedly other banks are responding to
investigations and requests for information  from  various.
authorities regarding US  Treasury securities and  other
government bond trading practices. As a result of its review to
date, UBS has taken appropriate action.

With respect to addiional matters and jurisdictions not
encompassed by the settlements and onder referred to above,
our balance sheet at 31 December 2016 reflected a provision in
an amount that UBS believes to be appropriate under the
applicable accounting standard. As in the case of other matters
for which we have established provisions, the future outflow of
resources in respect of such matters cannot be determined with
certainty based on  cumently available  information  and
accordingly may ultimately prove to be substantially greater {or
may be less) than the provision that we have recognized.
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B. Swiss retrocessions

The Federal Supreme Cowrt of Switzerland ruled in 2012, in a
test case against UBS, that distribution fees paid to a firm for
distributing third-party and intra-group investment funds and
structured products must be disclosed and surrendered to dients
who have entered into a discretionary mandate agreement with
the firm, absent a valid waiver.

FIMKA& has issued a supendsory note to all Swiss banks in
respanse to the Supreme Cowrt decision. UBS has met the
FINMA requirements and has notified all potentially affected
chents.

The Supreme Court decision has resulted, and may continue
to result, n a number of chent requests for UBS o disclose and
potentially surrender retrocessions. Client requests are assessed
on a case-by-case basis. Considerations taken into account when
assessing these cases include, among others, the existence of a
discretionary mandate and whether or not the client
documentation contained a wvalid waiver with respect to
distribution fees.

Our balance sheet at 31 Decernber 2016 reflected a provision
with respect to matters described in this item & in an amount
that UBS believes to be appropriate under the applicable
accounting standard. The ultimate exposure will depend on
chient requests and the mesolution thereof, factors that are
difficult to predict and assess. Hence, as in the case of other
matters for which we have established provisions, the future
outflow of resources in respect of such matters cannot be
determined with certainty based on currently  available
information and accordingly may ulimately prove o be
substantially greater (or may be less) than the provision that we
have recognized.

7. Banco UBS Pactual tax mdemanity

Pursuant to the 2009 sale of Banco UBS Pactual 5_A. (Pactual) by
UBS to BTG Investments, LP (BTG), BTG has submitited
contractual indemnification claims that UBS estimates amount to
approximately BRL 2.6 billion, including interest and penalties,
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which is net of liabilities retained by BTG, The daims pertain
principally to several tax assessments issued by the Brazilian tax
authoities against Factual relating to the period from Decemiber
2006 through March 2009, when UBS owned Pactual. Thase
assessments are being challenged in administrative and judicial
proceedings. The majority of thess assessments relate to the
deductibility of goodwill amartization in connection with UES's
2006 acquisiion of Pactual and payments made to Pactual
employees throwgh various profit-sharing plans. In 2015, an
intermediate administrative court issued a decision that was
largely in favor of the tax authority with respect to the goodwill
amortization assessment. In May 2016, the highest level of the
administrative court agreed o review this decision on a number
of the significant issues.

8. Investigation of LUBS's rale in initial public offerings in

Hong Kaong

The Hong Komg Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) has
been conducting investigations into UBS"s roke as a sponsor of
certain initial public offerings listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. In October 2016, the SFC informed UBS that it
intends to commence action against UBS and certain UBS
employees with respect to sponsorship work in those offerings.
If such action is taken, there may be financial ramifications for
UES, including fines and obligations to pay  imvestor
compensation, and suspension of UBS's ability to provide
corporate finance advisary services n Hong Kong for a perod of
time. On 16 January 2017, a writ was filed by the SFC with
Hong Kong's High Cowrt in which UBS i named as one of six
defendants from whom the SFC is seeking compensation in an
urspecified amount for losses incurred by certain shareholders
of China Forestry Holdings Company Limited, for whom UBS
acted as a sponsor in connection with their 2009 listing
application.
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Mote 21 Other liabilities
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This Mote provides fair value measurement information for both
financial and non-financial instruments and is structured as
follonws:

a) Waluation principles

b} Waluation governance

¢} Fair value hierarchy

d} Valuation adjustments

a) Valuation principles

e} Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2

fi Level 3 instruments: valuation technigues and inputs

gl Level 3 instruments: sensitivity to changes in unobservable
nput assumptions

h} Level 2 instruments: movements during the peried

il Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received for the
sale of an asset or paid to transfer a Bability in an orderly
transaction between market participants n the princpal market
{for most advantageous market, in the absence of a principal
market) as of the messurement date. In measuring fair value,
UBS AG uwses various valuation approaches and applies a
hierarchy for prces and inputs that madmizes the use of
ohservable market data, if availabls_

All financial and non-financial assets and labilities measured
or disclosed at fair value are categorized into one of three fair
value hierarchy levels. In certain cases, the mputs used to
measure fair value may fall within different levels of the fair
value hierarchy. For disclosure purposes, the bkevel in the hisrarchy
within which the instrument is classified in its entirety is based
on the lowest level input that i significant to the position's fair
value measurement:

- Level 1 - guoted prices (unadpusted) n active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

— Level 2 - valuation technigues for which all significant inputs
are, or are based on, observabde market data; or

= Level 3 — valuation techniques for which significant inputs are
not based on observable market data,

If available, fair values are determined wsing quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market
is one in which transactions for the asset or liability take place
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing data on
an ongoing basis. Assets and liabilities that are quoted and
traded in an active market are valued at the currently quoted
price multiplied by the number of units of the instrument held.

Where the market for a financial instrument or non-financial
asset or liability is not active, fair value is established wsing a
valuation technigue, including pricing models.  Valuation
techniques involve the use of estimates, the extent of which
depends on the complexity of the instrument and the availability
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of market-based data. Valuation adpustments may be made to
allowe for additional factors, including model, iquidity, credit and
funding risks, which are not exphicitly captured within the
valuation technigue, but which would nevertheless be
considered by market participants when establishing a price. The
limitations inherent in a particular waluation technigue are
considered in the determination of an asset or liability's
classification within the fair value higrarchy

Many cash instruments and over-the-counter (OTC) derivative
confracts have bad and offer prices that can be observed in the
marketplace. Bid prices reflect the highest price that a party is
willing to pay for an asset. Offer prices represent the lowest
price that a party is willimg to accept for an asset. In general,
long positions are measured at a bid price and short positions at
an offer price, reflecting the prices at which the instruments
could be transferred under normal market conditions, Offsetting
postions in the same financial mstrument are marked at the
mid-price within the bid-offer spread.

Generally, the unit of account for a financial instrument is the
individual instrument, and UBS AG applies valuation adjustments.
at an individual instrument level, consistent with that unit of
account. However, if certain conditions are met, UBS AG may
estimate the fair value of a portfolic of financial assets and
liakalities with substantially similar and offsetting risk expasures.
on the basis of the net open risks.

For transactions where the waluation techmigue used to
mieasure fair value requires significant inputs that are not based
on observable market data, the financial instrument is initially
recognized at the transaction price. This mitial recognition
amount may differ from the fair value obtained using the
valuation technigue. Any such difference & deferred and not
recognized in the income statement and refemed to as deferred
day-1 profit or loss.

— Refer to Mote 22d for more information
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b) Valuation governance

UBS AG's fair value measurement and model govemance
framework includes numerous controls and other procedural
safeguards that are intended to madmize the quality of fair
value measurements reported in the financial statements. Mew
products and waluation techniques must be reviewed and
approved by key stakeholders from risk and finance control
functions. Responsibility for the ongoing measurement of
financial and non-financial instruments at fair value resides with
the business divisions. In camying out their waluation
responsibilities, the businessss are required to consider the
availability and quality of external market data and to provide
justification and rationale for their fair value estimates.

Fair value estimates are validated by risk and finance control
functions, which are independent of the business divisions.

Independent price verification & performed by finance through
benchmarking the business divisions' fair value estimates with
observable market prices and other independent sources.
Controls and governance are in place to ensure the quality of
third-party pricing sources where used. For instruments where
valuation models are used to determine fair value, independent
valuation and model contral groups within finance and sk
evaluate UBS AG's models on a regular basis, including valuation
and model input parametars as well as pricing. As a result of the
valuation controls employed, valuation adjustments may be
made to the business divisions’ estimates of fair walue to align
with independent market data and the relevant acoounting
standard.
—+ Refer to Mote 22d for more information
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MNote 22 Fair value measurement (continued)

) Fair value hierarchy

The table below provides the fair value hierarchy classification of  including significant valuation inputs and assumptions used, and
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair  the factors determining their classification within the fair value
value. The narrative that follows describes the different product  hisrarchy.

types, valuation techniques used in measuring their fair value,

Determination of fair values from quoted market prices or valuation techniques?
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MNote 22 Fair value measurement (continued)

Determination of fair values from quoted market prices or valuation techniques {continued)!
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Valuation techniques

Valuation techniques are wsed to value positions for which a
market price is not available from market sources. This includes
certain bess liquid debt and equity instruments, certain exchange-
traded derivatives and all derivatives transacted in the OTC
market. UBS AG uses widely recognized valuation techniques for
determining the fair wvalue of financial and non-financal
instruments that are not actively traded and quoted. The most
frequently applied valuation technigues include discounted valus
of espected cazsh flows, relative value and option pricing
methodokogies.

Discounted wvalue of expected cash flows is a waluation
technique that measwures fair value using estimated expected
future cash flows from assets or labilities and then discounts
thiese cash flows wsing a discount rate or discount margin that
reflects the credit and / or funding spreads required by the
market for mstruments with similar risk and liquidity profiles to
produce a present value. When wsing such valuation technigues,
expected future cash flows are estimated using an ohserved or
implied market price for the future cash flows or by using
industry standard cash flow projection models. The discount
factors within the calculation are generated wsing imdustry
standard yield curve modeling technigues and models.

Relative value madels measure fair value based an the market
prices of equivalent or comparable assets or liabdlities, making
adjustments for differences between the characteristics of the
pbserved instrument and the instrument being valued.

Option pricing madels incorporate assumptions regarding the
behavior of future price movements of an underlying referenced
asset or assets o generate a probability-weighted future
ewpected payoff for the option. The resulting probability-
weighted expected payoff is then discounted using discount
factors generated from ndustry standard yield curve modeling
techniques and models. The option pricdng model may be
implemented using a cosed-form analytical formula or other
mathematical technigues (e.g., binomial tree or Maonte Carlo
simulation).

Where available, valuation techniques wuss market-observable
assumptions and inputs. if such data is not available, mputs may
be derived by reference to similar assets in active markets, from
recent prices for comparable transactions or from  other
ohservable market data. In such cases, the inputs selected are
based on historical experience and practice for similar or
analogous instruments, derivation of input levels based on
similar products with observable price levels and knowledge of
current market conditions and valuation approaches.

For more complex nstruments and instruments not traded in
an active market, fair values may be estimated uwsing a
combination of observed transaction prices, consensus pricing
services and relevant quotes. Consideration is given to the
nature of the quotes (e.g., indicative or firm} and the relationship
of recently evidenced market activity to the prices provided by
consensus  pricing  services. UBS AG abo  uses internally
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developed models, which are typically based on valuation
methods and techniques recognized as standard within the
industry.

Azsumptions and inputs used in valuation technigues include
benchmark interest rate curves, credit and funding spreads used
in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, equity
index prices, foreign exchamge rates, levels of market vodlatility
and comelation. Refer to Mote 22f for more information. The
discount curves used by UBS AG mcorporate the funding and
credit characteristics of the instruments to which they are
applied.

Financial instruments exduding derivatives: product
description, valuation and classification in the fair value
hierarchy

Government bills and bonds

Product description: government bills and bonds include fixed-
rate, floating-rate and inflation-linked bills and bonds issued by
soversign governments.

‘ialuation: these instruments are generally valued using prices
abtained directly from the market. Instruments that cannot be
priced directly wsing active market data are walued using
discounted cash flow waluation techniques that incorporate
market data for similar government instruments.

Fair value hierarchy: gowvernment bills and bonds are generally
traded in active markets with prices that can be obtained directly
from these markets, resulting in dassification as Level 1, while
the remaining pasitions are classified as Level 2.

Corporate and mumicipal bonds

Product description: corporate bonds incdude senior, junior and
subordinated debt ssuwed by corporate entities. Municipal bonds
are issued by state and local governments. While meost
instruments are standard fized- or floating-rate securities, some
may have mare complex coupon or embedded optiaon features.

Vialuation: corporate and munidipal bonds are generally
valued using prices obtained directly from the market for the
secunty, or similar securities, adjusted for seniority, maturity and
liguidiity. When prices are not available, instruments are valued
using diecounted cash flow valuation techniques incorporating
the credit spread of the sswer or similar issuers. For convertible
bonds where no directly comparatble price is available, Esuances.
may be priced using a convertible bond model,

Fair value hierarchy: corporate and municipal bonds are
generally classified as Level 1 or Level 2 depending on the depth
of trading activity behind price sources, Level 3 instruments have
no suitable pricing information available and ako cannot be
referenced to other securities Bssued by the same issuer.
Therefare, such instruments are measured based on price levels
for similar issuers adjusted for relative tenar and sswer quality.
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Traded loans and loans designated at fair valus

Product description: these instruments indude ficed-rate |oans,
corparate loans, recently originated commerdial real estate loans
and contingent lending transactions.

Waluation: loans are valeed directly using market prices that
reflect recent wransactions or quoted dealer prices where
available. Where no market price data are available, loans are
valued using relative value benchmarking using pricing derived
from debt instruments im comparable enfities or different
products in the same enfity, or by using a credit default swap
valuation technique, which requires inputs for credit spreads,
credit recovery rates and interest rates. Recently originated
commercial real estate loans are measured using a securitization
approach based on rating agency guidelines. The valuation of
the contingent lending transactions is dependent on actuarial
martality bevels and actuarial ife insurance paolicy lapse rates,
hortality and lapse rate assumptions are based on external
actuarial estimations for large homogeneous pools, and
contingencies are derived from a range relative to the actuanially
expected amount.

Fair walue hierarchy: instruments with suitabdy desep and liquid
pricing information are classified as Lewel 2, while any positions
requiring the use of valuation technigues, or for which the price
sources have insufficient trading depth, are classified as Level 3.

Investment fund wnits

Product description: investment fund wnits are pools of assets,
generally equity instruments and bonds, broken down to
redeemable units.

Valwation: nvestment fund wnits are  predominanthy
exchange-traded, with readily available quoted prices in liquid
markets. Where market prices are not available, fair value may
be measured wsing net asset values (MAY), taking into acoount
any restrictions impossd upon redemption.

Fair walue hierarchy: listed wnits are cassified as Level 1,
provided there is sufficient frading activity to justify active
market classification, while other positions are classified as Level
2. Positions for which NAY & not available or which are not
redesmable at the measurement date or shortly thersafter are
dlassified as Level 3.

Asset-backed securities (ABS)

Product description: ABS indude residential mortgage-backed
securities  (RMBS), commercial mortgage-backed  securities
[CMBS), other asset-backed securities (ABS) and collateralized
debt obligations {C0O) and are nstruments generally issued
through the process of securitization of underlying interest-
bearing assets.

Waluation: for lquid securities, the valuation process will use
trade and price data, updated for movements m market levels
between the time of trading and the time of valuation. Less
liquid instruments are measured wsing discounted expected cash
flowes incorporating price data for instruments or indices with

similar risk profiles. Inputs to discounted expected cash flow
techiniques inchude asset prepayment rates, discount margin or
discount yields, asset default rates and asset loss on default
sEvErity.

Fair value hierarchy: RMBS, CMBS and ABS are generally
classified as Llewel 2. Howewsr, if significant inputs are
unobservable, or if market or fundamental data are not
available, they are classified as Level 3.

Equity mstruments
Product description: equity instruments incdude stocks and
shares, private equity pasitions and units held in hedge funds.

Waluation: histed equity instruments are generally valuaed using
prices obtained directly from the market. Unlisted equity
haldings, induding private equity positions, are initially marked
at their transaction price and are revalued when reliable
evidence of price movement becomes available or when the
position = deemed to be impaired. Fair valwe for units held in
hedge funds & measured based on their published NAY, taking
into account any restrictions mposad upon redemption.

Fair value hierarchy: the majority of equity securties are
actively traded on public stock exchanges where quoted prices
are readily and regularly available, resulting o Lewel 1
classification. Units held in hedge funds are classified as Level 2,
exrept for positions for which published NAY is not available or
which are not redeemable at the meassurement date ar shorthy
thereafter, in which case such positions are dassified as Level 3.

Financial assets for unit-inked imvestment contracts

Product description: unit-inked investment contracts allow
investors to invest in a pool of assets through Eswed investment
unifs.

Waluation: the majority of assets are listed on exchanges and
fair values are determined using quoted prices.

Fair value hierarchy: most assets are dassified as Level 1 if
actively traded, ar Level 2 if trading is not active. However,
instruments for which prices are not readily available are
classified as Level 3.

Structured (reverse) repurchase agreements

Product description: structured {reverse) repurchase agreements.
are sacurities purchased under resale agreements and securities
sold under repurchase agreements,

Waluation: these nstruments are valued wsing discounted
expected cash flow technigques. The discount rate applied is
based on funding curves that are specific to the collateral
eligibility terms for the contract in guestion.

Fair value hierarchy: collateral terms for these positions are
not standard and therefore funding spread levels used for
valuation purposss cannot be observed in the markst. As a
result, these positions are mostly classified as Level 3.
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Financial liabilities designated at fair value

Product description: debt instruments, primarily comprised of
equity-, rates- and credit-linked issued notes, which are held at
fair value under the fair value option. These instruments are
tailored specifically to the holder's risk or investment appetite
with structured coupons or payoffs.

Valuation: the risk management and the waluation
approaches for these instruments are dlosely aligned with the
equivalent derivatives business and the underlying risk, and the
valuation technigues used for this component are the same as
the relevant valuation techniques described below. For example,
equity-linked notes should be referenced to equity / index
contracts and credit-linked notes should be referenced to credit
derivative contacts.

Fair value hierarchy: observability is closely aligned with the
equivalent derivatives business and the underlying risk.

— Refer to Mote 18 for more infarmation on finandal liabilities

designated at fair value

— Refer to Mote 22d for more information on own credit

adjustments related to finandal liabilities designated st fair
value

Amounts due under unit-linked investment contracts
Product description: the financial kability represents the amounts
due to unit holders.

Waluation: the fair values of investment contract liabilities are
determined by reference to the fair valus of the cormesponding
assets,

Fair value hierarchy: the liabilities themsslves are not actively
traded, but are mainly referenced to instruments that are actively
traded and are therefore classified as Lavel 2.

Derivative instruments: product description, valuation and
dassification in the fair value hierarchy

The curves used for discounting expected cash flows in the
valuation of collateralized derivatives reflect the funding terms
associated with the relevant collateral arrangement for the
instrument being valued. These collateral amangements differ
acrass counterparties with respect to the eligible currency and
interest terms of the collateral. The majority of collateralized
derivatives are measured wsing a discount curve that is based on
funding rates derved from overnight interest in the cheapest
gligibde currency for the respective counterparty collateral
agreement.

Uncollateralized and partially collateralized derivatives are
discounted using the LIBOR {or eguivalent) curve for the curmency
of the instrument. &s described in Mote 22d, the fair value of
uncollateralized and partially collateralized derivatives is then
adjusted by CVA, DVA and PVA as applicable, to reflect an
estimation of the effect of counterparty credit risk, UBS AG's
own credit risk and funding costs and benefits.
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Interest rate contracts

Product description: interest rate swap contracts include interest
rate swaps, basis swaps, cross-curmency swaps, inflation swaps
and interest rate forwards, often referred to as forward-rate
agreements (FRA). Interest rate option contracts indude caps
and floors, swaptions, swaps with complex payoff profiles and
other more complex interest rate options.

Valuation: interest rate swap contracts are walued by
estimating future interest cash flows and discounting those cash
flowes using a rate that reflects the appropriate funding rate for
the position being measured. The vield curves used to estimate
future index levels and discount rates are generated using
market standard yield curve models wEng mterest rates
associated with curment market activity. The key inputs to the
models are interest rate swap rates, FRA rates, short-term
interest rate futures prices, basis swap spreads and inflation
swap rates. Interest rate option contracts are valued using
various market standard option models, wsing inputs that
include interest rate yield curves, inflation curves, volatilities and
conrelations. The wolatility and correlation inputs within the
models are implied from market data based on market obssrved
prices for standard option instruments wading within the
market. Option models used to value maore exotic products have
a number of model parameter inputs that require calibration to
enable the exotic model to price standard option instruments to
the price levels observed in the market. When the maturity of
the interest rate swap o option contract exceeds the term for
which standard market quotes are observable for a significant
input parameter, the contracts are walued by extrapolation from
the last observable point wsing standard assumptions or by
reference to another observable comparable input parameter to
represent a suitable proxy for that portion of the term.

Fair value hierarchy: the majority of interest rate swaps are
classified as Level 2 a5 the standard market contracts that form
the inputs for yield curve models are generally traded in active
and observable markets. Options are generally treated as Level 2
as the calibration process enables the model output to be
validated to active market levels. Models calibrated in this way
are then wsed to revalue the portfolio of both standard options
as well as more exotic products. In most cases, there are active
and ohservable markets for the standard market instruments
that form the inputs for yield curve models as well as the
finandial instruments from which volatility and cosrelation inputs
are derived. Exotic options for which apporopriate volatility or
correlation input levels cannot be implied from observable
market data are classified as Level 3. Interest rate swap or ootion
contracts are dassified as Level 3 when the term exceeds
standard market chservable quotes.
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Credit derivative contracts

Product description: a credit derivative i a financial instrument
that transfers credit risk related to a single underlying entity, a
portfolic of underlying entities or a pool of secuwritized
referenced assets. Credit derivative products indude credit
default swaps (CDS) on single names, indices, bespoke portfolios
and secunitized products, plus first to default swaps and certain
total return swaps (TRS).

‘alwation: credit derivative contracts are valued using industry
standard models based primarily on market oredit spreads,
upfrant pricing points and implied recovery rates. Where a
derivative credit spread & not directly available it may be derved
from the price of the reference cash bond. Comelation is an
additional input for certain portfolio credit derivatives. Asset-
backed credit derivatives are walued using a similar valuation
technique to the underlying security with an adjustment to
reflect the funding differences between cash and synthetic form.,
Inputs include prepayment rates, default rates, loss severity,
discount margin { rate.

Fair value hisrarchy classification: single entity and portfolic
credit derivative contracts are classified as Level 2 when credit
spreads, recovery rates and correlations are determined from
actively traded observable market data. Where the underbing
reference namels) are not actively traded and the correlation
cannot  be directly mapped to actively traded tranche
instruments, these contracts are classified as Level 3. Asset-
backed credit derivatives follow the characteristics of the
underhying security and are therefore distributed across Level 2
and Level 3.

Foreign exchange contracts

Prosduct description: this includes open spot and forward foreign
exchange (FX) contracts and OTC FX option contracts, OTC Fx
option contracts include standard call and put options, options
with multiple exercise dates, path-dependent options, options
with averaging features, opfions with discontinuous payaff
characteristics, options on a number of underlying FX rates and
multi-dimensional FX option contracts, which hawe a
dependency on multiple FX pairs,

‘aluation: open spot FX contracts are valued using the FX
spot rate observed im the market Forward FX confracts are
valued using the FX spot rate adjusted for forward pricing points
ohserved from standard market-based sources. OTC F¥ option
contracts are valued usimg market standard option waluation
models. The models used for shorter-dated options (ie,
maturities of five years or less) tend to be different than those
used for longer-dated options because the models needed for
longer-dated OTC FX contracts require additional consideration
of interest rate and FX rate interdependency. Inputs o the
option wvaluation models include spot FX rates, FX forward

points, FX volatilities, interest rate yield ocurees, interest rate
volatilities and comelations. The inputs for wolatlity and
correlation are implied through the calibration of observed prices
for standard option contracts trading within the market. The
valuation for multiple-dimensional FX options uses a multi-local
volatility model, which is calibrated to the obssrved FX volatilities
for all relevant FX pairs.

Fair value hierarchy: the markets for both FX spot and FX
forward pricing points are both actively traded and observable
and therefore such FX contracts are generally classified as Level
2. A significant proportion of OTC FX option contracts are
classified as Level 2 as inputs are derived mostly from standard
market contracts traded n active and observable markets. OTC
F¥ opfion contracts classified as Level 3 include multiple-
dimensional FX options and long-dated FX exofic option
contracts where there is no active market from which to derive
volatility or comslation inputs. The inputs used to value these
OTC FX option contracts are caloculated wsing consensus pricing
services without an underlying principal market, historical asset
prices aor by extrapolation.

Equity / index contracts

Product description: equity / index contracts are equity forward
confracts and equity option confracts. Equity option contracts
include market standard single or basket stock or index call and
put options as well as equity option contracts with mare
complex features.

Waluation: equity forward confracts hawe a single stock ar
index underlying and are valued wsing markst standard madels.
The key inputs to the models are stock prices, estimated
dividend rates and equity funding rates (which are implied from
prices of forward contracts observed in the market). Estimated
cash flows are then discounted wsing market standard
dizcounted cash flow models wsing a rate that reflects the
appropriate funding rate for that portion of the portfolio. When
no market data is available for the instrument matwrity, they are
valwed by extrapolation of available data, wse of historical
dividend data, or use of data for a related equity Equity option
confracts are valued using market standard models that estimate
the equity forward level as described for equity forward
confracts and incorporate inputs for stock wolatility and for
correlation betwesn stocks within a basket. The probability-
weighted expected option payoff generated i then discounted
using market standard discounted cash flow modeks wsing a rate
that reflects the appropriate funding rate for that portion of the
partfalio. When volatility, forward or comelation inputs are not
available, they are valued using extrapolation of available data,
histarical dividend, correlation or volatility data, or the equivalent
data for a related equity.
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Fair walue hierarchy: as inputs are derived maostly from
standard market contracts waded in active and observable
markets, a significant proportion of equity foreward contracts are
classified as Level 2. Equity option positions for which inputs are
derived from standard market contracts traded in active and
observable markets are also cdassified as Level 2. Level 3
pasitions are those for which volatility, forward or correlation
inputs are not cbservable.

Commodity contracts
Product descripion: commadity dervative contracts include
forward, swap and cption contracts on individual commodities
and on commaodity indices,

Valuation: commodity forward and swap contracts are
measuwred wsing market standard models that wse market

d) Valuation adjustments

forward levels on standard instruments. Commodity option
confracts are measured using market standard option models
that estimate the commodity forward level as described for
comimodity forward and swap contracts, incorporating inputs for
the wolatility of the underlying index or commodity For
commodity options on baskets of commodities or bespoke
commodity indices, the valuation technigue alo incorporates
inputs for the comelation between different commodities ar
commaodity indices.

Fair wvalue hierarchy. individual commodity contracts are
typically classified as Level 2 becauss active forward and volatility
market data are available.

— Refer to Mote 12 for more inf

inttruments

tion on derivative

The output of a valuation technigue is abways an estimate of a
fair value that cannot be measured with complete certainty. &s a
result, valuations are adjusted, where appropriate and when
such factors would be considered by market participants in
estimating fair value, to reflect closs-out costs, credit exposure,
madel-driven waluation uncertainty, funding costs and benefits,
trading restrictions and other factors. Valuation adjustments are
an important component of fair value for assets and liabilities
that are measured wsing valuation techniques. Such adjustments
are applied tw reflect wncertainties within the fair value
measuwrement process, to adjust for an identified model
simplification or to incorporate an aspect of fair walue that
requires an owerall portfolic assessment rather than an
evaluation based an an individual instrument level characteristic.

Day-1 resarves

For new transactions where the waluation technique used to
measure fair value requires significant inputs that are not based
on observable market data, the financial instrument is initially

Deferred day-1 profit or loss

recognized at the transaction price. The transaction price may
differ from the fair value obtained using a valuation technique
where any such difference s deferred and not  initially
recognized in the income statement. These day-1 profit or loss
reserves  are  reflected, where appropriate, a5 valuation
adjustments.

The table below summarizes the changes in deferred day-1
profit or loss reserves during the respective period.

Deferred day-1 profit or loss related to financial instruments
other than financial assets available for sale is released into Net
trading income when pricing of equivalent products or the
underlying parameters become observable or when  the
transaction is closed out.

Deferred day-1 profit or loss related to finandal assets
available for sale is released into Other comprehensive income
when pricing of equivalent products or the underying
parameters become observable and is released into Other
ircorme when the assets are sold.

Far the yeer ended
[, A6 ERRFAR NA214
Beanceatthe beginmingedtheyesr e - n.L
Prolit / (Jass) defersed on mew rensactions 54
]
Batance at the end of the yesr m
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Chwen credit

In addition to considering the valuation of the derivative risk
companent, the valuation of finandal liabilities designated at fair
value alsa requires consideration of the funded component and
spedfically the own credit component of fair value., Own credit
risk is reflected in the valuation of UBS AG's fair value option
liabilities where this component is considered relevant for
valuation purposss by UBS AG's counterparties and other
market participants. Howewer, own credit risk is not reflected in
thie valuation of UBS AG's labilities that are fully collateralized or
for other obligations for which it is established market practice
nat to indude an own credit component.

The own credit presentation requirements of IFRS 9, Anancial
Instruments, were adopted as of 1 January 2016, From this date
ormward, changes in the fair walue of finandal liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss related to own
credit are recognized in Other comprehensive income directly
within Retained Earmings. As UBS AG does not hedge changes in
own credit arising on financial liabilities designated at fair value,
presenting own credit within Other comprahensive moome does

recognized in Other comprehensive income will not be
reclassified to  the income statement i futwee  periods
Comparative period information was not restated.

Own oredit is estimated using an own credit adjustment curve
{OCA), which incorporates observable market data, including
market-observed secondary prices for UBS AG senior debt, UBS
AG credit default swap (CDS) spreads and senior debt curves of
peers. The table below summarizes the effects of own credit
adjustments related to finandal Rabilities designated at fair
value, The change in unrealized own credit for the period ended
consists of changes in fair value that are attributable to the
change in UBS AG's credit spreads, as well as the effect of
changes in fair values attributable to factors other than credit
spreads, such as redemptions, effects from time decay and
changes in interest and other market rates. Realized own credit
is recognized when an instrument with an asocated unrealized
own credit adjustment is repurchased prior to the contractual
maturity date. Life-to-date amounts reflect the cumulative
unirealized chamge since initial recognition.

— Refer to Mote 18 for mone information on financial labilities

not create of increase an accounting mismatch in the income designated at fair vahse
statement. The unrealized and any realized own credit
Orwen credit adjustments on financial liabilities designated at fair value
Faor the yaar ended
Inchaded in Othes
comprehesive
incose  Inchuded in Kt trading incose
CHF millin 31216 31215 EIRERE]
Pacognioed duing the ser S SR —
Reaslized i § fleeia) 18
Ukerefinad gain { (lost) {138 553 21z
Tkl i § fless), betore tax {120
B of
CHF million 31216 31215 EIRERE]
Resconniized on the balance sheut s of the nd of the yesr:
Uereabized life- to-dite gain ! (oss) 41 287 (302}
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Credit valuation adjustments

I order to measure the fair value of OTC dervative instruments,
incleding funded derivative instruments which are dassified as
Financial assets designated at fair walwe, credit waluation
adjustments (CVA) are necessary to reflect the cradit risk of the
counterparty inherent in these instruments. This amount
represents the estimated fair value of protection required to
hedge the counterparty credit risk of such instruments. A CVA B
determined for each counterparty, considening all exposures to
that counterparty, and is dependent ocn the expected future
value of exposres, default probabilites and recovery rates,
applicable collateral or netting arrangements, break clawses and
other contractual factors.

Funding valuation adjustments
Funding waluation adjustments (PVA) reflect the costs and
benefits of funding associated with uncollateralized and partially
collateralized  derivative receivables and payables and are
cakculated as the valuation effect from moving the discownting
of the uncollateralized derivative cash flows from LIBOR o OCA
using the Cva frameweork.

An FVA is ako applied to collateralized derivative assets in
cases whiere the collateral cannot be sold or repledged.

Debit valuation adjustments

A debit valuation adjustment (DWVA) is estimated to incorporate
own credit in the valuation of derivatives, effectively consistent
with the CvA framework, DVA i determined for each
counterparty, considering all exposures with that counterparty

Valuation adjustments on financial instruments

and taking into account collateral netting agreements, expected
future mark-to-market movements and UBS AG's credit default

spreads.

Orther valuation adjustments
Instruments that are measured as part of a portfolio of
combined long and short positions are valued at mid-market
levels to ensure consistent waluation of the long and short
comiponent risks. A liguidity valuation adjustment is then made
to the overall net long or shiort exposure to move the fair value
to bid or offer as appropriate, reflecting current levels of market
liguidity. The bid-offer spreads wsed in the calculation of this
valuation adjustment are obtained from market transactions and
other relevant sources and are updated periodically.
Uncertainties associated with the use of model-based
valuations are incorporated into the measurement of fair value
throwgh the use of model reserves. These reserves reflect the
amounts that UBS AG estimates should be deducted fram
valuations produced directly by models to  imcorparate
uncertainties in the relevant modeling assumgtions, in the model
and market inputs used, or in the calibration of the model
output to adjust for known model defidencies. In arriving at
these estimates, UBS AG considers a range of market practicss,
including how it believes market participants would assess these
uncertainties. Model reserves are reassessad periodically n light
of data from market transactions, consensus pricing services and
ather relevant sources.
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Note 22 Fair value measurement (continued)
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g) Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2

The amouwnts provided below reflect transfers between Level 1
and Level Z for instruments that were held for the entire
reporting period.

Assets totaling approsimately CHF 0.2 billion, which were
mainly comprised of finandal assets held for wading, and
lisbilities totaling approdmately CHE 0.1 billian, which were
primarily comprised of financial Eabilities held for trading, were
transfermed from Level 2 to Level 1 during 2016, generally due to
increased levels of trading activity observed within the market.

f) Level 3 instruments: valuation techniques and inputs

Assets totaling approamately CHF 0.4 billion, which werne
mainly comprised of finandal asets available for sale, largely
corporate and municipal bonds, and financial assets held for
trading, predominantly equity instruments and corporate and
municipal bonds, were transferred from Level 1 to Lewel 2 during
2016, generally due to diminished levels of trading activity
abserved within the market. Transfers of financial Babilities from
Level 1 to Level 2 during 2016 were not significant.

The table below presents material Level 3 assets and liabilities
together with the waluation techniques used to measure fair
value, the significant inputs used in the valuation technique that
are considered wnobservable and a range of values for those
unobsenvable inputs.

The range of values represents the highest and lowest level
input wsed in the wvaluation techniques. Thersfore, the range
does not reflect the level of uncertainty regarding a particular

input, but rather the different underlying charactenstics of the
relevant assets and liabilities. The ranges will therefare vary from
period to pericd and parameter to parameter based on
characteristics of the instruments held at each balance shest
date. Further, the ranges of unchsemable inputs may differ
across other finandal institutions dus to the diversity of the
products in each firm's inventary.

Valuation technigues and inputs used in the fair value measurement of Level 3 assets and liabilities

Fair walue Range of inputs
Aty Lighiliges Significant EIRFAT ETRFR
Valustion undbasrvable weighted weighted
CHF lllian ILIZAE IAZNE ILAZIE INAZNS  pechiguels) ingsie]* low  high  gwesge?  low  high swerage?  undd
Fingncial ascets hedd for eading | Trading portholia lishifties, Financial sssess / iabilifies dasignated at fair vahe and Finsnel ascets velable forsale
Conprrata and piniedl Relsivevaheta Bond price
dood e RE 0T 00 G meket comparalie WMHI L s B0 o pant
Triaglect iave, Sy
deiirnated &t i vale
Joan covmimants aed’ Reelative valoe 1o
ey 2g 26 o 80 mackel comparable  Loan price equivalent 39 103 34 5 100 93 painty
Discounted barsis,
N __pected e oy Crosfl sprisd AT S T E— ]
" Market compersble
and securitization
model Discount mésgin 0 i 2 1 14 I %
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MNote 22 Fair value measurement (continued)

Valuation technigues and inputs used in the fair value measurement of Level 3 assets and liabilities {continued)

Faie vallee Range of inputs
Aty Liskilies Significant AL AL
. Velussion unckazrvable
CHF bl IALIE 3AZE 314296 311295 et i i low  high - low high ER—
Replacernent yalues
Valatiiity of imenest
dengawonsy | 035 BI85 07 Optowmodd s T T T . E—. ]
Rals-to-rale
axmaemsass e 12t s e et st s s s s s S L NN NSNS . N . SO—. .1
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expected canh flows  rane? 0 a %
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experted canh flow
based an modebed
delslis and baiy
el GEnVaNS Coniracts L3 13 j i) L3 recoveriss Crufil sprasdy o 7H 1 1,163 paints
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%
*
*
%
*
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*®
*
coneion
12 58 3 a9 %
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Significant unobservable inputs in Level 3 positions

Thits section discusses the significant unobsenable inputs wusaed in
the valuation of Level 3 instruments and assesses the potential
effect that a change in each unobservable input in isolation may
have on a fair value measurement, including information to
fadilitate an understanding of factors that give rize to the input
ranges shown. Relationships  between observable and
unohservable imputs have not been included in the summary
betowy,

Baond price equivalent

Where market prices are not available for a bond, fair value is
measured by comparison with observable pricing data from
similar  instruments. Factors  considered  when  selecting
omparable instruments include credit quality, maturity and
industry of the isswer. Fair value may be measured either by a
direct price comparison or by comversion of an instrument price
into & yield (either as an owtright yield or as a spread to LIBOR).
Bond prices are expressed as points of the nominal, where 100
represents a fair value equal to the nominal valee (ie., par).

For corporate and municipal bonds, the range represents the
ramge of prices from reference Eswances used in determining fair
value. Bonds priced at O are distressed to the point that no
recavery is expected, while prices significantly in excess of 100 or
par relate to inflation-linked or structured issuances that pay a
oupon N excess of the market benchmark as of the
measurement date.

For credit derivatives, the bond price range represents the
ramge of prices used for reference nstruments that are typically
converted to an equivalent yield or credit spread as part of the
valuation process.

Loan price equivalenit

Where market prices are not awailable for a waded loan, fair
value is measured by comparison with cbservable pricing data
for similar instruments. Factors considered when  selecting
comparable instruments include industry segment, collateral
quality, maturity and issuer-specific covenants. Fair value may be
measured either by a direct price comparison or by conversion of
an instrument price into a yield. The range represents the range
of prices derived from reference issuances of a similar credit
quality used in measuring fair value for loans classified as Level
3. Loans priced at O are distressed to the point that no recovery
is expected, while a current price of 100 represents a loan that is
expected to be repaid in full.

Credit spread

Waluation models for many credit derivatives require an input for
the credit spread, which is a reflection of the credit quality of the
associated referenced underlying. The credit spread of a
particular security is quoted in relation to the yield on a

benchmark sscurity or reference rate, typically either US Treasury
or LIBOR, and i generally expressed in terms of basis points. An
increase / (decrease) in credit spread will increase / (decrease) the
value of credit protection offered by CDS and other credit
dervative products. The income statement effect from such
changes depends on the nature and direction of the paositions
held. Credit spreads may be negative where the asset is more
creditworthy than the benchmark against which the spread is
caloulated. A wider credit spread represents  decreasing
creditworthiness, The ranges represents a diverse set of
underlyings, with the lower end of the range repressnting
credits of the highest quality (e.q., approximating the sk of
LIBOR) and the upper end of the range representing greater
levels of credit risk.

Discount margin (D)

The DM spread represents the discount rates used to present
value cash flows of an asset to reflect the market return required
for wncertainty in the estimated cash flows. DM spreads are a
rate of rates applied on top of a floating index (e.g., LIBOR) to
dizcount expected cash flows. Generally, a decrease / (increass)
in the wnobservable input in isolation would result in a
significanthy higher / {kower) fair value.

The different ranges represent the different discount rates
across boans and credit derivatives. The high end of the range
relates 1o securities that are priced very bow within the market
relative to the expected cash flow schedule. This indicates that
the market is pricing an increased sk of credit los into the
security that is greater than what & being captured by the
expected cash flow generation process. The low ends of the
ranges are typical of funding rates on better quality instruments.

Funding spread

Structured financing transactions are valued wsing symthetic
funding curves that best represent the assets that are pledged as
collateral for the transactions. They are not representative of
where UBS AG can fund itself on an unsecured basis, but
provide an estimate of where UBS AG can source and deploy
secured funding with counterparties for a given type of
collateral. The funding spreads are expressed in terms of basis
points over or wnder LIBOR, and if funding spreads widen, this
increases the effect of discownting.

A small proportion of structured debt instruments and non-
structured fixed-rate bonds within financial liabilities designated
at fair valwe had an exposure to funding spreads that was langer
in duration than the actively traded market.
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MNote 22 Fair value measurement (continued)
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Violatility

Vdatility measures the vaniability of future prices for a particular
instrument and is generally expressed as a percentage, where a
higher number reflects a more volatile instrument for which
future price movermnents are more likely to ocour. The minimum
level of volatility s 0% and there i no theoretical maximum.
Vodatility is a key input into option models, where it & uwsad to
derive a probability-based distribution of future prices for the
underlying instrument. The effect of volatility on indiidual
pasithons within the portfolio is driven primarily by whether the
option contract is a bang or short position. In most cases, the fair
value of an option increases as a result of an increase in volatility
and is reduced by a decrease in volatility. Generally, volatility
wsed in the measurement of fair value is derved from active
market option prices (referred to as implied volatility). A key
feature of implied volatility is the volatility “smile” or "skew,”
which represents the effect of pricing options of different option
strikes at different implied valatility levels.

Caorrelation

Comelation measures  the  inter-relationship  between  the
movements of two variables, It is expressed as a percentage
between -=100% and +100%, where +100% represents
perfectly corelated variables (meaning a movement of one
variable i associated with a movement of the other variable in
the same direction), and —100% implies the wvariables are
inversely correlated (meaning a movement of one vanable is
associated with a mowement of the other variable in the
oppasite  direction). The effect of comelation on  the
measurement of fair walue depends on the spedfic terms of the
instruments being valued, due to the range of different payaff
features within such instruments.

Rate-to-rate comelation is the comelation between interest
rates of two separate cumencies. Intra-curve correlation
represents the correlation between different tenor points of the
same yield curve. Credit index correlation reflects the implied
correlation derived from different indices across different parts of
the benchmark index capital structure. The input s particularly
important for bespoke ndex tranches. Credit pair correlation i
particularly important for first to default credit structures. Equity-
to-FX correlation is important for equity options based on a
currency different than the currency of the wnderlying stock.
Equity-to-equity cormelation is particularly important for complex
options that incorporate, in some manner, different equities in
the projected payoff. The doser the comelation s to 100%, the
mare related ane equity is to another. For example, equitiss with
a very high correlation could be from different parts of the same
corparate structure.

566

Constant prepayment rate

A prepayment rate represents the amount of wnscheduled
principal repayment for a pool of loans. The prepayment
estimate is based on a number of factors, such as historical
prepayment rates for repaid and existing loans with similar
characteristics and the future economic cutlock, considering
factars including, but not limited to, future interest rates. In
general, a significant increase / (decreass) in this unobservable
input in iscdation would result in a significantly higher 7 (lower)
fair value for bonds trading at a discount. For bonds trading at a
premium the reverse would apply, with a2 decrease in fair value
when the constant prepayment rate increases. However, in
certain cases the effect of a change in prepayment speed on
instrument price s more complicated and depends on both the
precise terms of the securitization and the position of the
instrument within the securitization capital structure.

The ramge represents the input assumption for credit
dervatives on asset-backed securities. Securities with an input of
0% typically reflect no current prepayment behavior with respect
to the underlying collateral, and with no expectation of this
changing in the immediate future, while the high range relates
to securities that are cumently experiencing high prepayments.
Different cdasses of aset-backed securities typically show
different ranges of prepayment charactenistics depending on a
combination of factors, including the borrowers” ability to
refinance, prevailing refinancing rates, and the quality or
charactenistics of the underlying loan collateral pooks.

Upfrant price points

These are a component in the price quotation of oredit derivative
contracts, whereby the owerall fair walue price level is split
between the credit spread and a companent that is quoted and
settled upfront on transacting a new contract. This latter
component is referred to as upfrant price points and represents
the difference between the oedit spread paid as protection
premium on a current contract versus a small number of
standard contracts defined by the market Distressed credit
names frequently trade and quote CDS protection only in
upfront points rather than as a running credit spread. An
increase / {decrease) in upfront points will increase ¢ (decrease)
the wvalue of credit protection offered by CDS and other credit
dervative products. The effect of increases or decreases in
upfrant price points depends on the nature and direction of the
postions held. Upfront price points may be negative where a
contract is quoting for a narrower premium than the market
standard, but are generally positive, reflecting an increass in
credit premium required by the market as creditworthiness
deteriorates.
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Loss severity £ recovery rate

The projected loss severity / recovery rate reflects the estimated
loss that will be realized given expected defaults. Loss severity is
generally applisd to collateral within asset-backed securities
while the recowery rate is the analogous pricing input for
corporate or sovereign credits. Recovery is the reverse of loss
severity, 5o a 100% recovery rate is the equivalent of a 0% loss
severity. Increases in loss severity lewvels / decreases in recovery
rates will result in lower expected cash flows into the structure
upon the default of the instruments. In general, a significant
decrease f (increase) in the bass severity in isolation would result
in significantly higher / (loweer) fair value for the respective asset-
backed securities. The effect of a change in recovery rate on a
credit derivative position will depend on whether credit
protection has been bowght or sold.

Loss severity is ultimately driven by the value recoverable from
collateral held after foreclosure occurs relative to the loan
principal and possibly wunpaid interest accrued at that point. For
credit derivatives, the loss severity range applies to derivatives on
asset-backed securities. The recovery rate range represents the
range of expected recovery levels on credit derivative contracts
within the Level 3 portfolio.

The wvolatility of interest rates reflects the range of
unobsenvable volatilities across different currendies and related
underhying interest rate levels. Volatilities of bow interest rates
tend to be much higher than volatilities of high interest rates. In
addition, different currencies may have significantly different
implied wolatilities. The wolatility of equity stocks, equity and
other indices reflects the range of underlying stock volatilities.

Constant default rate (CDR)
The CDR represents the percentage of owutstanding principal
balances in the pool that are projected to default and liquidate
and & the annualized rate of default for a grown of mortgages
or loans. The COR estimate is based on a number of factors,
such as collateral delinguency rates in the pool and the future
economic cutlook. In general, a significant increase J (decrease)
in this unobservable nput i isolation would result in
significantly boweer f (higher) cash flows for the deal (and thus
loweer £ {higher) valuations), However, different instruments
within the capital structure can react differently to changes in
the COR. Generally, subordinated bonds will decrease in valus as
CDR increasss, but for well protected senior bonds an ncrease
in CDR may cause an increase in price. In addition, the presence
of a guarantor wrap on the collateral pool of a security may
result in notes at the junior end of the capital structure
experiencing a price increase with an increase in the default rate.
The range represents the expected default percentage across
the individual instruments’ underlying collateral poals.

Equity dividend yields

The derivation of a forward price for an individual stock or index
is mmportant for measurng fair valee for forward or swap
contracts and for measuring fair value using option pricing
maodels, The relationship between the current stock price and
the forward price is based on a combination of expected future
dividend levels and payment timings, and, to a lesser extent, the
relevant funding rates apolicable to the stock in question.
Dividend yields are generally expressed as an  annualized
percentage of the share price with the lowest Emit of 0%
representing a stock that is not expected to pay any dividend.
The dividend yield and timing represents the most significant
parameter in determining fair value for instruments that are
sensitive to an equity forward price.
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g) Level 3 instruments: sensitivity to changes in unobservable input assumptions

The table below summarizes thase financial assets and liabilities
dlassified as Level 3 for which a change in one or mare of the
unchservable inputs to reflect reasonably possible altermative
assumptions would change fair value significantly, and the
estimated effect thereof.

The table shown presents the fawvorable and unfavorable
effects for each class of finandal assets and liabilities for which
the potential change in fair value is considered significant. The
sensitivity data presented represent an estimation of waluation
uncertainty bassd on reasonably possible alternative values for
Level 3 inputs at the balance sheet date and do not represent
the estimated effect of stress scenarios. Typically, these financial
assets and Rabilities are sensitive to a combination of inputs from
Levels 1-3. Although well-defined interdependencies may exist
between Levels 1-2 and Level 3 parameters (e.g., between
interest rates, which are generally Level 1 or Level 2, and
prepayments, which are generally Level 2), thess have not been
incorporated in the table. Further, direct nter-relationships
between the Lewel 3 parameters discussed below are not a
significant ebement of the valuation uncertainty.

Sensitivity data are estimated using a number of technigues,
incleding the estimation of price dispersion among different
market participants, variation in modeling approaches and

reasonably possible changes to assumptions wsed within the fair
value measurement process. The sensitivity ramges are not
always symmetrical around the fair values as the inputs used in
valuations are not ahlways precizely in the middle of the favorable
and unfavorable range.

Sensitivity data are determined at a product or parameter
level and then aggregated assuming no diversification benefit
The calculated sensitivity is applied to both the outright position
and any related Level 3 hedge. The main interdependencies
across different Level 3 products to a single unobserable nput
parameter have been induded in the basis of netting expasures.
within the calkulation. Aggregation withowt allowing  for
diversification involves the simple summation of individual results
with the total sensitivity, therefore representing the effect of all
unobservable inputs which, if moved to a reasonably possible
favaorable or unfavorable level at the same time, would result inoa
significant change in the valuation. Diversification  would
incorporate estimated comelations across different  sensitivity
results and, as such, would result in an overall sensitivity that
would be less than the sum of the ndividual component
sensitivities. UBS AG believes that, while there are diversification
benefits within the portfolios representing these sensitivity
numbers, they are not significant to this analysis.

Sensitivity of fair value measurements to dhanges in unobservable input asumptions
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Mote 22 Fair value measurement (continued)
h) Level 3 instruments: movements during the period

Significant changes in Level 3 instruments
The table on the following pages presents additional information
about Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. Level 3 assets and labilities may be hedged with
instruments classified as Level 1 or Level 2 in the fair valus
higrarchy and, as a result, realized and unrealized gains and
losses ncluded in the table may not include the effect of related
hedging activity. Furthermare, the realized and unrealized gains
and lasses presented within the table are not limited solely to
those arzing from Level 3 inputs, as valuations are generally
derived from both obsenable and unobssrvable parameters.

Aszsets and lizbilities transferred into or owt of Level 3 are
presented as if those assets or liabilities had been transferrsd at
the beginning of the year.

Assets transfemred into and out of Level 3 totaled CHF 3.5
billion and CHF 0.8 billion, respectively. Transfers into Level 3
were primarily comprized of traded loans and interest rate

EDINETOOOO
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confracts, due to decreased observability of the respective credit
spread and rates volatility inputs. Transfers out of Level 3 were
primarily comprised of traded loans and equity / index contracts,
reflecting increased ocbservability of the respective credit spread
and equity volatility inputs.

Liabilities transferred into and out of Level 3 totaled CHF 2.2
billicn and CHF 3.5 billion, respectively. Transfers into Level 2
were  primarily comprised of equitylinked isswed debt
instruments and interest rate contracts, dus W decreased
obserability of the respective equity and rates volatility inputs
used o determine the fair value of the options embedded in
these structures. Transfers out of Level 3 were primarily
comprised of eguity-linked issued debt instruments and fixed-
rate swed debt instruments resulting from changes in the
availability of the observable equity and rates volatility inputs
used o determine the fair value of the options embedded in
these structures,
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MNote 22 Fair value measurement (continued)

Movements of Level 3 instruments
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MNote 22 Fair value measurement (continued)
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i) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below provides the estimated fair values of finandal instruments not measured at fair value.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

3215

Fair valm

Totl  Lewvel | Lewsl 2 Level3

ma

oo
Respurchiase agresmants (13 (17 oo [ oo a7 9.7 oo 96 oo
oy e e T e S
Dut 1 customess 4502 4506 0 4506 [T} 4025 A0ZE 0D 402B 0D
Debrissed 7 790 8L oo 7S 26 B2 Ba4 o0 78B4 60
Db no 00 @0 .o s 511 @8 su1 04

The fair values included in the table above were calculated for
disclosure purposes  only. The valuation  technigues and
assumptions descoribed below relate only to the fair value of UBS
AG's financal instruments not measured at fair value, Other
institutions may wse different methods and assumptions for their
fair wvalue estimation, and therefore such fair value disclosures
cannot necessarily be compared from one financial institution to
anather. The following principles were  apgplied  when
determining fair value estimates for financial instruments not
measured at fair value:

— For finandal instruments with remaining maturities greater
than three months, the fair value was determined from
quoted market prices, if available.

= Where guoted market prices were not available, the fair
values were estimated by discounting contractual cash flows
using current market interest rates or approprizte vield curves
for instruments with similar credit risk and maturity. Thess
estimates generally nclude adjustments for counterparty
credit risk or UBS AG"s own credit.

— For short-term financial instruments with remaining maturities
of three months or less, the cammying amouwnt, which is net of

572

credit loss allowances, is generally considered a reasonable
astimate of fair value. The following financial instruments not
measwred at fair value had remaining maturities of three
months or less as of 31 Decamber 2016 100% of cash and
balances with central banks, 35% of amounts due from
banks, 100% of cash collateral on sscurities borowed, 83%
of reverse repurchase agreements, 100% of cash collateral
receivables on derivative instruments, 51% of loans, 4% of
financial assets held to maturity, 82% of amounts dus to
banks, 100% of cash collateral on securities lent, 87% of
repurchase agreements, 100% of cash collateral payables an
derivative instruments, 99% of amounts due o customers
and 15% of debt issued.

= The far walue estimates for repurchase and  reverse
repurchase agreements with variable and fixed interest rates,
far all maturities, include the valuation of the interest rate
component of these instruments, Credit and debit valuation
adjustments hawve not been mcluded in the valuation due to
the short-term nature of thess instruments.
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This Mote provides information an restricted financial assets (Mote 23a), transfers of financial assets {Note 23b and 23¢) and financial
assets that are received as collateral with the right to resell or repledge these assets (Mote 23d).

a) Restrictad financial assets

Restricted finandial assets consist of assets pledged as collateral
against an existing liability or contingent Eability and other assets
that are otherwise explicithy restricted such that they cannot be
usad to secure funding.

Financial assets are mainly pledged as collateral in securities
lending fransactions, in repurchase transactions, against loans
from Swiss mortgage institutions and in connection with the
issuance of covered bonds. UBS AG generally enters into
repurchase and securities lending arrangements under standard
market agreements, with a market-based haircut applied to the
collateral, which results in the assocdiated Rabilities having a
camying value below the carrying value of the assets. Fledged
martgage loans serve as collateral for exsting liabilities against
Swiss central mortgage institutions and for edsting coversd
band tssuances of CHF 14,137 million as of 31 December 2016
(31 December 2015: CHF 16,727 million).

Other restricted financial assets include assets protected
under client asset segregation rules, assets held by UBS AG's
insurance entities to back related liabilities to the policy halders,
assets held i certain jurisdictions to comply with explicit

Restricted finandal assets

mindmum local asset maintenance requirements and assets held
in consolidated bankruptcy remote entities such as certain
investment fumds and other structured entities. The camying
value of the liabilities associated with these other restricted
finandal assets is generally equal to the camying value of the
assets, with the exception of assets held to comply with local
asset maintenance requirements for which the assocated
liabdlities are greater.

UBS AG and its subsidianes are generally not subject to
significant restrictions that would prevent the transfer of
dividends and capital within UBS AG. However, certain regulated
subsidiaries are required to maintain capital and f or liquidity to
comiply with local regulations and may be subject to prudential
limitations by regulators that lmit the amount of funds that they
can distribute or otherwise transfer. Non-regulated subsidiaries
are generally mot subject to such requiements and transfer
restrictions. However, restrictions can ako be the result of
different begal, regulatory, contractual, entity or country-specific
arrangements and / or requirements.

M millien

Financial assets pledged ot coll seral

Totsl firancisl suets phadged = collateralt

Total ather restricied financisl sseis

Totsl firancisl sty pledged snd ather restricsed finsncial st

3,354 119,484

1.0 sl o I 1har seras a6 collareetal for edving Rabdlises St commsal

1.9 bl for 31 2018 31 W5:

u—FuHHmddhdnmu s ol fatere Fabifties o cossed bond

Imﬂhﬁqmmmﬂ&uhﬂwmmﬁn&tl

II:IusruIﬂ.ldtmphudﬂlulnlwhmmmlnﬂhmhgﬂmhmpmﬂlmﬂ-mm CHF 4.7 bilion, 31 mm‘l&mum
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Note 23 Restricted and transferred finandial assets (continued)

b) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in their entirety

The table below presents information for financial assets that have been transferred but are subject to continued recognition in full
as well as recognized labilities associated with those transferred assets.

Transferred financial assets subject to continued recognition in full

CHF i EIRPETS 311215
Camying walue of Carrying value of

asbociated lisbiftes associaled ligsiftes

value of mmmd on- walue of nived on-halance

ira Bt B ahst mm e il

Traing portlolio assess which may be sold o repledged by cousrerpanies 30,260 11,260 51,043 13,146

nabed & Tt value which sy be sold of

may be wold

Total firancial ewets ransfemed

30,896 11,850 51,850 13,152

Transactions in which financial assets are transferred, but
continue to be recognized in their entirety on UBS AG's balance
sheet include securities lending and repurchase agreements as
well as other financial asset transfers. Repurchiase and securities
lending amangements are, for the most part, conducted under
standard market agreements and are  undertaken  with
counterparties subject to UBS AG"s normal credit risk control
processes.
— Refer to Mote 12 item 3e for more information on repurchase
agreements and securities lending agree ments

As of 31 December 2016, approximately one-third of the
transferred financial assets were trading portfolio  assets
transferred in exchange for cash, in which case the associated
recognized liability represents the amount to be repaid to
counterparties.  For  securities  lending and  repurchase
agreements, a haircut between 0% and 15% is generally
applied to the transferred assets, which results in assodated
liatilities having a camying value below the carrying value of the
transferred assets. The counterparties to the associated liabilities
presented in the table above have full recourse to UBS AG.

574

In securities lending arrangements entered into in exchange
for the receipt of other securities as collateral, neither the
securities received nor the obligation to return them are
recognized on UBS AG's balance sheet, as the risks and rewards.
of cwnership are not transferred to UBS AG. In cases where such
financal assets received are subsequently sold or repledged in
another transaction, this is not considered to be a transfer of
finandial assets.

Other finandal asset transfers primarily include securities
transferred to collateralize derivative transactions, for which the
carrying value of associated Rabilities is not provided in the table
above because those replacement values are managed on a
portfalio basis acoss counterparties and product types, and
therefore there is no direct relationship between the specific
collateral pledged and the associated liability.

Transferred  financial assets that are not subject to
derecognition in full, but which remain on the balance sheet 1o
the extent of UBS AG's continuing involvement, were not
material as of 31 Decemnber 2016 and as of 31 December 2015.

4871624
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Note 23 Restricted and transferred finandial assets (continued)

¢} Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their entirety with continuing involvement

Continuing invohement in a transferred and fully derecognized
financial asset may result from contractual provisions in the
transfer agreement or from a separate agresment with the
counterparty or a third party entered into in connection with the
transfer.

Purchased and retained interests in securitization vehicles

In cases where UBS AG has wansferred assets imto a
securitization vehicle and retamed or purchased interests therain,
UBS AG has a continuing mvolement in those transferred
assets,

As of 31 December 2016, the majorty of the retained
continuing involvement related to securitization positions held in
the trading portfolio, primarily collateralized debt obligations, US
ommercial  mortgage-backed  securities  and  residential
mortgage-backed securities. The fair value and camying amount
of UBS &G°s continuing involvement related to these purchased
and retained interests was CHF 5 million as of 31 December
2016, and UBS AG recognized gains of CHF 11 million in 2016
related to these positions. &s of 31 December 2016, life-to-date

d) Off-balance sheet assets received

losses of CHF 1,173 million have been recorded related to the
positions held as of 31 December 2016

As of 31 December 2015, the fair value and canrying amouwnt
of UBS AG's continuing involvement related to purchased and
retaimed interests in sscuritization wehicles was CHF 15 millian,
and UBS AG recognized gains of CHF 16 million in 2015 related
to these positions. As of 31 December 2015, life-to-date losses
of CHF 1,566 million were recorded related to the pasitions held
as of 31 December 2015,

The maximum exposure to loss related to purchased and
retained interests in securitization structures was CHF 28 million
as of 31 December 2016 compared with CHF 55 million as of 31
December 2015.

Undiscounted cash outflows of CHF 23 million may be
payable to the transferee in future periods as a consequence of
halding the purchased and retained interests, The earliest period
in which payment may be required is less than one month.

The table below presents assets received from third parties that can be sold or repledged, that are not recognized on the balance
sheet, but that are held as collateral, including amounts that have been sold or repledged.

Off-balance sheet assets received

P mifiat IL1LIE EIRFA LY

Fair valise of sisets peceied which can be sold or repledged 429,307 401511
e 25 colieral Ly senis saprchare secuities bovoasig ad ieding arangements, deivarive iransactions o olfs IraveacTies” L2754 99879

U e i neacued boeawings T e 7672

o replidned? 34
b iy comitments cler ghevt sle epcrions T 2 28137
T conoection meth ceriatiee dnd other aneections! T 16,158 15628

1 Inchudes secusitios ieoneed a5 inital masgin from its chests war UES A/G is negaind 12 it i COFs, bt and

banks Trcugh i exchange-raded corhaties ETD) clearing and taponin snics. I

Does not inchude afl-balance shee soerites (31 Decomber 2018 CHF 3009 bilian; 31 Decembe 2015 CHF 473 billion) plced with oevial banks selaned vo undiasa oedit lines and for payment, chasing and

sipment purposs foo which there am so sssdated kabifsies o contingeat labiiies.
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EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

UES AG enters into netting agreements with counterparties to
manage the credit risks assodated primarily with repurchase and
reverse repurchase ftransactions, securities borrowing  and
lending, and over-thecounter (OTC) and exchange-traded
derivatives (ETDY. These netting agreements amd  similar
amangements generally enable the counterparties to set off
liabilities against available assets received in the ordinary course
of business and 7 or in the event that the counterparty to the
transaction is wnable to fulfill its contractual obligations. The
right of setoff is a legal right to settke or otherwise eliminate all
or a porticn of an amount due by applying an amount recenable
from the same counterparty against it, thus reducing credit
BXDOSUTE,

The table below provides a summary of financial assets
subject to offsstting, enforceable master netting amangements
and similar agreements, as well as financial collateral received to
mitigate credit exposures for these financial assets. The gross
financal assets of UBS AG that are subject to offsetting,
enforceable netting arrangements and similar agreements are
reconciled to the net amounts presented within the associated
balance sheet line, after giving effect to financial abilities with
the same counterparties that have been offset on the balance
sheet and other finandal assets not subject to an enforceable
netting amrangement or s@imilar agreement. Further, related
amounts for financial liabilities and collateral received that are
not offset on the balance sheet are shown to arrive at financial
assets after consideration of netting potential.

UBS AG engages in a variety of counterparty credit mitigation
strategies in addition to netting and collateral arrangements.
Therefare, the net amounts presented in the tabdes an this and
on the next page do not purport to represent UBS AG's actual
credit expasure.

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agresments

Aasets subject b netting amangementy
A, ol
w nat w o L]
Heting recognized on the balance shest Neg e halance sheet? W Tonad sty
Mt adtets Total atsals
recogrized fuisets ver Adasty alter  Total avsets
o the consderation recogeized on considerstion pecognized on
Geoid assets  Metting with balance  Finandal Collatersl of netting the hlance of nefling  the balance
s of 112 18, CHF o belare metting  groes lishities cheet  lighilies  seosived petential shest petential shest
Cash collaseral on secwifies bormwed a2 0o 42 g @d oo my g 151
Resverse repurchase agresments. 1284 ) 56.9 [ 1!| A8 oa 43 93 662
Jesitvereocementvaloss 523 i3Sl WEE il @en  we 86 1BG 1584
Cash collstersl receivables on derivative
ruses 372 (s 21 (143 o) 70 45 ns BT
Financial asets designated & (st value 17 0y 17 00 (0.6} 1.1 613 4.4 5.0
Total &ty rit] B |7 (1303 (86.3) 181 967 1148 3315
Asof 112 15 CHF Ao
Cash collstersl on ssousities borsowed! B2 i1} B2 [ER ] (5.2} 00 173 173 156
Jerie tepurchase agreenenty.  wTe 82N SSE W4 sLe 0@ tad 13 T8
Penitive replacement values 160.3 {25] 1583 (12300 (255 108 a1 189 1674
Cash collstersl receivables on derivative
e tmrsloc Bsg &3 196 fwg 0§ 12 A na Ba
Finansial assets desgnated & (s value 14 00 24 00 (1.8} (] 34 40 58
Totsl miets i (13100 M54 (1413 {854} 18.7 450 637 2905
1 Thee ret ampasnt of Cash collneral i ‘o e Balance shees Indees coriain DIT dedsathves Mai s e seitied o a daly asks i legally of (b misance uader 5

32 principles and ED d‘m.llmunlipnﬂllul daity basks. In 2015 UBS G elocied %0 comvert its HS mansacied whi the Londan Clearing Foese and lapan Secerbles Cearing Coszorarion bon the

collarerad mated 1 @ semlenem nodel A5 & e, gies s and Radites and

decrmased by CHF 64 billion as of 31 Decenier 1016, sith no change oo met asets and Babildes

wemgnized on the balasor sheer Sofer o Move 1h for moms infomatien. 2 i 1016, balanaes as of 31 Dember 3005 were vied to oovlemm o the presemation for batinas as of 31 Decombss 2006 This
sesited i & CHF 16 billon decsase in Assts suhjen 10 seiting amangenens with 3 oosspoasieg o i s not subject w0 settisg avangenens. This change oid sot inpac anoents mwognizsd on te

takanor shees sinae 1A% 37
presemiatnaal 3 The logic of the whbls mwills in ancems
calumn in the Razdities mhie presented an the following

muxnnnﬂlﬂﬁlﬂ:nﬂni

TR A o ot i=of-soope i

n ke "
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was ol e cither s 1he reksam ariieiia e BT L. ol ol
vy Fons psen mﬂwwmmgﬂﬁmﬁmmmhﬁ

4 For the purpass of this shdisere, the amosnts of Seandal
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MNote 24 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

The table below provides a summary of financial liabilities
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agresments, as well as finandal collateral pledged to
mitigate credit exposures for these financial labilities. The gross
financial liabilites of UBS AG that are subject to offsetting,
enforceable netting arrangements and similar agreements are
recanciled to the net amounts presented within the associated

balance sheet line, after giving effect to financial assets with the
same counterparties that have been offsst on the balance sheet
and other financial Babilities not subject to an enforceable
netting arrangement or similar agresment. Further, related
amounts for financial assets and collateral pledoed that are not
offset on the balance sheet are shown to amive at financial
liabilities after consideration of netting potential,

Financial liabilities subject to affsetting, enforceable master netting amangements and similar agreements

Lishilighes subjedt 1o nefing srangements
Liahiities not
Hetting potentid not recogrized on the  subjed to meting
Meling recognized on the halance dhee balance shee? Arrangementt Ttsl labiities
Taital Tiotal
: (oS Het ligbifities Luiliu&: ’ liskiliges afer abilities
atilities recognized on Liakilities  considerstion pecognized on
before  Meiting with  the balsace  Financial Collsberal meiting  pecoghized on the of netting  the balance
As ol F1 12 18 CWF hidlian melting  grodd assen? shae el pledged polential helance shest poteniial shest
Cash collateral an ssourities lemt 16 0.0 16 [0.9) (1.7 oo oz 02 8
Respurchiase agresments TET [31 5] 1!.1] 1] 14 14
25 168 142 wo_ 2
1 - - | S | S ) .- N ..
0y 18 oo 0.2 16 522 548 550
Total kabilities ITes (89,1} 1875 (137.0) (228 0 058 939 2537
Az TILIZ 15 CHF Al
Cohooeronsoomifestont 79 .00 TA_LER W8 M M B
F.qudusewu =1 [62.1} (L] A) o 5] [F1:] 18 18 97
Hesative replicement vaes 132 12.5) 151.7 (123.0 117.4) 13 w.r 21 1624
e e
imarusents! L) [66.3] ne [19.0) 12.5) 121 47 168 383
Finamcial liabiities dedgnesed o lsir
ig 0o L] oo 01 R 5.1 62.3 630
Total fabilities 49 {131.0) 239 (1404)  (z80) WS 74 4.0 2814

T Thee v amesat: 0F Cash COMAIRAal paryaldlis G SOriaamve INGITEMENs McngRiind on 1he DUGnce SerT Nisces cortan DIC Sorhamess tan am el sied on & daly bas b Sihe: legaly of In SECancs e 5

32 principles and ETD than are econemicaly socded on 3 daily bask. | 2008 UBS 4G slected 10 comven iis RS mansacied with the Losdon

prosiost oodiarerad Mgl 00 2 eienen nodel As a resal, gioes mses and Raddites and
wemgnized on the balance sheer Arle 10 Kome 1b for mose information. 2 The lagic of the table

pm-udh'll- Ficting mith gaoes Rabiies” colemn in e aets @hiv posesied on e provioss page. 3 For the pemose of 1k dhoosere, tThe amounss of financial instaments and cash

s and Serwiiies Diearing Topporacion bon the
mqmqmnﬂuxdmmmﬂ?ﬂhmmmnm:ﬂm
D ATOUATS Qiesmed i Te MmN Wil OISt s Column m 1he amous
presamed

mﬁh“uﬂgmnsunmhnmdmmmnﬁmkh e collanvralination, whene It eckis, b eot refleced in 1he table.

B sbjpe 1T e e it -0f-So0pE iems
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MNote 25 Measurement categories, credit risk and maturity analysis of financial instruments

a) Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The table below provides information about the carying amounts  defined in 1AS 32 Anancial instruments: Presantation are induded in
of indwidual cdases of finandal instruments within the the table bekow, whidh causes certain balances to differ from those
measurement categones of finandial assets and labilities a5 defined  presented on the balance sheet.

in &S 39 Fnandal kstrments; Recognition and  Measuremeant, — Refer 1o Note 22 for more information on how the fair value of

Only thoss assets and liabilities that are finandial instruments as financial instrurnents is determined
Measurement categories of finandal assets and financial Babilities

[ EfR R 3215
Financial aisets’

L

Trading poitidlio s 52112 120,405
[uge 1 cupstmens? 12 ]
Dbt i 18 106
Penitive replacement values 152411 167,435
Totsl p=Lir] 287,946
Fair vl theough profit of s

Finamdal assets desgnated o fair value 5,024 5,808
Oithes &sets 13 0
Totsd 65,155 5,808
LT
Cash snd halances with cenirsl henks 107,767 91,306
[t Trom Banks 13,125 11,866
Cash collatersl on seourities bormrwed 15111 25,584
fleveris fapurchuse aoresments 3T 57,803
Cash collstersl receivables on derivative instruments 6,664 23,763

ru]-| rrrll1i| R R R B N N R N SR EENEEE R EEEER SRR R TmTT Y

Totdl a3 TEI13
Finandial lishilities

403,522
82,230
52,065
EE17
Total firancial Rabiities B4, B35 875,133
VR of 31 Decerher 2016, CAF 126 billin of Loass, CFF 0 Dlien of Due from barks, CHF | G0N of st ropaiciass agreonens, CAF 10 bIon OF Fiancial aisets avilbs il sie, CHF 23 blinn o
Firandial awrts deskgraid a1t valee and OHF 3 bilion of Financial asrts held 1 nateriy am epeced 10 be reocsed o seitled aher 12 mosdhs. & of 31 Decersber 2015, OHF 173 bllion of Loans, CHF O

billion of Du from Banis, CHF 1 bilion of Rrssse repaichass agreements, CHF 30 bilion of Financial assets avadlabie fo sade and CHF 3 bilion of Financial asses at fail val are eapecied m ba
wecomend o setthed afier 12 momis. 2 Repsesens the enbedded cervenisr componen of stemared financial istrements for which e tair vk option bas ot e and 1hal & presemed sithin D o
owserers and Dotn Bwes on the lance sheet. 3 Inchudes Tramce kese mcehables of OFF 1.0 Bilion a5 of 31 Deombar 2096 (31 Demmbe 3015 OF 1.1 Rt o Motes 10 amgl 31 dar mone
i
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MNote 25 Measurement categories, credit risk and maturity analysis of financial instruments (continued)

b) Maximum exposure to credit risk

The tables on the following pages provide UBS AG's madmum
exposure o credit risk by class of financial instrument and the
respective collateral and other credit enhancements mitigating
credit risk for these classes of financial instruments.

The madmum exposure to credit sk includes the carrying
amounts of financial instruments recocgnized on the balance
sheet subject to credit risk and the notional amounts for off-

Maximum exposure to credit risk

balance sheet amangements. Where information s available,
collateral is presented at fair value. For other collateral such as
real estate, a reasonable alternative value & used. Credit
enhancements, such as  oredit derivative contracts  and
guarantees, are included at their notional amounts. Both are
capped at the maximum exposure to credit risk for which they
SETVE a5 security

312,16
Collstersl Credit enbancements
Misimum Coth  Colliersl- Credit
eporets  colatesl iedby  Secured by Dther dessheative
CHF bt credit risk received  secwritier resl estabe collsberal Wetsing  contracs  Guaranbess
Financial assets measused at amonined oot on the halance
shet e I e
10714
....... i
151 1 )
662 6.
%7 151
..... e 178 LT - .. T .. . -}
A
186 100
Total firancisl awets mewsured o smortized cost 5637 178 186.9 158.2 177 15.1 ol 18
Finamcial assets measused at fair vahoe on the balsnce sheet
Peitive feplacsment valuest 1584 53 1345
Trading porthdio sset — debl imsusents 7 FiL]
Finandial ascets dedgnated s Tar valus - debt instnaments® 648 15 0
Financial ascets avalable for sble — debt inslruments® 149
Total firancisl swets memsured ot fair walue 600 i1} 13 1] [} 1345 (13 i1}
Total frossd rvm expodune 1o gedit sk rellecied on the
halance shest EI3.2 173 1949 158.2 177 1496 07 18
Guisianiless 167 14 0 0.2 12 [T 0
Lo commitmenss 44 w1 i3 10 95 48 0
Fomasnd starting transachons, reverss repurchase and
secufities bomowing bgreasent 102 10.2
Tiokad ok v eodiuanie Lo Gt ik mool peflenchind o the
balarce shest E13 15 16.1 11 105 1] 49 51
Totsl [T 194 2104 150.4 B4 1406 57 3]
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MNote 25 Measurement categories, credit risk and maturity analysis of financial instruments (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk {continued)

HAZIS
Collatersd Coedil enhancsments.
Masdimum Ch  Collaierd- Credit
exposrels  colatesl iedby  Secured by Dthar dertftive

CHF blon credit rigk received  gecuribies esl etste  collateral! Helting cofilfacly  GuErERbae
Finamcial assets measured ot amonized oot on the helance
shest

we T

13 [ o

e e e A -

678 628 46
Cash colateral receivables on derivalive insinments? =~ nE o o o R o
Loar LT 137 1010 164.4 15.2 04 19
Diher sises i 1.1
Total firancisl auets mewsured o smortized cost 51T 137 200.1 164.4 198 124 04 0
Finamcial assety measured at fair valoe on the balance sheet
“Pocitive reglecement valoest 1674 58 27
“Trading portilio sssets - debt instruments. -7 mp T
il SR ST 5 ViR B ™ e
Financial assets avalable for sale — dibl ingiruments® BT
Totsl firancisl e meied o (i wle HAT o} 9.3 o i 142.7 (13 i1}
Teotal rreas v epoaune o gedit sk relected on the
halance shest 2154 137 200.4 164.4 108 155.2 1.0 0
Guaraniess 160 12 21 0.2 15 [ 30
Lean com ritmenssd 61 18 1.7 BT 1 0
sestufitiies Bofrowing boreasenty [ 1] (13
Total rasdnum exposure 1o cedt sk not reflecied on the
halance sheet TEE 12 10.5 1.9 10.2 0.0 7.0 500
Totsd g 144 1200 166.3 It 155.2 Bl &0

1 Inhudes bur ot mited 1o [Te M0GIMOE COMEITS, [RvDRITDy, Acrumls noziable,

|, panns, nd opgighns. 2 Dar ban anks inclaces amcents Bkt with 1hisd-pary zanis on betal of ciests.

mongag
The crecit risk mscdated with thes balnos may e bome by tiose diencs. 3 Inchuded within Cash milae| reorivabies on desisativs insTuments an mangin balances cus from echanges o deaning hoass.
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Maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets designated
at fair value
The maximum exposure to oredit risk of loans, but not
structured loans, designated at fair value is generally mitigated
by credit derivatives or similar instruments. As of 31 December
2016, the credit risk of such loans with a total notional amount
of CHF 609 million (31 December 2015: CHF 6387 million) was
mitigated by credit derivatives with a total notional amount of
CHF 578 million (31 December 2015: CHF 630 million) and a fair
value of negative CHF 7 million (31 December 2015 positive
CHF 4 millian).

Changes in the fair value of loans designated at fair valus

580

attributable to changes in credit risk were not material for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 and
from inception wntil 31 December 2016 and 21 December 2015,

Similarly, chamges im the fair value of oredit derivatives
mitigating the credit risk of kboans designated at fair value were
not matenal for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015 and from inception wntil 31 Decamber 2046
and 31 Decemnber 2015,

—+ Refer to Mote 22 for more information on financdal assets

designated st s vakes
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MNote 25 Measurement categories, credit risk and maturity analysis of financial instruments (continued)

) Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category

Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category
: 312,16
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Mote 25 Measurement categories, credit risk and maturity analysis of financial instruments (continued)

d) Maturity analysis of finandial liabilities

The contractual matwrities for non-derivative and non-trading
financial liabilities a5 of 31 December 2016 are based on the
garfiest date on which UBS could be contractually required to
pay. The total amounts that contractually mature n each time
band are also shown for 31 December 2015, Derivative positions

and trading liabilities, predominantly made up of short sale
transactions, are assigned to the column Due within 7 month, as
this provides a conservative reflection of the nature of these
trading activities. The contractual maturities may extend over
significantly longer periods.

Maturity analysis of financial Rabilities®
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wailath
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&) Reclassification of financial assets

In 2008 and 2009, certan finandal assets were redassified from
Trading portfofio asets to Loans. On their redassification date,
thess asets had fair values of CHF 26 billion and CHF 0.6 billion,
respectively.

The redassfication of financial assets reflected UBS's change in
intent and ability to hold these finandal asets for the foreseeable
future rather than for trading in the near term. The financial assets
were redassified wsing their fair value on the date of the
reclassification, which became their new cost basis at that date.

As of 31 December 2016, the camying value of the remaining

582

reclassified financal assets, which were entirely comprised of
municipal auction rate securities, was CHF 0.2 bilion (31 December
2015: CHF 0.2 billion), which was approximately equal o the fair
value of these assets.

The overall effect on operating profit before tax from reclassified
financial assets for the year ended 31 December 2016 was a profit
of CHF 1 million (2015: CHF 23 millian). i the financial assets had
not been redlassified, the impact on operating profit before tax for
the year ended 31 December 2018 would have been a profit of CHF
10 milian.
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans

The table below provides information about expenses for pension and other post-employment benefit plans. These expenses are part
of Personnel expanses.

Income statement - expenses related to pension and other post-employment benefit plans
P miiat ARG 3.12.15 az4
Het perlodic ixpenses for defined benefil plans 563 467
R m”mﬂﬂwﬂﬂ'
o wioly Pt ol
of wiich LK plan
o ol redirted’ B post-ampioyment medic ang BB insurance plang?
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458
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i
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4 37
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244
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fog £l
ey mm i &7
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3 Rerles o Mote 26 o mose The L% was i 200, Oy the amounts disdossd for 2014 indede sponses with m I isusnce
renefin. 4mmmhmuﬂmmmumﬂmmmﬂpﬂmmmumg 5 Rrler v Kooe 26c for mow i martion.
& Rrbor 1o Koo -

ﬂméiuﬁéauutw
i

The table below provides infarmation relating to amounts recognized in Other comprehensive income for defined benefit plans.

Other comprehensive intome - gaing / (loises) on defined benefit plans

HF miiat EIRFA] 311215 1214
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of it Favdes o i) 55 (1052
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S s ; e ™ T o S

T Reber 1o Kime 264 1or o imlomation. 2 Bafer 0 Mote 26D fol mare i The U5 [ poiicy was hﬁlmmﬁuyﬂnﬁmhﬂun
incdlued only in 1he paar ended on 31 Deoenbae 2004, Jmnﬁ'mimmi
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

UBS AG recognizes assets and liabilities with respect to defined not exceed the estimated future ecomomic benefit. Since the

benefit plans within Other assefs and Other labilities, estimated future economic benefit was zero as of 31 Decemiber
As of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Swiss 2016 and 31 December 2015, no net defined benefit pension

pension plan was in a surplus situation. However, a surplus i asset was recognized on the balance sheet.

only recognized on the balance sheet to the extent that it does

The tables below provide information on UBS &G's assets and liabilities with respect to defined benefit plans.

Balante sheet - net defined benefit pension and post-employment asuet
P mifiat HAZE ENRFAET

i e o . R

Totsl net defined benefit pension and post-smployment asse?
1 IRefer o Kot 253 for mose informacion. 3 Reter m Kione BE

Balante sheet - net defined benefit pension and post-employment lability
CHF i 020 EVREREY

L . S S N—

Totsl et defired benefil pendion and poit-smployient 1,266 736

T Reles 0 e 253 fol momg Infoammation. IaﬁmmxaﬂmlﬂﬁMMEENME-D{FMEMUW EE'IMI‘H.IIS:U—F!IErIiE

welaed £ LS plars and CHF 307 million relaed 1o Goman plansl 3 Reter 0 Kime 260 for nom infomation. 4 Refer oo Mo 21
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension plans

UBS AG has established defined benefit pension plans far its
employess in various jurisdictions, with the major plans located
in Switzerland, the UK, the US and Germany.

The overall investment policy and strategy for UBS AG's
defined benefit pension plans is guided by the objective of
achieving an investment return  which, together with
contributions, ensures that there will be sufficient assets to pay
pension benefits as they fall due while also mitigating various
risks. For the plans with assets (e, funded plans), the
investment strategies are managed wnder local laws and
regulations in each jurisdiction. The asset allocation is
determined by the govermnance body with reference to the
prevailing current and expected economic and market conditions
and in consideration of specific asset cdass risk in the risk profile.
Within this framework, UBS AG ensures that the fiduciaries
consider how the asset investment strategy correlates with the
maturity profile of the plan labilities and the respective potential
effect on the funded status of the plans, including potential
short-term liquidity requirements.

The defimed benefit obligations (DBOs) for all of UBS AG's
defined benefit pension plans are directly affected by changes in
yighds of high-quality corporate bonds quoted im an active
market in the currency of the respective pension plan, as the
applicable discount rate used to determine the DEO & based on
these yields. For the funded plans, the pension assets are
invested in a diversified portfolio of financial assets, nchuding
real estate, bonds, investment funds and cash across geographic
regions to ensure 3 balance of risk and return. Under 185 19,
volatility arises in each pension plan’s net asset f liability position
because the fair value of the plan's finandal assets is not fully
cormelated to movements in the value of the plan's DBO. Spedfic
asset-Rability matching swategies for each pension plan are
independently determined by the responsible governance body.
The net asset / liability volatility for each plan is dependent on
the specific financial assets chosen by each plan's governance
body. For certasin pension plans, a liabiity-driven investment
approach is applied to a portion of the plan assets to reduce
potential volatility.

Swiss penision plan

The Swiss pension plan covers employess of UBS AG and
employees of companies having dose economic or financial ties
with UBS AG and excesds the minimum benefit requirements
unider Swiss pension law.

Contributions to the pension plan are paid by both the
employer and the employess. The Swiss penzion plan allows
employees to choose the level of contributions paid by them.
Employee contributions are calculated as a percentage of the
contributony salary and are deducted manthly. The percentages
deducted from salary depend on age and chaoice of contribution
category and vary between 1% and 13.5% of contributory base
salary and between 0% and 9% of contributory variable
comipensation. Depending on the age of the employes, UBS AG
pays a contribution that ranges between 6.5% and 27.5% of
confributory  base salary and between 3.6% and 9% of
confributory  vanable compensation. UBS AG ako pays risk
confributions which are used to finance benefits paid out in the
event of death and disability, as well as to finance bridging

pensions.

The plan benefits include retirement benefits and disability,
death and sunivor pensions. The pension plan offers to
members at the normal retirement age of 64 a choice between a
lifetime pension with or without full restitution and a partial or
full ump sum payment. Members can draw early retirement
benefits starting from the age of 58. Since 2015, employess.
hawve the possibility to make additional purchases of benefits to
fund early retirement benefits (Plan 58+).

The pension amount payable i a result of the conversion rate
applied on the accumulated balance of the indnidual plan
participant’s pension account at the refirement date. The
accumulated balance of each individual plan participant's
pension account is based on oredited vested benefits transferred
from previous employers, purchases of benefits and the
employee and employer contributions that have been made to
the pension account of each individual plan participant, as well
as the nterest accrued on the accumulated balance The interest
rate accrued is defined annually by the Pension Foundation
Board.

Although the Swiss pension plan i based on a defined
confribution promise under Swiss pension law, it is accounted
for as a defined benefit plan under 1A5 19, primarily because of
the obligation to accrue interest on the pension accounts and
the payment of [fetime pension benefits.

585
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

The Swiss pension plan is governaed by 2 Pension Foundation
Board as required by Swiss pension law. The responsibilities of
this board are defined by Swiss pension law and by the plan
rules. An  actuarial valuation wnder Swiss pension law B
performed  regularty.  According to Swiss pension law, a
temporary limited underfunding is permitted. However, should
an underfunded situation occur, the Pension Foundation Board &
required to take the necessary measures to ensure that full
funding can be expected to be restored within a madmum
pericd of 10 years. If a Swiss pension plan were to become
significantly underfunded on a Swiss pension law  basis,
additional employer and employee contributions could be
required. In these situations, the risk is shared betwesn employer
and employees, and the employer is not kegally obliged to cover
more than 50% of the additional contributions required. As of
31 December 2016, the Swiss pension plan had a technical
funding ratio under Swiss pension law of 125.4% (31 December
2015: 123.3%).

The mvestment strategy of the Swiss plan is implemented on
the basiz of a multi-level investment and msk management
process and i in line with Swiss pension law, including the rules
and regulations relating to diversification of plan assets. Thess
rules, among others, specify restrictions to the composition of
plan assets, e.q., there is a limit of 0% for inwestments in
pquities. The imvestment strategy of the Swiss plan is aligned
with the defined risk budget set out by the Pension Foundation
Board. The risk budget is determined on the basis of regularly
performed asset and liability management analyses. In order to
implement the risk budget, the Swiss plan may use direct
investments, imvestment funds and derivatives. To mitigate
foreign currency risk, a specific currency hedaing strategy is in
place. The Pension Foundation Board strives for 3 medium- and
long-term balance between assets and liabilities.

As of 31 December 2016, the Swiss pension plan was in a
surplus  sitwation on an International  Financial Repaorting
Standards (IFRS) measurement basis, as the fair value of plan
assets excesded the DBO by CHF 1,748 million {321 December
2015: surplus of CHF 1,283 million). However, a surplus is only
recagnized on the balance sheet to the extent that it does not
excesd the estimated future economic benefit, which equals the
difference between the present value of the estimated future net
service cost and the present walue of the estimated future
employer contributions. The maxdmum future economic benefit
is highly variable based on changes in the discount rate. Both as
of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the estimated
future economic benefit was zera and hence no net defined
benefit asset was recognized on the balance sheet As of 31
December 2016, the difference bebween the pension plan
surplus and the estimated future economic benefit, i.e., the asset
ceiling effect, was CHF 1,748 million {31 December 2015: CHF
1,283 million). CHF 452 million out of the total movement of
CHF 455 million was recognized in Other comprahensive income
and CHF 14 million related to interest expense on the asset
ceiling effect was recognized in the income statement, As of 31
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December 2015, the total asset ceiling effect of CHF 1,283
milion was recognized in Other comprehensive income. The
employer contributions expected to be made to the Swiss
pension plan in 2017 are estimated to be CHF 472 million.

Non-5wiss pension plans

LUBS AG locations outside of Switzerand offer various defined
benefit pension plans in accordance with local regulations and
practices. The non-Swiss bocations with major defined benefit
pension plans are the UK, the US and Germany. Defined benefit
pension plans in other locations are not material to the financial
results of UBS AG and hence not separately disclosed.

The non-Swiss plans provide benefits in the event of
retirerment, death or disability. The level of benefits provided
depends on the spedfic rate of benefit accrual and the level of
employes compensation. UBS AG's general principle is to ensure
that the plans are adequately funded on the basis of actuarial
valuations. Local pension regulations and tax requirements are
the primary drivers for determining when contributions are
required.

LK pension plan

The UK plan is a career-average revalued eamnings scheme, and
benefits incease automatically based on UK price inflation.
Mormal retirement age for participants in the UK plan is 80, The
Uk defined benefit pension plan participants are no konger
accruing benefits for cumrent or future serice. Active employees
instead participate in the UK defined contribution plan.

The governance responsibility for the UK plan lies jointly with
the Pension Trustes Board, which is required under local pension
laws, and UBS AG. The employer contributions to the pension
fund reflect agreed-upon deficit-funding contributions, which
are determined on the basis of the most recent actuarial
valuation using assumptions agreed by the Pension Trustee
Board and UBS AG. In the event of underfunding, UBS AG and
the Pension Trustee Board must agree on a deficit recovery plan
within statutory deadlines. In 2016, UBS AG did not make any
deficit-funding contributions (2015: CHF 316 million).

The plan assets are invested in a diversified portfolic of
finandal assets. A liability-driven investment approach is applied,
as a portion of the plan assets i invested in inflation-indexed
bonds which provide a partial hedge against price inflation. If
price inflation increases, the DBO will likely increase more
significantly than the change in the fair value of plan asets,
which would result in an increase in the net defined benefit
liability. Plan rules and local pension legislation cap the level of
inflationary increase that can be applied to plan benefits.

Az the plan & obligated to provide guaranteed lifetime
pension benefits to plan participants upon retirement, increases.
in life expectancy will result n an ncrease in the plan’s liabilities.
The sensitivity to changes in ife expectancy is particularly high in
the UK plan as the pension benefits are indexed to price
inflation.
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

As of 31 December 2016, the UK plan was in a deficit
situation on an IFRS measurement basis as the DBO exceeded
the fair value of plan assets by CHF 529 million (31 December
2015: surphus of CHF S0 million).

Mo employer contributions are cumently scheduled to be
made to the UK defined benefit pension plan in 2017,

U%S pension plans

There are two distinct major defined benefit pension plans in the
5. Mormal refirement age for participants in both US plans &
65. The plans are cosed to new entrants, who instead can
participate in defined contribution plans,

One of the major defined benefit pension plans s a
contribution-based plan in which each participant accrues a
percentage of salary in a pension account. The pension account
is credited annually with interest based on a rate that is linked to
the average yield on one-year US gowernment bonds. For the
other major defined benefit pension plan, retirement benefits
accrue based on the career-average earmings of each individual
plan participant. Upon retirement, the plans allow participants a
chioice between a lump sum payment and a ifetime pension.

As required under local state pension laws, both plans have
fiduciaries who, together with UBS AG, are responsible for the
governance of the plans. UBS AG regularly reviews the
contribution  strategy  for these plans. In determining the
contribution strategy, UBS AG considers the minimum funding
requirements (i.e, 80% funded ratic on a basis determined
under local pension regulations) and the cost of any premiums
that must be paid to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation
for having an underfunded plan. In 2016, the contributions
made by UBS AG were CHF 172 million (2015: CHF 50 million].

The plan assets for both plans are invested in a diversified
portfolio of financial assets. Each pension plan's fiducianes are
respansible for the investment decsions with respect to the plan
assets. & liability-driven investment approach & applied for one
of the US plans to suppart the volatility management in the net
asset [ liability position. Derivative instruments may ako be
employed to manage volatility.

In 2015, the US pension plan rules were amended to the
effect that former UBS AG employees with vested benefits in the

U5 defined benefit pension plans have the option to recsive a
lwmp sum payment (or early annuity payments) instead of a
lifetime pension commencding at retirement age, This resulted in
a reduction in the DBO of CHF 24 million and a cormesponding
gain recognized in the income statement in 2015, of which CHF
21 million was recorded in Wealth Management Americas.

The employer contributions expected to be made to the US
defined benefit pension plans in 2017 are estimated to be CHF
20 million.

German pension plans
There are two different defined benefit pension plans in
Germany, and both are contribution-basad plans. No plan assets.
are st aside to fund these plans, and benefits are directly paid
by UBS AG. Mommal refirement age for the participants in the
German plans is 65, Within the larger of the two pension plans,
each participant accrues a percentage of salary in a pension
atcount. The accumulated account balance of the plan
participant is credited on an annual basis with guaranteed
interest at a rate of 5%. In the other plan, amounts are accrued
annually based on employee elections. For this plan, the
accumulated account balance is credived on an annual basis with
a guarantesd interest rate of 4% for amounts accrued after
2009. Both German plans are regulated under German pension
law, wnder which the responsibility to pay pension benefits
when they are due rests entirely with UBS AG. For the German
plans, a portion of the pension payments is directly increassd in
line with price inflation.

The benefits expected to be paid by UBS AG to the
participants of the German plans in 2017 are estimated to be
CHF 9 million.

Financial information by plan

The table an the following pages provides an analysis of the
mowement in the net asset £ liability recognized on the balance
sheet for defined benefit pension plans, as well as an analysis of
amounts recognized in net profit and in Other comprahensive
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Defined benefit pension plans
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Finded and unfunded plars
Defined benefit obligation bomfundedplans _ TRESS IREES 3004 330 1306 1188 ZTEES | 21074
Defined benef chligation boms unfusded plans. o LI L TN NN - SN
Plan aiets ME14 13919 3,175 3,400 1,144 947 B934 28316
HM}IM 1749 1,283 (5290 50 {611} (623 B9 Fall
Agiet culing effea 1,749 1,283 [] [1] [] [] 1,749 1,283
Wea defined benefit asset [ fiabiling) ] 0 50 B {62 11,1400 573}
1 Experience (gains | ks am a ¢ ol sl of ther derbred Benefic abliganion that srliect 18 glieas o dIFHEnCEs Betwoeen 1he provizes auarl assmprion: and whan Nas acually
oonumed.
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Analbysis of ssours recognized in ret profit
CHF il Twias gan UK plan LIS and Gesman plans Tatal
Fot the year ended FALE 3ALIE  ILIZIE ILALA5  ILIZIE INLA2I5 ILILI6 31IZIE
Curment service ool a7 589 [1] 0 E 0 450 599
“ierest expense relmed 0 dekned benetn chligation w0 @ 1 N I A 63
mmm“ﬂ“mm-m LN T N .
Irileredl expense on aviel celing efea L0 [] 0 L] 1] 14 [}
0] [1] [ ] 16 [E]
L A it
oe B el DR BY
0 1 [1] 0
heed periodic expenses 381 515 i 18 EE] 12 [TH a5
Ancabysis, of ssours recegnized in other comprehensive incose {0CT)
W il Swias plan UK plan L5 and Gesman plans Tatal
Fot eyt el IALIE IALIE ILIZIE FLIZNE ILIZIE ILAIS ILILIE 3LILIS
Resesunsment of defined benet cbligation W 1,231 iz A {125} B (154) 1681
Metuen e plan assels mchuling ameunls induded in inlerestnecme B g M1 my 2 e i B
esel ceiling e encuding interest eopenae un 2ssed cefing shedd 53 1. [ ] 0 o WEn (e
Tobsl gaind [ (s scognized in other comprehensive income, befose L {105) 58 [610) N7 123 {35 (837 339
The table below provides information on the duration of the DBO and the timing for expected benefit payments.
Suis plan U plan L5 and German plans!
ALIE  IILIS 3IZIE  IIZS ALIZIE 3LIZNE
Duration of the defined benefit abligasion lin years) 151 15.1 126 197 106 1.3
Maturity aralysis of benefits expecied to be paid
CHF millian
Berwelits exngected to be paid wistin 12 sonths 1,340 1,145 n 80 103 92
Benelits xpected 1o be paid between 1 and 3 years 7,304 118 154 177 3 185
s T —— R
Berwelits exgected to be paid between 6 and 11 years 5,439 5,526 T 785 562 509
Benefits xpected 1o be paid between 11 andl 16 years 5041 5173 B56 581 514 510
oz nhepndrnmmm.u: S R T mee e e ey

1 Thee cuaarsion of the defined bened abl

& ¥ Es
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Actuarial assumptions

The measurement of each pension plan's DBO considers

different actuarial assumptions. Changes in those assumptions

lead to wodatility in the DBO. The following principal actuarial
assumptions are applied:

— Discount rate: the discount rate is based on the yield of high-
quality corporate bonds quoted in an active markst in the
cumency of the respective pension plan. Consequently, a
decrease i the yield of high-quality corporate  bonds
increases the DBO. Conwersely, an increase in the yield of
high-quality corporate bonds decreases the DBO.

- Rate of salary inorease: an increase in the salary of plan
participants generally increasss the DBO, specifically for the
Swiss and German plans. For the UK plan, as the plan &
closed for future senvice, UBS AG employees no longer accrus
future service benefits and thus salary increases have no
effect on the DBO. For the US plans, only a small percentage
af the total population continues to accrue benefits for future
semvice, therefore the effect of a salary increase on the DBO s
miinimal.

- Rate of pension increase: for the Swiss plan, there is no
automatic indexing of pensions. Any increass would be
dedided by the Pension Foundation Board. For the US plans,
there i also no automatic indexing of pensions, For the UK
plan, pensions are automatically indexed to price inflation 2=
per plan rules and local pension legislation. The German plans
are also automatically indexed and a portion of the pensions
are directly increased by price inflation. An increase in price
inflation in the UK and Germany increases the nespective
plan's DEO.

- Rate of interest credit on retirement savings: the Swiss plan
and ane of the US plans have retirement saving balances that
are increased annually by an interest credit rate. For these
plans, an ncrease in the mterest credit rate increases the
respective plan's DBO.

- Life expectancy: for most of UBS AG's defined benefit
pension plans, the respective plan is obligated to provide
guaranteed lifetime pension benefits. The DBO for all plans &
calculated wsing an wnderlying best estimate of the life
expectancy of plan participants. An increase in the life
expectancy of plan participants increases the plan®s DBO.

The actuarial assumptions used for the pension plans are
based on the economic conditions prevailing in the jursdiction in
which they operate.

— Refer to Mote 1a item 7 for a description of the accounting

palicy for defined benefit pension plans

540

Changes in actuarial assumptions
UBS AG regularly reviews the actuanal assumptions used in
caloulating its DBO to determine their continuing relevance.

Swiss pension plan
In 2016, UBS AG continued to enhance its methodology for
estimating the discount rate by improving the construction of
the yield curve from Swiss high-quality corporate bonds
Furthermore, LUBS AG refined its approach for estimating the life
expectancy, the rate of employes disability and the rate of salary
increases. These changes in estimates decreased the DBO of the
Swizs pension plan by CHF 319 millicn, of which changes in
demographic assumptions decreased the DBO by CHF 659
million and changes in financial asumptions ncreased the DBO
by CHF 339 million. However, the effect from these changes in
estimates was more than offset by experience losses and
market-driven changes in the discount rate, resulting in a total
upward remeasurement of the Swiss plan DBO of CHF 477
million, which was recognized in Other comprehensive income.
In 2015, the effect from an enhancement in methodalogy for
estimating the discount rate and from the refinement of the
approach to estimate the rate of salary increases, the rate of
interest credit on retirement savings, the employee turnover rate,
the rate of employee disabilities and the rate of marriage was a
net decrease in the DBO of the Swiss pension plan of CHF 2,055
million, of which CHF 1,038 milkon related to demographic
assumptions and CHF 1,017 million related te financial
assumptions. The effect from thess changes in estimates was
partly offset by market-driven discount rate changes, resulting in
an overall dowrward remeasurement of the Swiss plan DBO of
CHF 1,231 million, which was recognized in Other
comprahensive income.

MNon-Swiss pensian plans

In both 2016 and 2015, UBS AG ako enhanced methodologies.
and refined approaches used to estimate variows actuarial
assumptions for its non-Swiss pension plans.

In 2016, these changes in estimates resulted in a total net
decrease in the DBO of the UK pension plan of CHF 63 million,
all related to demographic assumptions. However, the effect
from these changes in estimates was more than offset mainly by
market-driven discount rate changes, resulting in a total wmward
remeasurement of the UK plan DBEO of CHF 922 million, which
wias recognized n Other compreheansive incoms,

In 2015, the changes in estimates resulted in 2 tomal net
decrease in the DBO of the UK pension plan of CHF 192 million,
of which CHF 122 million related to demographic assumgtions
and CHF 71 million relzted to financial assumptions. In addition,
mainly market-driven discount rate changes reduced the DBO
further, resulting n an overall downward remeasurement of the
UK plan D8O of CHF 441 million, which was recognized in Other

comprehensive income.
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

The tables below show the principal actuarial assumptions used in calculating the DBO at the end of the year.

Principal actuarial assumptions used

iz plan UK plan U5 and German plans!
i IEIE  HALIE AL 3RS A6 34215
Discoust rate 073 109 189 3.0 isE 4.0
Ratee of salary incresse 130 1.75 o0 000 185 1E9
Tate of pereion inerese T oo iE 3 131 150
nlrmmmdnm:m_"{m'1m“u.m-um"1n'|4!
1 R wighned anorage s acroas U and Ganman plans.

Maortality tables and life expectancies for major plans

Lile expeciancy al age 65 for a male member asmently

aned 65 aned 45
Courry Mleriality table ETRFR [ EfRFEE LILIE EIRFEEY
EVG 2015 G CML_20 5 215 29 FLW

S2PA CMI_2015,
153 EFZ014 WCHA, with MP2016 projection scale? Pk} 230 4.4 45

Génsairy D K Hesbedk 2005 G 01 200 228 225

Life essctancy &t age 65 for & femabe member cumently

aged 65 aged 45
Country Wharlaiity table ETRFRT LIS ETRFR T AL
Switzertand BVG 2015 G CML2018° 134 Mo M9 57
we SIPACMLZ0TS, with preesns T ®6 mE wa |0
s RPI014 WCHA, with MP2016 projection scale® M5 ME %1 %62
e e et e e e e e e e e

Tl 2015, T monaliny table BVG 2010 G v 500, 210 2015, the momalioy ke RF214 WOHA, mith NF2015 projecion st was used.

Sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions circumstances may arise, which could result in variations that are
The table below presents a sensitivity analysis for each significant  outside the range of alternatives deemed reasonably possible.
actuarial assumption, showing how the DBD would have been  Caution should be used in extrapolating the sensitivities below
affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumption that o the overall impact on the DBO as the sensitivities may not be
were reasonably possible at the balance sheet date. Unforeseen  limear,

Sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions'

Irncreaie | (decress) i defned benefil abligation Savias plan UK plan S and German plans

OHF il KPR IALIE 31216 311215 31216 IILIS

Diseourd rale

£ 7T T ™ g™
Dcrunds by 50 bt pont 1,630 1608 457 35 [T} a2

inrease in lengevity by one additionel year 3 T3 T 7 T T
1 The ssiisily aradyges an based thangs in while hoiging all ol asaanons comsa, 5o that Istasen The eachited 2 Aste b chsed tu
imm:duql:;nlpu:‘:rmwﬁ'.‘“!mnmmdmrmnnﬁu:iluunh;m'lﬁ-lu:f!'l rIcl'l!i..l: change in F‘.I & o

applicable. 4 A e plan dogs not proside istesT credi on retiseren sasings, & change in asamption & not applicable.
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Fair value of plan assets

The table below provides information on the composition and fair value of plan assets of the Swiss, the UK and the US pension

plans.

Composition and fair value of plan assets

Swiss plan
31.12.16 IAL15
Fair walsg Flan asset allocation % Fasit elue Plan sz allocation %
Queted in an Quated in an
CHF il st market  Other Tortal scsive markel  Other Tarial
Cash and cash aquivalents 869 0 869 4 517 i 517 ]
Diometic O LGB 2680 i [T T T T 1"
Equity
L ........ S - L. .. S ol 2 LI & 3
... S S AL NS SRS | N, . ... J...... L1
Bomek
Durmestic, Adud s BBE- 110 [ ¥+ ] 2112 ["IX T+ ]
B T e T o
T Foeign, betow BEB- T 0w 5 1055 0 105 )
Real eatale
Ty e e & e s
ﬂ'_d'ﬂ ____________________________________ 28 i 3o 12 1,054 1605 556 "
Diher invesimenis [ 15 15 1] 1] 15 15 i
Totsl 738 6891 M6M 100 18305 5414 23919 100
E]RPA T 311215
Total fair value of plan asets .64 23913
of wdich?
Bavok accounts & UES AG Fird 5i7
LS AT claly fsrrames 5
B T T R
Securies lent o LES AT Lass LT
| Prperty occrpied by LS AG &

" Deative Bran stumenty mwmus!

2
T Tha bard cieeh arsngs am primarly based on Sandars & Poars el (aings. Ratings AAA, I BES- ans beloe BES- 13

R A R AR R .-.....Hﬁ.-.. T
quade and quacke Fings, MEpecively. In Goes whine

mtmghd-mggmumhmm»uqmmhhwumxmm 2 Banik aconumts at UES AKG eRoom pass acroens in the rams of the

beoth divect

i UES &G

aned e

Swiss persinn ferd. The other postions disdosed in e 1tk
3 Serurkies let vo LIES A and financal

Le., Tiose made

immhﬂlnrﬂmmmDIF'ﬁniuluIﬂmmmmmxls negaiive CHF 90 million.
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Composition and fair value of plan assets (continued)
WK plan

A2 3215

Other {35} 111 % 2 (37 123 o 3
Othes imvestments (144} 10 (134) [¢1] [ 7 12 0
Total fair value of plan sttty 1955 m 3,175 100 R 19 3800 100

1 The bord ceeh srings am Dased 0 Siandas B Foor's cedi atngs. 2AA. 10 BEB- an2 bolom HES- 1ade and rade raings, sespocively. In ces whon
mtmgﬁmd-mg%umhmmr-uuu mghdunxmlnn;n'ig.hdm! s -
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Composition and fair value of plan assets (continued)

Us plans.
AL AL
Fak e et st R e N hcaon
Queted in an Quated in an
CHF million st market Other Taial scEve market Othwar Toial
Cash and cash equivlents TS ] 75 7 52 0 5E 5
Bonds!
KA 10 BBE- 158 0 158 14 %5 0 % [
T T T
Foreign, AdA 1o BBB- 17 2
. foneon blow e i ORI R

1]

1]
Totl fair value of plan azsety 1,115 RN 100 906 T o97 100
1 The band crech srsings baerd o Standare & Pooe's et ratings. AAAS 1 BEB= an bilos BES- 1k and i g, Epeciiel. whire
mtmgsﬁmd-:ﬂ::u__mqﬁuHMuu m:hdlh'mlm‘snr'-gm! s - e
5494
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

b) Post-employment medical insurance plans

In the US and the UK, UBS AG offers post-employment medical
benefits that contribute to the health care coverage of cartain
employess and their beneficianies after retirement.

The UK post-employment medical plan is dosed to new
entrants. The post-employment medical benefits in the UK and
the US cover all types of medical expenses. These plans are not
prefundad plans, and costs are recognized as incurred. In the US,
the retirees ako contribute to the cost of the post-employment
medical benefits.

Post-employment medical insurance plans

The benefits expected o be paid by UBS AG to the post-
employment medical insurance plans in 2017 are estimated to
be CHF & million.

The table below provides an analysis of the movement in the
net asset / lability recognized on the balance sheet for post-
employment medical plans, as well a5 an analysis of amounts
recognized in net profit and in Other comprehensive income.

CHF milion U plan U5 plans. Total
Fist the year ended MHAZIE  F1IZAS HALIE AL AL A2
Pet-employsent benefil obligation at the beginning of the ypear 5 £ | 53 B
[ o 0
L 2 3
i 2 2
7 9 13
T e
I & ]
& g &
-t — —g—
Fioreign cumency transiation 4 2 1 1 &
Penz-srploymend benefit cbligation at the end of the yesr 6 5 53 53 a1
o i At S I AcTive vl 3 5 [ a 3
B S S R B S e
o et Aoy g 1o et r o 65 59 3
Fair vale off plan assees 2t the end of the yeer ] [ 0 0 0
Net post-employment benefit avset | (lisbiliy) (25 1254 1651 58 £l
Anahyis of ssounts recognized in net profit
Cuument sanice cosl ] o [ 0 0 0
R e T 5 o G S S
Ne2 periodic expenses 1 1 3 1 4 4
Anahyis of ssounts recognized in other comprehensive incose (OCT)
Reseasurement of pot-emplyment benelil abligasion 2] & ] 13} [l
Total gaing / {ksses) recognized i other comphehensive income, before 1 5] & L] (% 3 a
T Exprrsenca [aire] | et ant & con poaset of acaaridl oF The prz-orpioymeent Eereil abgarion Thar reffect th efTecs of dFernces Setweon TE G 3Caidl 30x] whar s
acwaly pocened. 7 Bonrdit pasrments ane fended by employer comnibaions and plan panicipant aanibation.
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Actuarial assumptions

The measurement of each medical inswrance plan’s post-
employment benefit obligation considers different  actuarial
assumptions. On a country-by-country basis, the same discount
rate i used for the calculation of the post-employment benefit
ohligation from medical insurance plans as for the DBO arising
from pension plans, Changes in assumptions lead to volatility in
the post-employment benefit obligation. The fallowing principal
actuarial assumptions are applied:

Discount rate: similar to defined benefit pension plans, a
decrease n the yield of high-quality corporate bonds
increases  the  postemployment  benefit  obligation.
Conversely, an increass in the yield of high-quality corporate
bonds decreases the post-employment benefit obligation.
Average health care cost trend rate: an increase in health care
costs generally increases the post-employment  benefit
abligation.

Principal actuarial assumptions used!

- Life expectancy: as some plan participants have lifetime
benefits wnder these plans, an increase in life expectancy
increases the post-employment benefit obligation,

Changes in actuarial assumptions
UBS AG regularly reviews the actuamal assumptions wsed in
caloulating its past-employment benefit chligations to determine
their continuing relevance. In 2016 and in 2015, UBS AG
enhanced methodologies and refined approaches used to
estimate several actuarial assumptions. These improvements in
estimates resulted in a2 net increass in the post-employment
benefit coligation.

Principal actuarial assumptions wsed to determine post-
employment benefit obligations at the end of the year were:

UK plan U5 planst
hE ETRFR1S 11215 ILILIE 311215
Discoun rate 260 190 g7 an
vser e huslih cave eoat wend rate — inilisl 510 =10 m 6.75
“sersge beslih cove cost wend rale —dtimate T e s a0 500

1 Thee assumiione Yaf e esperancies aa pasdoed within Nima 282 7 Reysesms weightid svorage Bsampions aones US plas

Sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions

The table below presents a sensitivity analysis for each significant
actuarial assumption showing how the post-employment benefit
obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant
actuarial assumption that were reasonably possible at the
balance sheet date. Unforeseen circumstances may arise, which

Sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions!

could result in wariations that are outside the range of
altematives deemed reasonably possible. Caution should be
used in extrapolating the sensitivities below to the overall impact
on the post-employment benefit cbligation, as the sensitivities
may not be linear.

Increase | (decrame) in posl-employment benefit cbligation L lan U5 plans
CIRFR[Y IA215 NaLe NAzI5
_______ 2 m @ ]
2 2 k] i
S B S .
i3 b i1
Increass inicngety by one additional et I s 5

1 Thee sesiiviny amabyses ae based on & Change in one aswmpson whil bolsiag all other 53 at e th s

¢) Defined contribution plans

UBS AG sponsors a number of defined conmtribution plans in
locations outside Switzerland. The locations with significant
defined contribution plans are the US and the UK. Certain plans
allow employess to make contributions and eam matching or
other contributions from UBS &G, Employer contributions to

596

defined contribution plans are recognized as an expenss, which,
for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2015 and 2014,
amounted to CHF 235 million, CHF 239 million and CHF 244
million, respectively.
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Mote 26 Pension and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

d) Related-party disclosure

UBS AG 5 the principal provider of banking services for the
pension fund of UBS AG in Switzerland. In this function, UBS AG
is engaged to execute most of the pension fund's banking
activities. Thess activities can include, but are not limited 1o,
trading, securities lending and bomowing and  derivative
transactions. The non-Swiss UBS AG pension funds do not have
a similar banking relationship with UBS AG.

The bank leases certain properties that are owned by the
Swiss pension fund. As of 31 December 2016, the minimum
commitment toward the Swiss pension fund wnder the related

leases is appromimately CHF 11 million (31 December 2015: CHF
11 million).
— Refer to the “Composition and fair value of plan assets” table in
HNote 26a for more information on fair value of investments in
UBS AG instruments held by the Swiss pension fund

The following amounts have been received or paid by UBS
AG from and to the pension and other post-employment benefit
plans located in Switzedand, the UK and the US in respect of
these banking activities and amangements.

Related-party disclosure

Far the yesr ended
LHF miiat ARG 1215 EIRFAL]
Rusceivied by LIBS A
o . - - - - F— g i
Paid by US5 AG )
e 4 s 8
Dividends and capital repagmments 15 i 4

The transaction volumes in UBS Group AG shares and UBS AG debt instruments and the balances of UBS Group AG shares held as

of 21 December were:

Transattion volumes - UES Group AG shares and UBS AG debt instruments

For the year ended
1216 ETRIERE
Rideoriorbib ot g daks Lasns skl S S et et
UIBS Groiip AG shired (in thoiands of shered) a7 1,544
LIBS A5 debil irssrussents (par values, CHF milion) 1] 3

Financial instruments sold by pengion funds or satured

LIBS Group AG shered (in thoiands of shenes) 1,255
{par wluies, CHF milian)
UBS Group AG shares held by pension and other post-employment benefit plans
EIRFAL EIR ALY
Husshes of shares fim thoussnds of shares) 18,363 17,737
Fair valle {CHF millisn} 13 344
597
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a) Plans offered

The UBS Group has several equity participation and other
compensation plans to align the interests of Group Executive
Board (GEB) members, Key Risk Takers and other employess
with the interests of inwestors while confinuously meeting
regulatory requirements. This Mote provides a description of the
mast significant plans offered by the Group which relate to the
performance year 2016 (awards granted in 2017) and those
from prior years that were partly expensed in 2016,
— Refer to Mote 1a item & for & description of the accounting
pality related to equity participation and ather compemsation
plans

Mandatory share-based compensation plans

Equity Onwmership Plan (EOF)

The EOP is a mandatory share-based compensation plan far all
employess with total compensation greater than CHRUSD
300,000. These employees receive a portion of their annual
performance-related compensation above the threshold in the
form of notional shares. Furthermore, notional shares granted to
GEE members, Key Risk Takers, Group Managing Directors
(GMDs) or employees whose incentive awards exceed a certain
threshold, are subject to performance conditions. These
performance conditions are based on the Group's return on
tangible equity and the divisional return on attributed equity {for
Corporate Center employess, the combined retumn on attributed
equity of all business divisions). Certain awards, such as
replacement awards issued outside the normal perfarmance year
cycle, may take the form of deferred cash wunder the EOF plan
rules.

Moticnal shares represent a promise to receive UBS shares at
vesting and do not carry voting rights during the westing period.
Motional shares granted before February 2014 have no rights to
dividends, whereas awards granted since February 2014 camy a
dividend equivalent which may be paid n notional shares or
cash and which vests on the same terms and conditions as the
awards. Awards are settled by delivering UBS shares at vesting,
excent in purisdictions where this is not permitted for kegal or tax
reasons, EOP awards generally vest in equal installments after
two and three years following agrant (for GEB members,
generally after three, four and five years) The awards are
generally forfeitable uwpon, among  other  circumstances,
valuntary termination of employment with UES.

Senior BExecutive Equity Cwnership Plan (SEEQF):

Up to February 2012, GEE members and selected senior
exscutives received a portion of their mandatory deferral in UBS
shares or notional shares, which wvested in equal installments

5498

over a five-year vesting period and were forfeitable if certain
conditions had not been met. The employee's business division
or the Group as a whaole had to be profitable in the financial
year preceding scheduled vesting. Awards grantsd under SEEQP
are sattled by delivering UBS shares at vesting. No SEEQP awards
have been granted since 2012,

Role-based allowances (RBAs):

Certain employess of EU regulated entities may receive an RBA
in addition to their base szalary. This allowance reflects the
market value of a specific role and is only paid as long as the
employee is within such a rode. RBAs are offered in line with
market practice and are generally paid in cash. In the UK, RBAs
are partially awarded in cash and above a threshold in blocked
UES shares. Such shares will be unblocked in equal installments.
after two and three years. The compensation expense is
recognized in the year of grant.

Mandatory deferred cash compensation plans

Deferred Contingent Capital Plan (DCCP):

The DCCP is a mandatory deferred cash compensation plan for
all employess with total compensation greater than CHRUSD
300,000, DCCP awards granted up to January 2015 represent a
right to recefve a cash payment at westing. For awards granted
since February 2015, DCCP takes the form of notional additional
tier 1 (AT1) capital instruments, which may be settled at the
dizcretion of UBS in the form of a cash payment or a marketable
AT1 capital instrument. Awards vest in full after five years unless
there is a trigger or viability event. Awards granted under the
DCCP are written down if UBS's common equity tier 1 capital
ratio falls below 10% for GEE members and below 7% for all
other employess. DCCP awards are also forfeited if a viability
event ocours, that is, if FINMA provides a written notice to UBS
that the DCCP awards must be written down to prevent an
insoheency, bankruptoy or failure of UBS, or if UBS receives a
commitment of exraordinary support from the public sechor
that is necessary to prevent such an event. Additionally, GEE
members forfeit 20% of their award for each year during the
vesting period in which UBS does not achieve an adjusted profit
before tax. For awards granted up to Jlanuary 2015, interest on
the awards s paid annually, provided that UBS achieved an
adjusted profit before tax in the preceding year. For awards
granted since February 2015, interest payments are
dizcretionary. The awards are generally forfeitable upon, amaong
ather drcumstances, voluntary termination of employment with
UBS.
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Mote 27 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

Long-Term Deferred Retention Senior Incentive Scheme
(LTDRSIS):

Awards under the LTDRSIS were gramted to employees in
Australiz up to and including 2074 and represent a profit share
amount based on the profitability of the Australian business,
Awards vest after three years and include an arrangement which
allowes for wnpaid installments to be reduced if the business
records a loss for the calendar year preceding westing. The
awards are generally forfeitable upon voluntary termination of
employment with UBS.

Asset Management EQP:

In order to align deferred compensation of certain Asset
hanagement employees with the performance of the funds they
manage, EOP awards are granted to such employees in the form
of cash-settled notional funds. The amount delivered depends
on the value of the underlying investment funds at the fime of
vesting. The awards are generally forfeitable upon, among other
circumstances, voluntary termination of employment with LES.

Wealth Management Americas financial advisor
compensation

Financial advisor compensation plans generally provide for cash
payments and deferred awards that are formula driven and
fluctuate in proportion to the level of business activity.

UBS also may enter into compensation commitments with
certain new financial advisors, primarily as a recruitment
incentive and to incentivize certain eligible active financial
advisors to achieve specified revenue production and other
performance conditions. The compensation may be earned and
paid to the employee during a period of continued employment
and may be forfeited under certain droumstances,

GrowthPlus:

GrowthPlus is a program for selected financial advisors whose
revenue production and length of service exceed defined
thresholds  from 2040 throwgh 2017,  Compensation
amangements were granted in 2010, 2011 and 2015, with
additional arrangements expected to be Bsued in 2018, The
awards are distributed over ssven years, with the exception of
2018 arrangements which will be distributed over five years.

PartnerPlus:

PartnerPlus is a mandatory deferred cash compensation plan for
certain elgible financial advisors. Awards (UBS AG company
contributions) are based on a predefined formula during the

performance year. Participants are also allowed to wvoluntarily
contribute additional amounts otherwise payable during the

year, up to a certain percentage of their pay, which vest upon
confribution.  Company  contributions and  wvoluntary
contributions are credited with interest in accordance with the
terms of the plan. Rather than being credited with interest, a
participant may elect to have voluntary contributions, along with
vested company contributions, cedited with notional sarnings
based on the performance of various mutual funds. Company
confributions and interest on both company and voluntary
confributions ratably vest in 20% mstallments six to ten years
following grant date. Company confributions and interest on
notional earnings on both company and voluntary contributions.
are forfeitable under certain drcumstances.

Other share-based compensation plans

Equity Plus Flan (Equity Flus):

Equity Flus is a woluntary plan that provides eligible employees
with the opportunity to purchase UBS shares at market value
and receive one notional share for every three shares purchased,
up to a maximum annual limit. Share purchases may be made
annually from the performance award and / or monthly through
deductions from salary. i the shares purchassd are held for
three years, and in general if the employes remains in
employment, the notional shares vest. For notional shares
granted since Aprl 2014, employees are entitled to receive a
dividend equivalent, which may be paid in notional shares and /
or cash,

Key Employee Stock Apprediation Rights Plan (KESAFP) and Key
Employee Stock Option Plan (KESOP):

Until 2009, key and high-potential employees were granted
dizcretionary share-settled stock appreciation rights (SARs) or
options on UBS shares with a strike price not less than the
market value of a UBS share on the date of grant. A SAR gives
employees the fght to receive a number of UBS shares equal to
the value of any market price increase of a UBS share between
the grant date and the exercise date. One option entitles the
holder to acquire one registered UBS share at the option's strike
price. SARs and options are settled by delivering UBS shares,
except in jurisdictions where this is not permitted for legal
reasons. These awards are generally forfeitable upon termimation
of employment with UBS. Mo options or SARs awards have been
granted since 2009,
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Mote 27 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

b} Effect on the income statement

Effect on the income statement for the finandial year and future
periods

The table below provides information on  compensation
pxpenses related to performance awards and other variable
compensation, including  financial advisor compensation in
Wealth Management Americas, recognized for the financial year
ended 31 December 20M6 and deferred compensation expense
that will be recognized in the income statement for 2017 and

Personnel expenies - recognized and deferred”

later. The deferred compensation expense in the table also
includes wested and unvested awards, which relate t©o the
performance year 2016, The majority of them were granted in
February 2017. The total compensation expense for unvested
share-based awards granted up to 31 December 2016 will be

recognized in future periods over a weighted average period of
2.0 years,

Personnel esperies for the year ended 2016 Personnel expenses defemed o 2017 and later

Eaprriy

feslating 1o o
CHF il m”ﬂﬁ s ‘.'urm Totsl  swards for 1011 s Inrm Toial
Performance awards
Cash performance swards 1817 “z 1,775 ] o 1]
Defimried Congingent Capital Plan 133 195 418 266 468 735
“Deered cash glans T 0 3 3 v s 5
Equity Ownership Plan — LIES shares 214 485 639 n 56 727
Equity Ownesstip Plan — national hunds % 9 65 kL T &0
Total performance swands L1 TEl pLr] 671 856 527
s
Fingndial advisor compenaaion — cash paymenty 2,508 ] 1,506 ] o 0
‘Compensstion conmitments wilh recruised financisl schisons, 43 756 798 g7 2Am 2781
GecwthFus and other dedemal glans 112 199 kil 139 ] 912
T T e et e e s e e s
Whalth Mansgesen Americss: Finsncisl sdvisor compeniation® b1 3 1,002 3,607 B4 ETES 31,816
Totsl 5,152 1,935 7087 1,637 4,169 5,806

1 In B, ol pesonel
allosances {F 39 million], Wealih

el 1o shadie baed
Totie s of CHE T3 o ik sed . s, v agetnts of G 217 il G
selanosd 1o prics prars).
EI'I! m i 1016, 1015 and 100,

tamvsicas Tiramdal advison ooy

anchiding sadal seourity ware CHF B51 million. 2 Inclaces

S Arandal atvisl onpemarian oS

e lared 10 shase-based peTsatian CFF 90 millio, which sebaod 50 perfomancs awards {0HF 559 milion], oolier sasiable compensation (CHF 40 million], ole based
Il.lm;lu-: N o mllnﬁﬂzmhhmﬂnﬁﬁﬂuﬂmﬁmmﬂnﬁﬁTﬂ

i

parymens. of CHF B85 million dof which C4F 62 million selated oo prios years],
sekateed 1o 231} and seientian plan and other paymenms of CHF BES million (of which OH4F 163 milion

!rﬂnmwd CHF 58 million for ummmum n0ITL & inchedes DCCP interest eqpens of CHF 243 million for DCCF assascs 1015, 2014 and

commpesarion based disscly on compensahle sesanms geneiated by Snandal advisos aad

of guchast
tersedl o financial asvior progaciity, fiom wener, s and o vasables b also indases chasges reaied m cmpetrion commimenms sith fnancil asvions eered

I'mnrhlmdlnrl'-nrh.n-nq.ummqmmnwﬁnﬂumhﬂmwnhmﬂmmndhmmm
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Mote 27 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

Personnel expenses - recognized and deferred”

Perdonnel esperes for the year ended 2015 Personnel expenues defemed 1o 2016 and later
rdlh] 1o mﬁﬂfﬁ‘: Relating 1o m&d::gp';

CHF million svandk for 2015 yeas Total  awards for 2015 years Total
Perfeerrance swards
Cash pettemance s 2073 124 1,360 b [ 0
Dethartied Cortingent Capital Man 172 158 429 343 485 789
Delimried cash plans 1] 12 12 1] 3 3
Equity Ownership Plan — LIBS sheres 261 461 722 524 338 851
Eepuily Ownership Plan — nitional hunds F T &7 u 5 [
Total performance awands 1,535 &7 i 00 822 1122
Varisble compensasion
Varisble compensation — cther 184 162 3R HE 203 541
Finamcial adwiior COMpENSANEN — cash payments 2,460 1] 1460 o L] 0
,Emm e e b P
GrowthPus and ather defermsl plans 132 142 75 o 456 1,166
Upsdhesplees T T 7 T s 2 8B ns 18
Wealth Mansgesen Amesicas: Finencidl sdvisor compensation® LT3 BT9 3,552 1.7e 2470 4,186
Totsl 531 1716 7,108 LEed 3,585 6,443
T in 2015, onal pessona] cxporeses siarwd v shart-based comperation mese CFF 956 milkon, which mbed 12 | awarts {FF 732 milion), el wasalie conpersation [CHF 58 milion], e based

allzssances {CHF 16 million), Wealth Maragenest smesicas famdal advson compersation (CFF B2 million), the Beity Flas Flan (OFF 21 milion) and socal seosity coss 4CFF 61 million). Total pesonasl
q-nurlhud'nm E-mmndmgmﬂmny_mme 2 Inclaes seplacersent payments of CHF 76 million (of which CHF &5 million sslaied no prior years],
arerfits of CHF £6 millian (all related to prio years), severance pagments of CHF 157 milion {all sekoed 0 2005 and wiestion plan and other papmens. of CFF 198 millon [of which CHF 163 milion
ﬁ-ﬁlupﬂu'pﬁ. 1 Inclages DLCF interst expense of CHF 160 milion dm DOCP awands 2015 {granoed in 20161 4 indutes DICP interest spense of CFF 200 million foo DCCF awands 1014, 2013 and
m‘lzmums,munml;,m# 5 Frandal advis compensation consiss of guickbased compesation based dsecly on compensably srseees geasiaitd by Snandal advisors and
tersed o finandial askisor produciity, fam weae, ases and oche waables. I alse inclasies Mmmmnmﬂu:ﬂmm
mnhmdmmdm-nqmmmngmmnwﬁnﬂumﬁquﬂnhm g i, of the baknce sheet date.
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Mote 27 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

Personnel expenses - recognized and deferred”

Humrdwhﬂwmﬂlma Personnel expenes defemed o 2015 and later
rdlh]m MFEEHSIM: Relating 1o m&dﬂgﬂ;

CHF million sward for 2014 Toksl  awards for 2014 year Total
Performance swands
Cash perfermance swards 182 {108) 1714 (i} 0 0
Dielherried Costingent Capital Man 15 194 g ETH 86 fa8
‘Defered cash plares T 0 12 12 0 F
Eguity Ownerstips Plan — RS shares L 444 £59 453
Ivenlive Ferlormanes Pan . T TR T TR
Total LIRS share plans 15 465 (1] 453
Bty Ownerstip Plan — noticnal fends M 4 65 6
Totsl perforsance swands 1,216 E04 180 BT
mw o LLL R - S .
‘Varisbie compénsation — cher 60 06 4662 w7
Finandial atviscr compensation — cadh pagments 135 ] 1,396 ]
‘Compensaton commitments with recuied firancial aésos m 636 7% 524
GeomthPlus and oher defenal plans a 153 734 189
T . H et
Weaith Mansgesen Amercas: Finsncisl BEot compensation® 153 Bi6 3,365 754 7m 3,483
Totel 5015 1656 BET1 1,858 3,863 5731
1 I 2014, ozl p ] sh ] wamer CHF 342 muilban, which relined 1o perfomance ssaics (CHF 630 nilben), other sk comperacion [CHE 113 milioal, rbe-tased

allzsances [CHF 9 million], Wealth mhxr.um HE ED mrillion ], the hss Flan J0FF 19 million} and sodial [CHE 42 millias). Total
uumwwm.uqmmmm 2 ks it paeass o CHE 81 il f i CHF 70l e 0 p P, e
omdits ot CHF 70 milion (ail relaned! 1o priai r‘ﬂ. dﬂ'F'IEll-lHmm!ﬂ{l‘mhﬂmr—nﬂ'ﬂ"mmMMEHFnlﬁmmw
jeat, 3 Incheies DCCF imesest caperse |:|rﬂ:uhng:rmmu[ymunmm 4 Inchides DCCF il taperse mrﬂmhmmmanmum-mu
and 2013, 5 Financial adwisod oo ol grid-tased [zased disealy on B financial acwisors and sipplene al

e Sl i iy, o s o s b 365 s A WA o oA, s s Rl s A 3 o At T
AT W TG e eitemmnn. Amoens selemed &5 CofEnes EeREsEs IMESER Tie Madnen deientd fe0sait a5 of he balanor sheer dane.
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Mote 27 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

t) Movements during the year

UBS share and performance share awards
hovements in LUBS share and notional share awards were:

UBS share awands
Weighted Weighied
Tt Nonberclshues et
value (CHF) M5 wallue [CHF)
Dutstanding, at the beginning of the year 18 467,548 15
Shares swanded during the year 13 158,334 17
Diswbuliors during e year T o T T ammansT s
Torsled dutegheyes TRYTTY o @3 19
Dutstanding, ab the end ol the yeer 512,185 16 437,443 18

o il shaviesr vested for Acoouniing purpodes 183 953 138 908

The fair value of shares that became legally vested, as all conditions had been met, and were distributed during the wears ended
2016 and 2015 was CHF 2 million and CHF 5 million, respectively.

d) Valuation

LIES share awards

UES AG measures compensation expense based on the average
market price of the UBS share on the grant date as quoted on
the 51X Swiss Exchanges, taking into consideration post-vesting
sale and hedge restrictions, non-vesting conditions and market
conditions, where applicable. The fair value of the share awards
subject to post-vesting sale and hedge restrictions is discounted
on the basis of the duration of the post-vesting restriction and i
referenced to the cost of purchasing an at-the-money European
put option for the term of the transfer restriction. The grant date
fair value of notional shares withouwt dividend entitlements also
includes a deduction for the present value of future expected
dividends to be paid between the grant date and distribution.
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a) Interests in subsidiaries

UBS AG defines its significant subsidianies as those entities that,
sither individually or in aggregate, contribute significantly w UBS
AG's financial position or results of operations, based on a
number of criteria, induding the subsidiares” equity and their
contribution to UBS AG's total assets and profit or loss before
tax, n accordance with the requirements set by FFRS 12, Swiss
regulations and the rules of the US Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC).

Individually significant subsidiaries as of 31 December 2016

Individually significant subsidiaries

The two tables below list UBS AG's individually significant
subsidianies as of 31 December 2016, Unless otherwise stated,
the subsidiaries listed below have share capital consisting solely
of ordinary shares, which are held fully by UBS AG, and the
proportion of ocwnership interest held is equal to the woting
rights held by UBS AG.

The country where the respective registered office is located
is also the principal place of business. UBS Euwrope SE has
branches and offices in a number of EU member states,
including branches in Germany, Italy, Luxembourg and Spain.

Campany Registered affice.

Frimery business division

Shere capitsl in million  Equity interest sccumulaled in %

IS Americas Holding LLC

Cirperase Cenlir 15D

LIBS Asset Mansgesent AG
LIBS Barik LISA

UBS Euope

225010 100.0
437

LB Finandal Servioes Inc.

medmmmmmmljm-lmmgmhwdmummm 2 Comprised of comman shar Capial of USD 102,000 and nos=voing periered shas capital
USD 1, 263,000,000

During 2016, the majarity of the operating subsidianes of Asset
hanagement were transferred to UBS Asset Management AG to
create a holding structure spanning the division's global activities
outside the US. Ako in 2016, UBS AG's direct Wealth
Management subsidiaries UBS (Halia) Spd, UBS {Luxemibourg)
5.4 (incheding its branches in Austria, Denmark and Sweden),
UBS Bank 5.A_ (Madrid) and UBS Bank (Metherlands) BV, were

merged into UBS Deutschland &G, which was renamed to UBS
Europe SE and is headquartered in Frankfurt, Germany.

UBS Americas Holding LLC, UBS Asset Management AG, UBS
Eurcpe SE, UBS Limited and UBS Switzerland AG are fully held
by UBS AG. UBS Bank USA, UBS Fnancial Services Inc. and UBS
Securities LLC are fully held, directly or indirectly, by UBS
Americas Holding LLC.

517/624

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Mote 28 Interests in subsidiaries and other entities (continued)

Other subsidiaries
The table below lists other subsidianies of UBS AG that are not individually significant but that contribute to UBS AG"s total assets.

and aggregated profit before tax thresholds and are thereby disclosed in accordance with the requirements set by the SEC.

Orther subsidiaries as of 31 December 2016

Commpany
LIBE Americet Inc

LIBS Asset Management (LK) Led
UIBS Busiress Solusions. LS LLC

EUR 120 1000

LB Hesdige Fund Solutions LLC Wilsingtan, Delaware, USA Hfussen Management ED ot 1000

LIS O Connar LLC Diver, Diel sravare, LISA fused Menagement 1] 1.0 1000
LIS Redl Estate Securities Inc. Wilsingion, Delewere, US4 Irwestimeen| Bank 1] on 100.0

LB Senvices LLC Wilsingtan, Deleware, LS8 Corpoate Cenler ED oo

JesWhoprsolated ... Lok el

In 2016, UBS ltalia SIM Spd, a subsidiary conducting activities of the Investment Bank, was converted to a branch of UBS Limited,
Londaon, via a crass-barder merger transaction.
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Mote 28 Interests in subsidiaries and other entities (continued)

Changes in consolidation scope

In 2016, no significant subsidianies were added to or removed
from the scope of consolidation as a result of acquisitions or
disposals.

Naon-controlling interests

Az of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, non-
controdling interests were not material to UBS AG. In addition, as
of these dates there were no significant restrictions on UBS AG's
ability to access or use the assets and settle the Rabilities of
subsidiaries resulting from protective rights of non-contralling
interests.

Consolidated structured entities

UES AG consodidates a structured entity (SE) if it has power over
the relevant activities of the entity, exposure to variable retums
and the ability to wse its power to affect its retums.
Consalidated SEs include certain imvestment funds, sscuritization
vehicles and client investment vehicles. UBS has no individually
significant subsidiaries that are SEs.

Investment fumd 5Es are generally consolidated when UBS
AG's aggregate exposure combined with its decision-making
rights indicate the ability to use such power in a principal
capacity. Typically UBS AG will have decsion-making rights as

606

fund manager, eaming a management fee, and will provide seed
capital at the nception of the fund or hold a significant
percentage of the fund units. Where other investors do not have
the substantive ability to remove UBS as decision maker, UBS AG
is deemed to have control and therefore consolidates the fund.

Securitization SEs are generally consolidated when UBS AG
holds a significant percentage of the asset-backed securities
issued by the SE and has the power to remove without cause the
servicer of the asset portfolio.

Client irvestment SEs are generally consolidated when UBS
AG has a substantive liquidation right owver the SE or a decision
right over the assets held by the 3E and has exposure to vanable
returns through derivatives traded with the SE or holding notes.
issued by the SE.

In 2016 amnd 2015, UBS AG has not entered into ary
contractual obligation that could require UBS AG to provide
finandal support to consolidated SEs. In addition, UBS AG did
not provide support, financial or otherwize, to a consolidated SE
whien UBS AG was not contractually obligated to do so, nor has
LBS AG an intention to do 5o in the futwre, Further, UBS AG did
not provide support, financial or otherwise, to a previoushy
unconsolidated SE that resulbed in UBS AG contralling the SE
during the reporting period.
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Mote 28 Interests in subsidiaries and other entities (continued)

b) Interests in associates and joint ventures

Az of 31 December 2016 and 2015, no assodate or joint  the form of cash dividends or o repay koans or advances made.
venture was individually material to UBS AG. In addition, there There were no quoted market prices for any associates or joint
were no significant restrictions on the ability of associates or  ventures of UBS AG.

joint ventures to transfer funds to UBS AG or its subsidiaries in

Inwestments in adsocistes and joint ventures

CHF mifiat HAZE EIRFAEY

Camying smoust &1 the beginning of the yesr o5 077
@
2

Fearwign cummancy ransialion |
Camying asount & the end of the year
of il associates
R IO S T TR BT
of il S Growg 4G, Zurch®

o il e ventures 29 FL
T For 2018, comsts. of CHF 94 million from assacares a8 CHF 12 Filion 156 o vomaes, For 2015, conibids of CHF 158 million an awectnns. and CFF 11 nilion o [ wmaies. 2 in 2015, e 5
Group sold s smds i STONK Lind and indexium Lid The UES shane of the resehing gain on sile was CHF 81 milbon 3 For 2008, congiess of negaries CHF 25 million o asocias. and CHF O millien from joing
wanieres. For 2015, oo of negaties CHF 15 million from associaos and CHF O milion from joint senieres. 4 UBS AG's oquily intenest ameums 10 24.59%.  5UBS AG's equity imemst amounts w0 17.31%.
UES AG b sepresomed on the Baard of Direcion.
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Mote 28 Interests in subsidiaries and other entities (continued)

€} Intarests in unconsolidated structured entities

[ruring 2016, UBS AG sponsored the creation of various SEs and
interacted with a number of non-sponsored SEs, including
securitization wehicles, client wehicles as well as certain
imestment funds, which UBS did not consolidate as of 31
December 2016 because it did not contral these entities.

The table below presents UBS AG's interests in and maximum
exposure o boss from unconsolidated SEs as well as the total
assets held by the SEz in which UBS had an interest as of year-
end, except for investment funds sponsored by third parties, for
which the carrying value of UBS's interest as of yearend has

oOoOooodn

been dischased.
Interests in unconsolidated structured entities
IILIE
Securilization Maisism

I i, ancend Wi idlvated vehicls  Client vehicles Insestinent honds Tokal b hoas!
Trading poitilio sses 634 I 6215 .43 7,243
e e
Loare 0 [} 9 ™ b
" Finaneal assets designaed o {51 value T = [ w175
e L
ither sisets 289 i o ) 1,450
Totsl sty 1,066 391 545 11,431

Hesative replicement vaes Ery 6 & Mg 0
Total fabilities 13 346 & 45

‘asets held By the uncorsoldsted stmuchured ensities in which UBS had an intesest

{CHF billio) i i) EETy

E{RFAE
Secufilization Masi=un eaposre

M millin, arcant Wi ofcated vehicles  Client vehides lewestment funds Totsl to loss!
Trading portiolia sssets 1,050 463 6,102 T 7624
“Poitive reglscement vales T 1 1 57 o 200
owew 0 0 T wm m
Finandal assets designated a1 {air value 0 g7 [ £ 1,636
S ¥
Diher sisety 0 a5 [ 45 037
Total miets 11012 4,102 6,362 11,565

Megatior replacement v Eig 631 [ Bt 19
Tetal fabilities 30 631 ] &1

Azsets held By the unconsolidated structured ensities in which UBS had an inteses

{CHF Billian) 141* 43 3

1 it piarpeses of 1his disclaaie, masdmiin Sposait 10 loes amoums oo mo okser th eHecs of colaniral ar ocha aedkt echancemems. 7 Repiesems the cawing walie of s oonniments,
boch desigransd ai taw valee and held a1 amarized coe. The masdman eqas 10 ns fol hem imnsners i« weal o o sdonl e 3 A of 31 Decomben 2008, O6F L0 bllion of the CFF 11 diion
{31 Daoermksr 2005 CHF 09 billion of the CHF 1.1 bllion) was beld ln Comarie Center = Maseoons and Legacy Porale. 4 Compeised of owdit delaek {005} babifites and other ssap Raslies. The
m“nnhhmﬁkqﬂnhmiﬁmmmﬂﬁﬂﬂm.mm”HMmuhmm:Ltm 5 Beprosents prindgal anaen:
cirstanding. & Represents T marker sakse of tocal aseem. T Appreseers e e msen waks of the msesmeene funss sponsored by USS and 1he camying sakse of UBS's imenss in e lnsesimens funss moc

spansaind by LSS,
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Mote 28 Interests in subsidiaries and other entities (continued)

UBS AG retains or purchases interests in unconsolidated SEs
in the form of direct investments, financing, guarantess, letters
of credit, derivatives and through management contracts.

UBS AG's maxdmum exposure o oss is generally equal 1o the
camrying value of UBS AG's interest in the SE, with the exception
of guarantees, letters of credit and credit derivatives far which
the contract's notional amount, adjusted for losses aleady
incurred, reprasents the madmum loss that UBS AG i exposed
to. In addition, the current fair value of derivative swap
instruments with a positive replacement value only, such as total
retum swaps, is presented as the maximum exposure to lass,
Risk exposure for these swap instruments could change ower
time with market movements.

The maximum exposure 1o loss dischosed in the table on the
previous page does not reflect UBS AG's risk management
activities, incduding effects from financial instruments that may
be used to economically hedge the risks inherent in the
unconsolidated SE or the risk-reducing effects of collateral or
other credit enhancements.

In 2016 and 2015, UBS AG did not provide support, financial
or otherwie, to an unconsolidated SE when not contractually
ohligated to do 5o, nor has UBS AG an intention to do so in the
future,

In 2016 and 2015, income and expenses from interests in
unconsolidated SEs primarily resulted from  mark-to-market
movements recognized in net trading income, which have
generally been hedged with other financial instruments, as well
as fee and commission income received from UBS sponsored
funds.

Interests in securitization wvehicles

Az of 31 December 2016 and 21 December 2015, UBS AG held
interests, both retained and acquired, in various securitization
vehickes, As of 31 December 2016, a majority of UBS AG's
interests in securitization vehices related to a portfolio of asset-
backed securities (ABS), which are held within Corporate Center
- Mon-core and Legacy Portfolic. The Investment Bank also
retained interests in securitization vehicles related to finanding,
underwriting, secondary market and derivative trading activities,

In some cases UBS AG may be required to absorb losses from an

unconsolidated SE before other parties because UBS AG's

interest is subordinated to others in the ownership structure. &n

owerview of UBS AG's interests in unconsolidated securitization

vehicles and the relative ranking and external credit rating of

thase interssts is presented in the table on the following page.
— Refer to Mote 1a item 1 for more information on UBS AG's

asccounting policies regarding lidation and sp ship of
securitization vehicled and other structured entities

Interests in chent vehicles

As of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, UBS AG
retaimed interests in client vehicles sponsored by UBS and third
parties that relate to financing and derivative activities and to
hedge structured product offerings. Induded within these
investments are secunities guaranteed by US government
agencies.

Intarests in investment funds

UBS AG holds mterests in a number of investment funds,
primarily resulting from seed investments or to hedge structured
product offerings. In addition to the interests disclosed in the
table on the previous page, UBS AG manages the assets of
various pooled investment funds and receives fees that are
based, in whole or part, on the net asset value of the fund and 7
or the performance of the fund. The specific fee structure is
determined on the basis of various market factors and considers
the nature of the fund, the jurisdiction of incorporation as well
as fee schedules negofiated with clients. Thess fee contracts
represent an interest in the fund as they align UBS AG's
expasure with investors, providing a variable return that is based
on the performance of the entity. Depending on the structure of
the fund, these fees may be collected directly from the fund
assets and / or from the investors. Any amounts due are
collected on a regular basis and are generally backed by the
amets of the fund. UBS AG did not have any material exposure
tor loss from these interests as of 31 December 2016 or as of 31
December 2015.
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Mote 28 Interests in subsidiaries and other entities (continued)

Interests in unconsolidated securitization vehicles!
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Mote 28 Interests in subsidiaries and other entities (continued)

Interests in unconsolidated securitization vehicles {continued)!

3215

Residaritisl Comimereial
margage- backed Dt anset-

(W mdllin, rcent Wiare iofcates’ backed securities securities  backed seourilies? Re-seouris- zation? Total
Sponsoeed by UES
Invienests in senior panches o 54 1] 13 66
T of eiich ated vesinent grace £ o T 5
U ofmiich defited e
Inilerests in serzening ranche 3 7 1} [} 10
o e pateer sul-Srsimany rac 2 7
Ul derer 1 YT
Totsl 3 61 o 13 7
o it Trauing protiia steare k] &1 i 7 77
Total ety held by the vehicles in which UBS kad an intenest (CHI bilion) ] 28 0 1 9
Mot sponsoned by LIBS
Ievterests in senior franches 284 66 3= 140 873
T of eich rateet investent grace 284 & wm " a7
Irileredts in serzaning ranche &1 17 17 ] g5
MMJM'M S N S e
o it ool 3 3
Iteresls in juniorn irandhes " E] i} o 14
MMJM'M P T
o ik nof rated a 3 3
Totsl H56 BE 400 140 ge3
" o k. Trading portlis atee % & w m Pl
Total sieis held by the vehicle in which LIBS had an interest (CHF bilion) 54 a7 3 2 109
| This table eechsdes receisables and deiivathae Mansac b wehichs. 2 Inchides coech card, asin and studen loan siecans. 3 Inchedes colmsalized debt obligavions.
611

524/624



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

Mote 28 Interests in subsidiaries and other entities (continued)

Sponsored vnconsolidated structured entities in which UBS did
mat have an inferast

For several sponsored SEs, no interest was held by UBS AG at
year-end. However, during the respective reporting period UBS
A0 transferred assets, provided services and held nstruments
that did not qualify as an interest in these sponsored 5Es, and
accordingly earned income or incurred expenses from these
entities. The table below presents the income eamed and
expenses incurred directly from these entities during the year as
well as corresponding asset information, The table does not
include  income earmed and expenses incurred from  risk
management activities, including income and expenses from
financial instruments wsed to economically hedge mstruments
transacted with the unconsolidated SEs.

The majority of the fee income arose from investment funds
that are sponsored and administrated by UBS AG, but managed
by third parties. As UBS AG does mot provide any active
management services, UBS was not exposed to risk from the
performance of these entities and was therefore deemed not to
have an interest in them. In certain structures, the fees receivable

may be collected directly from the investors and have thersfore
not been nchuded in the table below.

UBS AG also recorded net trading income from mark-to-
market movements arising primarily from derivatives, such as
interest rate and currency swaps as well as credit derivatives,
through which UBS AG purchases protection, and financial
liabilities designated at fair value, which do not qualify as
interests because UBS AG does not absorb variability from the
performance of the entity. Total income reported doss not reflect
economic hedges or other mitigating effects from UBS AG's risk
management activities.

Curing 2016, UBS and third parties transferred assets totaling
CHF 132 billion (2015: CHF 9 billion) into sponsored securitization
and dient wehicles created in 2016, For sponsored investment
funds, transfers arose during the period as imvestors invested
and redesmed positions, thereby changing the overall size of the
funds, which, when combined with market movements, resulted
in a total closing net asset value of CHF 14 bilion {31 December
2015 CHF 12 billion).

Sponsored unconsolidated structured entities in which UBS did not have an interest at year-end®

B of or for the year ended
TR R
(W mdllion, arcent Wi oicates Seuritization vehides  Client wehicles Irvestsent funds Total
et inbereest income 3 a ®
het few s commistion income: 1] 53 5
het Brading income 2z (158) Fo) (128)
Total income 4 {1651 a2 (78)
At irforssation {CHF bllisn) I & 144
A of or for the year ended
311215
(W mdllion, ercent Wiare Bofcates’ Securitization wehides  Clent wehicles Investsent Tunds Total
B e sememssremee s smmms s e e e e et e st e et pepem e LN L) S LI L]
het few s commistion income: ] 1] 57 57
Het trading income 18 g 48 274
Total imcome 20 197 04 an
At inforsation {CHF bllion) B 1 12

oOoOooodn

1ﬂnuﬂundnmhnuﬂmphummdﬂrﬁ-hupm:lnunums—uln:uhﬁpmalnmums 7 Repuestres e anoem of
1o thes resgec vshiches OF the toal ameu mansfened, CHF 2 lion sas trareiene by USS (31 Decorber 2015 CHF 3 billion) and CFF 5 hillion wee ranstessd by third

ﬂl[:unurm'lE:DlF!hllut 3 sotal aswns b oo The clint weliicles. O the otal amosnt arskessd, CHF 5 billion wes ansiered 3y UBS (31 Decsmber 2015 CHF 1 bilion)

ﬂtHF1th-sm=h-dipdilpmuBlmm15:Erllm 4 Beprosents the ol set asser value of 1he ispeche insesment funds.

Note 28 Business combinations

In 2016 and 2015, UBS AG did not complete any significant business combinations.
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Mezasures to improve the resclvability of UBS Group in
response to too big to fail requirements in Switzerland
and other countries in which UBS Group operates

In December 2014, LUBS Group 4G completed an exchange offer
for the shares of UBS AG and became the holding company of
UBS Group. During 2015, UBS Group AG completed a court
procedure under article 33 of the Swiss Stock Ewchange Act
(SESTA procedure) resulting in the cancelation of the shares of
the remaining minarity sharsholders of UBS AG. As a result, UBS
Group AG owns 100% of the cutstanding shares of UBS AG.

In Jume 2015, UBS AG transferred its Personal & Corporate
Barking and Wealth Management business booked in
Switzerland to UES Switzerand AG.

Also in 2015, a more self-sufficient business and operating
madel for UBS Limited was implemented. In the second half of
2015, the ownership of the majority of UBS AG's sewice
subsidiaries outside the US was transferred to UBS Business
Solutions AG, which was established 1o act as the UBS Group
service company and is  a direct subsidiary of UBS Group AG.
The purpose of the service company structure is to improve the
resohability of UBS Group by enabling it to maintain operational
continuity of critical services should a recovery or resclution
event occur,

As of 1 January 2017, UBS AG completed the transfer of the
shared service employess in the US to its US service comgpany,
UBS Business Saolutions US LLC.

As of 1 July 2016, UBS Americas Holding LLC was designated
as UBS AGs intermediate holding company for its US
subsidiaries as required under the enhanced prudential standards
regulations pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act. UBS Americas
Halding LLC holds all of UBS AG"s US subsidiaries and is subject
o S capital requirements, governance requirements and other
prudential requlation.

In addition, UBS AG transferred the majarity of the cperating
subsidiaries of Asset Management to UBS Asset Banagement
A3 during 2016. Furthermore, UBS AG merged its Wealth
Management subsidiaries in Haly, Luxembourg {ncuding its
branches in &ustria, Denmark and Swedsn), the Netherlands and
Spain into UBS Deutschland AG, which was renamed to UBS
Europe SE, to establish UBS AG's new European legal entity
which is headquartered in Frankfurt, Germaniy.

Sale of subsidiaries and businesses

In 2016, UBS AG agreed to sell a life insurance subsidiary within
‘Wealth Management, which resulted in the recognition of a loss
of CHF 23 million. This sale is currently expected to dose in the
first half of 2017 subject to customary dosing conditions. As of
31 December 2016, the assets and liabilities of this business are
presented as a disposal group held for sale within Other assets
and Other labiities and amounted to CHF 5,137 million and
CHF 5,213 million, respectively.

In 2015, UBS AG sold its Altemative Fund Services [AFS)
business to Mitsubishi UF) Finandal Group Investor Services.
Upon completion of the sale, UBS AG recognized a gain on sale
of CHF 56 million and reclassified an associated net foreign
currency translation gain of CHF 119 million from Other
comprehensive income to the income statement. Alko during
2015, UBS AG completed the salke of certain subsidiaries and
businesses within Wealth Management, which resulted in the
recognition of a combined net gain of CHF 169 millicn.

Restructuring expenses

Restructuring expenses arise from programs that materially
change either the scope of business that UBS AG engages in ar
the manner in which such business is conducted. Restructuring
expenses are necessary to effect such programs and include
items such a8 severance and other personnelrelated expenses,
duplicate  headcount  costs,  impairment  and  accelerated
depreciation of assets, contract termination costs, consulting
fees, and related infrastructure and system costs. These costs are
presented in the income statement according to the underlying
nature of the expenss.
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Mote 30 Changes in organization and disposals

Met restructuring expenses by business division and Corporate Center unit

For the year ended
CHF milion ETRFETS 1215 31214
185

R AR R R N R N B B A SR R

1 o 64

e
%6 261
194 i1

oot e - S

o ety Mav-cve il Lagacy Povtiaie [ FY]

1
577
&
4
Fil
Totad et resinuciuring penses 1,443 1133 67
2
o0

Corporate Center

o i pesonnsl arpenseas 458 7
A6 Jie

o i s aniation s Sepalinment of oy, geiveent and soffware " 12 L

o il amoriEation and inpadment of intangdie sosar ? 2 7

Met restructuring expenses by personnel expense category

Far the yeer ended
HF mliat ARG 1215 EYRFAEY

Far the yesr ended
P mifiat ARG H.1215 EIRFAL
fog 48

Resit sl maissenance of T and other equisment
Communicasion and merke! daes servioes

Totsl net restruciuring eenses: general and adminisrative sxpenses
1 Wadely cvmpited of ardrmiss mal sSwE ek DmEos.
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Information on lease contracts classified as operating leases where UBS is the lessee is provided in Note 31a and information on

finance leases where UBS acts as a lessor is provided in Note 31b.

a) Operating lease commitments

Az of 31 Decemiber 2016, UBS was obligated under a number of
nan-cancelable operating beases for premises and equipment
uwsad primarily for banking purposes. The significant premises
leases usually include renewal options and escalation clauses in
line with general office rental market conditions, as well as rent

adjustments based on price indices. Howewer, the lease
agreements do not contain contingent rent payment dauses and
purchase options, nor do they impose any restrictions on UBS's
ability to pay dividends, engage in debt financing transactions ar
enter into further lease agreements.

CHF miliart ERFR
Expenses for operting leeses to be recognized in:

m7 08
e e R e
wa T 516
2020 47
ittt S S S S — e
2 end theesatter 2351
Susbtotal cossmitments Tor minisum payments under aperating ey 5,004
Lkt Sublisse ental income commitments. 29
hiet commisssents for minisum payments under opersting leases. 4,675
CHF miliart AL 301215 A2
g operating lease expense recognized in the income stalesen 77 741 759
Dusblease remtal incase T8 m 73
et operating lease expense recnghized in the incoss: sixtement [ 671 BEE

b) Finance lease receivables

UBS leases a variety of assets to third parties under finance
leases, such as commercial wehicles, production lines, medical
equipment, construction equipment and aircrafe At the end of
the respective leass term, assets may be sold to third parties or
further keased. Lessees may participate in any sales proceeds
achieved. Lease expenses cover the cost of the assets less their
residual walue as well a5 financing costs.

As of 31 December 2016, unguaranteed residual values of
CHF 127 million had been accrued, and the accumulated
allowance for uncollectiole minimum lease payments receivable
amounted to CHF 9 million. Mo contingent rents were recsived
in 2016

Lease receivables
ChF i 31216
Tookal sinimism lesse Linsamed firancs

perpmits income Fresent wlue
M7 n7 1 306
B L L AT e
Thiesiter 115 E] 12
Totsd 1,043 57 986
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UES AG defines related parties as associates (entities which are
significantly influenced by UBS AG), joint ventures (enfities in
which UBS shares control with another party), post-employment
benefit plans for UBS AG employses, key management
persannel, close family members of key management personnel

a) Remuneration of key management personnel

and entities which are, directly or indirectly, contralled or jointhy
controlled by key management personnel or their close family
members. Key management personnel is defined as members of
the Board of Directors (BoD) and Exscutive Board (EB).

The non-independent members of the BoD have top management employment contracts and receive pension bemefits upon
refirement. Total remuneration of the non-independent members of the BoD and EB members, induding thase who stepped down

during 2016, is provided in the table balow.

Remuneration of key management personnel

CHF million EIRFA 31215 311214
Bawe salaries and other cxh payssents! i | 22
Avouglingentive awardunder o) o n T n 18
Essployer’s contributions 1o retirement benefil plans b 1 1
Bepity-tased compensaticn® '] ] 35
Totsl ar 92 BG

T Inciudes 10k-tasts AlTwancEs Tl Rast Been made i Ue sih Mok acion in ispoise 12 1he ) Capilal REculiments Circies of 2003 [CA0 W), 2 indecss innediais and deemed Gob, 3 Eeemes
ou shases granied e calowlaved ar gram daim of the espeche award and allacned ceer the vesting peried, generally for 5 yeas, Refer m Mo 27 for mone infomation. I 2016, 2015 and 1014, equin:based

COMEERSITN was oy compised of EDP awaitk.

The independent members of the BoD do not have employment
of service contracts with UBS AG, and thus are not entitled to
benefits upon termination of their service on the BoD, Payments

b} Equity holdings of key management personnel

to these individuals for their services as external board members
amounted to CHF 7.2 million in 2016, CHF 6.7 million in 2015
and CHF 7.1 million in 2014,

Exquity holdings of key management personnel

1216 311215
Husshes of sock options from equity partidpation plans held by non-independent members of the BoD and the B8 sesbers! 620,050 1,401 685
Husshes of shares held by members of the BaD, BB and perties chosaly linked 1o them?® 267911 3324 650

1 Refer tm Wi 27 S e |

Of the share totals abowe, 95,597 shares were held by close
famity members of key management personnel on 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2015, Mo shares were held by entities
that are directly or indirectly controlled or jointly controlled by
key management persannel or their clase family members on 21

B16

1 sk thaset grarmid ubde ariash: compercatian plas sith fofeiait prnsion.

December 2016 and 31 December 2015, Refer to Mote 27 for
mare information. As of 31 December 2016, no member of the
BoD or EB was the beneficial owner of more than 1% of UBS
Group &G's shares.
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) Loans, advances and mortgages to key management personnel

Mon-independent members of the BoD and EB members have
besn granted loans, fived advances and mortgages on
substantially the same terms and conditions that are availabde to
other employees, which are based on terms and conditions
granted to third parties but are adjpusted for differing credit risk.

Loans, advantes and mortgages to key management personnel!

Independent BoD members are granted loans and mortgages
under general market conditions.

Movements in the loan, advances and mortgage balances are
as follows.

CHF mifiat 6 205
Batance al the beginning of the year 1 7
Addilion 13 B
Reductions 113 i
Batance al the end of the yesr i EE]

1 40 loawes ane e bans. JMEHFMdlMMmmmimEnﬂnmm.

d) Other related party transactions with entities controlled by key management personnel

In 2016 and 2015, UBS AG did not enter into transactions with
entities which are directly or indirectly controlled or jointly
controfled by UBS AG's key management personnel or their
close family members and as of 31 December 2016, 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014, there were no
putstanding balances related to such transactions. Furthermore,

in 2016 and 2015, entities controlled by key management
personnel did not s=ll any goods or provide any services to UBS
A5, and therefore did not receive any fees from UBS AG. UBS
AG also did not provide services to such entities in 2015 and
2016, and therefore also received no fees.
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Note 32 Related parties (continued)

&) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Loans and eutstanding receivables to assotiates and joint wentures
HF mliat
Camying walue &t the begisning of fe year

Carmying wahse &t the end of the pear
o il umsdduead naves

Other transactions with assodates and joint ventures

A of or for the year ended
HF mliat EXRFAL AZ1E
Peyments to sociabes snd join ventures for goods and senices neceived 153 149
Foer roceived for stnons o b e e e eeereeersereeesameeemee LA 7
Commilments and contingent libilities ta assodales and joint wentures 4 4
—  Refer to Mote 28 for an overview of investrments in assodates and joint ventures
f) Receivables and payables from / to UBS Group AG and other subsidiaries of UBS Group AG
CHF miiat 216 il
Rscevablis
Loard 1] 774
Trafing portiolio sset B4 12
DOither ssets 5 53
Payables
Do 1oy cupstoseny po v 12,323
Diher abilises 1,111 843
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Invested assets

Invested assets include all dient assets managed by or depasited
with UBS AG for investment purposes. Invested assets include
managed fund assets, managed institutional assets, discretionary
and advisory wealth management portfolios, fiduciary deposits,
time deposits, savings accounts and wealth management
securities or brokerage accounts. All asets held for purely
transactional purposes and custody-only  assets,  inchuding
corporate  client assets held for cash management and
transactional purposes, are excluded from invested assets as UBS
AG only administers the assets and does not offer advice on
haw the asssts should be mwested. Ako excduded are non-
bankable assets (e.g., art collections) and depasits from third-
party banks for funding or trading purposes.

Discretionary assets are defined as dient assets that UBS AG
decides how to imvest. Other invested assets are those where the
chient ultimately decides how the assets are imvested. When a
single product is created in one business division and sold in
another, it is counted in both the business division that manages
the investment and the one that distributes it. This resuls in
double counting within UBS AG's total invested assets, as both
business divisions are independently providing a service to their
respective dients, and both add value and generate revenus.

Invested assets and net new money

Net new money

Met new maoney ina reparting period is the amount of invested
assets that are entrusted to UBS AG by new and existing dlients,
less those withdrawn by edsting clients and clients whao
terminated their relationship with UBS AG.

Met new money is caloulated using the direct method, under
which inflows and outflows to / from invested assets are
determined at the client level based on transactions. Interest and
dividend income from invested assets are not counted as net
new maney inflows, Market and currency movements as well as
fees, commissions and interest on loans charged are excluded
from net new money, as are the effects resulting from any
acquisition or divestment of a UBS AG subsidiary or business.
Redassifications between invested assets and custody-only assets
as a result of a change in the service level delivered are generally
treated as net new money flows; however, where such change in
service level directly results from a new externally imposed
requlation, the one-time net effect of the implementation is
reported as an asset reclassification without net new money
impact.

The Investment Bank does not track invested assets and net
new money. However, when a dient & transferred from the
Investment Bank to another business division, this produces net
new money even though clisnt assets were already with UBS
AG. There were no such transfers between the Investment Bank
and other business divisions in 2016 and 2015.

For the year ended

HF et A28 INAZIE
Fuund ssues sansged by LIS s 282
Discrefiorary assets B85 B30
T e 1577
Totsl imvedted itets) 2EH 1,689

o il dowdle conins 17 a5
Net new money” 2 1.7
1 lndures, doubke coents.
Development of invested assets

For the year ended
CHF bl EXRFAL EVR R L
Total invested assets at e beginning of the year’ 2,665 2734
Moy L m
e et e
Dther sffacis 14 (16}
ik deguiiions S (et i
Totsl investid assets at the end of the year 18 1,689
1 inchures doubile counts. 2 Inclaes iments and cividend income.
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The following table shows the rates of the main currencies used to translate the financial information of foreign operations into

Swiss francs.
Spol il Auerane rabe’
] Fer the pear ended
HALIE 311215 206 4215 ETRERT]
1150 102 1m 03 087 04z
T w 108 e 121
T T 132 BT
e e e [ e T . e

1 e of fosign o2
of 12 month-end s, t
H,an-m Frumh'l-;ld average s for UES AG.

Note 35 Events after the reporting period

with a fanctional cemency other tham 1ae Ssiss ranc are nansiaod with menth-end nmmh&hwmh:pww
0 0 T incore and eaperse wikimes of all foregn opeEtons with e e fuscional canescy fon sach month. Weightod aesage ris o individeal Desiness

Adjusting event subsequent to the publication of the unaudited
fourth quarter 2016 report

The 2016 results and the balance sheet in this report differ from
those presented in the unaudited fourth quarter 2016 report
published on 27 January 2017 as a result of an adjusting event
after the reporting period. Provisions for litigation, regulatory
and similar matters increased reflecting an agreement in
principle to resobe an RMBS matter related to the Mational
Credit Union Association. This adjustment reduced 2016 net
profit atiributable to sharehalders by CHF 102 million.

620

Cale of Fund Services units in Luxembourg and Switzerland

On 20 February 2017, UBS announced that it has entered into
an agreement to sell Asset Management's fund administration
servicing wnits in Luxembourg and Switzerland to Morthemn
Trust. The transaction is expected to close in the second half of
the wear, subject to relevant approvaks and other customary
conditions. These units provide fund administration services for
both UBS and third party funds with approdmatelty CHF 420
billion in assets under administration.

Dividend payment from UBS AG to UBS Group AG
On 2 March 2017, the Annual General Mesting of Sharsholders

of UBS AG approved an ordinary dividend distribution of CHF
2,250 milion out of its capital contribution reseme to its
sharehalder, UBS Group AG.
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The consolidated financial statements of UBS &G are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). The Swiss Finandial Market Supervisory Authority (FINBA)
requires financial groups that present their financial statements
under IFRS to provide a namative explanation of the main
differences between IFRS and Swiss GAAP (FINMA Circular 2015
/1 and the Banking Ordinance). Included in this Mote are the
significant differences in the recognition and measurement
between IFRS and the provisions of the Banking Ordinance and
the guidelines of FINMA governing true and fair view financial
statement reporting pursuant to Article 25 through Article 42 of
the Banking Ordinance.

1. Consolidation

Under IFRS, all entities that are controlled by the holding entity
are consolidated.

Under Swiss GAMP controlled entities that are deemed
immaterial to UBS AG or that are held temporarily only are
exempt from consolidation, but instead are recorded as
partidipations or financial investments.

2. Financial assets available for sale

Under IFRS, financial assets available for sale are carried at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded directly in equity until
an asset is sobd, collected or otherwize disposed of, or until an
asset is determined to be impaired. At the time an available-for-
sale asset is determined t be impaired, the cumulative
unrealized loss previously recognized in equity i included in net
profit or loss for the respective period. On disposal of a financial
asset available for sale, the cumulative unrealized gain or loss
previously recognized i equity & reclassified to the income
statement.

Under Swiss GAAP classification and measurement of
financial assets designated as available for sale depend on the
nature of the asset. Equity instruments with no permanent
halding intent, as well as debt instruments, are classified as
Finarvcial imvestmiants and measured at the lower of [amortized)
cost or market walue. Market value adjustments up to the
original cost amount and realized gains or losses upon disposal
of the investment are recorded in the income statement as Otfer

ircome fram ordinary  activities.  Equity  instruments with a
permanent holding intent are classified as participations in
Investments i subsidlaries and  other participstions  and
measured at cost less impairment. Impairment losses  are
recarded in the income statement as impairment of investments
in subsidiaries and other participations. Reversal of impairments
up to the original cost amount as well as realized gains or losses.
upon disposal of the investment are recorded as Extraordinary
incowme | Extraardinary expensss in the income statement.

3. Cash flow hedges

Under IFRS, when hedge acoounting is applied, the fair value
gain or loss on the effective portion of the derivative designated
as a cash flow hedge is recognized in equity. When the hedged
cash flows materialize, the acoumulated unrealized gain or loss is
reclassified 1o the income statement.

Under Swiss GAAP, the effective portion of the fair value
change of the derivative instrument used to hedge cash flow
exposures is deferred on the balance sheet as Other assets ar
Other liabilities. The deferred amounts are released o the
income statement when the hedged cash flows materialize.

4. Fair value option

Under IFRS, UBS AG applies the fair value option to certain
financal assets and financal lakiliies not held for tradng
Instruments for which the fair value option is applied are
accounted for at fair value with changes in fair value reflected in
Net trading income. The fair value option is applied primarily to
structured  debt  instruments, certain  non-structured  debt
instruments, high-quality Bquid debt securities, structured
reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements and securities
bormowing agresments, cerfain structured and non-structured
Ians as well as loan commitments.

Under Swiss GAAR the fair value option can only be applied
to structured debt instruments that consist of a debt host
confract and one of more embedded derivatives that do not
relate to own equity. Furthermore, changes in fair wvalue
attributable to changes in unrealized own credit are not
recognized in the income statement and the balance sheat.
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MNote 36 Main differences between IFRS and Swiss GAAP (continued)

5. Goodwill and intangible assets

Under IFRS, goodwill acguired in a business combination & not
amortized but tested annually for impairment. Intangible assets
with an indefinite useful life are also mot amortized but tested
annually for impairment.

Under Swiss GAAP goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful ves are amortized over a period not exceeding
five years, unless a longer useful life, which may not excesd 10
years, can be justified.

6. Pension and other post-employment benefit plans

Swiss GAAP permits the wse of IFRS or Swiss accounting
standards for pension and other post-employment benefit plans,
with the election made on a plan-by-plan basis.

UBS &G has elected to apply IFRS (145 19) for the non-Swiss
defined benefit plans and Swiss GAAP (FER 16) for the Swiss
pension plan in its standalone financial statements. The
requirements of Swiss GAAP are better aligned with the specafic
nature of Swiss pension plans, which are hybrid in that they
combine elements of defined contribution and defined benefit
plans, but are treated as defined benefit plans under IFRS. Key
differences between Swiss GAAP and IFRS include the treatment
of dynamic elements, such as future salary increases and future
interest credits on retirement savings, which are not considered
under the static method used in accordance with Swiss GAAR
Alsa, the discount rate used to determine the defined benefit
ohligation in accordance with IFRS is based on the yield of high-
quality cornporate bonds of the market in the respective pension
plan country. The discount rate used in accordance with Swiss
GAAR ie., the technical interest rate, is determined by the
Pension Foundation Board based on the expected returns of the
Board's investment strategy.

For defined benefit plans, IFRS requires the full defined
benefit obligation net of the plan assets to be recorded on the
balance sheet, with changes resulting from remeasurements
recognized directly in equity. However, for non-Swiss defined
benefit plans for which IFRS accownting is elected, changes dus
to remeasurements are recognized in the income statement of
UES AG standalone under Swiss GAAR

Swiss GAAF requires that employer contributions to the
pension fund are recognized as personnel expensss in the
income statement. Further, Swiss GAAP requires an assessment
as to whether, bassd on the financial statements of the pension
fund prepared in accordance with Swiss accounting standards
(FER 26}, an economic benefit to, or obligation of, the employer
arizes from the pension fund and & recognized in the balance
sheet when conditions are met. Conditions for recording a
pension asset or Rability would be met if, for example, an
employer contribution reserve s available or the employer &

622

required to confribute to the reduction of a pension deficit (on
an FER 2& basis).

7. Netting of replacement values

Under IFRS, replacement values and related cash collaberal are
reported on a gross basis unless the restrictive IFRS netting
requirements are met: i) existence of master netting agreements
and related collateral arrangements that are unconditional and
legally enforceable, both in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, bankruptcy or insohency of UBS AG and its
counterparties, and i) UBS AG's intention to either settle an a
net basis or to realize the asset and settle the hability
simultaneausly.

Under Swiss GAAPR replacement values and related cash
collateral are generally reported on a net basis, provided the
master netting and the related collateral agreements are legally
enforceable in the event of default, bankruptey or insolvency of
UBS AG"s counterparties.

B. Megative interest

Under IFRS, negative interest income arising on a financial asset
does not meet the definition of interest income and, therefore,
negative interest on financial assets and negative interest on
financial liabilities are presented within interest expense and
interest income, respectively.

Under Swiss GAAF, negative interest on financial assets s
presented within interest income and negative interest on
financial lizbilities is presented within interest expense.

9. Extraordinary income and expense

Certain non-recurring and non-operating income and expense
items, such as realized gains or losses from the disposal of
participations, fixed and intangible assets, as well as reversals of
impairments of partidpations and fixed assets, are dassified as
extraordinary items wnder Swiss GAAP. This distinction is not
available under IFRS.

10. Other presentational differences

Under IFRS, financial statements are comprised of an Income
statemnent, Statement of comprehensive income, Balance sheet,
Staternent of changes in equity, Statement of cash flows and
Motes to the financial statements. Under Swiss GQAAP, the
concept of other comprehensive income does not exist and
consequently no  Statement of comprehensive income s
required. In addition, various other presentational differences
exist.

535/624

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations

Guarantee of PaineWebber securities

Prior to its acquisition by UBS in 2000, Paine Webber Group Inc.
(PaineWebber) was an 5EC registrant. Upon acquisition,
PaineWebber was merged into UBS Americas Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary of UBS AG. Following the acquisition, UBS AG
entered into a full and wnconditional guarantee of the senior
nates (Debt Securities) issued by PaineWebber, Under the
guarantee, if UBS Americas Inc. fails to make any timely
payment under the Debt Securities agreements, the holders of
the Debt Securities or the Debt Securities trustee may demand
payment from UBS AG without first proceeding against UBS
Americas Inc.

As of 31 December 2016, CHF 137 million of thess Debt
Securities were outstanding. These remaining notes mature in
2017 and 2018.

Guarantes of other securities

Trust preferred securities, which were registered under the US
Securities Act and were issued by UBS Preferred Funding Trust IV
and UBS Preferred Funding Trust , both of which are U5-
domiciled enfities that are 100% legally owned by UBS AG,
weere redeemed in 2016, UBS AG had fully and unconditionally
guaranteed thess securities.

As of 31 December 2016, UBS Preferred Funding Trust iV and
UBS Preferred Funding Trust W had no balances outstanding.
These entities are presented in a separate column in the
supplemental guarantor information provided in the following
tables. Amounts presented in this column are eliminated in the
Elimination entries column, as these enfities are not consolidated
by UBS AG, as UBS AG does not absorb any vanability from the
performance of these entities.

Joint liability of UBS Switzerland AG

In 2015, the Retail & Corporate and Wealth Management
businesses booked in Switzerland were transferred from UBS AG
to UBS Switzerdand AG through an asset transfer in accordance
with the Swiss Merger Act. Under the terms of the asset transfer
agreement, UBS Switzerland AG assumed joint Rability for
contractual obligations of UBS AG existing on the asset ansfer
date, mcluding the existing guarantee of aforementioned
PaineWebber and other securifies. To reflect this joint liability,
UBS Switzerand AG is presented in 2 separate column as a
subsidiary co-guarantaor.

Hard revenue and cost transfers

In 2016, the presentation of hard revenue and cost transfers
between legal entities was revised. These transfers relate to
services provided from one entity to another and are settled in
cash. Hard revenue transfers paid and received are now shown
on vanous income statement line items within Operating income
based on the nature of the revenue transferred. Previousty, such
transfers were presented in Other income. Furthermore, hard
cost transfers received are now shown in Other income, whereas
previously these were shown in General and administrative
expenses, Prior period information for 2015 and 2014 was
restated accordingly. This change in presentation did not affect
operating profit before tax for any entity.
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Supplemental guarantor consolidated income statement

UBS LB Preferred
CHF i UBSAG UBS Switseland AG  Americas Funding Trust IV Othes  Elminstion 55 AG
Fisk whe wiear envdked 31 Decermber 2006 Gitandalang et Y abdidane? el

hhet irsterasy income aller cradit loss sxpende 1,750 1434 1,086 15 1% (215] 6,346
Mea fee sl commistion incomme 1,500 3,782 1873 3332 {4 16,447
T D i - = e~ s 122
Other income B 113 36 576 1677 (M,027) G5
Total aperating incoss: 15120 B34 4,088 25 55 {1,500 B/

044 6,243

523 3,507 3,402 1458 6,891) 7,550
mnm and impeirment of properly, squipment nd
Amortization and impainment of imangibe ssets 2 0 &0 9 0 1]
Totsl aperating expenses 11,625 5,563 0,889 4165 {6,891) 4,352
Diperating profit [ floss) beloes tax 3,45 1780 EE] 5 1,380 {3710 4,068
Tax expense | (enefil) B892 589 {1,175} 457 L] 7Bl
hiet oot J fleas) 1,503 191 1,274 25 o] {3,703) 3,288
Wea oot | fessd atributable bo poshemed nolshalderss 7 0 0 3 [ a1 78
et proft | ficsa) attributable to non-contralling inerests [ 0 0 4 0 a
Mt peciit | floas) atirbutable 1o shareholders 1535 191 1,774 =] B {3578 3,207

1mmkﬁﬂsMnﬁmhﬁmwmmﬂmhﬁﬁmn&mmmw
smanomas ende *Didosere for legal endities” ar s ste comilmesions o infomarion pesarcd in aoomdane with Saiss GAAP. 1 Smoums presenied in these coleme s a5 a bass for propaning UES AG

cansabdarcd financial Staremens ik anosiance with IFRS
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MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of comprehensive intome

UBS U Prefermed

CHF o UBSAG UBS Switseland A Amesicas Funding Trust IV Oihes  Eimination UES AG
Fist he year endhed 31 December 2086 {siandalone) {mandalone]! Inc? AV subsidiaries! enties  (consolicried)
Comprehergive income attibutable 1o sharsholders

hhet et J fiess) 1525 119 1,774 -] =] (31677) 3,200
Diher comprehensive income

Other comprehensiv income that may be rechasified 1o the
mm LEedl] LE i ]

_________ B wmﬂm e
Finandisl assets avalabde for shle, et of e [ 33 ] {1 3 3
Cash fiows radlges, rott of Lax (05 109 [ [ = E6)
Total ather comprehsnsive income that may be redassiied to

the incore statesent, et of (491) 77 i 0 (725 415 (447
Other comprehensgive income St will not be redasslied s

e e eeeceeeemsseessseeessmmeemssmeesA e s aa s e S 228 2228822 R R R e
Defined benefit plars, net of (&51) 54 59 136) 125) (E24)
Cram credit on finencisl Rabiities desigrated ot Lait value, net s )
of lax

Totsl ather comprehsnsive income that will Rol be

risclasaified 10 the income Msternent, it of s (766) 54 (55 1] {36) 125 faas)
Totsl ather comprehensive income {1,257 n 218 0 (761 3= {1,388
Totsl cosprshensive income strilutable b shamholders 1,268 1214 1,492 {Q 133 {3.287) 1,820
oy e

comprehensive income amsitutable 1o prefemed 13 3

.'};i"“-“I“““.“““"“"I““mn;“"II-...I.I;é.--I““m““ll; B L LT T ST ............................;. srvssmmazEnn ..............;..
interesls

Totsl comprehensie income atsitutable 1o UBS Prelered o
Funding Trust I &V
Total comprehens e intome 1,617 114 1,402 {5 137 13.283) FATE]

1l.lw.m:prn-diuﬁﬂsMnﬁmnﬁmwmmﬂmhMHmn&mmmw
smanemanT Ence *Dicvsene for kgl envitis” ar s ate comimesion i informarion pesared I acosdance with Sais GAAP. 1 Amoums presenred in thiss coleme s a6 @ hats for propaing LUES AG
cansabdarcd financial Staremens in anosiance with IFRS
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MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated balance sheet

CHF million
A of 31 Decessher 2016

Cthes Hissinasion UBS AG
(onsalidated)

13,775 ] 107,767
T (57.948) 13,125
{15,284} 15,111

38,915 1, 18,456 16,793 (43,072} 54,343
Total Galilities and equity 530,796 196,021 143,702 188,257 (283424} 535,353
1mmhummmnunmnmm FR-Sarainne FaTarion, R 10 e UGS A6 wand@ent amd UE5 Seiizeland AG sandsinr Srandal

ST erde *Dhcisen for legal enitis” IMMHWMEMH&MW 1 Amoums presenied in these colemi soe a5 @ basks for propaning UES AG
consabdaned financal satemenss in acodance with IFRS.
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MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of cash flows

CHF el UBS Switetand  UBS Amesicas Other UES AG
Fioe e yeaar ended 31 December 2006 LIES A A Il subsifistes)  (eonsaidaied)
Het cash flow from [ jused in) operating activifies (25,581) B4 8979 4,503 17413
Cah floww from | hued i} ivvesting aetiiies.
Purchis of sbsidiries, muncises andintaegiblemes o0 @ 0o @ | (16
Dispassl d‘suh.lﬂ.aﬂu. a.un:mu and rnmr-yHe mul 93 1] o /] o3
ik i erens T - T 1 = e T TS
Dispusal of peapetty, equipment and software L I o 1 n m
Ponchin of B dnsets e o e Lo LT I e 27
Dispassl and redemption ol linancisl sty susilsble for wale 24,902 Faly.: ] 1,694 5111 54,087
et {pinchase) | refesplion of Enandal assets held 1o masuty [527) B, 86E] o [] 18, 996)
Mgt caeh floar from [ fused in) investing activities 12516 12,245 {1,384} 2882 36,350
Rl T e L L
et short-term debil isamed | fepaid) 813 7 (2975} 93 5,440
Viasdhutions poid on IS AG shams B o L il Baay
ovance of longrdesm debd, induing fnencel Labiiies desrated stlorvale LY. SO - S w . LY B
Respayment of bomg-term debe, including Snancdal lisilties designassd a1 fair value (32,279) 1669 8 (1,126) (34,081}
Dividends paid nd renayments of prefemed notes {1,366) ] [ [ {1,366}
et dunges i ponconireling beres T R CR— ()
hhet sctivity relssed 1o group intemal cagital transactions snd dividends (1,333) (2,000) o 3333 o
hiet cash flerar from £ iused inj Snanding scivities 1,300 (1,943) {2,786} 3435 &
Total cash flow
Cash snd cath aquivalents & the beginning of the yas 47,802 &0 146 7,084 7731 102,362
Nt cashfourfrom / fused inf operaing, imesting snd Snamcing Al PR e e
Eflects of eschange rate diflerences on cath and cash equivalents (564) [l 1] (234) ]
Cash snd cash equivalents &1 the end of the year® 44,269 45509 11,892 18,317 121,107
o il cash andl badces ith centrad banibs A 44 528 q925 1377 %715
o i gty Ay L% 2085 2937 4065 TL827
e a7
Lm.mmm::ﬂfm L7 milio ﬁm:p-hg mm&;qﬂmnﬁmmmm;n ;.-ﬂdk::'n::

weiend i aseadans. 3 CHF 2,862 million of cish and cash squivalents were iesrioed. 4 Maney masber paer is inchsded in the balanar sheer wnder Trading pertiolo amets, Firandal imsesimens stk
i sade anel Finomdal aswers desigraned an fain value.

540/624



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated income statement
o UBS LW Prisferred he

LES AG LIBS Switzedland AG Americas Funding Teust IV iminaticn LEs AG
Fist the ear ended 31 December 2005 [stancalarey (tandalcne) e AV subsidisried entries heonssidaled)

(20200

[545p (501} {1,410} 1,882 16,4450
He2 inlarey income 3,218 A BEE 63 "7 (128 5,720
Credit boas [mnpense) | reoovery {108 (12p 0 4 1] 17
He2 inberest income afles enadit loss evpende 3,100 4ED BEE 63 m (128 12

het few s commistion income: 1.?!! 3001 T840 3585 E1] I]"1H
e trading income 5\.I]!1 735 55 I [?55] 5.EBE
Dither income 15,31 120 T4 2 (15,243) 1112

Totsl aperating incoss 26,249 6,338 9935 63 43107 (15,208) 0,605

Perianinel sxpenis £,800 1807 6.1 1245 o isasa
Gereral and adinisy aties wxpenses 5,430 2621 3785 2754 [5.880) £.219

672 11 139 TG o !13

m&mwwdm equipment snd

Amortization and impaiment of imangitie suste 1 0 T3 12 ] "7
Totl aperating expenses 12,934 43 0E 3607 (5860 25,198
DOiperating probt | fioss) bedors tax 13,315 2058 3632 63 &8 (I3 5407
Tax expense | (banefit) 1,136 488 (1,200} (1,317} [16) ]
M et | foss) 12,180 1610 P 62 1 (10313 6,314
et prcft | s atirbutable 0 prefered notsholdees - o b El o &) 77
Hea jpredit | fless) atiributable 1o men-contralling interests 0 0 1] 3 1] E]
bt praft / floss) atirbutable 10 srarsholders 12,103 1610 Wy EF, 1283 [I0281) 5,235
1mmhumiﬁmnmmmw mmﬁuﬁuﬁlﬁmﬂ“ﬁmhﬂ“mm

AT, b Muhwﬂnmmwhmmnmﬂmw 2 Aty pesened (s 1hiss colemie st a5 & bk for preparing UBS AG
cansabdated financial staterenss in accdance with IFRS.

628

541/624



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of comprehensive income

UBS WS Presferred

CHF milliont VRS AG LIRS Switsedand 4G Americas Funding Teust IV Dthes  Efmination U5 AG
For ghe year ended 31 December 2015 [standalane}! (sandalone)! Inc AV subsidiaries? entries  (eondoldated)
Compreherive income sttibutable o sharsholders

Mt prokit J floas) 12,103 1,510 w7 a2 1,933 (80,281 6,235
(rther cosprehensive income

Other comprehensive income that mey be redassiied 1o the
income satement

e T
Total ather comprehnsive income that may be redassiied 1o

e income statement, petofter ise4)_ 0 (L s 348

Other comprehensive income hat will not be redasslied s

the incorme Statasen

Defined beneft plas, net of ta 701 {337} {7 o {15) 304

Total ather comprehwnsive income that will Rol be

fecusifed o the icome Asement,netofie m_ @ g0 0@ 0§ 34

Total ather comprelnsive income 136 (366} F= 0 837 459 (5430

Totsl cosprshensive income stributable to sharmhobders 12,239 1244 856 3z 1,101 (9.732) 5,690

“Total asprehensive income altributabile to pretered

Total comprehensie income atsitutable 1o non-contealing

inderesls 0 i [ 0 1 ] 1
income atibitable 1o LIRS Prefened

Funding Trust IV & ¥ ] 0 0 40 1] 1a0) 0

Tetsl cosprehensive income 12,257 1244 BEE 72 1,100 [9.833) 5,709

1mnn-dhﬁﬁﬁmnﬁwhﬁmwmmﬂmhﬁﬁmnimmmw
st ende *Dhdosern for legal entitis” ar s ste comiimesions o infomarion pepard in aooodance with Sess GAAR. 1 Amoums presenied in these colemis soee a5 a basks for prepaing LES AG
consabidaid financial siamments in accodance with IFRS
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MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated balanoe sheet
CHF miliat LIES Prefenred

of UBS AG UBS Switserland AG  UBS Ameficas  Funding Trust IV & Dther Hlisinasion UBS 4G
A2 of 31 Ducessber 2015 tstandaione)! fstandalone}t [ W subsidiarie? it (jonsuidated)

1,306
50 (50,868} 11,866
E,506 Mlﬁib_. 15,584

i45,243)

4705 14,554 {24,800} 12,723
199 LE2E 3,322} 5808
2,543

Finamdal assets desgneted o fair value 6,303

imrusents

el . .. .. SN .. S - N ... N ... B3
Finaraal lsbiities dedgnised & (it value B1.630 0 = 45T (3,558} BLO95

e i s g e : T R T et
Total Eabiities 585,528 75,611 168,411 4 140,023 (284,664} BEE,013
Equity atisbutable o sharsholders 58413 10,997 18,143 4 12,196 44,714} 55,248
Eguity atiributable 1o prefemed notehaldin 1,954 0 0 1,302 0 (1,302} 1,054
o 0 ] 0 4 0 a

Totsl ety 60,378 10,957 18143 1,306 12336 (46,006} 57,243

Totsl Eabilities and aquity 647,006 156,608 186554 1,310 152,359 (330,680} 943,256

T Amoums presenied for UES AG Jond) and UES nd 5 ne] sezreso IFFS-lamaine i Forlos 10 the U5 AG Fore ard U Jand R e Trandal

st ende *Dicdoser for legal enditis” ac c o fnfy pepared in wilh Saiss GAAP. 1 Amoums presented in thess colemins move a5 a bass for prepaiing UES AG
B tinarcial IFRS.

B30
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MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of cash flows
CHF million

Fior g year ended 31 December 2005 LUBS &5 e swbsidisies  jondohidaled)
Met cash flow from / hused in) cperating acthities {1457 z.sal (525} 1,288 1,397

Cash foww from | fued in irvesting cshiies

" Purchese of subsifisses, smuncisses and imaegible sty @y 4@
Bﬂpuid'sum.ﬂﬂ., uscﬂllel.a.nd I'I'Im.l'lyH! M A64 o 13 0 477

u. e e - -f'l-,dﬂ!-“-‘ﬁb ...m..t““...“j“:l

Parchese of financial sses available for ssle (66,655) (18,686} (2723 {13,123 m, 189
‘Dispuisl and redempsicn of financial ests mailsble for sale &L§is  Z&si @& &GS o35Ed
et {pinchase) | refesplion of Enandal assets held 1o masuty

hiet cash Tiena from [ jused in) imessing actiities {15,613y 3B (47 3,415 1843
ﬂﬂl Iﬂki‘m / Hﬂd ink Inllﬂl'g actiitied

_______ 0 (262
129 47,790

a2z

;

letusance of lang-tenss debt, inchuding financial lisbifties desgnated al far walue 46,882 T
Respayment of bomg-term debe, including Snandal lissilties designassd a1 T value (42 415) (402} {1

Dhidench paid sndrepyments of prefemednoder e Y SR L
Het changes in non-centroling intensas 0 ] ] &

et sctivity relased 1o group intemal cagital transactions snd dividends® (3512) 13,293 (n14) (2 EE6) ]
Nea cash Tlow from [ fused inj Binanding acivities (34.350) 33 68T {1.062) (2B 15.573)

uéu E._-.l =
H]

Total cash flow

Cash snd cash eguivalents 51 the beginning of the yest 100,662 o 8,960 1,093 116,715

Mt cach flow from | jused in) cpersting, iowetiog and insecing scswies (51451 ayi7e (1634 ges (1010

Effects of exchange rate differences on cath and cash equivalents {1,308 &7 (241) (25Eh 1,748

Cash snd cash eguivalants &1 the end of the yeart 47,902 A0, 246 1,084 1,731 102,362
of which csh and boaces with envalbants T2 7 A /L I~

B ooy o mmanr — o i 05 S0 Frpts

o il oy manket papect ) w7 o £ LE
1mhmwaﬂuﬂmm:ummwmm e uusﬁm-gmmwnvnmmmdunumh
:lﬂiilmmmﬂn‘mhﬂnﬁlllhﬁdtﬂFﬂnhﬁmq:ﬂﬂlgMnﬂmlphhtdlmhMﬂ pl-dlnhﬂ. Ilrﬂuumm

:m.mﬁdmnnﬁqﬂ“hunmummmdﬂmrﬂumu Establisiment of UES Swinsikng A5* II'IHH
wegulaizdy infosranion® sectian of the VBS Gioug AG Arneal Repon 2005 for mom inkemation on e busines sanser from UBS 4G v UBS Swimoland &G, & OFF 3,953 million of :nd-ndll:phi-:
-lrﬂ:ld. 5 Money naibet paper & inckeied in the batnos sheer ander Trading partialio asets and Frandal irssiments railable for sle.
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MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated income statement

M millian

For ghe year ended 31 December 2004 DB AG (esndalone])  UBS Asericsd Ine?  Osber subsidisries®  Elisination entries  UBS &G jassolidaled)
Lo
|eileredl incose 11,585 1.501 1.160 |, 13,194

Net few snd cosmission income B 111 37. 17,076
Diher income 767 580 [B.354) 632
Total optrating incosse 2018 4,887 (B.047) 26026

Geneal and adsinisiative sxpenses B,004 2,75 1,968 (3,357 8,377
Depreciation and impairment of property, suipment snd softwane 585 13 el o 7
Amunization and impsiment of imangitle ssets 7 59 16 0 5
Total aperating expendes 16,557 8,764 3548 (3.357) 15,557
Operating prokit / fiossh before ta 5421 A4 135 (4,635 1469
Tan expense | (enefit) L (2378 148 [k} (1,180
et jpredt | edd) 4472 2,1 1,091 [4,693) 1,649
Nea profit | Poss) atiributable bo prefemed nolehalders 142 0 [ [ 142
et prodit / (loss) atiributatle 1o mon-contralling interests 1] ] 5 V] 5
Mt proft [ flosd) atiibutable fo shareholders 4330 1,71 1,085 {4,633 3,502
1 troens. pasenned for LSS &G (mandaiong) wprosent IFRS-s@ndalon | Boter m the UBS AG sandalons Srancial stamons. usder Do Sor kgal ondiies” a1 e bs.comiimssines for
iiosmaion pespared in acoidanoy with Swiss GAAP. 2 Amcuats presented in these oolamies sere a6 a asis for prepaing UBS AG I fimandal n withs IFRS.
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MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of comprehensive income

CHF milion
Fioe e yeaar ended 31 December 3004 UG AG (sndalonel!  UBS Asericss Inc?  Osher subsidisries?  Eisinafion entriss  UBS AG joorolidated)
Comprehergive income stiibutabli 1o shansholders :

hiet profit | sz 4,330 17 1,085 4,683 3,502
Other comprehensive income

Cther comprehensie income that may be redassfied 1o the

Jnomestaement

Fereign cumency trandation, fet ol ta L] o 5m 1820 1224
ot d s ok T S | SNSRI . MU | AU . U .. |
Cash flow hadges, net of Lax 43 0 [ ] £93
Totsl ather comprehsensive income that mey be redasiied 1o the

incoiie sLaeinenL, Hlﬂ“-“ ____________ 1,050 1,006 1537 (026) 1,667
Othesr comprehensive income Sl will fot be fedasiied to the

Defined benefit plae, et of e EEE {167 ] 1 i1.708)
Tﬂmwmnmmhmﬂun

theincome sistement, et of —— - S 1 S - - SRS . SO ...
Totsl ather comprehnsive income 51 L] 1481 18913 1,459
Total comprehensive income stributable to sharshobders 4381 3,617 1,567 (5,605) 4,961
Tﬂwﬂmmmﬂmwm D ] o 1] 260
Tty Ry g e
interests ] 0 7 1] 7

Totsl cosprehendive income 4841 1,617 1575 [5.605) 5220
1 Amoums presenied for UES AG (mandalone) and UES Seizmlnd 45 (standalone] g IFRFsandalone informanion. Rete o the UBS &G sandalons and LSS Switzerland AG standakae Srandal
st ende *Dhcosere for legal entitis” an s ats comiimesions for infeomarion pegard in acoodance with Sess GAAF. 1 Amoums presenied in these colemis sre a5 a basks for propaning LES AG
cansabdand financial siamemens in aoosdance with IFRS
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MNote 37 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of cash flows

CHF il
Fiof ehe yeear ended 31 Decermber 2014 UBS AG'  UES Americas Ine.!  Other subsidiaries’ LIRS AG joornkidaled)
het cash flow from [ jused in) operating acthisies 7,438 {1,814} 1,608 7,231
Cash fsvor o / el i irvoesting Sctivities . . - -
‘Purchss of sbsidiries, muncises and intaegiblemges. @& @ o (18]
Dispasal of subsidiaries, assadaies and intanghle aats? 4 3 113 0
I 1 R~ e TP
Dispassl of peogery, equipment and solvare ]k} 14 | 350
" Perchase of financial asses: avaiable for sale {15807 {1,865 (18,555 1135330
“Sipeial sl ederon BT PR T N Eai T
et fpienchase) | refesplion of Enandal assets held 1o masuty
hoet caeth Tlonar frioen [ fuesed i) imeiing actiities 6,589 (B45) (3,149 2,506
Cash fow from | fused in} finsacing activities
"Wt dhorn-tem debn o | pepaid) {3.984) o 1,064 {zam)
hiet movesienty i easury shares snd own equity derivative activity [k o 1] (719
B P~ T - —g
lsance of long-terss deb, inchuding fnancal liskilties designated al fai walue 40,272 M 13 40,982
Respaaymment of bong-terss debe, inchuding Enandal liabifities desgnated ot fair value |32,083) {494} [1,632) (34,2100
e e e T e 2
het changes. in non-centroling interests 0 1] 13 3
Met axtiving relased o groug intensl capital transscions &nd dividends g [ EAE] 0
Pt cath flona froem /st i) Bnaing activities 2,118 (470 434 2,081
Total cash flow
Cash snd cash equivalents &1 the beginning of the year 11,243 7801 96,284
He2 cash Tlow from J jused in) operating, investing and finanding activities (3,129 [1,107) 11,908
“Mects of esthange rsie diflerences on caoh and cach equislents 73a 7 s w T 52
Cash &nd cash equivalents &1 the end of the year® 8,950 7,083 116,715
o ok cash and baleces with centra banks E440 LazF 14073
o o dhee et Al 2489 5154 e
T ek movey marker paneet i Fi a9
e e e i T e Do ] Bt e ™ CHEA T8 o of cal s o pabons s e, 4
A
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UBS AG standalone financial statements
(audited)

Income statement

For the yasr ended % change from
CHF mdtlion Mole FALE Az 3.A2I5
Interest and discount incose m

Interest and dividend incosse from trading portfalic (21}

het intesest incorme 1,77 2509 (1)
HHMWHWMMMIMMHMMMNMIM 2,154 ELY. 1 =]
Fese: el comesission expense ] {1,012} {18
Mt few and commizgion incose 154 2.7 (45

Dividend income from investments in subsidiaries and other pantidpations 3,0a1 12118 150
rmtumﬂﬂhﬂrg. 563 SES o
.Mmlm s S S
Sundry andikany Expense 4 (5309 LED (35
Orther income from ordinary actiities 1,522 5809 L
Tetal apesatiog incame 15,111 15,263 i
Pericnnel epere 5 6,350 6438 i
Genersl and adsiniatrafie expenies. 6 5,003 5515 1]
Subintal operating epenues. 11,422 12053 3]
Ipairsent of investments in subsidiaries and other parsicipasions 1,099 413 166
Depredation and impaiment of property, equipment and software 1 ET4 4
mmmmtﬂpﬂlﬂmmwﬂm 2 n 0
.Ij‘lﬂlﬁi'l wmmumwm it T
Total opecatiog expenses 13,352 13,187 1
Dperaling prafit 1,758 2078 {15
Extratedinary income T 1,637 10354
e
Tax expense | (enelit) B 150 m

Hiet profil / (loss) 3244 11,984
1 Compaiatie anoens mhhpnﬁilmmﬂtﬁﬁﬁm‘hﬂh [ and ‘Wealth Boabed i ki foe 2 fiest thess
manchs of 315 These buslaesses were tanshend from UES AS m UBS Ssizedand AG ehecha 1 A 2315, Rt 1o of UES Swdizedand AG* In the *Legal ey financial and regabory
ihsmirion® section of the VS5 Group 45 Annal Sepon 2005 fr moss infomatian,
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

Balance shest

% change from
HF il Ml AALE INAZAS 1215

Assets

o ol cank colliteral o seconitier Sorrowed G551
o R e AU SN s
D frosm cusbomess

Martgage laans
Trading ponfolio assets
Finencisl issestments

Acerued income and prepeid expesaey
Ieveestments in subsidiaries and other partidpations

4,312 4572 2]
74,282 QL0 {213
ok L I— L — )
34 66D 2T 58 6

Joparty. aquipdeent and 10
Goodwill and other imangitis st
Other asses
Total ket

o il sderinave’ Acien

Liabilities
Dt 10 Banks 32,781 36,665 (11
Peyabies from sscwities linancing ransactions £ 30,275 55,457 45

Diigee 1y cuiboamess 152,680 144 847 5
Trading ponfolia lisbilties 12 15,535 21,173 (27
Finenciel Rabiities designated & (st value 12, 18 51,806 58104 {113
Barek issusd 71,15 JLTS0 i3
jfaud perded snd defermed income 4,125 4355 )

Pemsisiizns i 1,501 1785 i)
Total Habilisies 387,537 435,316 ]

Genersl
o Wil SEATdnry CADR retnve A8 14 38149
o el SEMLONY Sl Aeane [ {4 4mn
Viluntary earnings redene 9,760 ]
Het profit | fles) for the perod 3,244 11,584
Total equisy 51,539 51,728
Tokal abilifies and equity AFIATE 477,045
of et sedorsinaed dadines 17697 16 139
U ik st to ety comension dnd o el T ey s

=

I 1 (I A
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Balance sheet (continued)

% change fos
CHF mdicn EIRFa 31215 EIRER LT
Off-balance shest items
Sontngent Mtes, goes Ll .
S participations (1,866 2
Contingent ailities, net 1800 (=

o il pevibvmance guavanteer And Simile SerrEmy & F rar
of wiick: docomenay crodits rae T 2 Y
Sub-participations {1512 (1,553 (3
iravocable commitment, et T S .... SO ',
[z

151

S0

=

£

Lisbilties for calls on shanes and other equity instruments 5 7 (25

1Emupu-uﬁq-1=uusmuﬂ-m

Off-balance sheet items

Off-balance sheet items include ndemnities and guarantees
issued by UBS &G for the benefit of subsidiaries and creditors of
subsidiaries.

Where the indemnity amount issued by UBS AG is not
spedfically defined, the ndemnity relates to the solvency or
minimum  capitalization of a subsidiary, and therefore no
amount is incheded in the table above.

In addition, UBS AG is jointly and severally liable for the
combined value added tax (VAT) liability of UBS entities that
bebang to the VAT group of UBS in Switzerand. This contingent
liaksility is mot inchuded in the table above.

Guarantee to UBS Limited

UES AG has issued a guarantee for the benefit of each
counterparty of UBS Limited. Under this guarantee, UBS AG
imevocably and wnconditionally guarantees each and every
obligation that UBS Limited enters into. UBS AG promises to pay
to that counterparty on demand any unpaid balance of such
liakilities under the terms of the guarantes.

Joint and several liability

In June 2015, the Personal & Corporate Banking and Wealth
hanagement businesses booked in Switzerland were transferred
from UBS AG to UBS Switzerdand AG through an asset transfer
in accordance with the Swiss Merger Act. Under the Swiss
Merger Act, UBS AG assumed joint lability for obligations
existing on the asset transfer date, 14 June 2015, that were

transferred to UBS Switzerland 4G, excluding the collateralized
portion of secured contractual ohligations.

Az of the asset transfer date, this joint liability amounted to
approximately CHF 260 billion. UBS AG has no liability for new
obligations incurred by UBS Switzerland AG after the asset
transfer date. The joint liability amount dedines as obligations
mature, terminate or are novated following the asset transfer
date.

As of 31 December 2016, the joint liability of UBS AG for
contractual obligations of UBS Switzerland AG amounted to kess
than CHF 1 billion compared with CHF 55 bilion as of 31
December 2015. Az of 31 December 2016, the probability of an
outflow wunder this joint and several liability was assessed to be
remote, and & a result, the table sbove does not indude any
expasures arising under this joint and several liability.

— Refer to “Establishment of UBS Switzerland AG™ in the “Legal

entity financial and regulatory information” section of the UBS
Group AG Annual Report 2015 for mare information

Limited indemnity UBS Europe SE

In connection with the establishment of UBS Ewope SE in 2016,
UES AG entered into an agreement with UBS Europe SE under
which UBS AG would provide UBS Europe SE with limited
indemnification of payment obligations that may arise from
certain litigation, regulatory and similar matters.

Az of 321 December 2018, the amount of such potential
payment obligations could not be reliably estimated and the
table above does therefore not include any amount related to
this limited ndemnification.
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

Statement of changes in equity

Sashyutory capital Siaiuiary Vaeluniary et profit | (oss)

CHF midlie Share capital eSerdE  SAMITGH MeLerse  AETTITGY feierve for the period Tirtal equity
Bulance as ol 1 January 2015 B4 40,782 (12,329 5,689 7848 41376
Capitsl increase 1 1
ety Ao STy e Il e ———————————————
Netprofit/fossl sgpropdation T e e D
Nt prokit | fioa) Tor the period 11,084 11,984
Balance as of 31 December 2015 B6 38,148 (4,480 5,683 11,984 51,728
Balance a3 of 1 lsnuary 2016 386 38,149 (4,480} 5,689 11,984 51,718
Capital increase [
Dividends and cther disributioes (3,434} (3434)
Mt prcfit | foss) 4,070

Nepot o o hepeiod T T e
Bakince a2 of 31 December 2016 86 38,149 0 5,760 3,244 51,539

Statement of appropriation of retained earnings and proposed dividend distribution out of capital contribution reserve

Proposed appropriation of retained eamings

The Board of Directors propases that the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) on 2 March 2017 approve the following
appropriation of retained eamings.

Far the year ended
HF midloe ARG
bt profit for the period Er
Reasined esming: carmied loraand [1]
Total retsined esmings svalable for sppropriation 324
Approprission of retsined esmings
Appropristion 1o valunbary eaFnings reenve (3,244}
Reazined esrmings camied forwasd [1]

Proposed dividend distribution out of capital contribution reserve

The Board of Directars proposes that the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM)} on 2 March 2017 approve an ordinary
dividend distribution of CHF 2,250 million out of the capital confribution reserve.

For the year ended
CHF millom LILIE
Total sistetorny capital reienve: capiial contribution reserve belore distribusion’ 38,140
Distribution of capital contsibition reterve within stabubory capital reseres (2250
Total capital coniribution resenve after distriadion e
T Effecies 1 lanusary 2311, e Swtis wEnIckIing 13a lie proekie: 1has payreeees. ool oF 1he cipral Ve e T SAD{ECT 0 WENACKIIG 1as. THiS [w Nas 162 30 ImeiaRiatinnal desace: beoween
b Saiss Fedeial T Aominisurion and conzanies aboet the o reserey ang 1 in the financial sanemonms. In wisw of ik, the Swiss Federal Tan Admiskimation

hmmmmﬂuﬂmﬂumﬂﬂnﬂndmnﬂﬂmmm‘udqumlﬂmhtgnlpnnhldﬂhg-m
:"#uimmPHuimud_rgsﬂtml&ndﬂgﬂ!m‘mnhu“mhmimdmw decisin azour te Inaining ancem has Deen
LT} point in time.
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Mote 1 Name, legal form and registered office

UBS AG is mcorporated and domiciled in Switzerdand. Its
registered offices are at Bahnhofsirasse 45, CH-B001 Zurich and
Aeschenvorstadt 1, CH-4051 Bassl, Switzerland. UBS AG
operates under the Swiss Code of Obligations and Swiss federal

Mote 2 Accounting policies

EDINETOOOO
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banking law as a corporation  limited by shares
{aktiengesellschaft), a corporation that has ssued shares of
common stock to investors. UBS AG & 100% owned by UBS
Group &G, the ultimate parent of the UES Group.

UES AG standalone financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Swiss GAAP (FINMA Ciroular 2015 /1 and
Banking Ordinance) and reprasent *reliable assessment statutory
single-entity financial statements®. The accounting paolicies are
principally the same as for the consolidated financial statements
of UBS AG outlimed in Note 1 to the consolidatsd financial
statements of UBS AG included in the UBS Group AG and UBS
AG Annual Report 2016, Major differences betwesn the Swiss
GAAP requirements and International Financial Reporting
Standards are described in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements of UBS AG. The significant accounting policies
applied for the standatone financial statements of UBS AG are
discussed below.

— Refer to the LUBS Group AG and UBS AG Annual Report 2016 for

mare information

Risk managemeant

UES AG is fully integrated into the Group-wide risk management
process described in the awdited part of the "Risk management
and controd” section of the UBS Group AG and UBS AG Annual
Report 2016,

Further informaticon on the use of derivative instruments and
hedge accounting is prowvided in Motes 1 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements of UBS AG.

—+ Refer to the UBS Group AG and UBS AG Annual Report 2016 for

mare information

Compensation policy

The compensation structure and processes of UBS AG conform
to the compenszation principles and framework of UBS Group
A, For detailed information refer to the Compensation Report
of LUBS Group AG.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into
Swiss francs at the spot exchange rate on the date of the
transaction. At the balance sheet date, all monetary assets and
liabilities, as well as equity instruments recarded in Trading
partfohio assets and Financial investments denominated in
foreign currency, are translated into Swiss francs using the

closing exchange rate. Mon-monetary items measured at historic
cost are translated at the spot exchange rate on the date of the
transaction. Assets and liabilities of foreign branches are
tranelated imto Swiss francs at the cosing exchange rate. Income
and expense items of foreign branches are translated at
weighted average exchange rates for the period. Al currency
tranclation effects are recognized in the income statemendt.

The main cumency translation rates wsed by UBS AG are
provided in Maote 34 to the consolidated financial statements of
UBS AG.

— Refer to the UBS Group AG and UBS AG Annual Report 2016 for

more information

Structured debt instruments

Structured debt instruments consist of a host contract and one
or more embedded derivatives that do not relate to LUBS AG's
own equity. The embedded derivatives are assessed for
bifurcation for measurement purposes and presented in the
same balance shest line as the host contract. By applying the fair
value option, the vast majarity of structured debt instruments

are measured at fair value as a whole and recognized n

Financial labifties designated at fair wvalue. Structured debt

instruments comprise structured debt nstruments issued and

structwred  over-the-counter debt instruments. The fair value
aption for structured debt instruments can be applied only if the
following criteria are cumulatively met:

-  the structured debt instrument is measured on a fair value
basis and is subject to risk management that is equivalent to
risk management for trading activities;

- the application of the fair walue option eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting miematch that wouwld
otherwise ariss; and

= changes in fair value attributable to changes in unrealized
own credit are not recognized in the income statement and
the balance sheet.

Fair value changes related to Financial Nabifities designated at
fair value excuding changes in unrealized own credit, are
recognized in Met trading income. Interest expense on Fnandal
liabilities designated at fair walue s recognized in Interest
Bxpense.

— Refer to Note 18 for more information
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

Mote 2 Accounting policies (continued)
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Investments in subsidiaries and other participations

Investments in subsidianies and other parficipations are egquity
interests that are held to carry on the business of UBS AG ar for
other strategic purposss. They include all subsidiaries directly
held by UBS AG throwgh which UBS AG conducts its business on
a global basis. The investments are measured individually and
camried at cost kess impairment. The carrying value is tested for
impairment when indications for a decrease in value exist, which
inclede incurrence of significant operating bosses or a severe
depreciation of the cumency in which the westment &
denominated. f an investment in a subsidiary is impaired, its
value is generally written down to the net assst valwe.
Subsequent recoveries in value are recognized up to the original
cost value based on either the increased net asset walue or a
value above the net asset walue if, in the opimion of
management, forecasts of future profitability provide sufficient
evidence that a carrying wvalue above net asset walue B
supported. Management may exercise its discretion as to what
extent and in which period a recovery in value i recognized.

Impairments of investments are presented as dmpairment of
investments in subsidiaries and other participations. Reversals of
impairments are presented as Extrsordingry income in the
income statement. Impairments and partial or full reversals of
impairments for a subsidiary during the same annual penod are
determined on a net basis.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are not recognized in UBS AG's standalone
finandial statements. However, deferred tax Rabilities may be
recagnized for taxable temporary differences. Changes in the
deferred tax liability balance are recognized in the income
statement.

Services provided to and received from subsidiaries,
affiliated entities and UBS Group AG

Services provided to and received from UBS Group AG or any of
its subsidiaries are settled in cash as hard cost transfers or hard
revenue transfers paid or received.

When the nature of the underlying tranzaction betwesn UBS
AG and UBS Group &G or any of its subsidiaries contains a
single, clearly identifiable service element, related ncome and
expenses are presented in the respective income statement line
iten, e.g., Fee and commission income from securitiss and
fvestment business, Other fee and commission income, Fes and
commission  expanse. Net frading incorme or General and
administrative expenses. To the extent the nature of the
underlying transaction contains various service elements and is
not cleary attributable to a particular income statement line
itern, related income and expenses are presented in Sundry

ordinary income and Surdry ardinary expenses.
— Refer to Notes 4 and 6 for more information
Pension and other post-employment benefit plans

Swizs DAMF permits the use of IFRS or Swiss accounting
standards for pension and other post-employment benefit plans,
with the election made on a plan-by-plan basis.

UBS AG has elected to apply Swiss GAAF (FER 16} for the
Swizs pension plan in its standalone finandal statements. The
requirements of Swiss GAAP are better aligned with the specific
nature of Swiss pension plans, which are hybrid in that they
combine elements of defined contribution and defined benefit
plans, but are treated as defined benefit plans under IFRS. Swiss
GAAP requires that the employer contributions to the pension
fund are recognized as Persomnel expenses in the income
staternent. The employer contributions to the Swiss pension
fund are determined as a percentage of contributory
compensation. Furthenmaore, Swiss GAAP requires an assessment
a5 to whiether, based on the financial statements of the pension
fund prepared in accordance with Swiss accounting standards
{FER 2&), an economic benefit to, or obligation of, UBS AG arises
from the pension fund and is recognized in the balance sheet
when conditions are met. Conditions for recording a pension
aszet or lability would be met if, for example, an employer
confribution reserve is available or UBS AG is required to
contribute to the reduction of a pension deficit (om a FER 26
basis).

Key differences between Swiss GAAF and IFRS indude the
treatment of dynamic elements, such as future salary increases
and future interest credits on retirement savings, which are not
considered under the static method wsed in accordance with
Swiss GAAP, Also, the discount rate used to determine the
defined benefit coligation in accordance with IFRS & based on
the yield of high-quality corporate bonds of the market in the
respective pension plan country. The discount rate wsed in
accordance with Swiss GAAP, ie., the technical interest rate, is
determined by the Pension Foundation Board based on the
expected retumns of the Board's investment strategy.

— Refer to Note 20 for more information

UBS AG has elected to apply IFRS {145 19) for its non-Swiss
defined benefit plans. However, remeasurements of the defined
benefit obligation and the plan assets are recognized in the
income statement rather than directly in  equity. For
corresponding  disclosures  in accordance  with 1A% 19
requirements, refer to Mote 26 to the consolidated financial
statemnents of UBS AG.

- Refer to the unsmmuﬂunsmmlwmﬂw

maore information
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Mote 2 Accounting policies (continued)
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Subordinated assets and liabilities

Subordinated assets are comprised of claims that, based on an
irrevocable written declaration, in the event of Bguidation,
bankruptoy or restructuring of the debtor, rank after the claims
of all other creditors and may not be offset against amounts
payable to the debior nor secured by its assets. Subordinated
liakbilities are comprised of comesponding obligations.

Subordinated assets and liabilities that contain a point-of-
non-viability clause in accordance  with  Swiss  capital
requiremients per artickes 29 and 30 of the Capital Adequacy
Ordinance are disclosed a5 being subject fo  mandatory
conversion and £ or debd waikver and provide for the daim or the
obligation to be written off or converted into equity in the event
thiat the issuing bank reaches a point of non-viability.

Dispensations in the standalone financial statements

As UBS AG prepares consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, UBS AG i exempt from wvarious
disclosures  in the standalone financial statements. The
dispensations indude the management report, the statement of
cash flows and various note didosures, as well as the
publication of interim financial statements.
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

Mote 3a Net trading income by business

Feor whe year ended % change fom
CHF midle L6 31215 1215
Inetstment Bank £ ] 35320 =1
o el Ciniporate Clént Sobibine @ T
B Lo oo AT .. ... S
Total et trading incoss 3,330 3,75 &
Mote 3b Met trading income by underlying risk category
Fit thee pear erfied % change from
CHF il EiRFA NA215 AALS
Interest rale instruments (including funds) b ] (e ]
Fisneign exchange instuments 1,208 1,812 an
Equity issrussents jinduding funds) 1,797 1,622 1)

L 0

e
Tootal met trading incoss 3,930 3,725 §
of wicle: et guies . Rnsses) frots Sonarcie! Kadtiviess cbecigratect st i ke [T )

1 Esciudes tair vabue chamges of hecges selaied m financial Babilises deskgraied ot fair vales and fossign cumency e¥fiocts arising fiom Tansidng fomign canency Mamctions imo the respeciee uncional oanescy,
toch of shich any mponed within et radieg inmne.

MNote 4 Sundry ordinary income and expenses

Fiat Hhee e ecfied % change fros
CHF midle I 1NA215 LS

Total sundry ondinary incose 4740 4,706 1
Losses Trom arly redemption of debit @ 1273 (55}
Excpranses from Burd revene transers {480} a7 {1ty
Other o7 (55 64
Total sundry ondinary expenses {539 1831 s

T Feaeses: incoma receives om LIES Gioug &G 202 aisaclars i The UBS Grap 1or Services pueied by UBS AG. §erwices prowced by LIES AG primasty selned oo C oizorale Copier b oo,
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Mote 5 Personnel expenses

For the yasr ended % change from
CHF mitlon EIRFR( INAZAS 311215
(18

— performance awards 1,448 1707

64 191 114)

Pension and other poit-emphoyment benefit plens

Weslth Mansgement Americas: Financisl sfvisor compensation

Orther persannel espengid

Total pefannne] expetie 6,350 6438 i)
1 Farfleors 1 semisunomman of the defined bonerin aokgarion and pan asss 0 amoents nckided in inEne incone o the nos-Swiss defised benedt plans, Soo which 145 19 b applied.

IR
=
&

MNote 6 General and administrative expenses

For the year ended % change fos
M i EjRFA[ 1215 NAZIE

0
o
Comsisnication snd marked dita serdces (3

S

B8

B

o il i and oither seveices r

B3E

Outsoircing of IT and other senices 1477 1,57
Total general and administrative expenses 5,073 5615
| Fusgresms ewpenses o1 sorwices poowicod by UBS Groap AS and sebeidiaries in te UBS Goup m UBS &5,

gE
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

Mote 7 Extraordinary income and expenses

For the year ended % change fom
CHF midle ARG IMARIE 1215
Geing from dispesals of swhiidisries snd other participations 78 334 [rp]
Reseerial of impaiments and previsions of subsidianie and other parlispalion 1415 9,551 (85)
et i om dsposas ol pogerties e AR
Total esrmondinery income 1637 10,264 (24)
Lisswes from dispasals of subsidiaries and olher paricipations 1 1 0
Total eaxaondinary expendes 2 136 =]

In 2016, UBS AG contributed the majority of its mon-US
participations conducting Asset Management businesses into
UES Asset Management AG, a direct subsidiary of UBS AG. The
ontribution was made at the aggregate cost value of the
transferred investments of CHF 1.5 billion. This resulted in a gain
of CHF 1.1 billion, recognized within Extracrdinary income, as
impairment losses recorded in previous years on some of these
investments wene reversed.

Alsp n 2016, UBS AG's direct Wealth banagement
subsidianies UBS (ltaka) Sp&, UBS {Luxembourg) 5.4 (including
its branches in Austria, Denmark and Sweden), UBS Bank 5.A.
{Madrid) and UBS Bank {Metherlands) BW. were merged into
UES Deutschland AG, which was renamed to UBS Europe SE and
is headquartered in Frankfurt, Germany. The merger resulted in

Note 8 Taxes

the recognition of a gain of CHF 0.3 billion, recognized within
Extraordinary fncome, as certain impairment losses recorded in
previous years were reversed.

In 2015, UBS AG contributed its participations im UBS
Americas Inc., UBS Securities LLC and three Asset Management
subsidiaries into UBS Americas Holding LLC, a direct subsidiary
of UBS AG. This contribution was made at a fair value of CHF
21.2 billion, resulting in a gain of CHF 10.0 billion that was
recognized in the income statement, largely as Extracrdingry
incovme, and which increased UBS AG's investment value in UBS
Americas Holding LLC.

Fior the yesar e
IIL6

% change s

31215 EIRER LT

Faor the year ended 31 December 2016, the average tax rate,
defined as income tax expense divided by the sum of operating
profit and extraordinary income minus extracrdinary expenses
and capital tax, was 3.5% (2015 1.5%). Income tax expense for

10

the year ended 31 December 2016 included a benefit of CHF
256 million (2015: CHF 2,128 million) from the utilization of tax
losses carried foreward in UBS AG's main tax jurisdictions.
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Mote 9 Securities financing transactions
i bl AL EIRFAE

On-balance sheet
Rescetvables from securities Enanding transactions, gros [[E] 1333
Hetsing of securities Snancing traractions {495} 428
Rescaivables from securities Snandng iranssctions, met A8 205
Peyabies from secusities financing ransactions, gross Ta8 oa.2
Payabies from secusities financing iransactions, ne k] 555
ety pledged & colatesd in connecion with securities Snandng transections EL] 540
o il traobing portiteb assets i 528
B T e o 171

o iy epeets vk may e soltf or replectped’ by countarpanmes a8 17

Off-balance sheet
i teafle of assets peceived o collateralin conection with seouifies finandng tianssetions 0 s e

1ERg
o il sl i comecnie Heitl shovt sk Bansactines 155 i

MNote 10a Collateral for loans and off-balance sheet transactions

ALIE 215
Secuned Lireacyined Todsl Servined Unsecuned Totsl
Ot el cedt Oeter ot credd
I million Realestale  collsteral  enhancements? Real emeare  collsteral'  pnhancements?

o
o
42811 $08.275 45284 64,213 1,457 Iy 0R3IN
[F]
4,583

Total on-balsnce sheed, net 437 60,902 41,743 908,192 64,071 1457 ILET0 102080

1] 1219 1993 1,183 25,395 o
lrewocable comsitments, gross EorS 12301 3316 9014 47,073 456 9,673 7515 3356 50901

aither aquitiies 0 0 0 5 5 (1] 0 (1] T 7
Total offf-belance shest M N TSS9  SO380 70,046 436 13425 9,608 SRET B3

T Wainly compatied of casn a0 SECUSTRS. 2 ITCRMIES CHIER OULaaE SAcink ] QEORATINEL 3 INCIACes pITe DROLSLE Maigt T Mefioks aR0 PUME EOKITagE crhalks Miaing (D se0ie: Traiong
tansamions. 4 Frimanily compissd of aroans du ton sebeidianes.

11
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

Mote 10b Impaired financial instruments

HALE

Amounts die from aubomers

.bh'wlwu

Gonsa impuired Al

Guaraniess and losn commitments.

I
|zl

Total impaired finandial instnaments

Note 11a Allowances

W i

Medps ey s
pat curreny =
Weiteofs  dueinesst  translation EARFE [

Specific dlowances Tor amounts due from cusomens snd morigage nare

{168 0 ] T8

Spodlcowences for mounts Qe OMBMAS s st

0 ] o

1 Wainly 1ebins 1 3nouns due o ORMmmes.

MNote 11b Provisions

W i

sl ance
asal

IA215

recognized

inom
slalesen

=

Balance
cufency ol
irarelation 311216

Foreign

|

Dielarult risk relatesd b logn commilments and quatsnbee 3

15

] 13

Diperational sisks

0

]

EEEE

] 15

Ea=§§i§§§

&l similar

]

Real eatae?

Perental wpport Lo subsidiarie

]

6

S B
0

i

e
0

Oithes

i

4
—

So-B.E

L
0 ]

§..33

1. TEG 3&7 153 7 (1% 1,501

aam ks 2 Inchiges for oo ks contracts of CHF 16 millian a6 of 31 Decerber 2016 {31 Decenber 2015: CHF 25 millon) and seisstriensent
of CHF &1 million as of 31 Decembe 3316 (31 Decenbe 20015 CHF &3 milion]

Total prcsions
1 Inchudes prordsions for Enigamion sewdiing
o fout leasohiald imp

12
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Mote 12 Trading portfolio and other financial instruments measured at fair valua
W i EiREA LS

Bzt
Trading portielio assets 74,282 24,210
o il dledt instraiments” rgors e
i U - .. UL
S5 035
o sl pracivus metak and oilter Al commonities 2905 115
Testal sty ssssuarad 8 air value T4 22 94,210
o it i o i g & it oo’ L 158 1§ 753
o il scrities affipie i rapurchase fravesctions i accordnce wit' Spoity regedinis? e 1588

lies. desigrated &2 Lair value?
Total abilifes meeured 24 fair value 67,341 79,23

o il s e v DEsT 3 W od’ Erf- &5
1 Inchides maney maiket pager. 2 Consists of high quakity liqeid detr secuivies 1hat ase elgible for sepurchase Tansacions a1 e Seiss Mational Bank o ovher ceniral banks. 3 Reter %0 Kma 18 for mone

13
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

MNote 13 Derivative instruments

A28 1215

PRV KRV waluies

£

a
_Eﬁﬂé 5

2

B

§

7. .
Total 184 637 13.8 180 517

e WA vl b ity s bt Ol ... S
o it dlevieatives dlnipaied i Mecle acronnting relainmie 0z
oz

o iy i e cleen Lty enkution Ao
Netsing with cash collateral payables | receivables 195 1.5 1T 0.7

Replacement vk netsrg {1153 (1755 i1383) [136.3)
Total et retting FIl] FIl:] 2 U7

o eVl el covra claning couniREITEY e

Tinclices Sarman fane apeamat., 2 PRV, pouivh MELKEEN: vakis. 3 RAV. Daaive Mobemin ke,

14
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Mote 14a Finandal investments by instrument type

L8 IALIE

CHF il Camying velue Fafwslbe  Camying value Fair uslue
Dbt iretsusisnits M7 463 17,295 17,354

1 ity 7 g

o ; e i - g
Peugesity 1 B g g
Total finandal mestmments 34,669 s 17,528 17,588

o il seveeniting apiie Jor rapurcinase RTINS i accordance et Moty repedating? ECEE ELE ) R FT 181
1 Quaiified parficiurions are mvemmens. in which UES A5 hokds 105 or mone of the sotal Gpital of has. af et 10% of wtal viieg Aights. 1 Comsbsts of high quality bquid defn secaiities than e sligile for
sepirchant TansaTians. an the Swis harional Bank or o comeal banics.

Mote 14b Financial investments by counterparty rating — debt instruments

CHF milicn HA216 AL
Irdernal UBS. rating’

Mottt 4 10

Total finandal investments 34477 27,296
1 Beter 1o Motw 17 for mone irlemation.

MNote 15a Other assets

CHF mdtlion AL 34215
Seitlement snd cheating atcounts 116
Bed depass’ 1,210
Dther 1435
B MMMGWAGM ammsmp R

Tekal ether assels 31885
1 Rl 10 o | 1 ot 2002 0 e US5 A consaiidated financial statersents in the UES Grmuap AG asd UBS &G Avieal Repan 2716 %1 mas |

SRR

MNote 15b Other liabilities

HF il HALIE A5
Dislirea! passition lit hedigiong instruments 2EM6
Seitlement snd cheating atcounts 132
VAT and cther indinect tax payables 10

Other 1,785 1208
B e g T e e ey oy e

Total ather lisbilites 4113 5505

58%Y
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

Note 16 Pledged assets
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Az of 31 December 2016, assets pledged by UBS AG were
entirely comprised of securities with a carrying value of CHF
1,809 million (31 December 2015: CHF 2,537 milion) with a
related effective commitment of CHF 160 million {31 December
2015: CHF 258 millicn). These asssts were primarily pledged for
derivative transactions and exclude assets pledged for securities
financing transactions. They also exclude assets placed with

Mote 17 Country risk of total assets

The table below provides a breakdown of total non-Swiss assets
by credit rating. Thess credit ratings reflect the sovereign credit
rating of the country to which the ultimate risk of the underlying
asset is related. The ultimate country of risk for unsecured loan
pasitions i the domicile of the immediate bormower or, in the
case of a legal entity, the domicile of the ultimate parent entity.
For collateralized or guaranteed positions, the ultimate country
of risk is the domicile of the provider of the collateral or
guarantor or, if applicable, the domicile of the ultimate parent
entity of the provider of the collateral or guarantor. For

central banks related to undrawn credit lines and for payment,
clearng and settlement purposes that together amounted to
CHF 1.8 bilion a5 of 31 December 2016 {31 December 2015:
CHF 2.1 billion).
— Refer to Note 9 for more information on securities financing
transactions

mortgage loans, the ultimate country of risk is the country
where the real estate is located. Similarly, the ultimate country
of risk for property and equipment is the country where the
property and equipment is located. Assets for which Switzerland
is the ultimate country of risk are provided separately in order 1o
recondle them to total balance sheets assets.
— Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of the UBS
Group AG and UBS AG Annual Report 2016 for more
information

INILIE ARG
Maoady's Innestors
Clasilication Intesnal LIRS rating  Descriplion Senice Srandand & Poor's  Fitch CHF million ® CHF milion e
Oand 1 Irvesiment grade Ahak LT A 0, 113 E ) 137 855 48
Aad Ak 1o A~ Adw 1o Ad— F- ] 30
Low ik B 3 A Bt 15 AA~ ]
BBB+ 1 BBE BB+ 1o BEE 4
Medius risk R A 18 AR 8 -
BEE- BRB- 1 1
1
sk
High a L]
o .
B Li] ]
B- a L]
ugh fisk

vy I I - I TR
3 ol CCra CCra 1} L]
Disiredsed [iefais Dl sialted ] ] ] [ Li] 5 ]
Subiotal 393,175 ;2] 436,336 a
Switperland 46,31 1" 40,709 k]
Tokal sdets 439,476 1m 477,045 100

16
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Mote 18 Structured debt instruments
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The table below provides a breakdown of finandal liabilities designated at fair value that are considered structured debt instruments.

3,132,168 AR

1,778 3m7

Sarutused oner-e-countir (OTC) debt instuments

Total financal Ratilifies designaned at fir vaee

1 Itk piecinis mesk-inked debn ipspmens Beapel

In addition to financial Rabilities designated at fair value, certain
structured debt instruments were reported within the balance
sheet lines Dwe to banks, Due to customers and Bonds ssued.
These nstruments were bifurcated for measurement purposes,
Az of 31 December 2016, the total carrying walue of the host

Mote 19a Share capital

UBS AG shares

UBS AG's share capital consists of fully paid up registered issued
shares with a par value of CHF 0,10, which entitle the holder to
one vote at the UBS AG sharshalders’ meeting, if entered into
the share register as having the right to vote, as well as a
proportionate share of distributed dividends. UBS AG does not
apply amy restrictions or limitations on the transferability of
shares.

As of 31 December 2016, shares Bsued by UBS AG totaled
3,858,408 466 shares {unchanged from 31 December 2015)
that were all dividend bearing and held by UBS Group AG.

Additionally, as of 31 December 2016, 516,200,312

instruments was CHF 5,197 milion (31 December 2015: CHF
3,624 milkon) and the total carrying value of the bifurcated
embedded derivatives was positive CHF 116 million (31
December 2015: negative CHF 60 millian).

registered shares with a par walue of CHF 010 each were
available to be issued out of conditional capital (31 December
2015: 552,352,759).

During 2016, there were no new share issuances out of
conditional capital. During 2015, shares issued by UBS AG
increased by 12,847 553 shares dus to the issuance of new UBS
A5G shares out of conditional share capital upon distribution of a
share dividend in May 2015.

Non-distributable reserves

Mon-distributable reserves consist of 50% of the share capital of
UBS AG, amounting to CHF 193 milion as of 31 December
2016 junchanged from 31 December 2015).

17
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

Note 19b Significant shareholders
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The sale direct shareholder of UBS AG is UBS Group AG, which
holds 100% of UBS AG shares. These shares are entitled to
voting rights. Indirect sharehaolders of UBS AG included in the
table below comprise direct shareholders of UBS Group AG
{acting in their cwn name or in their capacity as nominees for
other investors or beneficial owners) that were registerad in the
UBS Group AG share register with 3% or maore of the share

capital of UBS Group AG as of 31 December 2016 ar as of 31
December 2015. The shares and share capital of UBS AG held by
indirect shareholders represent their relative holding of UBS
Group AG shares. They do not have voting rights in UBS AG.
— Refer to Note 23 to the UBS Group AG standalone financial
statements in the UBS Group AG Annual Report 2016 for more
infarmation on significant shareholders of UBS Group AG

IALIE 31215
CHF midlice, ervent wihveve inclcates’ Share copital held  Sheves hedd (%)  Shere capitsl held  Shares beld (%)
Signilicand direct shaveholder of UES &G
LPES Group &G 186 100 386 100
Sigriliicann indisecy shareholders of UBS AG
Cheeie Namines Lid., Lasdon 36 9 15 9

DTC (Cede & i), Mesw Yok

“TIDUE (Corke B Co), Hew York, - The Deposhary Tnst Congany,” 5a U5 ssouilies cRaiing ciganeaion.

18
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MNote 20 Swiss pension plan and non=Swiss defined benefit plans

a} Liahilities related to Swiss pension plan and non-Swiss defined benefit plans

HF il .92, ERFA LS
Pecrwitiion for Swiis pension plen [ 0
het defined benefit |isbilities for non-Seiss defred benelit plans' &7 128
Tiokal preraisinnn for Swiss pension plin and net defined benelit [isbiitie for non-Swiss defined bansfil plans &7 129
Bk soooinis ol UES and UBS debi irdtrussents held by Swits pession fund m 260
o o o e — s
Tokal Nabiliies relatid s Swiss pention plan snd non-Swiss defined benelit plars 964 416

1 #5 of 31 Decomber 3318, CHF 525 million selaood 1o e UE defined bonerdit persion and CHF 26 million relmed 1o 1he UE pos-employment
anmmp.mu:mmw:pnnnuﬁzmm:dalmmm

mecical imserance plan. As of 31 December 2015, CHF 25 milken

sekatiesd m thie L
b) Swiss pension plan
Aol o for the year ended
HF mdtlion A6 3MAZIE
O B e, e e et . L
Economic benefi § jobligesion) of UBS AG L1} o
wﬂd i e Irm'.e dtatermenl

Em

Tkl peefusion ipaense recoanibed in e income absment within Personn| sxpenie:

1 The
FER 18 oth as.of 31 Decenbe 2005 and 31 Deambor 2015

UBS AG has elected to apply FER 16 for its Swiss pension plan
and IFRS (145 19) for its UK and other non-Swiss defined benefit
plans. Howewver, remeasurements of the defined benefit
obligations for UK and other non-Swiss defined benefit plans are
recognized in the income statement rather than directly in
equity.
—+ Refer to Mote 2 for more information
— Refer to Mote 26 to the UBS AG consolidated financial
statements in the UBS Group AG and UBS AG Annual Repart
2016 for mone information on non-Swiss defined benefit plans
in sccordance with LAS 19

MNote 21 Share-based compensation

& drmmined in scoidano wit FER 25 and oonses of 1he msesve for the Secaeation in asen s, The serples did nor mpreseet an sconenic bereti for UES AG in moodance sith

The Swiss pension plan had no employer contribution ressrve
bath as of 31 Decemiber 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Expenses for awards under employes share, option, notional
fund and deferred cash compensation plans granted to UBS AG
employess are generally charged by UBS Group AG to UBS AG.
Obligations related to other compensation wehidles, such as
defined benefit pension plans and other local awards, are held

by the relevant employing and 7 or sponsoring subsidiaries, such
a5 UBS AG.
= Refer to Note 27 to the UBES AG consolidated finandial
statements in the UBS Group AG and UBS AG Annual Report
2016 for more information

14
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

Note 22 Related parties

Transactions with related parties are conducted at internally
agresd transfer prices, at arm's length, ar with respect to loans,
fixed advances and mortgages to non-independent members of

the Board of Directors and Group Executive Board members on
the same terms and conditions that are awailable to other
emplayees.

EIRFALS INALE
CHF midlioe Amounts due from Amounts due to  Amounits due from Amounts due ta
Duialified shanbolders) 522 | 5,776
o ol ol froe B0 CosRORRers R 57 s
Sbsiimies T am JEL-" R
o il e froa /By Beiviks: 35 157
...... oo et o et S

“Membess of the Boerd of Direcsors and Group Executive Bogrd

20

1 Thee qadition shansholder of UBS &G i USS Goup A5 2 Atikned encities of UES &5 aw all direct subsiciavios. of UES Geowp A5 3 Primadly sebnes to 51 Geowp A4, in shich UBS A5 has a 17.3% sqehy
s

As of 31 December 2016, off-balance sheet positions related to
subsidiaries amounted to CHF 24.8 billion {31 December 2015:
CHF 26.5 billion}, of which CHF 17.5 billion were guarantess to

Mote 23 Fiduciary transactions

third parties (31 December 2015: CHF 19.4 bilkon) and CHF 4.5
billion were loan commitments (31 December 2015 CHF 5.3
billlion).

CHF millicsr 3.92.16 IALIE
Fidduciary depesits M9 T

o which: pisced with thich gty Akt 349 i
...... R e e
Tokal fiduciary transaction: 349 310

Fiduciary transactions encompass transactions entered into or
granted by UBS AG that result in holding or placing assets on
behalf of individuals, trusts, defined benefit plans and other
institutions. Unless the recognition criteria for the assets are
satisfied, these assets and the related income are excluded from
UBS AG's balance sheet and income statement, but disclosed in

20

this Mote as off-balance sheet fiduciary wransactions. Client
depasits that are initially placed as fiduciary transactions with
UBS AG may be recognized on UBS AG's balance shest in
situations in which the depasit B subsequently placed within
UBS AG. In such cases, these deposits are not reported in the
table above.
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Mote 24a Invested assets and net new money

Fiot B yesar e
CHF i L6 EIRFRE]

Hote 24b Development of invested assets

Fior ghee yesar e

P L8 EIRFALY
Total invested assets at the baginning of the pear 488 1076

Tetal imvesied asets at the end of the year' 509 488

1 ladudes double coents. 2 Inclages inenes and dividend incone.

—+ Refer to Mote 33 to the UBS AG consolidated financial statements in the UBS Group AG and UBS AG Annual Report 2016 for morne
information

21
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AG
UBS AG UBS AG
IFRS UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS
UBS
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG
AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
AT
CET
UBS
UBS AG AT
- UBS AG UBS AG
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AG UBS AG
UBS
AG
AG
AG UBS AG
UBS
NCI
2016 12 31
CET
AG AT
2014 2015 2016
DCCP

https://www.ubs.com/global/en/about__ubs/investor__relations/annualreporting/2016.html

Capital management
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UBS AG( )
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
28,421 30,605 28,026
24,352 25,198 25,557
( 4,069 5,407 2,469
3,207 6,235 3,502
6.9 13.5 8.2
3.0 3.1 2.8
85.6 82.0 90.9
(48.6) 78.0 10.4
2.1 2.2 2.5
3
Tier 14.5 15.4 14.2
5.8
RoE 5.9 11.7 7.0
6 13.2 14.3 12.6
3
935,353 943,256 1,062,327
53,662 55,248 52,108
Tier 32,447 32,042 30,805
Tier 39,474 41,516 44,090
223,232 208,186 217,158
Tier 17.5 19.5 19.9
16.3
22.6
Tier 3.7 3.6 3.1
4.2
7 870,942 898,251 999,124
8 2,821 2,689 2,734
10 56,208 58,131 60,155
1
UBS AG
https://www.ubs.com/global/en/about__ubs/investor__relations/annualreporting/2016.html Measurement
of performance 2 2015 99
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AG UBS

management
7

12 31

2016 12 31
9,717
2,308

2016

AG 2,250
585
27
SRB
® 2016
SRB
13,512
4,734 CC
63 02016 12 31 UBS
43
2016
2016

2016

2016 12 31

UBS AG

SRB

UBS AG

20,632
AG

RMBS
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UBS AG UBS
CET 607
45
4
UBS AG Capital
6
Capital management 2015
2015 12 31 SRB
9
5,100
cC ALM 142 cC
59,387
14
3,118
2017 27

102
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UBS AG UBS AG
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
28,320 28,421 (101) 30,605 30,605 0
24,230 24,352 122) 25,116 25,198 (82)
4,090 4,069 21 5,489 5,407 82
1,948 1,936 12 2,689 2,676 13
1,107 1,081 26 718 692 26
1,760 1,761 @ 1,646 1,646 0
452 451 1 584 583 1
1,004 962 42 1,892 1,852 40
(2,181) (2,121) (60) (2,040) (2,042) 2
(849) (826) 23) (818) (822) 4
AL (218) (182) (36) 282 281 1
(1,114) (1,113) @ (1,503) (1,501) @
3,286 3,288 @ 6,386 6,314 72
3,204 3,207 ) 6,203 6,235 32)
78 78 77 )
82 4 78 183 3 180
(1,116) (1,115) @ (605) (606) 1
(1,386) (1,386) 0 (506) (545) 39
271 @71 59) 59
271 0 271 99) @ ©7)
2,170 2,173 ®) 5,781 5,709 72
1,817 1,820 ©) 5,698 5,690 8
349 (349) 18 18)
352 3 349 83 1 82
935,016 935,353 (337) 942,819 943,256 437)
880,714 881,009 (295) 885,511 886,013 (502)
54,302 54,343 1) 57,308 57,243 65
53,621 53,662 41) 55,313 55,248 65
642 (642) 1,954 (1,954)
682 40 642 1,995 41 1,954
Tierl 30,693 32,447 1,758) 30,044 32,042 (1,998)
Tierl 37,788 39,474 (1,686) 40,378 41,516 (1,138)
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1 39,844 36,294 3,550
1 55,593 51,084 4,509
222,677 223,232 (555) 207,530 208,186 (656)
Tierl
13.8 14.5 0.7) 14.5 15.4 0.9)
Tierl
16.8 17.5 ©.7) 19.0 19.5 (0.5)
1 17.9 16.3 1.6
1 24.7 22.6 2.1
870,470 870,942 472) 897,607 898,251 (644)
Tier
3.5 3.7 0.2) 3.3 3.6 (0.3)
1 4.6 4.2 0.4
1 6.4 5.8 0.6
1
2016 SRB
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UBS AG
SRB
UBS AG SRB
— UBS AG too big to fail
SRB CAO 125
( )
FINMA
FINMA 2013 12 20 UBS AG
2014
FINMA SRB UBS AG
14.0 UBS AG
2016 12 31
SRB Tier
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
51.5 51.7
1.2 1.9
(15.6) (16.6)
0.4) (0.4)
2.3) G.4)
(0.5) (0.6)
Tier ) 34.0 32.7
! IFRS SRB Tier
CET
2016 2016 2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
Tier 10.0 14.6 14.4 23,251 33,983 32,656
Tier 10.8 14.6 14.4 25,111 33,983 32,656
14.0 14.6 14.4 32,548 33,983 32,656
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Tier 33,983 32,656

Tier 3,919 1,252

Tier 1,071 0
Tier (4,990) (1,252)

Tier 0 0

Tier 33,983 32,656
Tier 10,402 10,325

Tier 642 1,954

Tier 698 996
Tier (11,742) (13,276)
Tier 0 0
33,983 32,656

232,422 227,170

Tier 14.6 14.4

Tier 14.6 14.4
14.6 14.4
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SRB
1
2016 2016 2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
Tier 2.4 6.0 5.2 13,488 33,983 32,656
Tier 2.6 6.0 5.2 14,572 33,983 32,656
3.4 6.0 5.2 18,883 33,983 32,656
Tier 10 24 Tier 10.8 24 14 24
SRB

2016 2015

12 31 12 31
GAAP 439.5 477.0
GAAP IFRS 151.3 170.0
SETE (248.3) (295.5)
SFT 342.5 351.5
98.5 124.1
93.5 130.8
40.7 42.6
SRB Tier (13.2) (14.9)
562.0 634.0

2016 2015

12 31 12 31
Tier 33,983 32,656
Tier 0 0
Tier 0 0
33,983 32,656
6.0 5.2
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Tier 33,983 34,844 34,128 33,678 32,656
561,979 588,098 625,789 636,514 633,985
BIS 6.0 5.9 5.5 5.3 5.2
UBS AG FINMA LCR 105
2016
98
76
188
112

129
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S&P
S&P
S&P500
2000
2000 RTY
-RUT 2000
2000 3000
3000 3000
2,000
3000 10 3000
3,000
225 50 S&P500
2000
225
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
10,395.18 16,291.31 17,935.64 20,868.03 19,494 .53
8,295.63 10,486.99 13,910.16 16,795.96 14,952.02
2016 2016 2016 2016 10 2016 11 2016 12
16,810.22 16,919.92 17,081.98 17,446.41 18,381.22 19,494.53
15,106.98 16,083.11 16,405.01 16,598.67 16,251.54 18,274.99
2017 16 225 19,943.26
50
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
2,659.95 3,111.37 3,314.80 3,828.78 3,290.52
2,068.66 2,511.83 2,874.65 3,007.91 2,680.35
2016 2016 2016 2016 10 2016 11 2016 12
2,999.48 3,049.03 3,091.66 3,093.86 3,056.29 3,290.52
2,761.37 2,906.98 2,935.25 2,975.04 2,954.53 3,015.13
2017 16 50 3,543.88
S&P500
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
1,465.77 1,848.36 2,090.57 2,130.82 2,271.72
1,277.06 1,457.15 1,741.89 1,867.61 1,829.08
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2016 2016 2016 2016 10 2016 11 2016 12
2,175.03 2,190.15 2,186.48 2,163.66 2,213.35 2,271.72
2,088.55 2,157.03 2,125.77 2,126.15 2,085.18 2,191.08
2017 16 S&P500 2,433.15
2000
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
864.697 1,163.637 1,219.109 1,259.799 1,388.073
737.241 872.605 1,049.303 1,083.907 953.715
2016 2016 2016 2016 10 2016 11 2016 12
1,219.942 1,248.581 1,263.438 1,250.764 1,347.203 1,388.073
1,139.453 1,202.349 1,211.591 1,187.613 1,156.885 1,313.803
2017 16 1,406.728
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Sharehol ders of

UBSAG

We have audited UBS AG and subsidiaries internal control over financia reporting as of 31 December 2016, based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (2013 Framework) (the COSO criteria). UBS AG's management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financia reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financia reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financia reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company'sinternal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, UBS AG and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of 31 December 2016, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of UBS AG and subsidiaries as of 31 December 2016 and 2015, and the related
consolidated income statements, statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows, and notes thereto,
for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2016, and our report dated 9 March 2017 expresses an
unqualified opinion thereon.
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Ernst & Young Itd

Basel, 9 March 2017
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To the General Meeting of Basel, 9 March 2017

UBS AG, Zurich and Basel

Statutory auditor's report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UBS AG and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated income statements, statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December
2016, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies on pages
478-634.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financia
position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2016 in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law, Swiss Auditing Standards and International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those provisions and standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law and the requirements of the Swiss audit
profession, aswell asthe IESBA Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Deferred tax asset valuation

Areaof focus

We focused on this area because there is significant judgment exercised when determining the
valuation of Deferred Tax Assets ("DTAS') given the significant amount of tax net operating loss
carryforwards (net operating losses or "NOLS") the Group has available. DTAs can be recognized to
the extent it is probable they will be utilized to offset taxable profits within the loss carryforward
period or be used against deductible temporary differences. The estimate of future taxable incomeis
based on the strategic plan which is then allocated to the tax-paying entities in the various
jurisdictions. The recognition of deferred tax assetsis therefore sensitive to changes in the strategic
plan as well asto assumptions made in the allocation of future taxable income.

See note 8 to the financial statements on pages 518 to 521

Our audit response We tested the design and operational effectiveness of the Group's key controls over the recognition

and measurement of DTAs and the assumptions used in estimating the Group's future taxable income.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data used for the estimations of future taxable
income. This included auditing of computations of the models applied to the recognition process for
DTAs and testing the control framework around the models.

We involved EY specialists to assess the key economic assumptions embedded in the strategic plan.
We compared key inputs used by the Group to forecast future taxable income to externally available
data, the Group's historical data and performance and assessed the sensitivity of the outcomesto
reasonably possible changes in assumptions.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data used in the determination of the legal entity
allocation, the assumptions applied by the Group, and the accuracy of the computation of the legal
entity allocations.

We also assessed whether the Group's disclosure regarding the application of judgment in estimating
recognized and unrecognized DTAS reflect the Group's deferred tax position (within note 8).

Legal provision & contingencies

Area of focus

We focused on this area because the Group operatesin alegal and regulatory environment that is
exposed to significant litigation and similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings.
Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and the outcome may be difficult to predict. These
uncertainties inherently affect the amount and timing of potential outflows with respect to the
provisions which have been established and other contingent liabilities. Overall, the legal provision
should represent the Group's best estimate for existing legal matters that have a probable and
.estimable impact on the Group's financial position.

See note 20 to the financial statements on pages 539 to 550
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Our audit response We tested the design and operational effectiveness of the Group's key controls over the legal

provision and contingencies process.

We assessed the methodol ogies on which the provision amounts are based, recalculated the
provisions, and tested the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information. We read the legal
analyses supporting the judgmental aspectsimpacted by legal interpretations. We obtained
correspondence directly from external legal counsel to corroborate the information provided by the
Group and followed up directly with external counsel as deemed necessary.

We aso assessed the Group's provisions and contingent liabilities disclosure (within note 20).

Vauation of complex or illiquid trading portfolio assets and liabilities, financial assets and liabilities and derivative
financial instruments held at fair value

Area of focus

We focused on this area because of the complexity and judgments and assumptions over the fair
valuation of financial assets and liabilities with significant unobservable inputs.

We have continued to focus on market developments in fair value methodologies and specifically on
the Group's higher estimation uncertainty ("HEU") products, Credit Valuation Adjustment ("CVA") /

Funding Vauation Adjustment ("FVA"), and Own Credit Adjustment ("OCA") Curve.

See note 22 to the financial statements on pages 552 to 572

Our audit response We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the key controls over the financial instrument

valuation processes, including controls over market data inputs into valuation models, model
governance, and valuation adjustments.

We tested a sample of the valuation models and the inputs used in those models, using a variety of
techniques, including comparing inputs to available market data.

We selected a sample of positions and independently determined estimated values and compared the
values to the Group's recorded values.

In addition, we evaluated the methodology and inputs used by the Group in determining funding and
credit fair value adjustments on uncollateralized derivatives and fair value option liabilities.

We also assessed the Group's disclosure (within note 22).

IT Controlsrelevant to financial reporting

Areaof focus

We focused on this area because the Group is highly dependent on its I T systems for business
processes and financial reporting. The Group continuesto invest initsIT systems to meet client needs
and business requirements including the effectiveness of itslogical access and change management I T
controls.
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Our audit response |n assessing the reliability of electronic data processing, we included specialized I T auditors as part of
our audit team. Our audit procedures focused on the I T infrastructure and applications relevant to
financial reporting including testing of the design and operating effectiveness of key IT general
controls and I T automated controls.

Our audit procedures related to logical access included testing of user access management, privileged
user access, periodic access right recertifications and user authentication controls.
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Other information in the annual report

The Board of Directorsisresponsible for the other information in the Annual Report. The other information comprises all
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements (pages 478 - 634),
the compensation report (pages 276-279 and page 301), disclosures denoted with an audited "signpost”, and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinions on the consolidated financial statements and the compensation report do not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon other than the disclosures denoted with an audited "signpost".

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financia statements, our responsibility isto read the other information in
the Annual Report and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors for the consolidated financia statements

The Board of Directorsis responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair
view in accordance with IFRS and the provisions of Swiss law, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directorsis responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Swiss
law, Swiss Auditing Standards and 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financia statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statementsis located at the website of
EXPERTsuisse: http://www.expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report-for-public-companies. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that an internal
control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with

the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd
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Marie-Laure Delarue IraS. Fitlin

Licensed Audit Expert Certified Public Accountant (U.S.)
(Auditor in Charge)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Sharehol ders of

UBSAG

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of UBS AG and subsidiaries as of 31 December 2016 and
2015, and the related consolidated income statements, statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows, and notes thereto, for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2016. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, aswell as evaluating the overall financia statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of UBS AG and subsidiaries at 31 December 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2016, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), UBSAG and subsidiaries' internal control over financia reporting as of 31 December 2016,based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (2013 framework), and our report dated 9 March 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young ltd

Baseal, 9 March 2017
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To the General Meeting of Basel, 2 March 2017

UBS AG, Zurich and Basel

Report of the statutory auditor on the financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements of UBS AG, which comprise the balance sheet, income
statement and notes (pages 1 to 21), for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Board of Directors responsibility

The Board of Directorsis responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of
Swiss law and the company's articles of incorporation. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of Directorsis further responsible for selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers the interna control system relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial statementsin order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control system. An audit aso includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 comply with Swiss law and the company's
articles of incorporation.

Report on key audit matters based on the circular 1/2015 of the Federal Audit Oversight Authority

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities section of our report, including in relation
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Vauation of complex or illiquid trading portfolio assets and liabilities and other financial assets, financial liabilities and

derivative financia instruments held at fair value

Areaof focus We focused on this area because of the complexity and judgments and assumptions over the fair
valuation of assets and liabilities with unobservable inputs. We have continued to focus on market
developments in fair value methodol ogies and specifically on UBS AG's higher estimation
uncertainty products and valuation adjustments. See notes 12 and 13 to the UBS AG financial
statements on pages 13 and 14.

Our audit response We tested the design and operating effectiveness of UBS AG key controls over the financial
instrument valuation processes, including controls over market data inputs into valuation models,
model governance and valuation adjustments. We tested a sample of the valuation models and the
inputs used in those models, using a variety of techniques, including comparing inputs to available
market data. We selected a sample of positions and independently determined estimated values and
compared the values to those recorded by UBS AG. In addition, we evaluated the methodology and
inputs used by UBS AG in determining valuation adjustments.

Vauation of investments in subsidiaries and other participations

Areaof focus We focused on this area because of the judgments and assumptions over the valuation of the
investments in subsidiaries and other participations. Investments in subsidiaries and other
participations comprise directly held equity interests. The relevant accounting policies of UBS AG are
described in note 2 to the financia statements on page 6.

Our audit response We tested the design and operating effectiveness of UBS AG key controls over the valuation of
investments in subsidiaries and other participations. Our audit work included testing the valuation
models and the data and assumptions used in those models.

Lega provision and contingent liabilities

Area of focus We focused on this area because UBS AG operatesin alegal and regulatory environment that is
exposed to significant litigation and similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings.
Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and the outcome may be difficult to predict. These
uncertainties inherently affect the amount and timing of potential outflows with respect to the
provisions which have been established and contingent liabilities. Overall, the legal provision should
represent the best estimate of UBS AG for existing legal matters that have a probable and estimable
impact on the financial position of UBS AG. See note 11b to the UBS AG financial statementson
page 12.

Our audit response We tested the design and operational effectiveness of UBS AG key controls over the legal provision
and contingencies process. We assessed the methodol ogy on which the estimate of the provision
amounts are based, recalculated the provisions, and tested the completeness and accuracy of the
underlying information. We read the legal analyses that support the judgmental aspects impacted by
legal interpretations. We obtained correspondence directly from external legal counsel to corroborate
the information provided by UBS AG and followed up directly with external counsel as deemed
necessary.
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IT Controlsrelevant to financial reporting

Areaof focus We focused on this area because UBS AG is highly dependent on its I T systems for business
processes and financial reporting. UBS AG continuesto invest inits I T systems to meet client needs
and business requirements including the effectiveness of itslogical access and change management IT
controls.

Our audit response |n assessing the reliability of electronic data processing, we included specialized IT auditors as part of
our audit team. Our audit procedures focused on the I T infrastructure and applications relevant to
financial reporting including testing of the design and operating effectiveness of key IT general
controls and I T automated controls. Our audit procedures related to logical access included testing of
user access management, privileged user access, periodic access right recertifications and user
authentication controls.

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act (AOA) and
independence (article 728 CO and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our
independence.

In accordance with article 728a para. 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that an internal control
system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of financial statements according to the instructions of the

Board of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss law and the company's
articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financia statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Marie-Laure Delarue Bruno Patusi

Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert
(Auditor in charge)
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